
 
 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

6:00 p.m., Regular Meeting 
Wednesday, July 9, 2014 

Suisun City Hall Council Chambers 
701 Civic Center Drive 
Suisun City, CA  94585 

 

 
Mission Statement:  To improve the quality of life in Solano County by delivering transportation system projects to 
ensure mobility, travel safety, and economic vitality. 
 

Public Comment:  Pursuant to the Brown Act, the public has an opportunity to speak on any matter on the agenda 
or, for matters not on the agenda, issues within the subject matter jurisdiction of the agency.  Comments are limited to 
no more than 3 minutes per speaker unless modified by the Board Chair, Gov’t Code § 54954.3(a).  By law, no action 
may be taken on any item raised during the public comment period (Agenda Item  IV) although informational 
answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred to staff  for placement on a future agenda of the 
agency.  Speaker cards are required in order to provide public comment.  Speaker cards are on the table at the 
entry in the meeting room and should be handed to the STA Clerk of the Board.  Public comments are limited 
to 3 minutes or less. 
 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA):  This agenda is available upon request in alternative formats to persons 
with a disability, as required by the ADA of 1990 (42 U.S.C. §12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Govt. Code 
§54954.2).  Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation should contact Johanna Masiclat, 
Clerk of the Board, at (707) 424-6008 during regular business hours at least 24 hours prior to the time of the meeting. 
 

Staff Reports:  Staff reports are available for inspection at the STA Offices, One Harbor Center, Suite 130, Suisun 
City during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday-Friday.  You may also contact the Clerk of the 
Board via email at jmasiclat@sta-snci.com.  Supplemental Reports:  Any reports or other materials that are issued 
after the agenda has been distributed may be reviewed by contacting the STA Clerk of the Board and copies of any 
such supplemental materials will be available on the table at the entry to the meeting room. 
 

Agenda Times:  Times set forth on the agenda are estimates.  Items may be heard before or after the times shown. 
 

 ITEM BOARD/STAFF PERSON 
1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                                                       Chair Davis 

(6:00 – 6:05 p.m.) 
 

2. CONFIRM QUORUM/ STATEMENT OF CONFLICT                                             Chair Davis 
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision; (1) publicly identify in 
detail the financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself/herself from discussing and 
voting on the matter; (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made. Cal. Gov’t Code 
§ 87200. 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

STA BOARD MEMBERS 
Osby Davis 

(Chair) 
Elizabeth Patterson 

(Vice Chair) 
Jack Batchelor, Jr. Harry Price Norman Richardson Pete Sanchez Steve Hardy Jim Spering 

        
City of Vallejo City of Benicia City of Dixon City of Fairfield City of Rio Vista City of Suisun City City of Vacaville County of Solano 

        
STA BOARD ALTERNATES 

Jesus Malgapo 
 

Alan Schwartzman Dane Besneatte 
 

Rick Vaccaro 
 

Constance Boulware 
 

Mike Hudson Dilenna Harris Erin Hannigan 
 

1

http://www.sta.ca.gov/
mailto:jmasiclat@sta-snci.com


4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

5. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
(6:10 – 6:15 p.m.) 

6. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT – Pg. 9  
(6:15 – 6:20 p.m.) 
 

Daryl K. Halls 

7. REPORT FROM THE METROPOLITAN 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION (MTC) 
(6:20 – 6:25 p.m.) 
 

MTC Commissioner 
Jim Spering 

 
 

8. REPORT FROM STA/PRESENTATIONS 
(6:25 –6:50 p.m.)   

 A. Bay Area Freight Plan 
B. Solano Rail Plan (Freight Component) 

 
C. Directors Reports 

1. Planning (Presentation: I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange 
– Bicycle Facility Improvements 

2. Projects  
3. Transit/Rideshare (Presentation:  Annual Vanpool 

Program Report 
 

Carolyn Clevenger, MTC 
David McCrossan, 

Menzies and McCrossan 
 

Andrew Hart 
 

Janet Adams 
Paulette Cooper 

 

9. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following consent items in one motion. 
(Note: Items under consent calendar may be removed for separate discussion.) 
(6:50 - 6:55 p.m.) 
 

 A. Minutes of the STA Board Meeting of June 11, 2014 
Recommendation: 
Approve STA Board Meeting Minutes of June 11, 2014. 
Pg. 15 
 

Johanna Masiclat 

 B. Draft Minutes of the TAC Meeting of June 25, 2014 
Recommendation: 
Approve Draft TAC Meeting Minutes of June 25, 2014. 
Pg. 25 
 

Johanna Masiclat 

 C. Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 Transportation Development Act (TDA) 
Matrix - July 2014 
Recommendation: 
Approve the FY 2014-15 Solano TDA Matrix – July 2014 as shown in 
Attachment B for the Cities of Dixon and Rio Vista. 
Pg.  31
 

Liz Niedziela 
 

2

http://www.sta.ca.gov/


 D. Solano Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) Vanpool Program 
Annual Report 
Recommendation: 
Receive and file. 
Pg. 35
 

Paulette Cooper 

 E. Solano Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) Work Program  
Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 
Recommendation: 
Approve the Solano Napa Commuter Information Work Program for FY 
2014-15 as specified in Attachment A. 
Pg. 39 
 

Judy Leaks 

 F. Solano Management Assistance Program (MAPS) – Termination of 
Contract 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to send a notice to the County of 
Solano's GIS Department regarding STA's intent to terminate the existing 
agreement with the County GIS Department for the purposes of the 
MAPS Program. 
Pg. 43
 

Robert Guerrero 

 G. Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) Appointment 
Recommendation: 
Appoint Teresa Booth representing the City of Vallejo to the Pedestrian 
Advisory Committee (PAC) for a three-year term. 
Pg. 71 
 

Sofia Recalde 

 H. Paratransit Coordination Council (PCC) Appointment 
Recommendation: 
Appoint Lyall Abbott to the Paratransit Coordinating Council for a 
three-year term as a Member-at-Large. 
Pg. 75 
 

Tiffany Gephart 

 I. Coordinated Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP)/ Intercity Transit 
Corridor Update - Contract Amendment  
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Allocate $1,000 in State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) for FY 
2014-15 for the Transit Corridor Study; and 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to execute a contract amendment 
with Arup for an amount not-to-exceed $1,000 to cover the costs 
associated to complete the Intercity Transit Corridor Study and to 
extend the contract to September 30, 2014. 

Pg. 79
 

Liz Niedziela 

3

http://www.sta.ca.gov/


 J. Transit Corridor Studies Project Manager - Contract Amendment 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Allocate $42,500 in State Assistance Fund (STAF) for FY 2014-15 
for Project Management Services for the Transit Corridor Studies; 
and 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to execute a contract with 
McElroy Transit for an amount not-to-exceed $42,500 to cover 
project management consultant services related to the Transit 
Corridor Studies and extend the contract to June 30, 2015. 

Pg.  81
 

Liz Niedziela 

 K. Mobility Management Program Project Manager – Contract 
Amendment 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Allocate $75,000 in State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) for FY 
2014-15 for Project Management services to implement Mobility 
Management; and 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to execute a contract amendment 
with Elizabeth Richards Consulting for an amount not-to-exceed 
$75,000 to cover project management consultant services related 
to the implementation of Mobility Management Programs and 
extend the contract to June 30, 2015. 

Pg. 87 
 

Liz Niedziela 

 L. Transit Finance and Coordination Project Manager - Contract 
Amendment 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Allocate $150,205 in State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) for 
FY 2014-15 for Transit Finance and Coordination Project 
Management Services; and 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to execute a contract amendment 
for Transit Project Management Services for Nancy Whelan 
Consulting/Nancy Whelan Consulting Partners for an amount not-
to-exceed $150,205 to cover transit related project management 
and financial services for the STA and the Cities of Dixon and Rio 
Vista and extend the contract to June 30, 2015. 

Pg. 91
 

Liz Niedziela 

4

http://www.sta.ca.gov/


 M. STA’s Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Program Public Safety 
Enforcement Grant 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Authorize the STA Executive Director to enter into an agreement 
with the City of Vacaville in the amount of $60,000 for the Safe 
Routes to School Public Safety Enforcement Grant; and  

2. Authorize the STA Executive Director to enter into an agreement 
with the City of Rio Vista in the amount $30,360 for the Safe 
Routes to School Public Safety Enforcement Grant. 

Pg. 99
 

Judy Leaks 

 N. Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Program Logo 
Recommendation: 
Approve the logo for Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Program as shown in 
Attachment D. 
Pg. 113
 

Sarah Fitzgerald 

 O. Active Transportation Program (ATP) Resolution of Local Support 
Recommendation: 
Approve the STA Resolution of Local Support No. 2014-19 for $387,498 
for the Solano County Safe Routes to School for the Active 
Transportation Program Grant Submittal. 
Pg. 121
 

Sarah Fitzgerald 

 P. State Route (SR) 12/Church Road Environmental Document 
Implementation 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following for the Project Approval/Environmental Document 
(PA/ED) Phase of the State Route 12/Church Road Intersection 
Improvement Project authorizing the Executive Director to: 

1. Enter into a Funding Agreement with the City of Rio Vista for 
$600,000; 

2. Seek approval from Caltrans to be the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) lead; 

3. Enter into a Cooperative Agreement with Caltrans; 
4. Issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Project Manager Services 

and Consultant Services; 
5. Enter into a contract with a consultant to develop the project’s 

environmental document for an amount not-to-exceed $550,000; 
6. Enter into a contract with a qualified Project Manager for an 

amount not-to-exceed $50,000; and 
7. Approve a Local Preference Goal of 1%. 

Pg.  129
 

Janet Adams 

5

http://www.sta.ca.gov/


 Q. Dixon West B Street Pedestrian Undercrossing Construction 
Management - Contract Amendment 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to amend the PB Construction 
Management contract for an amount not-to-exceed an additional $64,200 
to complete services needed during construction; as well as closeout the 
project to allow for final invoicing to Caltrans. 
Pg. 131 
 

Janet Adams 

 R. Lease of Suisun Fairfield Train Depot Office for SNCI Transit 
Information and Regional Commute Services  
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to enter into a lease agreement with the 
City of Suisun City to staff the office located at the Suisun-Fairfield Train 
Depot for two years with the option to extend the lease for an additional 
two years for an amount not-to-exceed $1 per year. 
Pg.  135
 

Daryl Halls 
 

10. ACTION FINANCIAL ITEMS 
 

 A. STA’s Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 Proposed Budget Revision and  
FY 2015-16 Proposed Budget 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Adopt the STA’s FY 2014-15 Proposed Budget Revision as shown 
in Attachment A;  

2. Adopt the STA’s FY 2015-16 Proposed Budget as shown in 
Attachment B; 

3. The FY 2014-15 Cost of Living Adjustment of 2.1% effective July 
1, 2014; 

4. The transfer of the North Connector funds in the amount of 
$1,100,000 to the Project Contingency Reserve Fund; and 

5. An interfund loan from Project Contingency Reserve Fund of 
$500,000 to the Jepson Parkway Project. 

(7:00 – 7:10 p.m.) 
Pg. 155 
 

Daryl Halls and 
Susan Furtado 

 B. Regional Transportation Impact Fee (RTIF) Implementation Projects 
Recommendation: 
Approve the Regional Transportation Impact Fee (RTIF) projects for FY 
2014-15 as specified in Attachment B. 
(7:10 – 7:20 p.m.) 
Pg. 165 

 

Robert Guerrero 

6

http://www.sta.ca.gov/


11. ACTION NON FINANCIAL ITEMS 
 

 A. STA’s Overall Work Plan (OWP) for Fiscal Years (FY) 2014-15 and 
2015-16 
Recommendation: 
Approve the STA’s Overall Work Plan for FY 2014-15 and 2015-16. 
(7:20 – 7:25 p.m.) 
Pg. 175 
 

Daryl Halls 

 B. Solano County Annual Pothole Report 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the release the Solano County Annual Pothole Report for a 30-
day public comment period as specified in Attachment A.  
(7:25 – 7:40 p.m.) 
Pg. 211 
 

Anthony Adams 

12. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS – NO DISCUSSION  
 

 A. Legislative Update 
Pg.  215
 

Jayne Bauer 

 B. I-80/I-680/State Route (SR) 12 Interchange – Bicycle Facility 
Improvements 
Pg. 253 
 

Andrew Hart 

 C. Solano Rail Facilities Plan Update 
Pg. 255
 

Sofia Recalde 

 D. SB 743 California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines 
Update 
Pg. 271
 

Robert Macaulay 

 E. Quarterly Project Delivery Update 
Pg. 273 
 

Anthony Adams 

 F. Fiscal Year (FY) 2013-14 Abandoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) 
Program Third Quarter Report 
Pg. 297 
 

Judy Kowalsky 

 G. Summary of Funding Opportunities 
Pg. 299 
 

Andrew Hart 

 H. STA Board and Advisory Committee Meeting Schedule 
for Calendar Year 2014 
Pg. 303
 

Johanna Masiclat 

13. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the STA Board is at 6:00 p.m., Wednesday,  
September 10, 2014, Suisun Council Chambers.   

 
7

http://www.sta.ca.gov/
http://www.sta.ca.gov/docManager/1000004863/TAC%20Members%20Only_07.Ba_DRAFT%20Solano%20Pothole%20Report%20Finalv2.pdf


This page intentionally left blank. 

8



Agenda Item 6 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  July 1, 2014 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Daryl K. Halls 
RE:  Executive Director’s Report – July 2014 
 
 
The following is a brief status report on some of the major issues and projects currently 
being advanced by the Solano Transportation Authority (STA).  An asterisk (*) notes 
items included in this month’s Board agenda. 
 
Adoption of STA's Overall Work Program (OWP) for Fiscal Years (FY) 2014-15 
and 2015-16 * 
The STA's Overall Work Program (OWP) for the next two fiscal years has been updated 
to reflect the current status of the plans, projects and programs the STA is currently 
working on or plans to work on over the next two years.  The STA's OWP has been used 
to guide the development of the STA's budget which is also included with this agenda.  
This OWP was presented at the June STA Board meeting and has been reviewed by the 
Solano Express Transit Consortium, STA TAC, and Solano City Manager's group.  Two 
new items funded as part of this OWP are the State Route 12/Church Road 
Environmental Document for FY 2014-15 and the Water Transit Study for FY 2015-16.  
 
STA Budget Revision for FY 2014-15 and New Budget for FY 2015-16 * 
STA's Finance and Accounting Manager, Susan Furtado, has prepared the revised budget 
for FY 2014-15 and new budget for FY 2015-16.  The overall budget for both fiscal years 
is balanced between expenditures and revenues and covers all of the STA's staff and 
work tasks identified in the Overall Work Program. 
 
I -80 Corridor a Solano Priority in New Bay Area Freight Plan Underway * 
The Metropolitan Transportation Commission has been working in recent months with 
Caltrans District 4, STA, the Alameda County Transportation Commission, the Oakland 
Port Authority, and other regional transportation partners to develop a Bay Area Freight 
Plan.  This is designed to help inform the next Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable 
Communities Strategy (SCS) and new state and national freight plans.  MTC staff and 
their consultant will provide an informational presentation at the STA Board meeting.  
With the strong encouragement of STA, the I-80 corridor and SR 12 have been featured 
prominently in the draft Bay Area Freight Plan being developed. 
 
Freight Component of Solano Rail Plan to Be Highlighted * 
An important component of both the new Bay Area Freight Plan and STA's Solano Rail 
Plan is the movement of freight via rail.  STA's consultant, Menzies/McCrossan, will be 
providing the first informational presentation on the freight component of the Solano Rail 
Plan.

9



Executive Director’s Memo 
July 1, 2014 
Page 2 of 4 

 
 
State Cap and Trade Program Discussions Wrap Up as Part of State Budget 
Discussions   
The Governor and leaders in the State Legislature wrapped up year one of Cap and Trade 
discussions with a first year allocation plan similar to the initial plan proposed by the 
Governor in January with a program structure for future Cap and Trade Program 
allocations requested by the State Legislature requested by various interest groups such as 
the California Transit Association, California Association of Council of Governments, 
and others.  In summary, there was some traction obtained in dedicating funding for 
transit, intercity rail and sustainable community activities at the regional and local level, 
but there is still much work to do in how the funds will be allocated in the future to 
ensure Solano County's priorities in transit, rail and sustainable communities at the local 
level are addressed.  More detailed information is included with this month's State 
Legislature report.   
  
STA Board to Consider Initial Year of RTIF Projects * 
In February of 2014, Solano County's updated County Facility Fee that includes the new 
Regional Transportation Impact Fee (RTIF) component went into effect.  An estimated 
$90,000 was collected for the period of February through March of 2014.  These RTIF 
funds are being distributed to the RTIF districts from which it was collected or to County 
unincorporated roads (5%) or Regional Transit Centers (5%).  STA has been meeting 
with all of the city and County members of the RTIF Working Groups and these groups 
have developed an initial list of projects to be funded from the first year or some cases 
first five years of RTIF funds.   
 
Solano County Pothole Report Reveals Status and Funding Shortfalls of Solano 
County Roads * 
STA staff has worked closely with the public works departments of all seven Solano 
County cities and the County of Solano to develop Solano's First Annual Solano County 
Pothole Report.  The report highlights that collectively the County and the seven cities 
are investing $18 million annually in maintaining our local streets and roads, which is 
only half the annual amount needed to maintain the County Pavement Condition Index 
(PCI) at 65 which is just rated as "fair."  I want to acknowledge the efforts of STA's 
Anthony Adams, former STA staff members Sam Shelton and Jessica McCabe, and all of 
the local public works staff that helped contribute to the development of this report. 
 
SolTrans Celebrates Start of Curtola Park and Ride Expansion Project 
On June 26th, I joined with STA Board Members Osby Davis, Elizabeth Patterson, Harry 
Price, Norm Richardson and Jim Spering, and Solano County Transit (SolTrans) to 
commemorate the start of construction for the Curtola Park and Ride Lot expansion.  This 
regional transit hub project will provide of additional parking, improved transit access, 
and additional safety and passenger amenities.  STA provided assistance in helping to 
fund the project and worked with the City of Vallejo and SolTrans through the design of 
the project.  This project will also be the first Solano County transit center to incorporate 
public private partnership components into the design of the project to incorporate paid 
parking, electric vehicle charging stations, solar panels, advertizing and vending 
opportunities to help off-set the annual operations and maintenance costs for the facility 
once it is completed.

10



Executive Director’s Memo 
July 1, 2014 
Page 3 of 4 

 
 
STA to Partner with Rio Vista to Start SR 12/Church Road Project * 
In recent years, the STA has assisted several cities and the County in the delivery of local 
priority transportation projects.  The City of Rio Vista is interested in moving forward to 
get the SR 12/Church Road Intersection Project environmentally cleared and ready for 
future design and construction.  This project was highlighted as a near-term safety and 
operational improvement in the SR 12 Corridor Study conducted by STA and has been 
identified as a priority for implementation by the City of Rio Vista.  STA has been 
requested to management the environmental clearance for the project and to coordinate 
with Caltrans.  
 
Annual Vanpool Program Report Highlights Significance of Vanpools in Solano *  
Currently, 42% of the vanpools registered in the Bay Area travel from, to, or through 
Solano County.  The past two years, the SNCI program has met or exceeded its annual 
goal for formation of new vanpools (27 each year).  This has resulted in a net gain of 
vanpools and reversed a trend of deleted vanpools that occurred between 2009 and 2012 
during the downturn in the regional economy.        
 
Attachment: 

A. STA Acronyms List of Transportation Terms (Updated June 2014) 
 

11



This page intentionally left blank. 

12



A        
ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments 
ATP Active Transportation Program 
ACTC Alameda County Transportation Commission 
ADA American Disabilities Act 
AVA Abandoned Vehicle Abatement 
APDE           Advanced Project Development Element (STIP) 
AQMD Air Quality Management District 
ARRA American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 
B 
BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
BABC Bay Area Bicycle Coalition 
BAC Bicycle Advisory Committee 
BART Bay Area Rapid Transit 
BATA Bay Area Toll Authority 
BCDC Bay Conservation & Development Commission 
BT&H Business, Transportation & Housing Agency 
C 
CAF Clean Air Funds 
CALTRANS California Department of Transportation 
CARB California Air Resources Board 
CCCC (4’Cs) City County Coordinating Council 
CCCTA (3CTA) Central Contra Costa Transit Authority 
CCJPA Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Authority 
CCTA Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 
CHP California Highway Patrol 
CIP Capital Improvement Program 
CMA Congestion Management Agency 
CMIA Corridor Mobility Improvement Account 
CMAQ Congestion Mitigation & Air Quality Program 
CMP Congestion Management Plan 
CNG Compressed Natural Gas 
CTC California Transportation Commission 
D 
DBE Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
DOT Department of Transportation 
E 
ECMAQ Eastern Solano Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Program 
EIR Environmental Impact Report 
EIS Environmental Impact Statement 
EPA Environmental Protection Agency 
EV Electric Vehicle 
F 
FAST Fairfield and Suisun Transit 
FEIR Final Environmental Impact Report 
FHWA Federal Highway Administration 
FPI Freeway Performance Initiative  
FTA Federal Transit Administration 
 
G 
GHG Greenhouse Gas 
GIS Geographic Information System 
 
H 
HIP Housing Incentive Program 
HOT High Occupancy Toll 
HOV High Occupancy Vehicle 
I 
ISTEA Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act 

ITIP Interregional Transportation Improvement Program 
ITS Intelligent Transportation System 
J 
JARC Jobs Access Reverse Commute Program 
JPA Joint Powers Agreement 
L 
LATIP Local Area Transportation Improvement Program 
LEV Low Emission Vehicle 
LIFT Low Income Flexible Transportation Program 
LOS Level of Service 
LS&R Local Streets & Roads 
 
M 
MAP-21 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century 
MIS Major Investment Study 
MOU Memorandum of Understanding 
MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 
MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
MTS Metropolitan Transportation System 
N 
NCTPA Napa County Transportation & Planning Agency 
NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 
NHS National Highway System 
NOP Notice of Preparation 
O 
OBAG One Bay Area Grant 
OTS Office of Traffic Safety 
 
P 
PAC Pedestrian Advisory Committee 
PCC Paratransit Coordinating Council 
PCRP Planning & Congestion Relief Program 
PCA Priority Conservation Study 
PDS Project Development Support 
PDA Priority Development Area 
PDT Project Delivery Team 
PDWG Project Delivery Working Group 
PMP Pavement Management Program 
PMS Pavement Management System 
PNR Park & Ride 
PPM Planning, Programming & Monitoring 
PPP (P3) Public Private Partnership 
PS&E Plans, Specifications & Estimate 
PSR Project Study Report 
PTA Public Transportation Account 
PTAC Partnership Technical Advisory Committee (MTC) 
R 
RABA Revenue Alignment Budget Authority 
RBWG  Regional Bicycle Working Group 
RFP Request for Proposal 
RFQ Request for Qualification 
RM 2 Regional Measure 2 (Bridge Toll) 
RPC  Regional Pedestrian Committee 
RRP Regional Rideshare Program 
RTEP Regional Transit Expansion Policy 
RTIF Regional Transportation Impact Fee 
RTP Regional Transportation Plan 
RTIP Regional Transportation Improvement Program 
RTPA Regional Transportation Planning Agency 

13



 
S 
SACOG Sacramento Area Council of Governments 
SAFETEA-LU Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient     
 Transportation Equality Act-a Legacy for Users 
SCS Sustainable Community Strategy  
SCTA Sonoma County Transportation Authority 
SFCTA San Francisco County Transportation Authority 
SJCOG San Joaquin Council of Governments   
SHOPP State Highway Operations & Protection Program 
SMAQMD Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality 
 Management District 
SMCCAG San Mateo City-County Association of Governments 
SNCI Solano Napa Commuter Information 
SoHip Solano Highway Improvement Plan 
SolTrans South County Transit 
SOV Single Occupant Vehicle  
SP&R State Planning & Research 
SR State Route 
SR2S Safe Routes to School 
SR2T Safe Routes to Transit 
STAF State Transit Assistance Fund 
STA Solano Transportation Authority 
STIP State Transportation Improvement Program 
STP Federal Surface Transportation Program 
T 
TAC Technical Advisory Committee 
TAM Transportation Authority of Marin 
TAZ Transportation Analysis Zone 
TCI Transportation Capital Improvement 
TCIF Trade Corridor Improvement Fund 
TCM Transportation Control Measure 
TCRP Transportation Congestion Relief Program 
TDA Transportation Development Act 
TDM Transportation Demand Management 
TE Transportation Enhancement  
TEA-21 Transportation Efficiency Act for the 21st Century 
TFCA Transportation Funds for Clean Air  
TIF Transportation Investment Fund 
TIGER Transportation Investment Generating Economic Recovery 
TIP Transportation Improvement Program 
TLC Transportation for Livable Communities 
TMA Transportation Management Association 
TMP Transportation Management Plan 
TMS Transportation Management System 
TOD Transportation Operations Systems 
TOS Traffic Operation System 
T-Plus Transportation Planning and Land Use Solutions 
TRAC Trails Advisory Committee 
TSM Transportation System Management 
U, V, W, Y, & Z 
UZA Urbanized Area 
VHD Vehicle Hours of Delay 
VMT Vehicle Miles Traveled 
VTA Valley Transportation Authority (Santa Clara) 
W2W Welfare to Work 
WCCTAC West Costa County Transportation Advisory  
 Committee 
WETA Water Emergency Transportation Authority  
YCTD Yolo County Transit District 
YSAQMD Yolo/Solano Air Quality Management District 

ZEV Zero Emission Vehicle 

14



Agenda Item 9.A 
July 9, 2013 

 
 
 
 

 
 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Minutes for Meeting of 

June 11, 2014 
 

1. CLOSED SESSION  
• PERSONNEL MATTERS (Gov’t Code §549547): 

Public Employee Performance Evaluation:  Executive Director 
 
Chair Davis cited that there were no matters to report. 
 

2. CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Davis called the regular meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  A quorum was confirmed. 
 

 MEMBERS 
PRESENT: 

 
Osby Davis, Chair 

 
City of Vallejo 

  Elizabeth Patterson, Vice-
Chair 

City of Benicia 

  Jack Batchelor City of Dixon 
  Norman Richardson City of Rio Vista 
  Pete Sanchez City of Suisun City 
  Steve Hardy City of Vacaville 
  Jim Spering County of Solano  
    
 MEMBERS 

ABSENT: 
 
Harry Price 

 
City of Fairfield 

    
 STAFF 

PRESENT: 
 
Daryl K. Halls 

 
Executive Director 

  Bernadette Curry  Legal Counsel 
  Janet Adams Deputy Exec. Director/Dir. of Projects 
  Robert Macaulay Director of Planning 
  Johanna Masiclat Clerk of the Board/Office Manager 
  Susan Furtado Accounting & Administrative Svc. Manager 
  Jayne Bauer Marketing & Legislative Program Manager 
  Liz Niedziela Transit Manager 
  Judy Leaks Program Manager – SNCI & SR2S 
  Robert Guerrero Project Manager 
  Sarah Fitzgerald Program Services Administrator – SR2S 
  Anthony Adams Assistant Project Manager 
  Tiffany Gephart Transit Mobility Coordinator 
  Paulette Cooper Commute Consultant 
  Betsy Beavers SR2S Program Coordinator 

15



  Kristina Holden Customer Service Representative 
  Zoe Maldinar Customer Service Representative 
  Samantha Sipin Customer Service Representative 
  Joy Apilado HR Consultant 
  Elizabeth Richards STA Project Manager 
  Nancy Whelan STA Project Manager 
    

 ALSO PRESENT:  (In alphabetical order by last name.) 
  Birgitta Corsello County of Solano 
  Bill Emlen County of Solano 
  Amanda Dum City of Suisun City 
  Katie Halls Member of the Public 
  Kenneth Halls Member of the Public 
  Lauren Halls Member of the Public 
  Maggie Halls Member of the Public 
  Joe Leach City of Dixon 
  Tracy Rideout City of Vacaville 
  Mike Roberts City of Benicia 
  Edith Thomas Connections 4-Life 
  Matt Tuggle County of Solano 
    

3. CONFIRM QUORUM/STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 
A quorum was confirmed by the Clerk of the Board.  There was no Statement of Conflict declared 
at this time. 
 

4. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
On a motion by Board Member Hardy, and a second by Vice Chair Patterson, the STA Board 
approved the agenda to include an amendment to Agenda Item 9.F, FY 2014-15 Transportation 
Development Act (TDA) Matrix – June 2014 – Fairfield and Suisun Transit (FAST), Solano 
County Transit (SolTrans), STA and City of Vacaville.  (A copy of the amended staff report was 
provided to the Board members under separate cover.) (7 Ayes, 1 Absent (City of Fairfield)) 
 

5. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
Robert Powell, Vallejo Resident, commented on the Bicycle Trail concerns he had in Vallejo and 
other parts of Solano County.  
 
Mr. Powell also provided a copy to the Clerk of Board and STA Board Members of the following: 

1. Memo (dated Oct. 12, 2012) to STA regarding: 
a. Wayfinding Signage:  Green Valley Rd./I-80 On-ramp Access to I-80 Bike Path; 

and 
b. Bike Path Access: State Route 37 and Sacramento Street Bike Path  

2. Letter (dated May 20, 2014) to Governor Jerry Brown Jr.) expressing urgent and past 
needs for the California Cross State Bikeway. 

 

16



6. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 State Cap and Trade Program Focal Point of State Budget Discussions 
 CTC Awards $11 Million in Proposition 1B TCIF Funds for Fairfield/Vacaville Train 

Station 
 Cordelia Truck Scales Project Named State Safety Project of the Year 
 STA and Caltrans Commemorate Start for Phase 1 Construction of I-80/I-680/SR 12 

Interchange Project 
 Ferry Maintenance Facility Breaks Ground on Mare Island 
 STA Board Decision Regarding CTSA Designation by MTC 
 Management of Intercity Paratransit Service 
 STA and SolTrans Propose to Partner to Implement Public Private Partnership (P3) 

Components as Part of Curtola Park and Ride Lot Expansion 
 Adoption of Title VI Program 
 Overall Work Program for FY 2014-15 and FY 2015-16 
 STA Staff Update 

 
7. REPORT FROM THE METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION (MTC) 

None presented. 
 

8. REPORT FROM STA 
A. Directors Report 

1. Planning 
2. Projects 
3. Transit/Rideshare 
 

9. CONSENT CALENDAR 
On a motion by Board Vice Chair Patterson, and a second by Board Member Sanchez, the STA 
Board unanimously approved Consent Calendar Items A through J as amended.  (7 Ayes, 1 Absent 
(City of Fairfield)) 
 

 A. Minutes of the STA Board Meeting of May 14, 2014 
Recommendation: 
Approve STA Board Meeting Minutes of May 14, 2014. 
 

 B. Draft Minutes of the TAC Meeting of April 30, 2014 
Recommendation: 
Approve Draft TAC Meeting Minutes of April 30, 2014. 
 

 C. Fiscal Year (FY) 2013-14 Third Quarter Budget Report 
Recommendation: 
Receive and file. 
 

 D. STA’s Fiscal Year (FY) 2013-14 Proposed Final Budget Revision 
Recommendation: 
Adopt the STA’s FY 2013-14 Proposed Final Budget Revision as shown in Attachment A. 
 

17



 E. City of Fairfield’s SolanoExpress Signage and Schedules Funding Request 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. $6,533 of State Transit Assistance Funds to the City of Fairfield to reimburse cost 
for FAST SolanoExpress signage and schedules; and 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into a funding agreement with the City 
of Fairfield to cover the cost up to $6,533 for the FAST SolanoExpress signage 
and schedules. 

 
 F. Amended - Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 Transportation Development Act (TDA) 

Matrix - June 2014 – Fairfield and Suisun Transit (FAST), Solano County Transit 
(SolTrans), Solano Transportation Authority (STA) and City of Vacaville 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Approve the FY 2014-15 Solano TDA Matrix – June 2014 as shown in Attachment B 
for Fairfield and Suisun Transit, Solano County Transit, Solano Transportation 
Authority, and City of Vacaville;  

2. Approve STA Resolution No. 2014-17 authorizing the filing of a claim with MTC for 
the allocation of $447,586 TDA funds for FY 2014-15. 

 
 G. STA Project Delivery Policy Update  

Recommendation: 
Adopt the STA Project Delivery Policy as shown in Attachment A. 
 

 H. Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) Membership Status and Appointments 
Recommendation: 
Appoint the following PCC Committee Members for a three (3) year term: 

1. Ernest Rogers, Transit User; 
2. Emily Flynn, Social Service Provider; and 
3. Kenneth Grover, Transit User 

 
 I. Transportation Development Act (TDA) Article 3 – Rio Vista Waterfront Promenade 

Project 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. City of Rio Vista’s Resolution No. 2014-025 for FY 2014-15 TDA Article 3 for the 
Waterfront Promenade Project as specified in Attachment A; and 

2. STA Resolution No. 2014-18 approving the submittal of the Countywide 
Coordinated Claim to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission for the allocation 
of FY 2014-15 TDA Article 3 Pedestrian/Bicycle Project Funds to Claimants in 
Solano County. 

 
 J. Dixon West B Street Pedestrian Undercrossing Construction – Contract Amendment 

Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to execute a contract amendment with HDR for an amount 
not-to-exceed $25,000 for a total authorized level of $360,000 to complete design support 
services during construction. 
 

18



10. ACTION – FINANCIAL ITEMS 
 

 A. Public Private Partnership (P3) Feasibility Study: SolTrans Implementation 
Robert Guerrero summarized the estimated budget for implementing P3 options for 
Curtola/Lemon St. Transit Center is $125,000.  He cited that STA staff is recommending an 
amendment to KPMG’s contract to assist the STA and SolTrans with the scope of work.  He 
added that SolTrans Board took action and approved the recommendation at their May 21st 
Board meeting.  STA staff is recommending $100,000 from State Transit Assistance Funds 
(STAF) with a $25,000 local contribution from SolTrans.   
 
Robert Guerrero explained that this new implementation phase to be continued by KPMG is 
a follow up to their work in completing the STA’s P3 Feasibility Study.  He added that staff 
is recommending an amendment to KPMG’s current contract to include the proposed scope 
and budget to ensure a seamless transition and a relatively quick way to implement P3 
components as part of the Curtola project before it is completed in 18 months. 
 
Daryl Halls commented that STA staff assessed the consultant during the first phase of the 
project and concluded that KPMG has provided a quality level of service and expertise 
related to public and private partnership strategies.  He added that specific to the SolTrans 
Curtola Park and Ride Hub Project, there are five (5) components that would potentially 
have financial benefits to SolTrans that would offset future operating and maintenance costs.  
The components are advertising, paid parking, vending, implementation, and management of 
solar infrastructure as well as outsourcing of Operations and Maintenance (O&M) activities.  
He mentioned that the Solar PV P3 option alone is estimated to provide an annual cost 
savings between $100K-$150K annually.  
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Board Comments: 
Vice Chair Patterson expressed her support for the recommendations listed below. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Programming of $100,000 of FY 2014-15 STAF funds for the P3 Implementation 
Scope of Work as match funding for $25,000 to be provided by SolTrans; 

2. Authorize the STA Executive Director to enter into a funding agreement with 
Soltrans to implement P3 options for the Curtola/Lemon St. Transit Center; and 

3. Authorize the STA Executive Director to amend KPMG's existing contract to assist 
in implementing P3 options as outlined in the Attachment A for an amount not to 
exceed $125,000. 

 
  On a motion by Vice Chair Patterson, and a second by Board Member Spering, the STA 

Board unanimously approved the recommendation. (7 Ayes, 1 Absent (City of Fairfield)) 
 

19



11. ACTION – NON-FINANCIAL ITEMS 
 

 A. Legislative Update 
Jayne Bauer reviewed the following bills and stated that a request to support the bills will 
be presented to the STA Board at their June 11th meeting: 

1. Senate Bill (SB) 1077 (DeSaulnier) – To develop a pilot program implementing a 
Mileage-Based Fee (MBF) in California to replace the state’s existing fuel excise 
tax; and  

2. Assembly Bill (AB) 2197 (Mullin) – to require the DMV to develop a temporary 
license plate system to enable vehicle dealers and lessor-retailers to affix temporary 
license plates to vehicles. 

 
  Public Comments: 

None presented. 
 

  Board Comments: 
Vice Chair Patterson requested to modify the recommended position on Senate Bill (SB) 
1077 (Saulnier) from “Watch” to “Support”.  Board Member Spering disagreed and 
expressed support for the staff recommendation. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Approve the following positions: 

1. Watch - Senate Bill (SB) 1077 (DeSaulnier) - To develop a pilot program 
implementing a Mileage-Based Fee (MBF) in California to replace the state’s 
existing fuel excise tax; and 

2. Support - Assembly Bill (AB) 2197 (Mullin) – to require the DMV to develop a 
temporary license plate system to enable vehicle dealers and lessor-retailers to affix 
temporary license plates to vehicles. 

 
  On a motion by Board Member Spering, and a second by Board Member Sanchez, the STA 

Board unanimously approved the recommendation. (7 Ayes, 1 Absent (City of Fairfield)) 
 

 B. STA’s Title VI Program - Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964  
Tina Spencer, Nancy Whelan Consulting, presented the Title VI Program which the STA is 
required to adopt, as a recipient of federal transit funds, to ensure there is no discrimination 
based on race, color, or national origin, including the denial of meaningful access for limited 
English proficient (LEP) people.  She continued by citing that as a means of ensuring this 
access, the Federal Transit Administration Office of Civil Rights has created a handbook for 
public transportation agencies that provides step-by-step instructions for conducting the 
required LEP needs assessment and developing a Language Assistance Plan which becomes 
the blueprint for ensuring that language does not present a barrier to access to the agency’s 
programs and activities.  She concluded by identifying the general findings that identify the top 
four (4) languages in the STA service area that will inform the Language Assistance Plan:   
Spanish (or Spanish Creole), Tagalog, Chinese (Mandarin & Cantonese), and Vietnamese.   
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

20



  Board Comments: 
Board Member Sanchez clarified that English is not “the national” language of the 
Philippines, it is Tagalog.   
 

  Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Adopt the STA’s 2014 Title VI Program; and 
2. Authorize the Executive Director to submit the Title VI Program to Caltrans. 

 
  On a motion by Board Member Spering, and a second by Board Member Hardy, the STA 

Board unanimously approved the recommendation. (7 Ayes, 1 Absent (City of Fairfield)) 
 

 C. Mobility Management – Consolidated Transportation Service Agency (CTSA) 
Elizabeth Richards reported that at the STA TAC meeting on May 28th, the item was 
presented along with an update of what transpired at the Consortium.  The TAC also voted 
to table a recommendation on the item.  On June 2nd, the STA Board’s Executive 
Committee considered the item and recommended the STA Board approve STA requesting 
CTSA designation by MTC for Solano County as prescribed in Attachment H.  STA staff 
recommends the STA Board approve STA requesting CTSA designation by MTC for 
Solano County. 
 

  Public Comments: 
Edith Thomas, Connections 4-Life Executive Director and Chair of the STA’s Paratransit 
Coordinating Council, addressed the STA Board and expressed her support for the STA’s 
request for CTSA designation. 
 

  Board Comments: 
Vice Chair Patterson requested to add to the recommendation future consideration of a 
bicycle mileage reimbursement.  The STA Board concurred.   
 

  Recommendation: 
Approve the following:  

1. The STA request CTSA designation from MTC for Solano County as prescribed in 
Attachment H; and 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to establish a CTSA Advisory Committee as 
outlined in Attachment H; and 

3. Future consideration of bicycle mileage reimbursement. 
 

  On a motion by Board Member Spering, and a second by Vice Chair Patterson, the STA 
Board unanimously approved the recommendation as amended shown above in bold italics. 
(7 Ayes, 1 Absent (City of Fairfield)) 
 

 D. Intercity Paratransit Assessment Update and Recommendation 
Nancy Whelan presented and reviewed the analysis to accept the County of Solano’s 
request for STA to manage the intercity paratransit service and authorize the Executive 
Director to recruit for a project manager to transfer the service from the County and manage 
the service on behalf of STA.  She explained that the STA Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) 
clearly stipulates this is a responsibility envisioned to be undertaken by the STA and that 
the JPA specifies that the STA is designated a provider of transit and paratransit, and that 
any transit and paratransit services operated within the county be the STA shall be 
complementary and shall not compete with local transit services operated by parties to the 
STA JPA. 
 

21



  Public Comments: 
Birgitta Corsello, Solano County Administrator, expressed her support and asked that the 
STA Board accept the County of Solano’s request to manage the Intercity Paratransit 
Service as well as transfer management of the Intercity Taxi Scrip Program from the 
County to the STA. 
 

  Board Comments: 
Board Member Spering commended both County staff, specifically Matt Tuggle, and STA 
staff for all their hard work in exploring the feasibility in the oversight of the countywide 
intercity paratransit service.   
 
Vice Chair Patterson concurred and requested to amend the motion to include a request that 
specific details come back to the STA Board. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. The STA to accept the County of Solano’s request to manage the Intercity 
Paratransit Service; 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to recruit for a project manager to transfer the 
service from the County and manage the service on behalf of STA; and 

3. Authorize the Executive Director to work with the Solano County Department of 
Resource Management to transfer management of the Intercity Taxi Scrip Program. 

 
  On a motion by Vice Chair Patterson, and a second by Board Member Spering, the STA 

Board unanimously approved the recommendation with the addition of Vice Chair 
Pattterson’s request that the specific details come back to the STA Board. (7 Ayes, 1 Absent 
(City of Fairfield)) 
 

12. INFORMATIONAL – DISCUSSION 
 

 A. STA’s Overall Work Plan (OWP) – FY 2014-15 and FY 2015-16 
Daryl Halls presented the STA’s Overall Work Plan which covers the seven (7) plans, 
eleven (11) projects, and twenty-one (21) programs to be undertaken by the STA to guide 
the development of the STA’s budget over the next two years (FY 2014-15 and FY 2015-
16).  He noted that this STA’s OWP has been distributed to the SolanoExpress Intercity 
Transit Consortium, STA TAC, and Solano City Manager’s for their review. 
 

 NO DISCUSSION 

 B. Regional Transportation Impact Fee (RTIF) Update 
 

 C. Project Delivery Update 
 

 D. Mobility Management Travel Training Update 
 

 E. Solano County Transit Facilities Update 
 

22



 F. Mobility Management Call Center Update 
 

 G. 2014 Bike to Work Day Campaign Wrap-up  
 

 H. Summary of Funding Opportunities 
 

 I. STA Board and Advisory Committee Meeting Schedule 
for Calendar Year 2014 
 

13. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 
 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the STA Board is at 6:00 p.m., Wednesday, July 9, 
2014, Suisun Council Chambers. 
 

 Attested by: 
 
 
_________________________/July 1, 2014 
Johanna Masiclat                      Date 
Clerk of the Board 
 
 

23



This page intentionally left blank. 

24



Agenda Item 9.B 
July 9, 2014 

 
 

 
 
 
 

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Minutes for the meeting of 

June 25, 2014 
 

1. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
The regular meeting of the STA’s Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) was called to order 
by Daryl Halls at approximately 1:30 p.m. in the Solano Transportation Authority (STA)’s 
Conference Room 1. 
 

 TAC Members Present: Mike Roberts City of Benicia 
  Joe Leach City of Dixon 
 Arrived at 1:47 p.m. George Hicks City of Fairfield 
  Dave Melilli City of Rio Vista 
  Dan Kasperson City of Suisun City 
  Allan Panganiban (Alternate) City of Vallejo 
  Matt Tuggle Solano County 
    
 TAC Members Absent: Steve Hartwig City of Vacaville  
  David Kleinschmidt City of Vallejo 
    
 STA Staff Present: (In Alphabetical Order by Last Name) 
  Anthony Adams STA 
  Jayne Bauer STA 
  Paulette Cooper STA 
  Daryl Halls STA 
  Robert Guerrero STA 
  Judy Leaks STA 
  Johanna Masiclat STA 
  Robert Macaulay STA 
  Sofia Recalde STA 
    
 Others Present: (In Alphabetical Order by Last Name) 
  Nick Burton Solano County 
  Carolyn Clevenger MTC 
  Amanda Dum City of Suisun City 
  Michael Fisher Cambridge Systematic 
  Stefanie Hom MTC 
  David McCrossan Menzies and McCrossan 
  Adam Noelting MTC 
    
    

25



2. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
On a motion by Matt Tuggle, and a second by Dan Kasperson, the STA TAC unanimously 
approved the agenda. (6 Ayes, 2 Absent (City of Fairfield and City of Vacaville) 
 

3. 
 

OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
None presented. 
 

4. REPORTS FROM CALTRANS, MTC AND STA STAFF 
• Bay Area Freight Plan presented by MTC’s Carolyn Clevenger and Cambridge 

Systematic’s Michael Fisher 
• Solano Rail Plan (Freight Component) presented by David McCrossan, Menzies and 

McCrossan 
 
TAC Member George Hicks, City of Fairfield, arrived during the Solano Rail Plan 
presentation. 

 
STA staff made the following announcements: 

1. Jayne Bauer announced that notification for the Call for Nominations for the 
STA’ 17th Annual Awards is forthcoming; 

2. Sofia Recalde announced that the Bay Trail-Vine Trail Study Bicycling and 
Walking Tour is scheduled for 10 a.m. – 4:00 p.m., Saturday, June 28th ; 

3. Anthony Adams announced that at the previous PDWG meeting, Theresa Romell, 
MTC, mentioned that LS&R funding going forward would grow slightly, but 
would decrease as a percentage of the total allocation for the new OBAG cycle.  
He added that Ms. Romell was soliciting comments from local agencies on the 
new OBAG policy and welcome local agencies to attend the Regional Project 
Delivery Working Group at the MTC.  He also stated that PDWG members 
discussed the 50% requirement for PDAs and inquired upon the possibility of 
sending a letter stating that Solano PDWG would like LS&R funding exempt 
from this requirement.  Nick Burton, PDWG Chair, concurred with Mr. Adams 
statements and requested future discussion with the TAC members on how to 
move forward. 

 
Daryl Halls noted modifying the Regional 50% PDA Policy for North Bay 
Counties would not be easy to modify and suggested the Regional Streets and 
Roads Committee take-up this issue. 

 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

On a motion by Matt Tuggle, and a second by Joe Leach, the STA TAC unanimously 
approved Consent Calendar Items A through E.  (7 Ayes, 1 Absent (City of Vacaville)) 
 

 A. Minutes of the TAC Meeting of May 28, 2014 
Recommendation: 
Approve TAC Meeting Minutes of May 28, 2014. 
 

 B. Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Matrix - July 
2014 
Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to approve the FY 2014-15 Solano 
TDA Matrix – July 2014 as shown in Attachment B for the Cities of Dixon and 
Rio Vista. 
 26



 C. Solano Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) Vanpool Program Annual Report 
Recommendation: 
Receive and file. 
 

 D. Solano Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) Work Program 
FY 2014-15 
Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to approve the Solano Napa Commuter 
Information Work Program for FY 2014-15. 
 

 E. Solano Management Assistance Program (MAPS) 
Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to authorize the Executive Director to 
send a notice to the County of Solano's GIS Department regarding STA's intent to 
terminate the existing agreement with the County GIS Department for the purposes of 
the MAPS Program. 
 

6. ACTION FINANCIAL ITEMS 
 

 A. Regional Transportation Impact Fee (RTIF) Strategic Implementation Plan for 
FY 2014-15 
Robert Guerrero distributed and reported on the RTIF Collection Summary (dated 
June 25, 2014) indicating a total amount of $89,777 has been collected for the 3rd 
Quarter of FY 2013-14.  The break-out by RTIF categories is as follows: 5% County 
Unincorporated Roads @ $4,489; 5% Express Bus Transit Center & Rail Facilities @ 
$4,489; RTIF Revenue from Vacaville Applied to District 1 @ $8,029; RTIF Revenue 
for Fairfield to be Applied to Districts #1, 2, and 4).  He noted that staff is 
recommending formal approval of the RTIF projects at their Policy Committee 
meeting scheduled on July 9, 2014.  He concluded by stating that staff intends to bring 
back RTIF implementation policy discussions previously provided for further 
direction and comments.   
 
At this time, Robert Guerrero requested appointments of two members of the TAC to 
serve on the RTIF Subcommittee which plans to meet in mid-July.  Based on input, 
George Hick, City of Fairfield and Joe Leach, City of Dixon were selected to serve on 
the RTIF Subcommittee. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to approve the Regional Transportation 
Impact Fee of projects for FY 2014-15 as specified in Attachment B. 
 

  On a motion by Mike Roberts, and a second by Joe Leach, the STA TAC approved the 
recommendation to include City of Benicia’s request to dedicate the Group 3 2nd year 
RTIF in the estimated amount of $60K to Columbus Parkway westbound widening at 
approach to Rose Drive (supplanting the Benicia Industrial Park Access) and to 
correct the name of the street on Dixon's project.  (7 Ayes, 1 Absent (City of 
Vacaville)) 
 

27



7. ACTION NON-FINANCIAL ITEMS 
 

 A. STA’s Overall Work Plan (OWP) for Fiscal Years (FY) 2014-15 and 2015-16 
Daryl Halls reviewed the STA’s Overall Work Plan which covers the seven (7) plans, 
eleven (11) projects, and twenty-one (21) programs to be undertaken by the STA to 
guide the development of the STA’s budget over the next two years (FY 2014-15 and 
FY 2015-16).  He noted that the OWP has been distributed to the SolanoExpress 
Intercity Transit Consortium, STA TAC, and Solano City Manager’s for their review 
and will be forwarded for STA Board approval at their July 9th meeting. 
 

  Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to approve the STA’s Overall Work 
Plan for FY 2014-15 and 2015-16. 
 

  On a motion by Matt Tuggle, and a second by Mike Roberts, the STA TAC approved 
the recommendation.  (7 Ayes, 1 Absent (City of Vacaville)) 
 

 B. Solano County Annual Pothole Report 
Anthony Adams presented Solano’s first Annual Pothole Report (2014).  He provided 
detailed information on roadway maintenance and funding needs in Solano County.  
He cited that comments received have been incorporated into the final draft report.  
With approval from the TAC and STA Board, the Annual Solano Pothole Report will 
be open for a 30-day public comment period.  He concluded by stating that once the 
Solano Annual Pothole Report is approved, the STA intends to create a single page 
handout of the Countywide Annual report that will be tailored for public review.  He 
commented that the intended purpose of this handout is to be an educational 
publication, informing the public about current conditions and future outlook, while 
delivering the overall message of the importance of investing in local streets and roads.   
 

  Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to STA Board to release the Solano County Annual 
Pothole Report for a 30-day public comment period. 
 

  On a motion by Dan Kasperson, and a second by Dave Melilli, the STA TAC approved 
the recommendation.  (7 Ayes, 1 Absent (City of Vacaville)) 
 

8. INFORMATIONAL – DISCUSSION 
 

 A. Legislative Update 
Jayne Bauer reported that on June 15, the California Legislature approved the 2014-15 
Budget Bill (SB 852) and related trailer bills, which authorized $872 million in one-
time/budget year expenditures for the Cap and Trade program for various transit, 
sustainable communities, and low-carbon transportation programs that reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions.  She noted that Intercity Rail Service, such as the Capital 
Corridor, is eligible to compete for funding, but will not receive a specific allocation as 
previously requested.  She commented that this plan sets up a number of statewide 
competitive grant categories with various state agencies, and staff will continue to 
analyze the Cap and Trade process and will provide future updates. 
 

28



 B. Mobility Management:  Consolidated Transportation Services Agency (CTSA) 
Designation 
Daryl Halls reported that on June 11th, this item was presented and the STA Board 
authorized the STA to request CTSA designation by MTC for Solano County.   
 

 C. Intercity Paratransit Assessment Update and Recommendation 
Daryl Halls reported that on June 11th, this item was presented and the STA Board 
accepted the County of Solano’s request to manage the Intercity Paratransit 
Service/Taxi Scrip Service.   
 

 D. Transit Corridor Study Update 
Daryl Halls reported that in order to complete the implementation of the Transit 
Corridor Study work plan, STA will need to assign a project manager to oversee the 
development of a detailed implementation plan as required by the work plan outlined 
in the Transit Corridor Study and issue a RFP for undertaking the tasks outlined in the 
Transit Corridor Study work plan. 
 

 E. I-80/I-680/State Route (SR) 12 Interchange – Bicycle Facility Improvements 
Robert Macaulay presented the existing bike/ped facilities and the phased 
improvements that will be built with each I-80/I-680/SR 12 interchange construction 
package and the measures that will be utilized during construction for the Initial 
Construction Package. 
 

 F. Solano Rail Facilities Plan Update 
Sofia Recalde presented an update to the development of the Solano Rail Facilities 
Plan.  She noted that the purpose is to develop a plan that can assist STA and local 
jurisdictions in making policies and local land use decisions to support future 
passenger and freight rail activity.  She added that the Plan would identify several 
factors for potential future sites for rail-served businesses, including local land 
use/zoning designation, the quantity of traffic the business would generate and type of 
commodity.  As such, four sites have the potential for large-scale freight rail service 
including the Vallejo Marine Terminal, Fairfield General Plan Areas 6A and 6B, 
Cordelia (south of Busch plant), and the unincorporated area north of Dixon.  She also 
noted that the next task to be addressed by this Plan is the potential for additional rail 
stops along the Capitol Corridor.  She commented that the current CCJPA criteria for 
new rail stations and proposes Solano-specific criteria to help guide decision-making 
and funding for future passenger stations in Solano County. 
 

 NO DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

 G. SB 743 California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Update 
 

 H. Quarterly Project Delivery Update 
 

 I. Air Quality Funding Update 
 

 J. Fiscal Year (FY) 2013-14 Abandoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) Program Third 
Quarter Report 
 

29



 K. Summary of Funding Opportunities 
 

 L. Draft Meeting Minutes for STA Advisory Committees 
 

 M. STA Board Meeting Highlights of June 11, 2014 
 

 N. STA Board and Advisory Committee Meeting Schedule  
for Calendar Year 2014 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:20 p.m. 
 

 The next regular meeting of the Technical Advisory Committee is scheduled at 1:30 p.m. on 
Wednesday, August 27, 2014. 
 

 

30



 Agenda Item 9.C 
 July 9, 2014 

 
 

 
 
DATE:  June 30, 2014 
TO:  STA TAC 
FROM: Liz Niedziela, Transit Program Manager 
RE: Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Matrix - July 

2014 – Cities of Dixon and Rio Vista 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background: 
The Transportation Development Act (TDA) was enacted in 1971 by the California Legislature 
to ensure a continuing statewide commitment to public transportation.  This law imposes a one-
quarter-cent tax on retail sales within each county for this purpose.  Proceeds are returned to 
counties based upon the amount of taxes collected, and are apportioned within the county based 
on population.  To obtain TDA funds, local jurisdictions must submit requests to regional 
transportation agencies that review the claims for consistency with TDA requirements. Solano 
County agencies submit TDA claims to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), the 
Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA) for the nine Bay Area counties.  
 
TDA funds are shared among agencies to fund joint services such as SolanoExpress intercity bus 
routes and Intercity Taxi Scrip Program. To clarify how the TDA funds are to be allocated each 
year among the local agencies and to identify the purpose of the funds, the STA works with the 
transit operators and prepares an annual TDA matrix.  The TDA matrix is approved by the STA 
Board and submitted to MTC to provide MTC guidance when reviewing individual TDA claims.   
 
The Solano FY 2014-15 TDA fund estimates by jurisdiction are shown on the attached MTC 
Fund Estimates (Attachment A).  
 
Discussion: 
For FY 2014-15, the following TDA claims are being brought forward for approval (Attachment B): 
 
Dixon Readi-Ride 
On behalf of Dixon Readi-Ride, the City of Dixon is requesting $293,526 in TDA funds from 
Dixon’s local TDA funds.  TDA funds in the amount of $285,105 will be used for operating and 
the amount of $8,421will be used for capital projects.  The capital project is one (1) small bus 
replacement.   
 
The City of Rio Vista 
On behalf of Rio Vista Delta Breeze, the City of Rio Vista is requesting $410,092 in TDA funds 
from Rio Vista’s local TDA funds.  TDA funds in the amount of $393,903 will be used for 
operating, the amount of $3,239 will be used for a capital project and $12,950 will be used for 
planning.  The capital project is a Park and Ride Lot and the planning project is match funding 
for Rio Vista Service and Outreach Analysis.   
 
The City of Vacaville TDA claim amounts were approved by the STA Board in June 2014.  
MTC staff informed STA that Vacaville made an addition allocation of $200,000 after January 

31



31, 2014.  STA staff updated the matrix amount from $70,000 to $270,000 to include the 
unaccounted for allocation.  This revision adjusts the remaining balance of TDA funds Vacaville 
has available and does not affect Vacaville’s TDA claim.  
 
At their respective meetings on June 24 and 25, 2014, the SolanoExpress Intercity Transit 
Consortium and the STA TAC unanimously approved to forward the recommendation to the 
STA Board for approval. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None to the STA.  With the STA Board approval of the July TDA matrix, it will provide the 
guidance needed by MTC to process the TDA claim submitted by the transit operators and STA. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the FY 2014-15 Solano TDA Matrix – July 2014 as shown in Attachment B for the 
Cities of Dixon and Rio Vista.  
 
Attachments: 

A. FY 2014-15 TDA Fund Estimate for Solano County 
B. FY 2014-15 Solano TDA Matrix – July 2014 

 

32



Attachment A
Res No. 4133
Page 9 of 16
2/26/2014

FY2013 14 TDA Revenue Estimate FY2014 15 TDA Estimate
FY2013 14 Generation Estimate Adjustment FY2014 15 County Auditor's Generation Estimate
1. Original County Auditor Estimate (Feb, 13) 15,682,592 13. County Auditor Estimate 15,512,708
2. Revised Estimate (Feb, 14) 15,512,708 FY2014 15 Planning and Administration Charges
3. Revenue Adjustment (Lines 2 1) (169,884) 14. MTC Administration (0.5% of Line 13) 77,564

FY2013 14 Planning and Administration Charges Adjustment 15. County Administration (0.5% of Line 13) 77,564
4. MTC Administration (0.5% of Line 3) (849) 16. MTC Planning (3.0% of Line 13) 465,381
5. County Administration (0.5% of Line 3) (849) 17. Total Charges (Lines 14+15+16) 620,509
6. MTC Planning (3.0% of Line 3) (5,097) 18. TDA Generations Less Charges (Lines 13 17) 14,892,199
7. Total Charges (Lines 4+5+6) (6,795) FY2014 15 TDA Apportionment By Article
8. Adjusted Generations Less Charges (Lines 3 7) (163,089) 19. Article 3.0 (2.0% of Line 18) 297,844

FY2013 14 TDA Adjustment By Article 20. Funds Remaining (Lines 18 19) 14,594,355
9. Article 3 Adjustment (2.0% of line 8) (3,262) 21. Article 4.5 (5.0% of Line 20) 0
10. Funds Remaining (Lines 8 9) (159,827) 22. TDA Article 4 (Lines 20 21) 14,594,355
11. Article 4.5 Adjustment (5.0% of Line 10) 0
12. Article 4 Adjustment (Lines 10 11) (159,827)

Column A B C=Sum(A:B) D E F G H=Sum(C:G) I J=Sum(H:I)
6/30/2013 FY2012 13 6/30/2013 FY2012 14 FY2013 14 FY2013 14 FY2013 14 41,820 FY2014 15 FY 2014 15

Apportionment
Jurisdictions

Balance
(w/o interest)

Interest
Balance

(w/ interest)1
Outstanding

Commitments2
Transfers/
Refunds

Original
Estimate

Revenue
Adjustment

Projected
Carryover

Revenue
Estimate

Available for
Allocation

Article 3 657,685 4,632 662,317 (356,000) 0 301,106 (3,262) 604,161 297,844 902,005
Article 4.5
SUBTOTAL 657,685 4,632 662,317 (356,000) 0 301,106 (3,262) 604,161 297,844 902,005

Article 4/8
Dixon 365,312 1,701 367,013 (487,191) 0 651,873 (7,062) 524,633 643,546 1,168,179
Fairfield 492,666 13,145 505,811 (5,137,473) 2,378,311 3,793,108 (41,089) 1,498,668 3,774,523 5,273,191
Rio Vista 329,130 1,801 330,930 (243,292) 0 264,500 (2,865) 349,274 265,072 614,346
Solano County 595,067 3,155 598,222 (235,418) 0 669,987 (7,258) 1,025,533 660,883 1,686,416
Suisun City 80,356 994 81,350 (1,076,074) 0 997,599 (10,807) (7,932) 984,871 976,939
Vacaville 4,875,441 32,553 4,907,993 (4,623,477) 0 3,283,683 (35,571) 3,532,629 3,232,799 6,765,428
Vallejo/Benicia4 336,860 1,989 338,849 (5,283,854) 0 5,093,432 (55,175) 93,251 5,032,663 5,125,914

SUBTOTAL5 7,074,831 55,337 7,130,168 (17,086,778) 2,378,311 14,754,183 (159,827) 7,016,056 14,594,355 21,610,411
GRAND TOTAL $7,732,517 $59,968 $7,792,485 ($17,442,778) $2,378,311 $15,055,289 ($163,089) $7,620,217 $14,892,199 $22,512,416
1. Balance as of 6/30/13 is from MTC FY2012 13 Audit, and it contains both funds available for allocation and funds that have been allocated but not disbursed.
2. The outstanding commitments figure includes all unpaid allocations as of 6/30/13, and FY2013 14 allocations as of 1/31/14.
3. Where applicable by local agreement, contributions from each jurisdiction will be made to support the Intercity Transit Funding Agreement.
4. Beginning in FY2012 13, the Benicia apportionment area is combined with Vallejo, and available for SolTrans to claim.

FY2014 15 FUND ESTIMATE
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS
SOLANO COUNTY

TDA APPORTIONMENT BY JURISDICTION

33

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



 DRAFT FY2014-15 TDA Matrix  July 2014
9-Jun-14 FY 2014-15     

  
FAST FAST FAST SolTrans SolTrans SolTrans FAST FAST SolTrans

AGENCY TDA Est 
from MTC, 

2/26/14

Projected 
Carryover 

2/26/14

Available for 
Allocation 

2/26/14

FY2013-14 
Allocations 
after 1/31/14

ADA 
Subsidized 
Taxi Phase I

Paratransit Dixon 
Readi-
Ride

FAST Rio Vista 
Delta 

Breeze

Vacaville 
City Coach

SolTrans   Rt 20 Rt 30 Rt 40 Rt. 78  Rt. 80   Rt 85  Rt. 90  Intercity 
Subtotal

  Intercity 
Subtotal

STA 
Planning

Other 
Swaps

Transit 
Capital/Plan

ning

Total Balance

(1) (1) (1) (2)   (3)       (4) (4) (6) (7) (8)
 

Dixon 643,546 524,633 1,168,179 5,000 5,000 285,105 2,530$         30,791$    10,041$       4,998$       (582)$           7,424$         11,695$      55,057$      11,840$            17,566$      8,421 387,989$            780,190
Fairfield 3,774,523 1,498,668 5,273,191 40,000 40,000 1,380,568 1,569,893 79,035$       41,940$    127,681$     32,944$     (8,252)$        180,034$     324,682$    573,338$    204,726$          102,215$    1,362,451 5,273,191$         0
Rio Vista 265,072 349,274 614,346 72,405 5,000 393,903 -$             -$         -$             -$           -$             -$             -$            0 -$                 7,127$        16,189 494,624$            119,722
Suisun City 984,871 -7,932 976,939 0 0 184,607 499,123 14,460$       6,588$      43,912$       9,838$       (2,837)$        40,162$       104,204$    169,164$    47,163$            26,882$      50,000$      976,939$            0
Vacaville 3,232,799 3,532,629 6,765,428 270,000 70,000 347,401 651,612 142,546$     63,927$    117,119$     27,531$     (5,492)$        45,500$       111,672$    435,264$    67,540$            88,487$      740,000 2,670,305$         4,095,123
Vallejo/Benicia (SolTrans) 5,032,663 93,251 5,125,914 85,000 85,000 804,198 1,203,892 30,287$       32,734$    35,095$       454,142$   (41,830)$      292,410$     45,415$      143,531$    704,722$          137,255$    987,167 4,150,765$         975,149
Solano County 660,883 1,025,533 1,686,416 358,000 17,563$       10,531$    22,062$       33,771$     (7,366)$        30,892$       38,324$      88,480$      57,297$            18,054$      521,831$            1,164,585

Total 14,594,357 7,016,056 21,610,413 830,405 205,000 2,716,774 285,105 2,069,016 393,903 651,612 1,203,892 286,420$     186,511$  355,911$     563,224$   (66,359)$      596,422$     635,993 1,464,835$ 1,093,287$       397,586$    50,000$      3,114,228$ 14,475,643$       7,134,770
  

 

NOTES:  
Background colors on Rt. Headings denote operator of intercity route
Background colors denote which jurisdiction is claiming funds

(1) MTC February 26, 2014 Fund Estimate; Reso 4133; columns I, H, J
(2) Claimant to be determined.
(3)  Includes flex routes, paratransit, local subsidized taxi
(4) Consistent with  Intercity Transit Funding Agreement and FY2012-13 Reconciliation
(5) Note not used.
(6) Claimed by STA from all agencies per formula; STA memo to Consortium April 15, 2014.
(7) To be claimed by STA for Suisun Amtrak station maintenance.
(8) Transit Capital/Planning purchases include bus purchases, maintenance facilities, etc. and planning

Paratransit Local Transit Intercity

ATTACHMENT B

34



Agenda Item 9.D 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 

 
 
DATE:  June 13, 2014 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM  Paulette Cooper, SNCI Commute Consultant 
RE:  Solano Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) Vanpool Program Annual Report 
 
 
Background: 
In the late 1970’s, rideshare programs were established throughout the country to provide 
assistance to individuals who wanted to form vanpools.  Funded by Caltrans in California, they 
enabled groups of 10-15 commuters to come together and lease a vehicle. Those groups paid all 
the expenses for the vehicle, including lease, maintenance, insurance and fuel. Solano County 
residents were quick to use vanpools to transport them to employment areas in San Francisco and 
Sacramento.  US Air Force retirees were settling in Solano County and finding jobs at the United 
Airline Maintenance Facility at the San Francisco International Airport (SFO) and other area 
airports. Vanpools were the economical, dependable and with the inception of carpool lanes, the 
fastest way to get to these areas of employment.  
 
Currently, 234 of the Bay Area’s 537 registered vanpools (42%) travel through Solano County 
daily. This equates to approximately 2,574 daily vanpool riders; 5,148 round trips; with a total of 
1,235,520 trips annually.  
 
63% of these vanpools (143 out of 234) originate in Solano County and travel to other counties. 
While the destination counties of these vanpools have become more dispersed over time, San 
Francisco is still the leading destination with 58 vanpools. Shift workers going to San Francisco 
Airport account for the high number of vanpools going to San Mateo County (46).  
 
Discussion: 
As of June 13, 2014, SNCI started 29 vanpools during Fiscal Year (FY) 2013- 14, bringing the 
total number of vanpools in the county to 234. Fifteen (15) of these vanpools originate in Solano 
County; twelve (12) have Solano County destinations; and two (2) travel through the county.  Of 
the twelve (12) that travel to Solano County, one goes to California Medical Facility (CMF) and 
one to Travis Air Force Base (TAFB). Ten (10) of these new vanpools travel to Genentech; 
Genentech launched a new vanpool program for their Solano County sites in March 2013, 
mimicking the vanpool program at the South San Francisco facility. The Genentech program 
covers the cost of the lease as well as providing gas for all vanpools for their Vacaville location. 
 
While there were a large number of vanpools leaving Solano County, from 2003 until 2011 there 
were only eleven vanpools coming into Solano County. Since then, the number has increased to 
31 vanpools coming into Solano County, a 250% increase. Most of these vanpools are carrying 
employees to State Fund, Travis AFB and Genentech.  

35



The SNCI Program provides support for the vanpools that includes driver incentives, medical 
reimbursement, and passenger placement assistance. The intent of this support is to keep the 
vanpools on the road. In spite of this assistance, each year a certain number of vanpools go off 
the road or are “deleted” for a variety of reasons. During FY 2013-14, 21 vanpools were deleted. 
Nine (9) of the vans folded due to lack of riders; six (6) due to schedule changes/retirement/lay-
offs; four (4) were not interested in our support services; one due to personal reasons. With the 
29 new vanpools formed, this resulted in a net gain of eight (8) vanpools during FY 2013-14.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
Receive and file. 
 
Attachment: 

A. Solano Vanpool formed/deleted/fleet size 

36



 

8 11 7 
15 

27 29 

40 

7 

33 32 
22 21 

234 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

2009-2014 
Vanpools Formed/Deleted/Fleet Size 

# of vans formed 

# vans deleted 

Fleet size 

37



This page intentionally left blank. 

38



Agenda Item 9.E 
July 9, 2014 

 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE:  June 13, 2014 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Judy Leaks, Program Manager 
RE:  Solano Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) Work Program 

Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background: 
The Solano Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) program serves as a “one-stop-shop,” offering 
informational resources and programs for commuters interested in finding alternatives to 
driving alone, as well as transportation information for non-commuters.  SNCI also works with 
employers in Solano and Napa counties to encourage the use of commute alternatives through 
events, promotions, vanpool formation and support, and other activities.  The SNCI program is 
currently funded and managed by the STA, through Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC) Regional Rideshare, Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD), and 
Eastern Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (ECMAQ) funds for the purpose of managing 
countywide and regional rideshare programs in Napa and Solano Counties and providing air 
quality improvements through trip reduction.  The BAAQMD and ECMAQ funds allow the 
SNCI program to provide services that would not otherwise be available such as, commuter 
incentives, the emergency ride home program, the employer commute challenge, and a range of 
localized services.  These services support efforts to reduce carbon emissions, address climate 
change concerns, promote expanded use of transit and ridesharing, and help improve mobility in 
Solano and Napa counties.   
 
The SNCI Program was originally established in 1979.  The SNCI Program was transferred 
from the County of Solano to STA in 2000. 
 
Discussion: 
The FY 2014-15 SNCI Work Program includes the following major elements: 

• Customer Service – commuter/mobility call center, display racks, website 
• SNCI Marketing Strategy  
• Vanpool formation and support 
• Employer Outreach Program 
• Commuter Benefits Program (SB 1339) Implementation  
• County Commute Challenges – Solano and Napa counties 
• Emergency Ride Home Program 
• Bike to Work Promotion/Bicycle incentive & map  
• Partnerships w/ other programs and outside agencies 

This item was reviewed by both the Consortium and TAC and recommended for approval. 

Fiscal Impact: 
The SNCI program is fully funded by MTC Regional Rideshare Program funds, BAAQMD 
Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA) funds and ECMAQ funds for an annual total of $618,000. 

39



Recommendation:   
Approve the Solano Napa Commuter Information Work Program for FY 2014-15 as specified 
in Attachment A. 
 
Attachment: 

A. Solano Napa Commuter Information Work Program for FY 2014-15 

40



ATTACHMENT A 
 
 
Solano Napa Commuter Information Work Program for FY 2014-15 
 
 
 

Customer Service:  
Provide high quality, personalized rideshare, transit and other non-drive alone trip planning 
information to commuters and the public through the commuter call center, websites and other 
means.  Complete 600 placement calls to new ridematch applicants. 
 
Incorporate the provision of mobility management information services to staff the Mobility 
Call Center.  a) Develop expertise in mobility options for seniors, people with disabilities and 
low-income customers through training and sensitivity. b) Provide Regional Transit Cards 
(RTC), Senior Clipper cards and Clipper card add-fare options as well as FasTrak 
transponders and BikeLink locker assistance.  
 
Continue to supply display racks throughout the counties with transportation 
materials/brochures and local and regional transit information and schedules.  a) Visit each 
display rack location at least one time each year.  b) Increase the # of display racks by 50%. 
 
SNCI Marketing Strategy:  
Based on findings of the 2013 SNCI Marketing Strategy and Action Plan Study, increase 
awareness of SNCI through examining the program brand, improving web communications, 
updating the SNCI website and continuing to reach commuters through employer outreach and 
events.  
 
Examine program brand/assess the SNCI program name and logo. Determine/confirm program 
name and logo. 
Use Facebook as a media tool.  Double the # of Facebook friends.   
Update website page.  Increase website hits by 30%.   
Market the SNCI program through radio and internet ads. a) Purchase ads on local radio 
(KUIC) for promotions (Solano Commute Challenges, Bike to Work Days) b) research, develop 
plan and purchase internet ads. 
 
Based on an assessment conducted of all community events from 2009-2014, focus efforts at 
employer sites and large community events like Earth Day and limit events at local farmers 
markets.  a) Schedule events at employer sites.  b) Create and implement a simple “One-hour 
mini-event” for employers. 
  
Provide SNCI materials in additional languages as part of Title VI program compliance.  
Translate and provide printed copies of marketing materials in Spanish and make materials 
available in Tagalog, Cantonese, and Vietnamese, per Title VI requirements. 
 
Vanpool Formation and Support:   
Twenty-nine (29) vanpools were started between July 1, 2013-June 13, 2014 – two vanpools 
over the MTC/511 Rideshare goal of 27.   
 
Continue formation and support for vanpools that travel to, from or through Solano and Napa 
counties.  a) Start 29 vanpools.  b) Provide incentives to assist the formation of vanpools.  c) 
Complete 500 placement/follow-up calls to/for vanpools, critical vanpools, and potential 
vanpool passengers. d) Track starts, deletes and incentives – determine effectiveness of 
incentives. 

41



Employer Program:   
Outreach to Solano and Napa employers to be a resource for commuter alternative information 
including setting up internal rideshare programs.  Continue to concentrate efforts on large 
employers through distribution of materials, events, major promotions, surveying and other 
means.   
 
Increase the # of active employers in SNCI employer database.  Increase database size with a 
net gain of 12 new employers. 
 
Conduct events at employer sites.   Schedule 30 events at employers and large community 
events.  Improve event set-up to be more engaging to those passing by.  Determine incentives to 
increase the number of persons seeing the SNCI message of using a commute alternative. 
 
Cross promote items like bike, and vanpool incentives, emergency ride home, Commute 
Challenges, vanpool opportunities  
 
Commuter Benefits Program (SB 1339) Implementation:   
Implement the Commuter Benefits Program (SB 1339) throughout Solano and Napa counties 
with employers having 50+ employees.  Work with the Bay Area Air Quality Management 
District (BAAQMD) and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) to execute a 
program that supports affected employers to meet the requirements of the rule.   
 
Provide employers a consultation that explains the details for each option choice.   
Send periodic mailings to all affected employers as a reminder of the September 30 deadline, 
and offer assistance in developing and selecting an option that best suits their needs. 
 
County Commute Challenges:   
Conduct one (1) employer challenge each in Solano and Napa counties that encourages 
employers and employees to encourage the use of commute alternatives to driving alone.  These 
campaigns include an incentive element and enlist the support of local chambers of commerce.  
Increase employer participation by 10% and employee participation by 20%. 
 
Emergency Ride Home Program:   
Focus on marketing the Emergency Ride Home Program, verify and update all current 
enrollees.  Take advantage of the Commuter Benefits program to increase the number of 
employers registered by 10%. 
 
Bike to Work Promotion/Bicycle incentive/BikeLinks map:   
Take the lead in coordinating the regional 2015 Bike to Work campaign in Solano and Napa 
counties.  Provide information and support for cyclists to promote bicycling locally.  Assess the 
effectiveness of current Energizer Station locations and make adjustments.  Increase the number 
of visitors at energizer stations by 10%.   
 
Revise and update the Solano/Yolo BikeLinks map, print and distribute copies.  Work with 
planning to re-design and update the BikeLinks map. 
 
Market the “Bucks for Bike” incentive. Market through the Bike to Work promotion, employer 
and community outreach and the SNCI website and Facebook pages.  
 
Partnerships w/ other programs and outside agencies:   
Coordinate with other programs and outside agencies to support and advance the use of non-
drive alone modes of travel in all segments of the community.  This would include providing 
support to programs like Safe Routes to School (SR2S) and Seniors,  People with Disabilities 
and low income; and assisting local jurisdictions and non-profits implementing projects.   

42



Agenda Item 9.F 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 

 
 
DATE:  June 30, 2014 
TO:   STA Board 
FROM: Robert Guerrero, Project Manager 
RE:  Solano Management Assistance Program (MAPS) – Termination of Contract 
 
 
Background: 
The STA and the County of Solano's Geographical Information Systems (GIS) department 
originally entered into a contract agreement to develop MAPS pilot demonstration project on 
March 14, 2011.  Attachment A includes the original contract agreement between the County and 
the STA.  The intention of the MAPS Pilot Project was to demonstrate electronic online 
interactive project management information tracking and file sharing between the STA and its 
member agencies.  Two cities were selected to participate during this pilot stage: the cities of 
Vallejo and Dixon (a large city and a small city respectively).  The original Executive Summary 
of the MAPS program includes further details regarding the program’s purpose and is included 
as Attachment B.  The STA also contracts with the County for GIS services. 
 
The approved budget for the project was $45,000 in Surface Transportation Program (STP) 
federal planning funds.  The STA's original agreement expired on December 31, 2011, but was 
extended to December 31, 2014 by the STA Board on September 11, 2013 as discussed below.   
 
Discussion: 
The fundamental component of the MAPS Pilot Project was to allow project managers to access 
and share project information online.  Prior to the original agreement expiration in 2011, the 
County completed task 1 and 2, as well as a portion of task 3 (as specified in Attachment A).  
However, the project experienced a significant delay when the program could not be accessible 
online by agencies outside of the County computer network.  At the time, County staff attributed 
the accessibility problem to their network's firewall and incompatibility issues to the project's 
software "Microsoft SharePoint".  The project was subsequently delayed for over 18 months.   
 
In July 2013, the STA re-engaged GIS staff from the County, City of Vallejo and City of Dixon 
to complete the MAPS program as intended.  The County GIS staff had indicated that they were 
ready to move forward with the project and that the network compatibility, or was close to being 
resolved.  The STA Board subsequently approved an extension to the agreement on September 
11, 2013.   
 
After the Board approved the amendment, a Working Group was formed with the STA, County 
of Solano GIS, City of Vallejo and City of Dixon Public Works staff participants.  A meeting 
was held on Thursday, October 3, 2013 to kick off the project again since all except the County 
were new staff assigned to the project.   
 

43



The kick off meeting included the following agenda topics: 
1. Background and Introductions-  Introduce County GIS Staff/ Original Scope of 

Work/Pilot Project Purpose/ Role of STA, Solano County, and member agencies.  
2. Member Agency and STA discussion on Project Tracking- Discussion on how all three 

agencies track projects and how other departments may interact with project delivery. 
3. MAPs Program Presentation-  Solano County Staff presents the current state of the 

program and candid round table discussion on what is useful versus what is duplicative or 
not necessary. 

4. Schedule- County GIS Staff to provide a schedule for project completion and next steps 
 
The Working Group  was supportive of the potential program opportunities after this kick off 
meeting.  However, the prior issue of not being able to access the program remotely continued.  
The County GIS staff assured the Working Group that they were working on their firewall 
compatibility issue.   
 
The project languished again between October 2013 through January 2014 and as a result, STA 
staff met with County GIS staff on February 14, 2014 to discuss the progress of the program.  
County staff reiterated the County's commitment to complete the MAPS Pilot program and 
explained solutions that the County staff was working on to overcome the County's firewall issue 
and getting the MAPS Pilot project back on track.  During the following months (March and 
April), the County GIS staff was generally responsive to the overall progress and was able to 
allow the STA, City of Vallejo and City of Dixon to connect to the program at one point.  
However, despite being able to view the program online, neither agencies could access any of the 
programs functions.  Although the County GIS staff has indicated they've continued to work on 
solutions on the hardware and software side, there has not been any progress made on the user 
end since then.   
 
In conclusion, after 3 years, STA staff and the Cities of Vallejo and Dixon cannot run the MAPS 
program or access it any further.  Due to the significant delay and lack of a product being 
available, STA staff begun to create an online Google based project tracking tool.  The STA 
online project tracking tool online was demonstrated at the May 22nd and June 17th PDWG 
meetings and received unanimous support for completion.  This program meets the needs of the 
STA and the local project sponsors, it is easy to use and is ready to be implemented right away.  
Therefore, staff is recommending STA terminate its contract with the County for the MAPS Pilot 
Program at this time and focus its staff resources on developing the STA in-house online project 
tracking program.  
 
The STA TAC reviewed this item at their June 25, 2014 meeting and unanimously approved 
STA staff's recommendation.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The contract specifies $45,000 from Surface Transportation Program (STP) Funds for this pilot 
program, no funds have been paid to the Solano County as no useable product has been 
produced.  Terminating the contract for the MAPS Pilot Program would result in $45,000 of 
savings.  The unused funds would be utilized by the STA on other priority planning activities, 
including approximately $10,000 to finalize the online coding for the STA in-house online 
project tracking tool.   
 
In addition, it was anticipated that the County GIS Staff would need to maintain the MAPS Pilot 
Project at a fee of $15,000 to $20,000 per year once it was completed for user access.  STA staff 
is projecting an annual cost of $6,000 to maintain its own in-house online project tracking tool. 

44



Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to send a notice to the County of Solano's GIS Department 
regarding STA's intent to terminate the existing agreement with the County GIS Department for 
the purposes of the MAPS Program. 
 
Attachments: 

A. STA/County Agreement (March 11, 2011) 
B. MAPS Executive Summary  
C. Estimated Cost Comparison   

45



This page intentionally left blank. 

46



Original w/Legal 
CC: JK/SF/ SS Binder 
September 23, 2011 

FUNDING AGREEMENT 
Between The 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
And 

SOLANO COUNTY 
FOR A GRANT OF STP FUNDS: 

Solano County MAPS Pilot Program 

This Funding Agreement ("Agreement") is made on z; ~( ].DII between the Solano 
Transportation Authority, a joint powers authority consisting of the cities of Benicia, Dixon, 
Fairfield, Rio Vista, Suisun, Vacaville and Vallejo, and the County of Solano, ("Project 
Sponsor"), and Solano County, a political subdivision of the State of California, ("County"). 

RECITALS 

FY 2010-11.83.00 

WHEREAS, Project Sponsor coordinates with the local project managers from the seven cities 
and the County, known as the Solano Project Delivery Working Group (Solano PDWG), for the 
delivery and/or monitoring of over $400 million in active federal , state, regional , and locally 
funded transportation projects countywide; and 

WHEREAS, Project Sponsor desires the assistance of County' s Geographic Information Systems 
(GIS) division to assist in the development of an online communication and project management 
tool to streamline the circulation of pr<,)ject documents, project status and funding information for 
the Solano PDWG; and 

WHEREAS, County is qualified to perform such services. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth in this Agreement, the 
Project Sponsor and County agree as follows: 

A. Project and Funding Identification: 

1. County shall perform those services as set forth the STA Staff Report dated November 19, 
2010, approved by the STA Board on December 8, 2010, and the MAPS Pilot Scope of Work 
both of which are attached and incorporated by this reference as Exhibit A. 

2. The maximum funding amount allocated for project development is $45,000. 

Page 1 of4 

47

RGuerrero
Typewritten Text

RGuerrero
Typewritten Text

RGuerrero
Typewritten Text

RGuerrero
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



B. County Agrees: 

1. To be bound and abide by any and all applicable provisions ofthe Interagency Agreement, as 
amended by Amendment No. 1, between Project Sponsor and the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission ("MTC") both of which are attached to as Exhibit B and C respectively, and 
incorporated by this reference as if fully set forth in this Agreement. 
2. To cooperate with Project Sponsor and do all such things, provide all such documentation and 
take all such actions as shall be reasonably requested by Project Sponsor, to facilitate County and 
Project Sponsor's compliance with the Funding Agreement. 
3. To submit invoices to Project Sponsor upon Project completion. 

C. Project Sponsor Agrees: 

Upon submission of an invoice by County, and upon approval of the Project Sponsor's 
representative, pay County monthly in arrears for fees and expenses incurred the prior month, up 
to the maximum amount provided for in this Agreement. 

D. It Is Mutually Agreed: 

1. Term: This Agreement shall remain in effect through December 31, 2011, unless it is 
terminated earlier as provided below. 

2. Termination: Project Sponsor's obligation under this Agreement is subject to the availability 
of authorized funds. Project Sponsor may terminate the Agreement, or any part of the work, 
without prejudice for lack of appropriation of funds. If expected or actual funding is withdrawn, 
reduced or limited in any way prior to the expiration date set forth in this Agreement, or any 
subsequent Amendment, the Project Sponsor may, upon written Notice to the County, terminate 
this Agreement in whole or in part. Project Sponsor shall provide written notice of termination, 
pursuant to this clause, to Recipient at least sixty ( 60) days prior to the effective date of 
termination. 

3. Indemnity: County shall indemnify, defend with counsel approved by Project Sponsor, and 
hold harmless, Project Sponsor and its member jurisdictions, and their respective officials, 
officers, directors, employees, agents, and volunteers, from and against any and all claims, suits, 
actions, causes of action, loss, damages, expense and costs (including, without limitation, costs 
and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with performance of work 
hereunder, including, but not limited to, performance of work on the Project, or County's failure 
to comply with any of its obligations contained in this Agreement, except such losses or damages 
which are caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of Project Sponsor. 

Recipient shall also indemnify, defend and hold harmless Project Sponsor from and against all 
claims, suits or actions which result from the performance of services under this Agreement. 

4. Insurance: County will maintain status as a legally self-insured public entity for general 
liability and will maintain a self-insured retention often thousand dollars ($10,000), and primary 

Page 2 of4 

48



insurance of one hundred thousand dollars ($1 00,000) per occurrence through participation in the 
California State Association of Counties Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC-EIA) for all 
activities provided by its employees. Excess liability coverage with limits to twenty-five million 
dollars ($25,000,000) may be provided through participation in the CSAC-EIA. This insurance 
will be considered primary. County will provide evidence of such coverage to Project Sponsor 
and will name Project Sponsor as additional insured. 

5. Notice: All notices and other communications required or permitted to be given under this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally served or mailed, postage prepaid and 
addressed to the respective parties as follows: 

TO PROJECT SPONSOR: 
Daryl K. Halls, Executive Director 
Solano Transportation Authority 
One Harbor Center, Suite 130 
Suisun City, CA 94585 
Attn: Sam Shelton, Project Manager 

TO RECIPIENT: 
Ira Rosenthal, Chief Information Officer 
Solano County 
675 Texas St., Suite 
Fairfield, CA 94533 
(707) 784-300 
Attn: Jake Armstrong, GIS Coordinator 

Notice shall be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or, if mailed, three (3) days 
following the date of deposit with the United States Postal Service. 

6. Assignability: Neither party to this Agreement shall assign or transfer any interest in this 
Agreement nor the performance of any duties or obligations hereunder, without the prior written 
consent of the other party, and any attempt by either party to so assign or transfer this Agreement 
or any rights, duties or obligations arising hereunder shall be void and of no effect. 

7. Governing Law: Project Sponsor and County agree that the law governing this Agreement 
shall be that of the State of California. 

8. Venue: In the event that suit shall be brought by either party, the parties agree that venue shall 
be exclusively vested in the state courts of the County of Solano, or where otherwise appropriate, 
exclusively in the United States District Court, Eastern District of California, Sacramento, 
California. 

9. Interpretation: Each party has reviewed this Agreement and any question of doubtful 
interpretation shall not be resolved by any rule or interpretation providing for interpretation 
against the drafting party. This Agreement shall be construed as if both parties drafted it. The 

Page 3 of4 

49



captions and headings contained herein are for convenience only and shall not affect the meaning 
or interpretation of this Agreement. 

10. Force Majeure: Neither the Project Sponsor nor the County shall be liable or deemed to be in 
default for any delay or failure in performance under this Agreement or for any interruption of 
services, directly or indirectly, from acts of god, civil or military authority, acts of public enemy, 
war, strikes, labor disputes, shortages of suitable parts, materials, labor or transportation, or any 
similar cause beyond the reasonable control of the Project Sponsor or County. 

11. Controlling Provisions: In the event of a conflict between the provisions of this Agreement 
and those of the Interagency Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall 
control. 

12. Prior Agreements and Amendments: This Agreement, including Exhibit A, represent the 
entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter described in this Agreement, 
and no representation, warranties, inducements or oral agreements have been made by any of the 
parties except as expressly set forth in this Agreement. This Agreement may only be modified by 
a written amendment duly executed by the parties. 

The parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year first written above. 

"PROJECT SPONSOR" 

::lano1J][;Qc:;_thority 
Daryl K. Hall s, STA Executive Director 

"COUNTY" 
Solano County 

Approved as to fmm: 

Approved as to Form 

By (kJ(~ \~~ 
County Counsel 

Page 4 of4 

50



DATE: 
TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 

Background: 

November 19,2010 
STA Board 

EXHIBIT A 

s1ra 
5o€ano 'ltanspot!ation ;luthotil!j 

Sam Shelton, Project Manager 

Agenda Item VII.! 
December 8, 2010 

Management Assistant for Projects in Solano (MAPS) Pilot Project 

The STA's Project Delivery Department is responsible for the delivery of a variety of STA led 
projects (e.g., I-80/l-680/State Route (SR) 12 Interchange Project, SR 12 Jameson Canyon 
Project, Jepson Parkway, etc.) and monitors the delivery of ST A supported & funded projects 
(e.g., local street rehabilitation projects, bridge toll funded transit center projects, bicycle and 
pedestrian projects, etc.). With a staff of three, the STA Project Delivery Department currently 
assists the seven cities and the County in the delivery and monitoring of over $400 million in 
active federal, state, regional, and locally funded transportation projects countywide. 

STA staff also coordinates and works with the Solano Project Delivery Working Group (Solano 
PDWG), composed of local project managers from across the county who have met monthly for 
the past 3 years to discuss project delivery issues and resolve them in a cooperative manner. 

Earlier Project Delive1y Deadlines Without Additional Tools 
Over the last two years, the Solano PDWG has requested project delivery assistance beyond 
what is currently offered by the STA, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), and 
the Caltrans Department of Local Assistance. This need was particularly acute during the last 
2011 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) development process to help understand 
project status and funding, throughout the expedited and hurried nature of spending American 
Recovery & Reinvestment Act (ARRA) funds, and during recent Federal Highway 
Administration (FHW A) audits of federally funded projects. 

During the Spring of20 I 0, STA staff toured all local agency public works and capital 
improvement departments to better understand their project delivery & project management 
strengths and weaknesses. Each local agency has unique and distinct ways of tracking federal 
aid project funding and delivery deadlines, with varied level of effectiveness. Recent local 
agency staff turnover and budget cuts have added pressure to these tracking methods. ST A staff 
also held a project delivery forum with MTC staff, Caltrans staff, and local agency staff to better 
understand challenges and opportunities for improving project delivery. One recommendation 
from that effort was to create an online communication and project management tool to 
streamline the circulation of project documents, status information, and funding information 
between all of the previously mentioned agencies. 

51



Solano Project Mapper and Management Webtools Concept & Elements 
The project concept is to create an efficient Capital Improvement Program (CIP) web based 
project management and reporting tool for all public works projects within Solano County. A set 
of customized applications and a shared collaborative secured website will be built to meet the 
needs and procedures for reporting and documenting active projects for Solano County agencies 
and partner agencies, such as Caltrans and MTC. As a project management tool, this program 
will save valuable time for administrators, managers, and engineers as they submit repmts and 
file requests internally (e.g., council reports, grant applications) and with STA, MTC, and 
Caltrans (e.g., TIP amendments, E76 requests, and FHWA audits). 

The following elements will be incorporated into its design: 

• A web-based one-stop information center lets all contributing agencies access project 
information whenever they need it. 

• The one-stop information center is web-based and therefore accessible anywhere, to 
facilitate project delivery collaboration with multiple agencies. 

• Up-to-date Executive Summary displays big-picture information for quick review and 
alert on imminent or persistent issues. 

• Using ArcGIS geographic information system links to geographic locations to project 
data, allowing easy data retrieval by pointing to map elements. 

• Online storage of documents, data, and images offers great power and ease of use in 
managing large amounts of digital photos and scanned project documents. 

Scope of Work 
STA staff have drafted the attached Scope of Work with the County of Solano Geographic 
Information Systems (GIS) department, who will be contributing $6,000 as the local match for 
this project (Attachment A). The STA will enter into a Cooperative Work Agreement to 
complete this work in partnership with Solano PDWG members. 

The Scope of Work describes completing the project in three phases: I) Project Mapping and 
Tracking webtools, 2) Project Management webtools, and 3) Public Accessible Project 
Information webtools. 

Solano PDWG Draft Scope of Work Feedback 
On July 27, 2010, the Solano PDWG reviewed a draft Scope of Work and generally supported 
the project's concept. Some Solano PDWG members requested that the webtools be developed 
prior to Solano PDWG members committing to its use. ST A staff answered that Solano PDWG 
members will be part of the program's development, to help ensure that the program will be 
useful to project managers. Solano PDWG members were also interested in operations and 
maintenance costs of such a web-based program. The Solano County GIS already has a model 
for cost sharing of GIS based products (e.g., aerial photos), and STA will look towards 
implementing a similar approach as local agencies choose to use the program. 

On August 24'h, the Solano PDWG requested additional scope of work details and suggested that 
MTC and Cal trans review the scope for multi-agency communication benefits. 

52



On August 251
h, the STA Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) concurred with Solano PDWG's 

comments and requested a more detailed scope of work. STA staff and Solano County GIS staff 
have prepared a more detailed scope of work. 

Discussion: 
On October 7, 2010, a subcommittee of the Solano PDWG including members from Dixon, 
Vacaville, and Vallejo met with STA Staff and Solano County GIS staff to help refine the Solano 
Project Mapper Scope of Work. The subcommittee agreed to focus the Scope of Work on the 
following seven key areas, which have been incorporated into the Scope of Work (Attachment 
A): 

1. Shared Document Library 
a. Shared project document storage online 
b. Useful for sending information between agencies quickly (but more secure and 

accessible than an FTP site) 
c. Easily prepare document copies for audits 

2. Simple Project Update Form for smaller cities 
a. Keep partner agencies current on projects through a simple online form. 
b. Form to be developed around prior project update form concepts (e.g., STA 

Project Delivery Form, FMS forms, STIP PPR forms, etc.) 

3. More Robust Project Management Support for larger cities 
a. Develop unique agency-specific project tracking and document support for larger 

cities 
b. Pursue data capture from existing sources (e.g., existing project manager 

spreadsheets, MS Project files, etc.) to minimize new data entry requirements 
(e.g., avoid additional project delivery data entry) 

4. CIP RePOrting Summaries 
a. Create CIP reports based on data collected for specific project delivery review 

processes (e.g., D-Team meetings, CIP review meetings, project conflict 
meetings, STA Project Delivery Update reports to Solano PDWG, TAC and STA 
Board). 

b. Create deadline reports 

5. Project Mapping 
a. Create basic project mapping for CIP reports and STA project maps 
b. Publicly accessible project information maps are a lower priority 

6. Data Security 
a. Ensure data security by working with local agency IT departments 
b. Ensure project information security 

7. Collaboration with MTC and Cal trans 
a. Ensure that the document sharing and project delivery data helps MTC and 

Cal trans. 
b. Once the pilot project reaches a functioning draft stage, share the progress with 

Caltrans and MTC for further modification. 

53



On October 28, 2010, the Solano PDWG recommended that the STA TAC forward a 
recommendation to the STA Board to approve the Scope of Work described in Attachment A to 
develop the "Management Assistant for Projects in Solano (MAPS)" Pilot project. 

On November 17,2010, the STA TAC unanimously approved to forward a recommendation to 
the STA Board to approve the Scope of Work described in Attachment A to develop the 
"Management Assistant for Projects in Solano (MAPS)" Pilot project. 

Fiscal Impact: 
$45,000 in Surface Transportation Program (STP) federal planning funds and $5,000 in Project 
Programming and Monitoring (PPM) local match funds are part of the STA Fiscal Year (FY) 
20 I O-Il Budget for this project. The STA is currently discussing how additional local funds 
would come from the County of Solano's Department oflnfonnation Technology to fund this 
project. Operations and maintenance funding has yet to be budgeted. The estimated yearly 
maintenance of this tool is $15,000 to $20,000. 

Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with the County of Solano to 
develop the "Management Assistant for Projects in Solano (MAPS)" Pilot project, as described 
in the scope of work in Attachment A. 

Attachment: 
A. Management Assistant for Projects in Solano (MAPS) Pilot, Scope of Work, (Oct 2010) 

54



Solano County GIS 
2011-03-22 

ATTACHMENT B

Solano County Intra Regional 
Transportation Reporting and Tracking 
System 

This project is to create a web mapping application that facilitates capital improvement 
tracking for Solano Transportation Authority (STA) Transportation Improvement Program System 
(TIPS). The mapping application will allow for project viewing and status tracking, as well as a 
mean to update project parameters. 

55

RGuerrero
Typewritten Text



I. SUMMARY ................................................................................................................................ 3 

II. INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................................................... 4 

Ill. NEEDS/PROBLEMS .................................................................................................................. 4 

IV. GOALS/OBJECTIVES .............................................................................................................. 4 

V. PROCEDURES/SCOPE OF WORK ......................................................................................... 6 

VI. TIMET ABLE & BUDGET ............................................................................................................. 8 

VII. KEY PERSONNEL ...................................................................................................................... 9 

VIII. EVALUATION ............................................................................................................................ 9 

IX. NEXT STEPS ............................................................................................................................... 9 

X. APPENDIX ............................................................................................................................... l 0 

Page 2 of 10 

56



I. Summary 
As a pilot project, the Solano County Intra Regional Transportation tracking website will 
leverage existing GIS technology and web based project management software to 
create and support a collaborative and interactive tracking tool for managing capital 
improvement projects for the Solano Transportation Authority, City of Vallejo and the 
City of Dixon. From feature creation and editing to reporting, this application will 
provide a set of tools that take advantage of existing technology and allows for a more 
robust. dynamic exchange of vital information. The website will be accessible and 
accurate. It is accessible because it is available to intra net users through standard web 
browsers and accurate because all of the data, spatial data included, is stored in 
central location. No matter where the application is accessed, it is always hitting the 
same information. 

The users of this web site will be able to research, track and share project information 
with other members with other members of the Solano Transportation Authority as well 
as with the state and federal government. 

Members should benefit from having 

• Better communication between the state, federal and other local agencies. 

• On line document repository and document management system. 

• On line access to mandatory input and reporting forms 

• Searchable forms and database for Project information. 

• Website assisted tracking and submittal of forms to local, state, and federal 
agencies. 

• A mapping component allowing visualization of the project environment and 
progress 

This project should take a total of 680 man-hours to complete and will result in the 
following deliverables: 

• A secure extranei GIS website with editing capabilities showing all active 
projects within Solano County. 

• Integrate a Microsoft SharePoint webpage, that will allow corroboration 
and data sharing as well as create appointments and announcements for 
upcoming activities. SharePoint will also allow key individuals to edit their 
agency's project information exclusively. 

• A public website for interested citizens to view upcoming projects within 
the county. 

Page 3 of 10 

57



II. Introduction 
Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) require sizable investments of time and money from 
a variety of government funding sources. The lifespan of these projects rnay cover 
several months to several years and costs rnay exceed several millions of dollars. Projects 
are often encumbered by the political process, size, cost, and location or environmental 
concerns. Location relative to other projects and surrounding infrastructure elements 
may determine when and where to proceed. This proposal incorporates the design of a 
secured web base extra net application for creating and tracking CIP budget, schedule, 
and spatial information. Using an enterprise ArcGIS Server application with Microsoft 
SharePoint within a collaborative web environment, users can both view and edit new 
project tasks, dollars, and geographic features directly into a secure database and on 
rnaps. 

Ill. Needs/Problems 
There are a variety of special districts and public works departments that have projects 
either currently under construction or scheduled for construction over the next few 
years. These projects are often tirnes overlapping in scope and locations. Most of these 
agencies manage several large and small Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) at any 
time of the year. Managing and reporting on these projects lead to a complex mixture of 
spreadsheets and paper reco'rds that are stored and sometimes unavailable to other 
agencies that may need that information. This proposal will offer a solution for a user
friendly and tirne saving means to deal with daily routines, reporting and tracking 
progress 

IV. Goals/Objectives 
The Goal is to create an efficient CIP web-based project management and reporting 
tool for all public works projects within Solano County. A set of customized applications 
and a shared collaborative secured website built to meet the needs and procedures for 
reporting and documenting active projects for both the State (CaiTRANS), Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) and the Solano Transportation Authority (STA). As a 
management tool, it will save valuable time for administrators, managers, and engineers. 

The systern is customized to incorporate all the essential management functions in 
reporting and tracking together with operational functions such as schedule, daily report, 
request for information, change order, progress photo documentation, meeting 
schedules, minutes of meetings, etc. This site will also include a GIS interface that will 
enable users to retrieve information by clicking on the site rnap or layout drawings. 

Page 4 of 10 

58



• A web-based one-stop information center lets all contributing agencies to 
have information whenever they need it. 

• The one-stop information center is web based and therefore accessible 
anywhere. You can access project information and collaborate with the 
project team at any location with an Internet connection. 

• Up-to-date Executive Summary displays big-picture information for quick 
review and alert on irnrninent or persistent issues. 

• Using ArcGIS geographic information system links to geographic locations 
to project data, allowing easy data retrieval by pointing to rnap elements. 

• The storing of documents, data, and imagery offers great power and 
ease of use in managing large amount of digital photos and related 
documents. 

In addition to these goals and objectives, the proposed project will focus on the 
following seven key areas, as discussed by the Solano Project Delivery Working Group in 
October 2010. 

I. Shared Document Library 
a. Shared project document storage online 
b. Useful for sending information between agencies quickly (but more secure and 

accessible than an FTP site) 
c. Easily prepare docurnent copies for audits 

2. Simple Project Update Form for smaller cities 
a. Keep partner agencies current on projects through a simple online forrn. 
b. Form to be developed around prior project update form concepts (e.g., STA 

Project Delivery Forrn, FMS forms, STIP PPR forms, etc.). 

3. More Robust Project Management Support for larger cities 
a. Develop unique agency-specific project tracking and docurnent support for 

larger cities 
b. Pursue data capture from existing sources (e.g., existing project manager 

spreadsheets, MS Project files, etc.) to minimize new data entry requirements 
(e.g., avoid additional project delivery data entry). 

4. CIP Reporting Summaries 
a. Create CIP reports based on data collected for specific project delivery review 

processes (e.g., D-Team rneetings, CIP review meetings, project conflict 
meetings, STA Project Delivery Update reports to Solano PDWG, TAC and ST A 
Board). 

b. Create deadline reports 

5. Project Mapping 
a. Create basic project mapping for CIP reports and STA project maps 
b. Publicly accessible project information maps are a lower priority 

Page 5 of 10 

59



6. Data Security 
a. Ensure data security by working with local agency IT departments 
b. Ensure project information security 

7. Collaboration with MTC and Caltrans 
a. Ensure that the document sharing and project delivery data helps MTC and 

Caltrans. 
b. Once the pilot project reaches a functioning draft stage, share the progress with 

Caltrans and MTC for further modification. 

V. Procedures/Scope of Work 
This project will be defined as being composed of a five phased approach with 
deliverables associated with each phase. The first phase will establish the basic 
framework and architecture of the web site. Phase two will establish the database 
requirements, reporting forms, and user interface. Phase three will create a project 
tracking web mapping application. Phase four will produce a web based project 
management tracking, and reporting component. The last phase will create a public 
accessible web mapping application. This work is to be completed within 6 months of 
its start date. 

Phase One: 

Develop a local agency extra net infrastructure and environment with participating 
agencies. The architecture will support logins, network security, document 
management, calendars, collaborative reporting and reporting forms, discussion 
groups event triggers similar to those found in Microsoft Share Point. 

Deliverable: 

A secured and comprehensive collaborative Extranei site. 

Phase Two: 

Because capture of the information required for the Caltrans Local Assistance 
Procedures Manual (LAPM) forms as online input does not offer a viable solution, we will 
design a scalable web based repository in which the project managers can control 
and store all project documentation, including status reports. Generic report forms will 
assist project managers with completing Caltrans forms and remain flexible as Caltrans 
updates and changes forms and procedures. 

Summary reports for local agency use 

Deliverable: 

A user friendly dashboard for creating, maintaining, and creating reports. 

Page 6 of 10 

60



Phase Three: 

ST A TIPS Mapping Application: 

The TIPS tracking application will be an Arc GIS Server based web mapping application 
built using the Geocortex Essential middleware application for web mapping 
functionality creation. The application will facilitate selecting projects, viewing projects 
location and current status. The application will produce project reporting format for 
tracking and highlighting multiple projects from a mapping window. 

Deliverable: 

A secure extranei GIS website with editing capabilities showing all active projects 
within Solano County also showing current project status and costs. 

Phase Four: 

Project Management Webpage: 

The project management component will allow for project sponsors and project 
managers to access information about each project, within the context of on-line 
project tracking. 

Deliverable: 

Integrate a Microsoft SharePoint webpage, that will allow corroboration and 
data sharing as well as create appointments and announcements for upcoming 
activities. SharePoint will also allow key individuals to edit their agency's project 
information exclusively: 

Phase Five: 

Public Accessible Mapping Application: 

The publicly accessible mapping application will present approved information 
regarding capital projects via an ArcGIS Server based web mapping application built 
using the Geocortex Essentials middleware application. 

Deliverable: 

A public website for interested citizens to view upcoming projects within the 
county. 

Page 7 of 10 

61



VI. Timetable & Budget 

Description of Work Duratlon/man·hrs Project Costs Solano County 
Costs 

Creation of Secured 
Phase Extranei Site and 120 $7,920.00 $1.080.00 [One Database 

Creation of custom 
Phase project management 

300 $19,800.00 $2.700.00 
Two web tools for each 

agency. 

Phase CIP Mapping 

Three Application 150 $9,900.00 $1,350.00 

Project Management 
Webpage Setup 50 $3,300.00 $ 450.00 

Phase 
Public Accessible 

Five Mapping Application 40 $2,640.00 $360.00 

Totals 660 $43,560.00 $5,940.00 

Operations and maintenance costs for this tool are estimated to be between $15,000 and 
$20,000 annually. These costs have not been budgeted and will be determined at the 
conclusion of the pilot project. 

Page 8 of 10 

62



VII. Key Personnel 
The key project team will be identified during project initiation. A high level organization structure 
is represented below. 

VIII. Evaluation 
A project specification will be created and presented to STA for review and approval, consistent 
with the STA's advisory committee review process. Once the project is deemed acceptable, a 
request tor signature will be requested before beginning work. Any changes requested in the 
future will be followed by a change order that will outline the necessary changes to the project. 
Before the site is operational, we will enter a test phase, after which, STA will give approval for its 
posting to the website. Logins will be assigned and any further requests for changes will be 
collected on the website for future evaluation and possible inclusion for the next release cycle. 

IX. Next Steps 
Review and acceptance of the proposal 

Kick off meeting to review goals 

Finalize project work plan 

Start work 

Page 9 of 10 

63



X. Appendix 
List of Tasks tor completing pilot. Tasks will be reviewed and approved by piloting agencies and 
STA advisory committees as necessary. 

Create Secure Extra Net Site 

Setup external website 
Acquire server 
Install software/components 
Test software 
Create test website 
Validate test website 

Setup database 
Acquire tesUQAiproduction DBs 
Create DBs 
Tables 
Create Tables 
Populate T abies 
Views 
Stored Procedures 
Security 
Users 
Roles 

Development 

Coding 

Bug fixes 
Testing 

Choose development environmenVtools 

Create Form 1 
Create Farm 2 
Create Form 3 
Create Fonn 4 
Create Farm 5 
Create and implement DB interiace to forms 
Unit Test forms 

Bug fixes 
Regression test 
Data validation 

Production Install 
Database 
Web 
Sign-off 

Page 10 ot 10 

64



 
 
 
 
 
 

Solano Transportation 
Authority Management 

Assistance for Projects in 
Solano 

(MAPS Project) 
 
 
 
 

Executive Summary 
April 28, 2011 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
Department of Information Technology 

GIS Division 

65

RGuerrero
Typewritten Text
Attachment B

RGuerrero
Typewritten Text



 
Executive Summary: 
 
Background: 
 
With a staff of three, the STA Project Delivery Department currently assists the seven cities and the 
County in the delivery and monitoring of over $400 million in active federal, state, regional, and locally 
funded transportation projects countywide.  They  also coordinates and works with the Solano Project 
Delivery Working Group (Solano PDWG), composed of local project managers from across the county 
who have met monthly for the past 3 years to discuss project delivery issues and resolve them in a 
cooperative manner. 
 
Over the last two years, the Solano PDWG has requested project delivery assistance beyond what is 
currently offered by the STA, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), and the Caltrans 
Department of Local Assistance. This need was particularly acute during the last 2011 Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP) development process to help understand project status and funding, 
throughout the expedited and hurried nature of spending American Recovery & Reinvestment Act (ARRA) 
funds, and during recent Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) audits of federally funded projects. 
 
During the Spring of 2011, STA reviewed all of various means in which local agencies were tracking 
federal aided projects. They reviewed the delivery, management and tracking methods used as well as 
how the projects were reported back to CalTRANS and the FHA .  As a result of this review, it was 
discovered that local agencies are suffering from a large number of staff turnovers and budget cuts which 
in turn have created obstacles to proper administration and tracking of the funding documentation crucial 
to continued funding.  From a meeting with MTC and CalTRANS, it was recommended to streamline the 
circulation of project documents, status information, and funding information between all of the previously 
mentioned agencies.  It was proposed that our local agencies and STA should create an online 
communication and project management tool to facilitate this process.  From this recommendation, STA 
has been granted funding to form the Management Assistance for Projects in Solano County (MAPS) 
project management and tracking website.   
 
 
Management Assistance for Projects in Solano County Concept & Elements 
 
 
The project concept is to create an 
efficient Capital Improvement Program 
(CIP) web based project management 
and reporting tool for all public works 
projects within Solano County.  As a 
project management tool, this program 
will save valuable time for administrators, 
managers, and engineers as they submit 
reports and file requests internally (e.g., 
council reports, grant applications) and 
with STA, MTC, and Caltrans.   

 
 
The Website will allow contributors a 
secure location to: 
 

• Access project information whenever they need it. 
• Have accessibility to all files anytime, anywhere facilitating project delivery collaboration with 

multiple agencies. 

66



• Store Up-to-date Executive Summary displays, big-picture information for quick review and alert 
on imminent or persistent issues. 

• Using Maps and geographic information system links to geographic locations to project data, 
allowing easy data retrieval by pointing to map elements. 

• Manage online storage of documents, data, and images offers great power and ease of use in 
managing large amounts of digital photos and scanned project documents 

 
 
Return on Investment 
 
An interagency extranet site can greatly reduce the amount of money spent on document retrieval, 
review, and maintenance of data as well as reduce the time process grant applications and funding 
reports.  An example of this time savings occurs if 2 project involving 5 people each, there are 10•9/2 = 45 
communication paths (algorithm provided by the number of nodes (n)(people involved) times the number 
of network paths (necessary phone calls and/or visits) (n -1)/2 or (n)*(n-1)/2 )  will happen for each 
project. It is evident that as the number of people needing the same information the number of data 
transactions rises as well.  Having a central communication site or kiosk will reduce the redundancy and 
risk of communication errors.  And when they do occur, especially with larger project teams involved, the 
site will allows for editing and version control, emails, and broadcast messages to all concerned. 
 
Because the MAPS extranet basic function is to serve as a project "switchboard." All communication flows 
through the switchboard. This has two great benefits: 
 

• It allows you to establish an audit trail for all project communication. This provides a permanent 
record to which you can refer later.  

• It reduces the number of communication paths to only one more than the number of nodes. 
Therefore, every communication path between two project team members consists of two links, 
from person A to the switchboard, and from the switchboard to person B.  
 

Other obvious benefits of employing an extranet in project based work include: 
 

• Tracking documents: With a Web-based "vault," and suitable check-in/check-out procedures, you 
will be able to know the status and location of every document in the project. 

• Collaborative Design: Storing all project information in a globally-accessible extranet means that 
geographically-dispersed groups can still collaborate.  For a group of people to become a team, 
they must share a common model."  The extranet provides the necessary framework. 

• Faster, fewer mistakes: A positive documentary foundation coupled with a clear and recorded 
communication scheme in a secure and everywhere-accessible framework is sure to result in 
earlier completion than would otherwise be possible. And since most project mistakes are at the 
result of failed communication, not errors in analysis or judgment, the switchboard nature of an 
extranet reduces such errors. 

• Achieving projects on time and within budget: On large projects, these goals can be ulcer-
generators. But a properly implemented extranet can provide the much-sought-after control, and 
consequently reduce the stress on all the project managers. 

 

 

 

 
 

67



Time Table and Budget 
 

 Description of Work Duration/man-hrs Project Costs Solano County 
Costs 

Phase 
One 

Creation of Secured 
Extranet Site and 
Database 

120 $7,920.00 $1,080.00 

Phase 
Two 

Creation of custom 
project management 
web tools for each 
agency. 

300 $19,800.00 $2,700.00 

Phase 
Three 

CIP Mapping 
Application 150 $9,900.00 $1,350.00 

Phase 
Four 

Project Management 
Webpage Setup 50 $3,300.00 $ 450.00 

Phase 
Five 

Public Accessible 
Mapping Application 40 $2,640.00 $ 360.00 

 Totals  660 $43,560.00 $5,940.00 

 
Fiscal Impact 
 Operations and maintenance funding has yet to be budgeted. The estimated yearly maintenance of this 
tool is $15,000 to $20,000. Should this pilot be successful, STA staff will develop cost-sharing options for 
participating agencies. 
 
Key Personnel 
 
The key project team will be identified during project initiation.  A high level organization structure is 
represented below 

 

68



 
STA will coordinate and oversee all work performed by Solano County GIS Staff for the benefit of the 
PDWG working group. 
 
 
Findings and Recommendations 
 
The STA Board approved the findings for developing of this project for a collaborative website that will 
meet the needs and approval  of the PDWG members.  STA granted this approval with the 
recommendation PDWG staff create a pilot project using a city with complex project tracking needs as 
well a city with moderate project management.   
 

69



ATTACHMENT C 
 

Estimated Cost Comparison: County of Solano MAPS Pilot 
Program and STA Google Based Online Project Tracking Program 
 

Task 
County MAPS Pilot 

Project 
STA Project Tracking 

Program Tool 
Potential 
Savings 

1. Online Tracking Program 
Development $45,0001 $10,0002 $35,000 

2. Annual Estimated 
Administration and 
Maintenance of the program $15,000 to $20,0003 $6,0004 

$9,000 to 
$14,000 

 
Assumptions 
1Based on existing funding agreement 
 
2Based on a $6,000 estimate for internet web consultant services to design an online web page  
plus $4,000 for STA staff time to complete projects database which will link to the web page.  
  
3Based on estimate reference provided in the October 13, 2013 PDWG Staff report 
 
4Based on an estimate of 10 hours per month at existing Project Assistant's rate 
  
 

70



Agenda Item 9.G 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
DATE: June 26, 2014 
TO: STA Board 
FROM: Sofia Recalde, Associate Planner 
RE:  Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) Appointment 
 
 
Background: 
The Solano Transportation Authority's (STA) Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) 
membership currently has three vacant positions.  The Committee is responsible for 
providing funding and policy recommendations to the STA Board on pedestrian related 
issues for monitoring, implementing, and updating the Countywide Pedestrian Transportation 
Plan. 
 
Membership consists of representatives from a city, county, agency and/or advocacy group, 
as well as a member-at-large (Attachment A). The representatives are nominated either by 
their respective organization, city council or mayor before being considered by the STA 
Board for a formal appointment.  Appointments are for a 3-year term and are voluntary.  
Non-elected citizens are encouraged to participate in these citizen advisory committees. 
 
STA staff is actively seeking new members to fill current and future vacancies.  A 
recruitment process is underway in coordination with the cities and county staff.  STA staff is 
working to advertise vacant positions on the STA website, Facebook, and local newspapers. 
 
Discussion: 
In June 2014, Teri Booth submitted an application to join the PAC as a representative for the 
City of Vallejo (Attachment B).  Based on her interest and experience, STA staff is 
recommending Teresa Booth to serve as the City of Vallejo representative on the PAC for a 
three-year term. 
 
Recommendation: 
Appoint Teresa Booth representing the City of Vallejo to the Pedestrian Advisory Committee 
(PAC) for a three-year term. 
 
Attachments:  

A. STA PAC Membership Roster 
B. PAC Statement of Interest—Teresa Booth 

 

71



This page intentionally left blank. 

72



 
 

STA Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) 
Membership Status 

(July 2014) 
 
The following are the Membership Terms of the PAC Members: 

Jurisdiction Member Term Expires 
Benicia Pete Turner December 31, 2015 
Dixon Bil Paul December 31, 2013 
Fairfield Tamer Totah December 31, 2016 
Rio Vista Kevin McNamara December 31, 2016 
Suisun City Mike Hudson December 31, 2013 
Vacaville Shannon Lujan December 31, 2015 
Vallejo Terersa Booth July 31, 2017 
Solano County Vacant N/A 
Member-At-Large Timothy Choi December 31, 2016 
Bay Area Ridge Trail Kathy Hoffman December 31, 2015 
Solano Community College Christian Ogden  December 31, 2016 
Tri-City and County 
Cooperative Planning Group 

Vacant N/A 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

73



74



Agenda Item 9.H 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 

 
 
 
DATE:  June 30, 2014 
TO:  STA Board  
FROM: Tiffany Gephart, Transit Mobility Coordinator 
RE:  Paratransit Coordination Council (PCC) Appointment 
 
 
Background/Discussion: 
The Solano Transportation Authority’s (STA) Paratransit Coordination Council (PCC) By-
Laws stipulate that there are eleven members on the PCC.  Members of the PCC include up to 
three (3) transit users, two (2) members-at-large, two (2) public agency representatives, and 
four (4) social service providers.   
  
Currently, there is one (1) vacancy for a Member-at-Large, STA staff received an interest 
form from Lyall Abbott (Attachment A). Lyall Abbott is a resident of Vallejo and cares for 
transportation needs of people with disabilities. 
 
At the June 16, 2014 special meeting, the PCC unanimously approved to forward a 
recommendation to the STA Board to appoint Lyall Abbott to the PCC for a three (3) year 
term. If appointed by the STA Board, Lyall Abbott will fill the vacancy of Member-at-Large. 
 
Recommendation: 
Appoint Lyall Abbott to the Paratransit Coordinating Council for a three-year term as a 
Member-at-Large. 
 
Attachments: 

A. PCC Membership (June 2014) 
B. Lyall Abbott’s PCC Interest Form 

 
 

 
 

75



This page intentionally left blank. 

76



ATTACHMENT A 
 
 

Solano County 
 

Paratransit Coordinating Council 
 

Membership Status 
 

June 2014 
 

Member Jurisdiction Agency Appointed Term Expires 

Edith Thomas Social Service Provider Connections 4 Life March 2012 March 2015 

James Williams Member at Large Member at Large December 2012 December 2015 

Judy Nash Public Agency - Education Solano Community College April 2013 April 2016 

Kyrre Helmersen Transit User  April 2012 April 2015 

Richard Burnett MTC PAC Representative  December 2012 December 2015 

Anne Payne Social Service Provider Area Agency on Aging June 2013 June 2016 

Curtis Cole 
Public Agency – Health and Social 

Services 
Solano County Mental Health September 2013 September 2016 

Emily Flynn Social Service Provider Independent Living Resource Center June 2014  June 2017 

Ernest Rodgers Transit User  June 2014  June 2017 

Kenneth Grover Transit User  June 2014  June 2017 

Lyall Abbott Member at Large  
July 2014 

(pending STA 
Board Approval) 

July 2017 

 

77



78

SJones
Typewritten Text

SJones
Typewritten Text

SJones
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B

SJones
Typewritten Text



Agenda Item 9.I 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE: June 30, 2014 
TO: STA Board 
FROM: Liz Niedziela, Transit Program Manager 
RE: Coordinated Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP)/ 
 Intercity Transit Corridor Update - Contract Amendment 
 
 
Background: 
In 2010, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) began the Transit Sustainability 
Project (TSP), a regional effort to address transit capital and operating shortfalls and to improve 
transit performance for the customer.  In May 2012, MTC adopted Resolution 4060 which 
contains several policies, strategies and recommendations resulting from the TSP findings. One 
of the Resolution 4060 recommendations was to conduct multi-agency Short Range Transit Plans 
(SRTP) at the county or sub-regional level to promote interagency service and capital planning. 
 
STA in coordination with MTC and the five (5) transit operators in Solano County proceeded 
with the endeavor in the development of not only the first Countywide Coordinated SRTP for 
Solano County, but also the first Coordinated SRTP for the region.  The Coordinated SRTP for 
Solano County and the I-80/I-680/I-780/State Route (SR) 12 Transit Corridor Study are being 
undertaken concurrently by the consulting team led by Arup, which started the project in 
September 2012.  
 
Discussion: 
The Coordinated SRTPs have been completed and was approved by the STA Board in September 
2013 and the Intercity Transit Corridor Study is still in progress.  The SolanoExpress Intercity 
Transit Consortium has reviewed various elements of the Transit Corridor Study and 
recommended approval of the performance metrics used in evaluating intercity bus service. The 
STA Board has been presented with the scope and approach to the Transit Corridor Study and 
approved the performance metrics to be used for evaluating intercity bus service options. 
 
There were some additional costs associated with the development of these Transit Corridor 
Study documents. STA and the Consortium members have requested more time to review the 
Transit Corridor Study.  The additional cost of $1,000 will cover presentations to the 
Consortium, TAC and the STA Board. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The cost of this contract amendment is $1,000.  This is proposed to be funded by a State Transit 
Assistance Fund (STAF) funds for FY- 2014-15. 

79



 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Allocate $1,000 in State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) for FY 2014-15 for the Transit 
Corridor Study; and  

2. Authorize the Executive Director to execute a contract amendment with Arup for an 
amount not-to-exceed $1,000 to cover the additional costs to complete the Intercity 
Transit Corridor Study and to extend the contract to September 30, 2014. 

80



Agenda Item 9.J 
July 9, 2013 

 
 
 
 
DATE: June 30, 2014 
TO: STA Board 
FROM: Liz Niedziela, Transit Program Manager 
RE: Transit Corridor Studies Project Manager - Contract Amendment 
 
 
Background: 
In the past, Solano Transportation Authority (STA) has contracted with consultants to 
provide transit support to transit operators.  STA provided consultants to assist SolTrans with 
transition tasks and STA funded and contracted with Nancy Whelan as SolTrans Interim 
Finance Director and Jim McElroy, SolTrans Interim Executive Director.  
 
In March 2013, STA received two letters requesting assistance from STA.  The first request 
was from the City of Dixon requesting for STA to provide consulting services to help 
complete Dixon's transit service analysis and the second request was from the City of Rio 
Vista requesting assistance from STA regarding the City's transit finances and operations.  In 
April 2013, the STA Board approved to provide transit financial and operational services to 
the Cities of Dixon and Rio Vista.  STA contracted with Nancy Whelan Consulting and 
McElroy Transit to provide these services. 
 
Discussion: 
In June, Nancy Whelan, one of the STA’s Transit Project Manager, accepted the position of 
General Manager for Marin Transit.  Jim McElroy is currently providing transit services for 
the City of Dixon through a contract with STA.  STA staff recommends McElroy Transit 
contract for Project Management services be amended to take over the project manager 
contract for the Transit Corridor Study and assist in the implementation of related programs 
next fiscal year.  STA recommends extending the McElroy Transit contract to June 30, 2015 
for an amount not-to-exceed $42,500.  This amendment will provide for Project Management 
that was previously provided by Nancy Whelan Consulting (NWC). 
   

Fiscal Impact: 
The cost of this contract amendment is $42,500.  This will be funded by STAF funds in 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15’s budget. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Allocate $42,500 in State Assistance Fund (STAF) for FY 2014-15 for Project 
Management Service for the Transit Corridor Studies; and 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to execute a contract with McElroy Transit for an 
amount not-to-exceed $42,500 to cover project management consultant services 
related to the Transit Corridor Studies and extend the contract to June 30, 2015. 

 
Attachment: 

A. McElroy Transit Scope of Work 

81



This page intentionally left blank. 

82



James McElroy, McElroy Transit  
FY 14-15 Consulting Service for Solano Transportation Authority 
June 27, 2014 

Proposal – Scope of Work 

Task 01:  Phase 1 – Close Out 

Complete work to close out acceptance and review of I-80/I-680/I-780/State Route 12 Transit Corridor 
Final Study (Phase 1 Study).  Most has been completed, but there will be work necessary to this phase 
related to STA Board Review in September 2014 and perhaps review by partner agencies.  Contractor 
will also use this category for review and research time involving the Phase 1 Study document. 
 
Task 02:  Phase 2 – Preparation 
Research and miscellaneous contacts to lay groundwork for the Phase 2, using presumed alternative 
from Phase 1 Study (Preferred Option). 

Task 03:  Phase 2 – Consultant Procurement 

In consultation with STA staff and other partners, develop RFP for consultant to implement Phase 2 
based on the Preferred Option.  Work with STA staff to gain acceptance of the RFP.  Assist STA staff, as 
necessary, in the RFP process through selection.  

Task 04:  Phase 2 – Consultant Onboarding 

Provide services to assist STA staff in onboarding the selected consultant for Phase 2. 

Task 05:  Phase 2 - Consultant Oversight and Project Implementation 

Provide project management services and directly supervise Phase 2 consultant.  Ensure compliance 
with STA project objectives and consultant agreements.  Attend and participate in meetings necessary to 
provide oversight.  Provide draft board reports and otherwise assist STA staff.  Provide relevant review 
and analysis of documents and reports. 

Task 06:  Phase 2 – Project Acceptance and Delivery 

Provide services to close out project, including acceptance by STA staff and relevant governing bodies 

 

 

Vers01 

83

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



This page intentionally left blank. 

84



McElroy - Cost Estimates to Scope of Work

Estimated Hours Hours Hour Rate Hour Rate

Task 01:  Phase 1 – Close Out 20.0         125.00$       2,500.00$       

Task 02:  Phase 2 – Preparation 40.0         125.00         5,000.00         

Task 03:  Phase 2 – Consultant Procurement 80.0         125.00         10,000.00       

Task 04:  Phase 2 – Consultant Onboarding 40.0         125.00         5,000.00         

Task 05:  Phase 2 - Consultant Oversight and Project Implementation 120.0       125.00         15,000.00       

Task 06:  Phase 2 – Project Acceptance and Delivery 40.0         125.00         5,000.00         

Total - Estimate 42,500.00$    

Note:  Billing will occur based only on actual and approved by STA staff

Ver02

85



This page intentionally left blank. 

86



Agenda Item 9.K 
July 9, 2014 

 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE:  June 30, 2014 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Liz Niedziela, Transit Program Manager 
RE: Mobility Management Program Project Manager – Contract Amendment 
 
 
Background: 
To help Solano Transportation Authority manage a range of transit studies and analysis, staff 
received Board approval in October 2011 to contract with qualified consultants for Project 
Managers (PM) to work jointly with the STA staff and the Solano transit operators to 
develop plans, programs, and/or studies.  The STA contracted with three Consultants to 
oversee and manage the following projects and provide assistance to STA staff: 
 

• Community Based Transportation Plan (CBTP) – East Fairfield 
• Solano County Coordinated Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP) 
• I-80/I-680/I-780/State Route (SR) 12 Transit Corridor Study 
• Mobility Management Plan/Program 
• STA Staff Assistance for Transit Finance and Management 

 
The CBTP, SRTP and Mobility Management Plan are completed.  Transit Finance and 
Management is in process.  The Transit Corridor Study is under development and is 
scheduled to be presented to the STA Board in August 2014. 
 
Discussion: 
Elizabeth Richards Consulting was selected as one of the transit project management 
consultants qualified to perform Project Management Services for the Community Based 
Transportation Plan - East Fairfield (completed September 2012) and Mobility Management 
Plan (completed April 2014).  In addition, there are several Mobility Management programs 
to be implemented in the next fiscal year.  The programs are Travel Training/Ambassador 
Program, the Call Center expansion with a Mobility Management Website and Consolidated 
Transportation Services Agency (CTSA).  These programs are partially funding with Job 
Access Reverse Commute (JARC), New Freedom funding and State Transit Assistance Fund 
(STAF).  STA staff recommends the Elizabeth Richards Consulting contract for Project 
Management services be amended to assist in the implementation of related programs for an 
amount not-to-exceed $75,000 as specified in Attachment A.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The cost of this contract amendment is $75,000.  This is proposed to be funded by STAF 
funds in FY 2014-15..

87



Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Allocate $75,000 in State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) for FY 2014-15 for Project 
Management services to implement Mobility Management; and 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to execute a contract amendment with Elizabeth 
Richards Consulting for an amount not-to-exceed $75,000 to cover project 
management consultant services related to the implementation of Mobility 
Management Programs and extend the contract to June 30, 2015. 

 
Attachment: 

A. Elizabeth Richards Consulting Scope of Work 

88



ATTACHMENT A 
 

Mobility Management 
Elizabeth Richards Consulting (ERC) 

Project Management 
(FY2014-15) 

 

Scope of Work and Budget 

 

Task 1:  ADA In-Person Assessment  Project Management 

ADA in-person assessments will be conducted countywide by CARE Evaluators by contract 
with the STA.  In its second year of a three year contract, CARE Evaluators conducts 
assessments in all seven cities, notifies and schedules applicants, manages the ASMS database 
and coordinates with the Bay Area RED system, and among other tasks coordinates with 
transit operators, paratransit operations and STA.   ERC project management will ensure 
quality service across the county and in accordance with contract and FTA performance 
standards.  Tasks may include, but not be limited to: 

• facilitate and troubleshoot coordination and communication with CARE and transit 
operators; 

• coordinate with multiple ADA Assessment site staff to produce monthly assessment 
calendar and distribute to affected parties in a timely manner; 

• review and run reports from ASMS system to ensure timely distribution of 
determination letters, scheduling of appointments, and other activities; 

• oversight and monitor contractor activity, compile data and recommend program 
adjustments for quality service; 

• meet with ADA Assessment Contractor 

Task 1 Annual Hours and Budget:  150 hours ($15,000) 

 
 

Task 2:  Travel Training Project Management 

The establishment of a countywide Travel Training is under development with its first year 
anticipated to begin the summer of 2014.  ERC project management support will assist with 
outreach to identify and secure volunteer Transit Ambassadors, outreach and promotion of 
program to local organizations, technical review of training materials and videos, 
establishment of performance measures and tracking mechanisms, and other tasks. 
Manage start-up and first year of countywide Travel Training pilot program.  This will 
include, but not be limited to: 

89



• Conduct outreach to recruit potential initial volunteer ambassador candidates  
(calls, meetings, presentations, etc.) for SolTrans and FAST; 

• Develop outreach plan and assist with outreach implementation to promote 
program to potential trainees; 

• Technical review of initial program materials and updates as needed; 
• Establish, monitor, and analyze program performance, recommend adjustments 

to program to meet performance expectations and funding requirements; 
• Coordinate as needed with Mobility Call Center (inc. Older Driver program) to 

monitor activity and performance during pilot program period; 
• Assist with the development and administration of Ambassador incentive passes 

Task 2:  Annual Hours and Budget:  250 hours ($25,000) 

 

3. CTSA 
The STA Board acted in June 2014 to seek CTSA designation from MTC.  ERC would 
provide project management support during the designation process, anticipated start-up of 
CTSA, and first year of operation. This may include, but not limited to:  

• Resolving issues during CTSA designation process; 
• Outreach and recruitment of CTSA Advisory Committee members; 
• Development of new CTSA Advisory Committee member orientation; 
• Staff support to CTSA Advisory Committee; 
• Prepare reports and other documents for CTSA Board and committees 

(Advisory, Consortium, TAC, PCC, SSPwDTAC, etc.); 
• Outreach to, identify partnership opportunities, and coordinate with service and 

other agencies (HSS, non-profits, others) to coordinate transportation services, 
programs, and needs; 

• Monitor and evaluate all Mobility Management pilot programs, recommend 
program adjustments to achieve goals; 

• Identify and pursue potential funding opportunities and partnerships; 
• Develop multi-year programming and funding plan for CTSA based on 

performance of pilot programs and planning efforts such as the countywide 
Senior and People with Disabilities Transportation Plan (2011) and multiple 
CBTPs. 

 

Task 3:  Annual Hours and Budget:  350 hours ($35,000) 

 

90



Agenda Item 9.L 
July 9, 2014 

 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: June 30, 2014 
TO: STA Board 
FROM: Liz Niedziela, Transit Program Manager 
RE: Transit Finance and Coordination Project Manager – 
 Contract Amendment 
 
 
Background: 
In the past, Solano Transportation Authority (STA) has contracted with consultants to 
provide transit support to transit operators, including assist Solano County Transit (SolTrans) 
with transition tasks during its initial years of operation.  Including the City of Benicia and 
Vallejo’s transit systems were merger to form SolTrans, STA funded and contracted with 
Nancy Whelan as SolTrans Interim Finance Director and Jim McElroy, SolTrans Interim 
Executive Director.  
 
In March 2013, STA received two letters requesting assistance from STA for transit support 
assistance.  The first request was from the City of Dixon requesting for STA to provide 
consulting services to help complete Dixon's transit service analysis.  The second request was 
from the City of Rio Vista requesting assistance from STA regarding the City's transit 
finances and operations.  In April 2013, the STA Board authorized the Executive Director to 
provide transit financial and operational services to the Cities of Dixon and Rio Vista for a 
period of six months with an option to extend for an additional six months. In October, the 
STA Board authorized the Executive Director to exercise the option to extend for an 
additional six months for STA share not to exceed $75,000.  The new City Manager of City 
of Rio Vista requested an additional extension of the contract to the end of the fiscal year, 
June 30, 2014 for an amount not to exceed $22,400.  
 
Discussion: 
Nancy Whelan Consulting (NWC) has been providing Transit Financial Services for the 
Cities of Dixon and Rio Vista through an agreement with STA.  NWC also has been 
providing Transit Financial Services and Project Management Services for the STA.   
 
In June 2013, Nancy Whelan accepted the position of General Manager at Marin Transit.  
Her associate, Mary Pryor, has been working in support of this contract.  STA staff 
recommends amending the NWC contract for an additional amount not-to-exceed $150,205.  
This will allow Mary Pryor from NWC to continue working for Rio Vista Delta Breeze in 
support of this contract through June 30, 2015.  In addition, financial services and support 
will be provided for the Intercity Funding Agreement, Intercity Bus Replacement Plan, the 
Intercity Paratransit Program Support and other projects. (Attachments A and B).  Tina 
Spencer, from NWC, will continue to help STA staff implement the Title VI Program. 

Fiscal Impact: 
The cost of this contract amendment is $150,205.  This is proposed to be funded by State 
Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) funds in Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15. 

91



 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Allocate $150,205 in State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) for FY 2014-15 for 
Transit Finance and Coordination Project Management Services; and 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to execute a contract amendment for Transit Project 
Management Services for Nancy Whelan Consulting/Nancy Whelan Consulting 
Partners for an amount not-to-exceed $150,205 to cover additional transit related 
project management and financial services for the STA and the Cities of Dixon and 
Rio Vista and extend the contract to June 30, 2015. 

 
Attachments: 

A. NWC Partners Scope of Work 
B. NWC Partners Work Plan and Budget 

92



ATTACHMENT A 
 

Nancy Whelan Consulting / NWC Partners  
FY 14-15 Consulting Services for Solano Transportation Authority 

TASK 1: STA Title VI Program Implementation 
 
Based on the work that we’ve completed on the Title VI Program Update, NWC has developed tasks that 
could be undertaken to assist STA in implementing the Title VI requirements.  Two tasks are included, 
with varying levels of effort.   
 
Task 1A: Implementation Overview ($3,855) 
 
There are a number of items associated with Title VI implementation that are new to STA.   This task is 
designed to ensure that the STA staff is aware of all of the Title VI elements that ware required and 
identify where further guidance may be necessary in order to implement the new requirements.  NWC 
will provide “Train the Trainer” type of assistance, working with the STA program managers to help 
them understand how the Title VI requirements may alter their operation or should be applied.   
 
NWC will create an inventory of the required elements and work with staff to identify the 
implementation lead.  
 
We anticipate a series of one-on-one meetings with program managers and one group meeting to 
provide this assistance. 

Funding Agreement ($24,800) 
 
NWC will update the Intercity Funding Agreement, and to update the underlying data and related 
calculations of intercity bus subsidy requirements by jurisdiction.  Specific tasks may include: 

• Update population and ridership data, as available. 
• Review SolTrans and FAST cost allocation models updated with actual data. 
• Reconcile planned costs and revenues by intercity route with actual, audited data. 
• Review cost allocation models for SolTrans and FAST and use data in the intercity funding 

model. Incorporate results of the prior year reconciliation. 
• Present the intercity funding model results, including reconciliations, to the Intercity Funding 

Working Group, and the Transit Consortium. Not to exceed two meetings. 
• Revise the intercity funding model based on input from the Intercity Funding Working Group 

and the Transit Consortium, as needed. 
• Update the TDA matrix.  Obtain current fund estimate and estimated drawdowns by jurisdiction. 

Add TDA requirements for the Intercity Funding Agreement. 
• Analyze the financial outlook for SolanoExpress Operators, cost information and revenue 

updates. NWC will compare the financial outlook with the SRTP, and summarize differences and 
findings.   

93



TASK 3: Revised Intercity Bus Replacement Plan ($7,560) 
 
NWC will review the costs and schedules for the intercity bus replacements, and evaluate the funding 
status for the partner agencies.  NWC will prepare a summary that describes the overall funding plan, 
the amounts provided to date, and the amounts and timing of funds required by each agency. 

TASK 4: Estimate of New Bridge Tolls, Vehicle Registration Fee, and Sales 
Tax ($6,440) 
 
As requested, NWC will provide an estimate of the potential revenues generated from various new 
funding sources, including bridge tolls, vehicle registration fees, and a sales tax. The estimates will be 
based on realistic assumptions of the revenue basis, and will include reasonable growth assumptions.  
Sensitivity tests can be performed to assess the impacts of a range of adjustments to the base and 
growth rate assumptions.  

TASK 5: Rio Vista Financial Assistance 
 
Task 5A: First Half of FY 14-15 ($35,800) 
 
NWC will continue to provide financial assistance to Rio Vista Delta Breeze.  Tasks through December 
2014 include: 

• Grant reimbursement requests for vehicle replacement (5316 capital), FY14 operations (5317 
extension), equipment (STAF), FY14 operations (5311 grant to be awarded), TDA capital 
reimbursements 

• TDA rescission processing, claim follow-up 
• FY14 year-end close, including Greyhound reconciliation 
• Semi-annual grants reporting 
• SCO reporting 
• NTD reporting 
• 5304 Planning grant procurement and grants management 
• FY13 audit assistance 
• FY12 audit findings follow-up 
• Train new Rio Vista personnel, as necessary 
• Other activities as necessary 

 
Task 5B: Second Half of FY 14-15 ($35,800) 
 
NWC will continue to provide financial assistance to Rio Vista Delta Breeze.  Tasks through June 2014 
include: 

• FY15 grant reimbursements 
• Grant applications 
• FY14 audit assistances 

94



• FY12 and FY13 audit follow-up 
• Semi-annual grants reporting 
• FY16 budget preparation 
• FY16 TDA claim 
• Train new Rio Vista personnel, as necessary 
• Other activities as necessary 

TASK 6: Intercity Taxi Scrip Program Support ($35,800) 
 
NWC will assist with reconciliation, coordination, and other tasks related to the Intercity Taxi Scrip 
Program as requested.  The timing and details of this task will be discussed with STA staff as the 
program’s management plan progresses. 

TASK 7: Other Tasks as Assigned by STA 
 
NWC will provide other financial consulting services as requested by Solano Transportation Authority.  
Depending on the scope and schedule of the new assignments and the status of the tasks listed above, 
the remaining budget may be reallocated to new tasks, or an amendment to the contract may be 
required. 

95



This page intentionally left blank. 

96



Solano Transportation Authority
Draft Budget for FY 14-15 Consulting Services
NWC Partners

Hours Hrly Rate Hours Hrly Rate Hours Hrly Rate Hours Hrly Rate Hours Cost
180.00$         180.00$     180.00$      85.00$       

Task 1: Title VI Implementation
1A Implementation Overview -$               20 3,600$        -$             3 255$          3,855$           

Task 2: Update Intercity Funding Agreement 40 7,200$           -$            -$             40 3,400$       10,600$         
 Financial Analysis 40 7,200$           20 3,600$        -$             40 3,400$       14,200$         

Task 3: Revised Intercity Bus Replacement Plan 30 5,400$           12 2,160$        -$             -$           7,560$           

Task 4: Estimate of New Bridge Tolls, Vehicle 
Registration Fee, and Sales Tax 20 3,600$           12 2,160$        -$             8 680$          6,440$           

Task 5: Rio Vista Financial Assistance
5A First half of FY 14-15 180 32,400$         -$            -$             40 3,400$       35,800$         
5B Second half of FY 14-15 180 32,400$         -$            -$             40 3,400$       35,800$         

Task 6: Intercity Taxi Scrip Program Support 160 28,800$         20 3,600$        -$             40 3,400$       35,800$         

Subtotal Labor 650 117,000$      84 15,120$    0 -$            211 17,935$    0 150,055$      
Postage, Other Direct Costs 150$             150$              
Subtotal Other Direct Costs 150$             -$           -$            -$          150$             
Total  650 117,150$      84 15,120$     0 0 211 17,935$     0 150,205$      

Note: With STA's prior approval, personnel assignments in this budget are subject to change, based on expertise and availability.

Mary Pryor Tina Spencer Shannon Gaffney Adrian Filice Total

97



This page intentionally left blank. 

98



Agenda Item 9.M 
July 9, 2014 

 
 

 
 
 
DATE:  June 30, 2014 
TO:  SR2S-AC 
FROM: Judy Leaks, Program Manager 
RE: STA’s Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Program Public Safety Enforcement Grant  
 
 
Background: 
The STA’s Safe Routes to School (SR2S) program encourages students to walk and bike to 
school and supports these activities with education and encouragement events throughout the 
year. The STA also supports a variety of engineering and enforcement strategies that better 
enable students to walk or bike to school.  
 
To promote enforcement efforts, the SR2S - Advisory Committee (SR2S-AC) recommended that 
STA develop a Public Safety Enforcement Grant that would be available for agencies within the 
county to apply for and use the monies toward enforcement activities related to the SR2S 
program. The scope of work for the initial grant application was developed in coordination with 
the SR2S-AC and a Request for Proposals was released for Fiscal Year (FY) 2011-12. The first 
grant was received jointly by the Cities of Fairfield and Suisun City for the development of 
Crossing Guard Training materials and enhanced enforcement. The cities worked together and 
developed a crossing guard training manual, a DVD and a written test that was then made 
available to all school districts and police departments in Solano County. These materials are 
currently used to train crossing guards in Fairfield and Suisun City. 
 
Based on the success of the first Public Safety Enforcement Grant, it was recommended by the 
SR2S-AC to include enhanced public enforcement as part of the OneBayArea Grant (OBAG) 
funding dedicated to Solano SR2S. At its July 10, 2013 meeting, the STA Board approved the 
SR2S Program 2-Year Work Plan, authorizing the development of a second Public Safety 
Enforcement Grant of up to $150,000.  
 
On February 21, 2014, the SR2S-AC recommended to release the Public Safety Enforcement 
Grant. Interested agencies could apply for SR2S enforcement activities up to $45,000 and the 
grant scope also included a provision for $15,000 to be allocated to one jurisdiction to take the 
lead in coordinating crossing guard training County-wide using the materials developed by the 
Cities of Fairfield and Suisun City. This recommendation was forwarded to the STA TAC and 
STA Board to approve the scope of work for the Public Safety Enforcement Grant and it was 
approved by the STA Board on March 12, 2014. The RFP was released on March 13, 2014, with 
letters of intent due to STA on April 11, 2014, and the final proposal deadline was extended to 
May 16, 2014. 
 
On May 21, 2014, the SR2S-AC recommended that STA staff to enter into discussions with the 
two applicants to form a scope of work. This scope of work was presented to the SR2S-AC at a 
special meeting on June 25, 2014.  

99



Discussion: 
Police departments from both the City of Rio Vista and the City of Vacaville each submitted a 
letter of interest for the Public Safety Enforcement Grant. STA staff met, with the assistance of 
Commander Tim Mattos of Suisun City Police Department, reviewed the letters of interest and 
provided feedback to both of the applicants. Each city then submitted a formal proposal by the 
deadline. 
 
The City of Vacaville’s proposed project is titled ‘School Safety Through the 4Es’ and they 
requested $60,000 which includes implementation of county-wide crossing guard training. The 
proposal includes an education and encourage element of safety assemblies, poster competition 
and incentive program, as well as targeted direct enforcement around schools during peak hours 
of school drop-off and pick-up times. 
 
The City of Rio Vista’s proposed project is titled ‘Pedestrian and Vehicle Safety Campaign’ and 
they requested $29,650 for education, enforcement and engineering activities. As the purpose of 
this grant is related to enforcement, STA staff recommended that the proposed engineering 
projects be eliminated from the scope of work and allocate those funds to the education and 
enforcement tasks. These revisions slightly increased the overall amount requested to $30,360. 
The education component includes student assemblies, parent meetings and a children’s safety 
fair. Enforcement efforts include targeted direct enforcement around the schools and the 
purchasing of two electronic portable speed and message boards which provide radar feedback as 
well as collect traffic count and speed data.  
 
On May 22, 2014, STA staff, with the assistance of Solano County Public Health staff, reviewed 
the formal proposals submitted.  
 
STA staff met with Susan Santos and James Smith of the City of Vacaville’s Police Department 
on June 2, 2014 and on June 3, 2014, STA staff met with Greg Bowman, City of Rio Vista’s 
Police Department and David Melilli, City of Rio Vista’s Public Works Department. A detailed 
scope of work was discussed at each of these meetings. These work scopes are included in the 
attached agreements (Attachments B and C). At a special meeting on June 25, 2014, the SR2S-
AC voted to forward a recommendation to the STA Board to authorize the STA Executive 
Director to enter into agreements with the City of Vacaville in the amount of $60,000 and the 
City of Rio Vista in the amount $30,360 for the Safe Routes to School Public Safety 
Enforcement Grant. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
A total of $150,000 of OBAG Regional Safe Routes to School funds is available for this grant. 
The two grant proposals total $90,360. The remaining funds will be available for the next round 
of funding. The agencies are providing 11.47% in matching funds. 
 

100



Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Authorize the STA Executive Director to enter into an agreement with the City of 
Vacaville in the amount of $60,000 for the Safe Routes to School Public Safety 
Enforcement Grant; and  

2. Authorize the STA Executive Director to enter into an agreement with the City of Rio 
Vista in the amount $30,360 for the Safe Routes to School Public Safety Enforcement 
Grant. 

 
Attachments: 

A. Public Safety Enforcement Grant Application 
B. Work scope – City of Vacaville 
C. Work scope – City of Rio Vista 

 

101



This page intentionally left blank. 

102



 
 

  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Safe Routes to School 
Public Safety Enforcement Grant 

 
Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Program in Solano County 

Solano Transportation Authority (STA) 
www.solanosr2s.ca.gov  

 
Application Package Released March 13, 2014 

Letters of Intent Due April 11, 2014 
Formal Proposals Due May 9, 2014 

103

http://www.solanosr2s.ca.gov/
SJones
Typewritten Text

SJones
Typewritten Text

SJones
Typewritten Text
Attachment A

SJones
Typewritten Text

SJones
Typewritten Text

SJones
Typewritten Text

SJones
Typewritten Text

SJones
Typewritten Text

SJones
Typewritten Text

SJones
Typewritten Text



WHY SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL 

MATTERS 
The Solano Transportation Authority (STA) 
launched the County’s Safe Routes to School 
(SR2S) program in 2008 in response to the 
growing childhood obesity epidemic, student 
travel safety concerns, growing air pollution and 
traffic congestion near schools. The program 
works to encourage more students to walk and 
bike to school by identifying and implementing a 
balance of traffic calming and safety engineering 
projects, student education, encouragement 
and law enforcement coordination. The goals of 
the program are to: 

• Reduce traffic congestion and air 
pollution around schools 

• Improve children’s health by increasing 
physical activity 

• Create community awareness and 
togetherness 

 

The STA’s Safe Routes to School (SR2S) 
program encourages students to walk and bike 
to school and supports these activities with 
education and encouragement events 
throughout the year. The program brings  

together city planners, traffic engineers, police 
and public health experts to create safer, less 
congested routes to school.  The STA also 
supports a variety of engineering and 
enforcement projects, such as this grant. 

ENFORCEMENT PARTNERSHIPS IN 

SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL 

PROGRAMS 
The main goal for SR2S enforcement strategies 
is to deter unsafe behaviors of drivers, 
pedestrians and bicyclists, and to encourage all 
road users to obey traffic laws and share the 
road safely. Enforcement is one of the 
complementary strategies that SRTS programs 
use to enable more children to walk and bicycle 
to school safely. 

There are police department representatives 
on each of our SR2S Community Task Forces 
across Solano County who have actively 
participated in planning processes, helped draft 
suggested route to school maps, held safety 
assemblies, and helped facilitate bicycle rodeos. 

 

104



PUBLIC SAFETY ENFORCEMENT 

GRANT: UP TO $60,000 
On July 10, 2013, the STA Board approved the 
SR2S Program 2-Year Work Plan, authorizing 
the development of a Public Safety Enforcement 
Grant totaling up to $150,000. Individual 
jurisdictions may apply for a maximum of 
$60,000. The deadline for submittal of Letters 
of Interest to STA is April 11, 2014. Formal 
Proposals must be submitted to STA by May 9, 
2014.  Grant applications will be reviewed and 
evaluated by the STA’s SR2S Countywide 
Advisory Committee.  Grant recipients will be 
awarded by the STA Board at a future Board 
meeting. 

Letters of Interest and Formal Proposals must 
be submitted via email (preferred) or postal 
mail to the STA SR2S Program Manager: 

Judy Leaks, Program Manager 
Solano Transportation Authority 

1 Harbor Center, Suisun City, CA 94585 
Re: SR2S Public Safety Enforcement Grant 

jleaks@sta-snci.com 

GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
The STA’s Public Safety Enforcement Grant 
Program seeks to fund up to $150,000 in best 
practice SR2S enforcement activities that can 
be replicated countywide.  Grant submittals up 
to $15,000 can be submitted to facilitate 
Countywide implementation of existing 
Crossing Guard Training and materials to 
improve consistency of practices and 
performance. Grant submittals up to $45,000 
can be submitted for other SR2S enforcement 
activities. A maximum of $60,000 is available to 
a jurisdiction, provided the grant submittal 
includes implementation of existing Crossing 

Guard Training and materials. Specific 
objectives include beginning the 2014-2015 
school year: 

•  Facilitate Countywide implementation 
of existing Crossing Guard Training 
and materials to improve consistency 
of practices and performance 

• Organize and facilitate public safety 
educational opportunities for 
parents and students to identify 
successful self-enforcement strategies 
and messaging 

• Update and improve Rules of the Road 
and education materials for STA’s SR2S 
Program Events (e.g., bicycle rodeos, 
safety assemblies and on-road safety 
training). 

• Support staff and parents with 
identifying and solving enforcement 
issues at schools in the STA’s SR2S 
Program. 

• Implement strategies to measure 
effectiveness of enforcement program 
(e.g., pre/post surveys, and traffic 
counts, ticket data, speed data, etc.). 

• Partner with STA’s Walking School 
Bus Program (e.g., presence at park and 
walk locations, assistance with mapping 
and suggested safe routes). 

• Support implementation of 
identified priority projects. 

 

105



PROJECT REQUIREMENTS 
Applicants must meet the following minimum 
requirements in order to be considered eligible 
for grant funding: 

• Commit to attending quarterly STA 
SR2S Countywide Advisory Committee 
meetings to present grant status reports 
that include participant information & 
feedback. 

• Coordinate grant related activities with 
SR2S Program Managers and other 
public safety department organized 
activities. 

• Clearly demonstrate the ability to fully 
implement activities funded by the grant 
within 18 months of executing the 
funding agreement (e.g., available officer 
time). 

• Submit monthly reports to SR2S 
Program Manager and attend monthly 
staff meetings.  

• Submit a final report of results and 
recommended best practices. 
 

GRANT FUNDING 
Up to $150,000 in federal air quality funding, air 
district clean air funds, and transportation 
development funds support this grant.  An 
11.47% match is required. In-kind services may 
be used towards match funding. 

 

ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS 
City and County departments in Solano County 
involved in public safety, including but not 
limited to police departments, fire departments, 
and county sheriffs may apply for this grant.  
Crossing Guard hours cannot be funded 
through this grant.  

106



APPLICATION & EVALUATION 

PROCESS 
The SR2S Public Safety Enforcement Grant 
Program will follow a two-step application and 
evaluation process that will be overseen by the 
STA’s Safe Routes to School Advisory 
Committee. 

STEP ONE: LETTERS OF INTEREST 
Interested organizations are asked to send a 
“Letter of Interest” that includes the following 
components (total of 3 page maximum): 

• Identify the project title, name of 
applicant, project manager, and contact 
information: 

• Describe the proposed project.  Explain 
how this project will satisfy the goals 
and objectives of the grant (e.g., 
Crossing Guard Training, Public Safety 
Education Opportunities, Enforcement 
at Schools, New Pilot Strategies). 

• Identify the amount of grant funding 
requested and any additional 
department contributions towards the 
project. 

STEP TWO: INVITATION FOR A FORMAL 

PROPOSAL 
The STA Staff and the STA’s Safe Routes to 
School Advisory Committee will review the 
Letters of Interest and contact applicants, as 
needed, for additional information, clarification, 
and/or modification.  STA staff and the 
Committee will identify a smaller number of 
projects that match the goals of the SR2S 
program and grant criteria.  These applicants 
will be invited to submit a more formal 
proposal for further evaluation including: 

1. Project Description:  Identify the 
project title, name of applicant, project 
manager and contact information.  
Explain the purpose and need for the 
project, state the specific goals and 
objectives of the project and explain 
how they help to advance the goals and 
objectives set for this grant program.  
Describe the collaboration required to 
carry out the scope of work and the 
actions that will be undertaken to 
achieve the objectives.  Describe the 
results anticipated from this project. 

2. Scope of Work and Schedule:  Detail 
the actions/tasks, work products, 
estimated completion dates and key 
partners.  Estimate the number of 
students and parents that could be 
reached by this project. 

3. Response to Questions from STA Staff 
and the SR2S Advisory Committee:  
Provide a detailed response to 
questions posed by STA staff and the 
SR2S Advisory Committee as a result of 
its review of the Letter of Interest for 
this project. 

4. Approach to Evaluation:  Describe the 
method of collecting participant 
information and feedback from students, 
parents and school staff. Is the method 
reasonable given the limited timeframe, 
and is there potential for the proposal 
to impact ongoing data 
collection/evaluation efforts from other 
sources?  

5. Project Cost and Funding:  Describe the 
major resources needed for this project 
(e.g., staff, consultant, equipment, 
materials, etc.).  Provide a detailed 
budget that shows total project and cost 

107



breakdown for each major task/action, 
including a cost estimate for the project 
evaluation.  Identify any cost sharing by 
multiple funding partners. 

STA staff will qualitatively evaluate 
proposals based on the following criteria on 
a low, medium, and high scale: 

• Potential to increase the number of 
students walking or bicycling to 
school within grant period. 

• Potential to increase the number of 
students walking and bicycling to 
school after the grant period, 
making a sustainable change 

• Estimated number of students & 
parents reached, and quality of 
“reach”. 

• Potential for other public safety 
departments to replicate or benefit 
from this project 

• Cost effectiveness (e.g., dollars per 
student/parent reached) 

• Quality of Proposal 

After being evaluated, the SR2S Advisory 
Committee will recommend projects for 
funding at their May meeting and the STA 
Board will award grants at a future meeting. 

STA staff will then draft and enter into funding 
agreements with grant recipients prior to 
beginning any grant funded work.  

 

QUESTIONS AND MORE INFORMATION 
Any questions regarding the Letters of Interest 
and Formal Applications should be directed to:  

Judy Leaks, Program Manager 
Solano Transportation Authority  
(707) 427-5104 
jleaks@sta-snci.com  

More information about the STA’s SR2S 
Program can be found online at 
www.solanosr2s.ca.gov  

Below are links to SR2S Enforcement Best 
Practices: 

• National SRTS: Role for Law 
Enforcement resources & case studies 
http://www.saferoutesinfo.org/lawenforc
ement/  

• SRTS Coaching Action Network 
Webinars on Personal Security & 
Parent/Student Education 
http://www.saferoutesinfo.org/training/c
an_webinars.cfm  

• National SRTS Adult School Crossing 
Guard Guidelines 
http://www.saferoutesinfo.org/guide/cro
ssing_guard/index.cfm  

SR2S Advisory Committee Enforcement 
Contacts 

• Tim Mattos, Suisun City Police Dept 
(707) 421-7353, tmattos@suisun.com 
 

• Scott Przekurat, Benicia Police Dept 
(707) 746-4262, 
Scott.Przekurat@ci.benicia.ca.us 
 

108

mailto:jleaks@sta-snci.com
http://www.solanosr2s.ca.gov/
http://www.saferoutesinfo.org/lawenforcement/
http://www.saferoutesinfo.org/lawenforcement/
http://www.saferoutesinfo.org/training/can_webinars.cfm
http://www.saferoutesinfo.org/training/can_webinars.cfm
http://www.saferoutesinfo.org/guide/crossing_guard/index.cfm
http://www.saferoutesinfo.org/guide/crossing_guard/index.cfm
mailto:tmattos@suisun.com
mailto:Scott.Przekurat@ci.benicia.ca.us


 

Task A. Crossing Guard Training   
Determine the current procedure for Crossing Guard Training for each city and school district in 
Solano County. Using the existing crossing guard training materials, provide Crossing Guard Training 
which will be available to all cities and school districts in Solano County. Liaise with each city and/or 
school district to ensure they are aware of crossing guard training procedures and ensure they have 
the necessary materials to provide training if requested. Develop a resource guide that explains the 
crossing guard training procedure in each city and/or school district as appropriate.  
Staff Time (hours) 60 $4,800.00 
Facility Rental   $600.00 
Materials/Printing   $4,600.00 
Safety Equipment   $5,000.00 
Total Task A   $15,000.00 

      
Task B.  Traffic Safety Flyers   

Traffic Safety Flyers will be developed by personnel in our Traffic Division detailing safety tips for rules 
of the road around schools relating to bicyclists, pedestrians and motorists.   
Staff Time  40 $3,200.00 
Materials/Printing   $6,000.00 
Total Task B   $9,200.00 

      
Task C. Poster Contest   

The theme of the poster contest will be promoting students walking or bicycling to school.  Posters 
will be judged by law enforcement staff and winners in each group will be given a prize and the local 
newspapers will be notified.   
Staff Time (hours) 60 $4,800.00 
Materials/Printing   $5,000.00 
Total Task C   $9,800.00 

      
Task D. Student and Parent Presentations   

Deliver a minimum of 6 assemblies at six schools to educate and inform students and parents on the 
core messages of bicycle/skateboard/pedestrian safety and the compliance with helmet laws. 
Staff Time (hours) 42 $3,360.00 
Materials/Printing   $2,000.00 
Total Task D   $5,360.00 
      

  

109

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



Task E.  Reward Program   
Marketing Materials   $2,640.00 
Total Task E   $2,640.00 
      
Task F.  Directed Enforcement Before and After School  
Staff Time (hours) 205 $16,400.00 
Total Task F   $16,400.00 
      

Task G.  Project Evaluation   
Staff Time (hours) 20 $1,600.00 
Total Task G   $1,600.00 
      
Total Enforcement Grant funds $60,000.00 
Total Match at 11.47%  $6,882.00 
Total Project Cost  $66,882.00 

Staff time is calculated using an average overtime rate of $80/hr 

Evaluation 
Provide a log of the Crossing Guard Trainings that occur during this grant period. 

Submit a log of citations and/or verbal warnings from targeted enforcement efforts around the schools. 

Traffic Safety Flyers:  Include a quiz question at the bottom of the traffic safety flyer. Respondents can 
send in their answer and can be included into a prize drawing. Submit the number of people who 
entered into the prize drawing. 

Poster contest: Submit a log of the entries received; include details of prize winners (class and school). 

School surveys – SR2S staff requests hand tally surveys from all schools in Solano County every October 
and May. As part of this enforcement grant, the City of Vacaville will work with SR2S staff and Vacaville 
schools to promote the hand tally survey in October and May to ensure participation. 

General Guidelines 
Inform SR2S staff of date and time of school visits and invite SR2S staff to participate and/or attend all 
events.  

All flyers, printed materials and other materials developed as part of this grant, approved by SR2S staff. 
All materials must include the SR2S logo.  

110



Project Description: This project intends to facilitate the safe travel of Rio Vista’s students walking 
and cycling to and from school. Its goals include: 

• Increasing community awareness for pedestrian and bicycle safety 
• Encouraging more students to walk and ride bicycles 
• Facilitating a safe pedestrian and bicycle environment through education and enforcement efforts. 

Task A. School Assemblies   
Deliver school assemblies at two schools to educate and inform students on the core messages of 
bicycle/skateboard/pedestrian safety and the compliance with helmet laws. 

Staff Time (hours) 14 $840.00 
Materials   $600.00 
Total Task A   $1,440.00 
      
Task B.  Parent Education   
Provide two parent meetings per school to explain the Safe Routes to School Program and identify the 
measures that have been put in place in Rio Vista to meet the goals of the program (including 
infrastructure, equipment, etc.) Include Safe Routes to School staff at these meetings to provide 
additional parent education related to the Safe Routes to School Program. 
Staff Time  28 $1,680.00 
Materials   $800.00 
Total Task B   $2,480.00 
      
Task C. Stakeholder round-table meetings 

(monthly or bi-monthly) 
  

Invite Safe Routes to School staff to these meetings to discuss observations, learning opportunities 
and identify adjustments to strategy. 

Staff Time (hours) 20 $1,200.00 
Materials/Printing   $500.00 
Total Task C   $1,700.00 
      
Task D. Children’s Safety Fair   
Coordinate with Safe Routes to School staff for rental of Bike Rodeo equipment and inclusion of the 
Bay Area Bike Mobile or other bicycle-related activity. 

Staff Time (hours) 20 $1,200.00 
Materials/Printing   $2,000.00 
Safety Equipment   $5,000.00 
Total Task D   $8,200.00 
  

111

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



Task E.  Direct Enforcement Before and After 
School 

  

Staff Time (hours) 100 $6,000.00 
Total Task E   $6,000.00 
      
Task F.  Enforcement Materials   
Electronic Portable Speed/Message 
boards 2 at $5,270/ea 

  $10,540.00 

High visibility crosswalk not eligible $0.00 

Crosswalk signage/installation not eligible $0.00 

Additional signage not eligible $0.00 
Total Task F   $10,540.00 
      
Total Enforcement Grant funds   $30,360.00 
Total Match at 11.47%   $3,482.29 
Total Project Cost   $33,842.29 
Staff time is calculated using an average weighted overtime rate of $60/hr 

Evaluation 

Submit a log of citations and/or verbal warnings from targeted enforcement efforts around the schools. 

On a quarterly basis, submit data collected from speed signs (traffic count and speeds). Provide a log of 
where signs were placed. Submit a log of the different messages that are displayed on the signs and 
work with SR2S staff regarding types of messages to be displayed for special events (such as 
International Walk to School Day.) 

Parent surveys: Distribute and evaluate pre- and post-surveys to parents that attend the parent 
meetings organized by Rio Vista Police Department. Work with SR2S staff to develop the parent survey.  

School surveys – SR2S staff requests hand tally surveys from all schools in Solano County every October 
and May. As part of this enforcement grant, Rio Vista Police Department will work with SR2S staff and 
Rio Vista schools to promote the hand tally survey in October and May to ensure participation. 

General Guidelines 

Inform SR2S staff of date and time of school visits, monthly or bi-monthly stakeholder meetings, 
Children’s Safety Fair and invite SR2S staff to participate and/or attend all events.  

All flyers, printed materials and other materials developed as part of this grant, approved by SR2S staff. 
All materials must include the SR2S logo.  

112



Agenda Item 9.N 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  June 30, 2014 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Sarah Fitzgerald, SR2S Program Administrator 
RE: Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Program Logo 
 
 
Background: 
The current logo for the Safe Routes to School (SR2S) program SR2S is a yellow triangle, with 
black silhouettes of two walkers and a cyclist along with the wording Safe Routes to School. 
Because of the layering in the logo, it makes it difficult to use for some purposes (i.e. when using 
a single color version for plaques, clothing, etc.) Also, when the word ‘Solano’ is included along 
with the STA logo and Solano Public Health (SPH) logo, it can be difficult to read from a 
distance. The existing logo in its various formats is shown in Attachment A.  
 
Discussion: 
The idea for a new logo was introduced at the May 21, 2014 SR2S Advisory Committee 
meeting. The Committee decided to postpone a vote to allow for consideration of additional 
options. Members were asked to submit comments to staff to incorporate those ideas into a logo. 
Attachments B and C show various options for the logo in both color and black and white 
versions. The silhouette of the boy on a scooter has been changed to an upright, action position. 
Based on written suggestions, other options have been illustrated in the attachments including:  

• an ‘S’ shaped street or “safe route” connecting a house with a school where the “S” shape 
stands for Solano County,  

• street or “safe route” connecting a house with a school with the silhouette of students on a 
scooter, walking and biking to school as in the existing logo 

• logo borders is in the shape of a cloud, an apple, a school house and Solano County  
 
In order to establish an identified brand, a logo must be simple and easily recognizable. A new 
logo has been drafted which incorporates elements of the current logo. It is based on the cloud 
that has been used the past several years on many items (banners, folder covers, brochures, 
Powerpoints, etc.) The silhouettes from the triangle logo are incorporated, with the walking boy 
removed and replaced with a child on a scooter silhouette.  
 
As this is a logo for the Safe Routes to School program, neither the STA nor the Solano County 
Public Health (SPH) logos are included within it, nor other program partners. When space allows 
(i.e. letters, posters, etc.) the STA, SPH and other program partners’ logos will be included.  
 
After much discussion and by a unanimous vote, the SR2S Advisory Committee voted to 
forward a recommendation of logo Option A for consideration by the STA Board.  This item was 
reviewed by the STA’s Executive Committee which opted to accept this recommendation and 
forward to the STA Board. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 

113



Recommendation: 
Approve the logo for Safe Routes to School (SR2S) Program as shown in Attachment D. 
  
Attachments: 

A. SR2S existing logo 
B. SR2S logo options (color version) – considered by SR2S Advisory Committee 
C. SR2S logo options (black and white version) 
D. Recommended SR2S Logo 

114



     

 

 

 

A program of 

 

In partnership with 

115

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



 SOLANO COUNTY

safe routes
to school

 SOLANO COUNTY

safe routes
to school

 SOLANO COUNTY

safe routes
to school

Solano County

safe routes
to school

SOLANO COUNTY

safe routes
to school

safe routes
to school  SOLANO COUNTY

A B

C

D

F
G

H

safe routes
to school

safe routes
to school SOLANO

COUNTY

116

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



safe routes
to school

 SOLANO COUNTY

safe routes
to school

 SOLANO COUNTY

safe routes
to school

 SOLANO COUNTY

safe routes
to school

Solano County

safe routes
to school

SOLANO COUNTY

safe routes
to school

safe routes
to school  SOLANO COUNTY

A B

C

D E

F
G

H

safe routes
to school SOLANO

COUNTY

117

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C



This page intentionally left blank. 

118



 SOLANO COUNTY

safe routes
to school

119

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT D



This page intentionally left blank. 

120



Agenda Item 9.O 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  June 27, 2014 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Sarah Fitzgerald, SR2S Program Administrator 
RE:  Active Transportation Program (ATP) Resolution of Local Support 
 
 
Background: 
In September 2013, the Governor signed legislation creating the Active Transportation Program 
(ATP).  The ATP will consolidate multiple state and federal funding programs into one program, 
and aims to promote the following objectives:  

• Increase the proportion of biking and walking trips 
• Increase safety and mobility for non-motorized users 
• Advance the efforts of regional agencies to achieve greenhouse gas reduction goals 
• Enhance public health, including the reduction of childhood obesity through the use of 

projects eligible for Safe Routes to Schools Program funding 
• Ensure disadvantaged communities fully share in program benefits (25% of program) 
• Provide a broad spectrum of projects to benefit many types of active transportation users 

 
Approximately $120M will be available annually for Fiscal Years (FY) 2013-14, 2014-15, and 
2015-16 (total $360M), and distributed via 3 funding programs: 

• Statewide competition: 50% ($180M) 
• Small urban/rural areas: 10% ($36M) 
• Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs): 40% ($144M, of which $30M will be 

available to MTC) 
 
Of the $180M available through the statewide competition, a minimum of $24M annually is 
available for Safe Routes to School projects, with $7M available annually for non-infrastructure 
projects. 
 
The Call for Projects for the statewide and small urban/rural programs was announced on March 
21, 2014, and applications were due to Caltrans on May 21, 2014.  The Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) released a MPO/Regional Call for Projects on May 22, 2014, 
and MPO/ regional applications will be due to MTC on July 24, 2014.   
 
Discussion: 
At the February 19, 2014 meeting, the Safe Routes to School Advisory Committee (SR2S-AC) 
recommended STA put forth an ATP application to expand the Walking School Bus program 
and recommended forming a subcommittee to discuss the application. The members of the ATP 
subcommittee included Mel Jordan (Vallejo City Unified School District), Jim Antone (Yolo-
Solano Air Quality Management District (YSAQMD)), Robin Cox and Tracy Nachand (Solano 
County Public Health), and Judy Leaks and Sarah Fitzgerald (STA). The subcommittee met to 
discuss the application for ATP funds on March 12, 2014, April 24, 2014 and May 8, 2014.  
Below is a summary of the proposed project the subcommittee recommended for the ATP 
application. 

121



Project Title 
Solano County SR2S – Ingraining Walking & Rolling into the School Culture 
 
Project Description 
The Solano Transportation Authority (STA) in collaboration with the Solano County Department 
of Public Health proposes beginning a two-pronged approach to ingrain a culture of walking and 
rolling within 15 selected schools in Solano County as part of our county-wide SR2S program. 
This pilot program would build upon our current Walking School Bus program that has been 
running in Solano County since January 2013. The first element of the proposed project is to 
provide a stipend to the school to fund a position to lead a Walking School Bus Route on a daily 
basis from a marked location which would reduce traffic and congestion around the school. The 
second component is  extensive parent education to not only educate parents on the physical, 
mental and safety benefits of walking and rolling (bicycling, skateboard, scooter, etc.) to school 
but also to identify parent champions/super volunteers that will work to promote the Safe Routes 
to School program.  
 
STA and Solano County Public Health staff will work with the schools to: (a) train the dedicated 
staff member to lead the walking school bus route, (b) educate parents and identify and support 
parent champions/super volunteers and (c) set individual targets for schools to increase active 
transportation based on current walking/rolling status and (d) award schools with special 
distinction as long as the school continues to work on promoting walking and rolling to school. 
 
The 15 schools selected by the ATP Subcommittee of the Safe Routes to School Advisory 
Committee for this pilot program were chosen based a variety of criteria, including past or 
current participation in the Walking School Bus program, location in or near a disadvantaged 
community or Community of Concern, percentage of students participating in the federal Free 
and Reduced Price School Meals program, collision data, and either have implemented or will 
implement infrastructure improvements as identified in the SR2S Plan. If funded, it is planned to 
roll out this pilot program in 5 schools for FY 2014-15, 5 schools in FY 2015-16 and 5 schools in 
FY 2016-17, building on lessons learned for each new school year. 
 

 Proposed schools and timeline 

Jan - May 2015 
 Fairfield/Suisun Anna Kyle 

Fairfield/Suisun Laurel Creek 
Vacaville Padan Elem 
Vacaville Markham 
Vallejo Dan Mini 

 FY 2015-16 
 Benicia Matthew Turner 

Dixon Tremont Elem 
Fairfield/Suisun Suisun Elem 
Vacaville Callison 
Vallejo Cooper 

122



FY 2016-17 
 Fairfield/Suisun Cleo Gordon 

Fairfield/Suisun David Weir 
Rio Vista DH White 
Vallejo Lincoln 
Vallejo Wardlaw 

 
 
Programming Requirements for ATP funding 
As part of MTC’s programming policy, and prior to the programming of ATP funding, project 
sponsors are required to adopt a resolution of local support.  Attachment A is the Resolution of 
Local Support for the STA’s SR2S – Ingraining Walking & Rolling into the School Culture 
project. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None at this time. If STA’s funding application is approved, $387,498 will be made available to 
the Safe Routes to School program for this project. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the STA Resolution of Local Support No. 2014-19 for $387,498 for the Solano County 
Safe Routes to School for the Active Transportation Program Grant Submittal. 
 
Attachment: 

A. Resolution No. 2014-19 of Local Support  

123



This page intentionally left blank. 

124



ATTACHMENT A 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-19 
 

AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION FOR FUNDING ASSIGNED TO 
MTC AND COMMITTING ANY NECESSARY MATCHING FUNDS AND STATING 

THE ASSURANCE TO COMPLETE THE PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, Solano Transportation Authority (herein referred to as APPLICANT) is 
submitting an application to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) for $387,498 
in funding assigned to MTC for programming discretion, which includes federal funding 
administered by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and federal or state funding 
administered by the California Transportation Commission (CTC) such as Surface 
Transportation Program (STP) funding, Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement 
(CMAQ) funding, Transportation Alternatives (TA)/Active Transportation Program (ATP) 
funding, and Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) funding (herein collectively 
referred to as REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING) for the Solano County Safe Routes 
to School – Ingraining Walking & Rolling into the School Culture (herein referred to as 
PROJECT) for the Active Transportation Program (ATP) (herein referred to as PROGRAM); 
and 

WHEREAS, the Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act (Public Law 112-
141, July 6, 2012) and any extensions or successor legislation for continued funding 
(collectively, MAP 21) authorize various federal funding programs including, but not limited to 
the Surface Transportation Program (STP) (23 U.S.C. § 133), the Congestion Mitigation and Air 
Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) (23 U.S.C. § 149) and the Transportation Alternatives 
Program (TA) (23 U.S.C. § 213); and 

 
WHEREAS, state statutes, including California Streets and Highways Code §182.6, 

§182.7, and §2381(a)(1), and California Government Code §14527, provide various funding 
programs for the programming discretion of the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) and 
the Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to MAP-21, and any regulations promulgated thereunder, eligible 

project sponsors wishing to receive federal or state funds for a regionally-significant project shall 
submit an application first with the appropriate MPO, or RTPA, as applicable, for review and 
inclusion in the federal Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); and 

 
WHEREAS, MTC is the MPO and RTPA for the nine counties of the San Francisco Bay 

region; and 
  

WHEREAS, MTC has adopted a Regional Project Funding Delivery Policy (MTC 
Resolution No. 3606, revised) that sets out procedures governing the application and use of 
REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and 

 
WHEREAS, APPLICANT is an eligible sponsor for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY 

FUNDING; and 
  

WHEREAS, as part of the application for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING, 
MTC requires a resolution adopted by the responsible implementing agency stating the 
following:

125



 
• the commitment of any required matching funds; and 
• that the sponsor understands that the REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING is 

fixed at the programmed amount, and therefore any cost increase cannot be expected 
to be funded with additional REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and 

• that the PROJECT will comply with the procedures, delivery milestones and funding 
deadlines specified in the Regional Project Funding Delivery Policy (MTC 
Resolution No. 3606, revised); and 

• the assurance of the sponsor to complete the PROJECT as described in the 
application, subject to environmental clearance, and if approved, as included in 
MTC's federal Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); and 

• that the PROJECT will have adequate staffing resources to deliver and complete the 
PROJECT within the schedule submitted with the project application; and 

• that the PROJECT will comply with all project-specific requirements as set forth in 
the PROGRAM; and 

• that APPLICANT has assigned, and will maintain a single point of contact for all 
FHWA- and CTC-funded transportation projects to coordinate within the agency and 
with the respective Congestion Management Agency (CMA), MTC, Caltrans. 
FHWA, and CTC on all communications, inquires or issues that may arise during the 
federal programming and delivery process for all FHWA- and CTC-funded 
transportation and transit projects implemented by APPLICANT; and 

• in the case of a transit project, the PROJECT will comply with MTC Resolution No. 
3866, revised, which sets forth the requirements of MTC’s Transit Coordination 
Implementation Plan to more efficiently deliver transit projects in the region; and 

• in the case of a highway project, the PROJECT will comply with MTC Resolution 
No. 4104, which sets forth MTC’s Traffic Operations System (TOS) Policy to install 
and activate TOS elements on new major freeway projects; and 

• in the case of an RTIP project, state law requires PROJECT be included in a local 
congestion management plan, or be consistent with the capital improvement program 
adopted pursuant to MTC’s funding agreement with the countywide transportation 
agency; and 

  
 WHEREAS, that APPLICANT is authorized to submit an application for REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the PROJECT; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is no legal impediment to APPLICANT making applications for the 
funds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is no pending or threatened litigation that might in any way adversely 
affect the proposed PROJECT, or the ability of APPLICANT to deliver such PROJECT; and 
 
 WHEREAS, APPLICANT authorizes its Executive Director, General Manager, or 
designee to execute and file an application with MTC for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY 
FUNDING for the PROJECT as referenced in this resolution; and 

 
WHEREAS, MTC requires that a copy of this resolution be transmitted to the MTC in 

conjunction with the filing of the application. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the APPLICANT is authorized to 
execute and file an application for funding for the PROJECT for REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING under MAP-21 or continued funding; and be it further  

 
126



RESOLVED that APPLICANT will provide any required matching funds; and be it 
further 

 
RESOLVED that APPLICANT understands that the REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY 

FUNDING for the project is fixed at the MTC approved programmed amount, and that any cost 
increases must be funded by the APPLICANT from other funds, and that APPLICANT does not 
expect any cost increases to be funded with additional REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY 
FUNDING; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED that APPLICANT understands the funding deadlines associated with these 

funds and will comply with the provisions and requirements of the Regional Project Funding 
Delivery Policy (MTC Resolution No. 3606, revised) and APPLICANT has, and will retain the 
expertise, knowledge and resources necessary to deliver federally-funded transportation and 
transit projects, and has assigned, and will maintain a single point of contact for all FHWA- and 
CTC-funded transportation projects to coordinate within the agency and with the respective 
Congestion Management Agency (CMA), MTC, Caltrans. FHWA, and CTC on all 
communications, inquires or issues that may arise during the federal programming and delivery 
process for all FHWA- and CTC-funded transportation and transit projects implemented by 
APPLICANT; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED that PROJECT will be implemented as described in the complete 

application and in this resolution, subject to environmental clearance, and, if approved, for the 
amount approved by MTC and programmed in the federal TIP; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED that APPLICANT has reviewed the PROJECT and has adequate staffing 

resources to deliver and complete the PROJECT within the schedule submitted with the project 
application; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED that PROJECT will comply with the requirements as set forth in MTC 

programming guidelines and project selection procedures for the PROGRAM; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED that, in the case of a transit project, APPLICANT agrees to comply with 

the requirements of MTC’s Transit Coordination Implementation Plan as set forth in MTC 
Resolution No. 3866, revised; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED that, in the case of a highway project, APPLICANT agrees to comply with 

the requirements of MTC’s Traffic Operations System (TOS) Policy as set forth in MTC 
Resolution No. 4104; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED that, in the case of an RTIP project, PROJECT is included in a local 

congestion management plan, or is consistent with the capital improvement program adopted 
pursuant to MTC’s funding agreement with the countywide transportation agency; and be it 
further 

 
RESOLVED that APPLICANT is an eligible sponsor of REGIONAL 

DISCRETIONARY FUNDING funded projects; and be it further 
  
 RESOLVED that APPLICANT is authorized to submit an application for REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the PROJECT; and be it further 
  
 RESOLVED that there is no legal impediment to APPLICANT making applications for 
the funds; and be it further

127



 RESOLVED that there is no pending or threatened litigation that might in any way 
adversely affect the proposed PROJECT, or the ability of APPLICANT to deliver such 
PROJECT; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED that APPLICANT authorizes its Executive Director, General Manager, or 
designee to execute and file an application with MTC for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY 
FUNDING for the PROJECT as referenced in this resolution; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution will be transmitted to the MTC in conjunction 
with the filing of the application; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED that the MTC is requested to support the application for the PROJECT 

described in the resolution, and if approved, to include the PROJECT in MTC's federal TIP upon 
submittal by the project sponsor for TIP programming. 

 
 
       

Osby Davis, Chair 
      Solano Transportation Authority 
 

Passed by the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) Board on this 9th day of July, 2014, by the 
following vote: 
 
Ayes:    
Nos:    
Absent:   
Abstain:   
 
Attest:       
  Johanna Masiclat 
  Clerk of the Board 

 
I, Daryl K. Halls, the Solano Transportation Authority Executive Director, certify that the 

above and foregoing resolution was introduced, passed, and adopted by said Authority at a 
regular meeting thereof held this day of July 9, 2014. 

 
 

             
       Daryl K. Halls, Executive Director 
       Solano Transportation Authority 
 
 
 

128



Agenda Item 9.P 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 

 
 
 
DATE:  June 27, 2014 
TO:  STA Board  
FROM: Janet Adams, Deputy Executive Director/Director of Projects  
RE: State Route (SR) 12/Church Road Environmental Document 

Implementation  
 
 
Background: 
In October 2001, the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) completed an initial Highway 12 
Major Investment Study (MIS) which identified the State Route (SR) 12/Church Road 
intersection as a Safety Improvement and Long-Term Traffic Improvement Project. 
 
The City of Rio Vista and the STA further studied improvements at this intersection through 
an engineering study called a Project Study Report (PSR).  A PSR is an engineering report, 
the purpose of which is to document agreement on the scope, schedule, and estimated cost of 
a project so that the project can be included in a future State Transportation Improvement 
Program (STIP).  A PSR provides a key opportunity to achieve consensus on project scope, 
schedule, and proposed cost among Caltrans and involved regional and local agencies.  The 
PSR was fully funded with STIP Planning, Programming, and Monitoring (PPM) funds.  As 
the improvements include the state highway system, Caltrans approved the PSR on June 30, 
2010.  The next step is to initiate the environmental process for the proposed improvements.   
 
Discussion: 
The City of Rio Vista has planned development directly adjacent to this intersection area.  
The proposed intersection improvements are an integral component of the adjacent 
development as the highway operational improvements will facilitate the initial phases of the 
planned developments.  As an environmental document has a limited shelf life, it is important 
to understand Right-of-Way and construction funding partners and project timing prior to 
initiating the expenditure of funds for the environmental process.  Previously, the STA, in 
partnership with the City of Rio Vista, initiated a contract with the Solano Economic 
Development Corporation (EDC) to assess the requirements of the adjacent planned 
developments to fund these improvements and the timing of when these developments are 
planning to proceed.  This work was completed and the City if Rio Vista was provided with a 
summary.  The work included: 

o Review of documents such as the SR 12/Church Project Study Report, Rio Vista 
Bridge Study, Hwy 12 Economic Assessment, SR 12 Corridor Study documents and 
Rio Vista General Plan and Zoning provisions regarding drilling and natural gas; 

o Meetings with key personal including STA and Rio Vista Staff, and Solano EDC 
consultants; 

o Review of existing and proposed development entitlement applications, environment 
studies, conditions of approval, and any legal documents;

129



o Assembly of property owner information, title reports (including any mineral rights 
and access provisions), easements and restrictive covenants (Note: the cost of any 
required title reports is not included in this contract);  

o Review right-of-way requirements; and 
o Preliminary meetings with property owners to determine their interests and issues. 

 
Based on this evaluation, it has been recommended that the project begin the next phase, 
Project Approval/Environmental Document (PA/ED).  The City of Rio Vista has asked that 
the STA take the lead in this phase of the project.  This work would be funded with local 
Traffic Impact Fees (TIF) provided by the City of Rio Vista and Regional Transportation 
Impact Fee (RTIF) from the SR 12 Working Group.  However, if the RTIF fees for this 
project District do not materialize in the time frame required for this phase of the project, then 
the City will need to front said amount until the RTIF funds are accumulated.  The additional 
effort that will be accomplished is that the City and the STA will develop a funding plan for 
the next phase on the project.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The PA/ED work is estimated at $600,000.  This cost includes the costs for a Project 
Manager.  This $600,000 is comprised of $500,000 of local TIF fees already collected by the 
City and $100,000 of future RTIF funds.   
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following for the Project Approval/Environmental Document (PA/ED) Phase of 
the State Route 12/Church Road Intersection Improvement Project authorizing the Executive 
Director to: 

1. Enter into a Funding Agreement with the City of Rio Vista for $600,000; 
2. Seek approval from Caltrans to be the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

lead; 
3. Enter into a Cooperative Agreement with Caltrans; 
4. Issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Project Manager Services and Consultant 

Services; 
5. Enter into a contract with a consultant to develop the project’s environmental 

document for an amount not-to-exceed $550,000; 
6. Enter into a contract with a qualified Project Manager for an amount not-to-exceed 

$50,000; and 
7. Approve a Local Preference Goal of 1%.   

130



Agenda Item 9.Q 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 
 

 
DATE:  June 30, 2014 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Janet Adams, Deputy Executive Director/Director of Projects 

Alan Glen, STA Project Manager  
RE: Dixon West B Street Pedestrian Undercrossing Construction Management -

Contract Amendment 
 
 
Background: 
The City of Dixon’s West B Street pedestrian crossing is located between N. Jackson Street and 
N. Jefferson Street in close proximity to Dixon’s downtown, Anderson Elementary School and 
adjacent residential areas.  Although there are three at-grade crossings connecting residents to 
Dixon’s downtown, West B Street is the only Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) approved crossing 
for pedestrians.  UPRR granted an easement at West B Street and paved the crossing to allow 
pedestrian and bicycle access.  The two other at-grade crossings accessing Dixon’s downtown are 
at West A Street and First Street (SR 113).  Both streets were granted easements across the 
railroad tracks for vehicles only and do not have sidewalks at this time. 
 
The rail line accommodates 32 Capitol Corridor passenger trains and 6-12 daily freight trains that 
cross the West B Street pedestrian path on a daily basis.  More than 300 pedestrian and bicyclists 
also use this facility on a daily basis.  The majority of users are school children that cross the 
railroad tracks twice per day.  The City of Dixon has determined that the undergrounding the 
West B Street pedestrian crossing is a priority safety project.   
 
The STA identified the City of Dixon’s West B Street Undercrossing Project as priority project in 
the Solano Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Plans and the Solano Rail Crossing and Inventory 
Plan.  In addition, the STA’s Safe Routes to School Advisory Committee also recommended 
funding investments to support the West B Street Undercrossing Project.  The West B Street 
Undercrossing Project will address safety concerns with the pedestrian/bicyclist conflicts with the 
trains.  It will also potentially serve as access to the center of the rail tracks for Dixon’s proposed 
passenger rail station. 
 
In July 2011, the City of Dixon requested that STA take over implementation of this important 
project.  As such, the City of Dixon City Council took the following actions at their July 26, 2011 
meeting: 

1. Adopted a Resolution finding the West B Street Undercrossing Project exempt from the 
California Environmental Quality Act. 

2. Adopted a Resolution: 
a. Authorizing the Interim City Manager to execute an agreement between the Solano 

Transportation Authority (STA) and the City of Dixon for design and construction 
of the West B Street Undercrossing Project.  Subsequent to the City action, the 
City and STA have executed this Agreement defining roles and responsibilities of 
each agency (STA will be lead agency for delivery, Dixon will be “sponsoring 
agency”) as well as clarifying the estimated project funding (see Funding below) 
and establishing the City’s Local Match requirement.

131



Construction Management Services: 
The STA has previously contracted with Parsons Brinkerhoff to advertise, award and administer 
the contract.  Construction was awarded to RGW, Inc. in April 2013.  Construction is progressing 
well and is expected to be completed by August 15, 2014.  The project closeout is anticipated by 
September 1, 2014.  PB has been effective in working collaboratively with the contractor on 
several difficult change orders needed to complete the project within the available resources.  
PB’s original scope and budget anticipated completion of the project by July 1st.  However, with 
the extended time of this construction period, PB will need a contract amendment to complete 
their construction management services (Attachment A). 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The project is being funded by several sources.  The $64,200 proposed contract amendment can 
be funded with the project funds already allocated to the project.   
 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to amend the PB Construction Management contract for an 
amount not-to-exceed an additional $64,200 to complete services needed during construction; as 
well as closeout the project to allow for final invoicing to Caltrans. 
 
Attachment: 

A. Letter Dated June 27, 2014 from PB 
 

132



133

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



This page intentionally left blank. 

134



Agenda Item 9.R 
July 9, 2014 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
DATE: June 30, 2014 
TO: STA Board 
FROM: Daryl Halls, Executive Director 
 Debbie McQuilkin, Customer Service Coordinator 
RE:  Lease of Suisun Fairfield Train Depot Office for SNCI Transit Information and  
  Regional Commute Services 
 
 
Background: 
The Solano Transportation Authority (STA) has been actively involved in providing rideshare 
services and transit information since 2000 when the Solano Napa Commuter Information 
(SNCI) program, formerly called Solano Commuter Information, was transferred from the 
County of Solano to STA.  The SNCI manages a number of programs designed to encourage and 
assist Solano and Napa County's commuters and residents to take advantage of various travel 
options other than driving alone.  This includes carpooling and vanpooling, local and express bus 
service, rail, ferry, bicycling and walking.  SNCI works closely with Solano and Napa County's 
major employer to encourage their employees to take transit or rideshare to work through the 
Employer Commuter Challenge and various incentive programs.   
 
The SNCI program provides incentives programs for starting and sustaining vanpools, a 
guaranteed ride home program that serves as a safety net program for transit riders, and assists 
employers with starting up commuter programs for their employees.   
 
STA has been working to increase the public awareness of the SNCI program to encourage more 
Solano County residents and employers to utilize available transit services, form carpool and 
vanpool, and improve their health by walking or biking to work or school.  In ? of 2013, the 
STA's conducted an assessment of the SNCI program and its services that included a telephone 
survey.  The assessment concluded that SNCI programs are well received by individuals that 
have used them and there is sizable percentage of individuals that would be interested in utilizing 
these services, but a relatively small percentage of those surveyed are aware of the SNCI 
program.    
    
In October 2013, the STA Board authorized the Mobility Call Center be established through an 
expansion of the STA’s Solano Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) program call center as a 
pilot program for three years.  SNCI’s Call Center transformation into the One-Stop Mobility 
Call Center has progressed with the call center now moved into a small, new office location 
across the hall from STA.   One-full time customer service staff and two additional part-time 
staff have been hired to implement this customer service program. 

135



SUISUN-FAIRFIELD TRAIN DEPOT  
The Suisun-Fairfield Train Depot is located in close proximity to the office of the STA.  The 
Train Depot is currently the one location served by the intercity rail service provided by the 
Capitol Corridor.  There are currently 32 daily rail trips serving this Train Depot.  The Train 
Depot is also served by Solano Express Route 90, local Fairfield and Suisun Transit (FAST) 
Route 5, and by the Rio Vista Delta Breeze.  A large number of train and bus riders use the Train 
Depot on a daily basis, particularly during peak commute times from 5 am to 9 am and 5pm to 
9pm.   Currently, the Suisun-Fairfield Train Depot has the 7th highest amount of boardings and 
alightings of the 17 stations served by the Capital Corridor and is the most frequently used 
station that is unstaffed.   Recently, the STA awarded the City of Suisun City $600,000 in 
funding to upgrade the signage, passenger amenities, and accessibility for the Suisun-Fairfield 
Train Depot.   
 
For the past few years, Rio Vista Delta Breeze has leased a small office located within the 
building (600 square feet) in order to sell Delta Breeze Transit passes, and to process tickets and 
packages for Greyhound, which also services this location.  In May of 2014, the City of Rio 
Vista notified the City of Suisun City that the Delta Breeze would be vacating the office in order 
to consolidate their transit services and operations in Rio Vista.  Subsequently, the City of Suisun 
City forwarded a letter to the STA requesting the STA consider occupying the office with their 
SNCI staff at the office location located at the Train Depot in order to provide transit information 
and potentially to sell various transit passes.  
 
 
As noted earlier, the STA Board has authorized the SNCI program to evolve into the One-Stop 
Mobility Call Center by expanding the services they provide.  The rideshare program will 
remain, providing transportation options to commuters, but will expand to provide transportation 
options to seniors, people with disabilities, and low income residents.  Additionally, the call 
center has begun to process applications for the Regional Transit Card (RTC), Senior Clipper 
Card, sell FasTrak toll tags and BikeLink locker cards.  In the future, the Call Center will also 
sell Clipper Transit Cards when they are available in Solano County.  This is scheduled to occur 
in November of 2014.   
 
These services had been provided in person at the Suisun Fairfield Train Depot by the City of 
Rio Vista’s Delta Breeze Transit Operator.  On May 1, 2014, when Rio Vista vacated the station, 
they also stopped providing these regional services.  Both STA and City of Suisun City were 
interested in continuing to provide these services to the public at this location. SNCI staff began 
assisting the public with these regional transit services at the Mobility Call Center location at 
One Harbor Center, Suite 140, in person, over the phone or via the website.    STA's SNCI 
program staff is in the process of handling the expanded responsibility of processing the RTC 
and Senior Clipper Cards and the sales of FasTrak and BikeLinks locker cards at the STA’s 
offices until a longer term arrangement could be negotiated with Suisun City for the Train Depot. 
 
Discussion: 
Last year, STA staff worked with a subcommittee of the STA Board comprised of the Mayor of 
Suisun City and the three STA appointed representatives to the Capitol Corridor to discuss the 
proposed improvements to the Suisun Fairfield Train Depot.  This included the potential for the 
SNCI program to occupy this office location after Rio Vista vacated the office (attachment A).  
With the support of the STA Board's Executive Committee, STA staff has identified a list of 
tenant improvements needed for the office to improve efficiency and convenience of use and 
safety for employees  attachment B) and worked with Suisun City staff to develop a lease 
agreement (attachment C.  These tenant improvements will be funded by Suisun City utilizing 
local transit development act (TDA) funds dedicated on annual basis by FAST for the operation 
and maintenance of the Suisun-Fairfield Train Depot. 

136



 
The City of Suisun City is interested in having the SNCI program staff occupy the office to 
provide both a public service for local residents and the daily train and transit riders that utilize 
the facility, and to provide a staff presence at the station.  The location of SNCI staff at the Train 
Depot will help SNCI further its program goal of increasing its public awareness by its presence 
at a popular and frequently used transit facility and providing a convenient location for the 
distribution of local and regional transit materials, selling of transit passes, and providing 
regional transportation services such as FastTrak and Clipper.  Similar to the lease agreement 
with Rio Vista, Suisun City staff has proposed an annual lease agreement of $1 for the STA's 
SNCI program to staff this location.  STA staff is requesting the Board authorize the Executive 
Director to enter into a lease agreement for two years, with options to extend the lease for 
another two years, with the City of Suisun City for STA's SNCI program staff to occupy the 
office located at the Suisun City-Fairfield Train Depot. 
   
Fiscal Impact: 
The proposed annual cost for STA to lease the office is $1 per year.  Tenant improvements 
requested by STA will be covered by local TDA funds provided to the City of Suisun City to 
operate and maintain the facility.  The cost for  the STA's SNCI Program staff to staff the facility 
is funded through a combination of regional rideshare and air quality funds that fund the SNCI 
Program and from mobility management grants that funds the customer service component of the 
Mobility Management Program. 
 
Recommendation:  
Authorize the Executive Director to enter into a lease agreement with the City of Suisun City to 
staff the office located at the Suisun-Fairfield Train Depot for two years with the option to 
extend the lease for an additional two years for an amount not-to-exceed $1 per year. 
 
Attachments:  

A. Site Map of Suisun-Fairfield Train Depot  
B. Requested Tenants Improvements by STA 
C. Draft Lease Agreement  

 
 

137



This page intentionally left blank. 

138



139

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



This page intentionally left blank. 

140



 
 
 
 
 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  May 16, 2014 
TO:  Dan Kasperson, Building & Public Works Director, City of Suisun City 
  Amanda Dum, Management Analyst 1, City of Suisun City 
FROM  Daryl Halls, Executive Director 
CC:  Robert Macaulay, Director of Planning 

Judy Leaks, Rideshare/ Safe Routes to School Program Manager 
Debbie McQuilkin, SNCI Customer Services Coordinator 

SUBJECT: Amtrak Train Depot/Call Center Annex Update 
 
 
The following is a list of items that would assist the STA Mobility Call Center staff to work 
efficiently in the Amtrak Train Depot location.  STA believes they should be provided as tenant 
improvements (TIs) to the station facility. 

• Replace the metal roll-up door between the office and public area with a security glass 
partition at the counter  with 2 pass through slots for exchange of money, and holes or 
grills for speaking.  The US Bank branch on Pennsylvania Avenue in Fairfield has a good 
example of this in their lobby. 

• Two workstations; 1 station at the counter and 1 station in the corner of the office 
• The two windows from the office area to the outside should be replaced with dual-pane 

glass that is one way, allowing staff to see out. 
• Replace office door with a security door with digital keypad lock 
• New lighting 
• Updated wiring to accommodate 2 telephones, wifi with network capabilities and wiring 

for a flat screen television 
• Display racks for schedules – both for counter and wall mounting 
• STA will provide a safe; the TIs should include securely attaching the safe to the floor. 
• Modification to counter  

o Shorten inner counter by 6” 
o Extend outer counter by 6” 

• Flat screen TV with mounting capability to security glass 
• 2 – chairs 

o 1 tall chair for counter work station 
o 1 standard desk size 

• 2 – Security cameras 

We anticipate the following items to be permanent parts of the facility that would remain in the 
event that STA no longer operates from the station.  

 

141

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



This page intentionally left blank. 

142



LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is entered into as of _____________ between the City of 
Suisun City, (“Lessor”) and the Solano Transportation Authority, the congestion management 
agency for Solano County (“Lessee”) for the real property in the County of Solano, State of 
California, located at 177 Main Street, Suisun City, California commonly known as the Train 
Station and shown in Exhibit A, (“Premises”) under the following terms and conditions: 

 
ARTICLE 1.  PREMISES DESCRIPTION AND TERM OF LEASE 

Description of Premises 

Section 1.01.  The rented premises are that portion of the building located at 177 Main Street, 
Suisun City, California as shown on the attached floor plan on “Exhibit A” and consisting of 
approximately 600 square feet, more or less. 

Term 

Section 1.02.  This agreement is for twelve (12) month term commencing ________________, 
and ending on _______________ unless extended pursuant to section 1.03. 

Section 1.03.  Lessor grants to Lessee three (3) options to extend the term of this agreement for 
an additional twelve (12) months for each option provided Lessee notifies Lessor of its intent to 
exercise each option 90 days prior to the expiration date of the agreement and Lessee is in 
compliance with the terms of this Lease.  The rent and other terms during the options periods of 
this agreement will be negotiated by both parties. 

 
ARTICLE 2.  RENT, UTILITIES, AND SECURITY DEPOSIT 

Rent 

Section 2.01.  Lessee agrees to pay to Lessor as rent for the use and occupancy of said premises 
during the term of this agreement $1.00 per year due and payable on the 1st day of the month 
following the month for which the rent is due.  Rent shall be payable to Lessor at 701 Civic 
Center Boulevard, Suisun City.  In the even that rent is not paid within 10 days after the due date, 
Lessee agrees to pay a late charge of $50.  Lessee further agrees to pay $100 for each dishonored 
bank check. 

Utilities 

Section 2.02.  Lessor is responsible for the payment of all utilities except telephone.  Lessee is 
responsible for the payment of telephone service.  Lessee is also responsible for janitorial 
services for the property commonly known as the Train Station including the leased premises. 

Security System 

Section 2.03.  Lessee has access to utilizing the security system, which services the entire Train 
Station.  A security system access code shall be provided by the Lessor to the Lessee upon full 

143

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C



execution of the Lease Agreement and receipt of the security deposit.  Lessor is responsible for 
the expenses incurred with the maintenance and upkeep of the security system. 

Security Deposit 
Section 2.04.  Lessor acknowledges receipt of a security deposit of $1,000.  The security deposit 
shall secure the performance of the Lessee’s obligations hereunder.  Lessor may, but shall not be 
required to, apply all, or a portion, of the security deposit to cure any default in Lessee’s 
obligations herein.  In the event the security deposit, or a portion thereof, is used for this purpose, 
Lessor shall have the right to require Lessee to repay to Lessor those portions of the security 
deposit so used.  Upon written notice to Lessee from Lessor of the sum due to re-establish the 
full security deposit, Lessee shall pay the sum due to Lessor within 30 days. 
 

ARTICLE 3.  REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 

Present Condition of Premises 

Section 3.01.  Lessee agrees with Lessor that said designated premises per Exhibit A are in good 
and tenantable condition on the date of this agreement. 

Improvements by Lessor 

Section 3.02.  During the term of this agreement, Lessor shall, at Lessor’s own cost and expense, 
keep the exterior roof, side-walls, structural supports, and foundations of the building on said 
premises in good repair and make all necessary repairs to, or replacements of, the plumbing, and 
electrical systems on said premises; provided, however, Lessor shall not: 

(1) Be required to make any repairs to the exterior roof, side-walls, structural supports, 
and foundations of the building on said premises that are rendered necessary by the 
negligence of or abuse to such property by Lessee or any employees, agents, 
sublessees, or permittees of Lessee; or 
 

(2) Be liable for any damages resulting from Lessor’s failure to make any repairs 
required by this section to be made by Lessor unless Lessee gives written notice to 
Lessor specifying the need for the repairs and Lessor fails to make the repairs with 
reasonable dispatch after the giving to the notice. 

 
Improvements by Lessee 

 
(3) Lessee is permitted to incorporate the following improvement(s) at a no cost: 

a. Provision of brochure stands; 
b. Other temporary improvements to enhance and facilitate transit ticket sales and 

provision of transit information. 
 

Any other proposed improvements by the Lessee are subject to written approval by the 
Lessor. 

Repairs by Lessee 
144



 
Section 3.03.  Except as provided in Section 3.02 of this agreement, Lessee shall, at Lessee’s 
own cost and expense, during the term of this lease or any renewal or extension of the term of 
this lease keep and maintain said premises in good order, repair, and in a tenantable condition.  
Lessee shall not make any repairs or modifications to the building unless said repairs and 
modifications are expressly approved in writing by Lessor. 
 
 

Lessor’s Right of Inspection 
 

Section 3.04.  Lessor or Lessor’s duly authorized agents may enter said premises at any and all 
reasonable times with twenty-four (24) hour prior notice, except in emergencies, during the term 
of this lease of any renewal or extension thereof to determine whether Lessee is complying with 
the terms and conditions of this agreement or to perform any other acts authorized by this 
agreement to be performed by Lessor or reasonably necessary to protect Lessor’s rights under 
this agreement. 

Surrender of Premises 
 

Section 3.05.  On expiration of this agreement, Lessee shall promptly surrender possession of 
said premises to Lessor in as good condition as said premises are now in the date of this lease, 
reasonable wear and tear and damage by the elements or fire or any casualty beyond the control 
of Lessee excepted. 

ARTICLE 4.  USE OF PREMISES 
 

Permitted Use of Premises 
 

Section 4.01.  Lessee shall use said premises to provide transit and transportation information 
and sell transit passes to prospective passengers for Rio Vista Delta Breeze, Fairfield and Suisun 
Transit, SolTrans, Amtrak California Thruway Bus, and Capitol Corridor, and for no other 
purpose without the written consent of Lessor, which consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. 
 
Section 4.02.  Lessee shall operate the station Monday through Friday from 6:30am to 2:00pm, 
excluding observed major holidays, at which time the Rio Vista Delta Breeze does not operate.  
Observed major holidays, at which time the Rio Vista Delta Breeze does not operate.  Observed 
major holidays include:  New Year’s Day, Dr. martin Luther King, Jr. Day, President’s Day, 
Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas 
Day. 

Compliance with Law 
 

Section 4.02.  Said premises shall not be used or permitted by Lessee to be used in violation for 
any law or ordinance.  Lessee shall maintain said designated premises in a clean and sanitary 
manner and in compliance with all laws, ordinances rules and regulations applicable to said 

145



premises enacted or promulgated by any public or governmental authority or agency having 
jurisdiction over said premises.  Lessee will have a current City of Suisun City business license 
during term of this agreement. 

Signs 
 

Section 4.03.  Lessee may place an appropriately sized sign to be approved by Lessor on in a 
location designated by Lessor.  All signs shall be removed at the sole cost and expense of Lessee 
without damage to any building on said premises or to said premises on termination of this 
agreement. 

ARTICLE 5.  FIRE INSURANCE 
 

Lessee to Maintain Insurance 
 

Section 5.01.  Lessee shall, at Lessee’s own cost and expense, at all times during the full term of 
this lease and any renewals or extensions of the term of this lease keep all personal property 
insured for full replacement cost.  Said insurance to be carried by insurance companies rated 
AAA or better in “Best’s Insurance Guide” against loss or destruction by fire and the perils, 
including vandalism and malicious mischief, commonly covered under the standard extended 
coverage endorsement in the county where said premises are locate. 
 

Blanket Insurance Policy 
 

Section 5.02.  Should Lessee, at any time during the term of this agreement, have in full force 
and effect a “blanket” policy of insurance insuring said premises and property as well as other 
property owned or occupied by Lessee in the amounts and against loss or destruction by the 
perils described in Section 5.01 of this agreement, such blanket insurance policy shall be deemed 
to meet and satisfy the requirements of this Article provided a copy of the policy, or a certificate 
evidencing the policy, is delivered to Lessor as required by Section 7.04 of this agreement. 
 

Insurance by Lessor 
 

Section 5.03.  Should Lessee at any time fail to procure or maintain the insurance required by 
this Article, Lessor may obtain such insurance and pay the premium on such insurance for the 
benefit of Lessee.  Any amounts paid by Lessor to procure or maintain insurance pursuant to this 
section shall be immediately due and repayable to Lessor by Lessee together with interest 
thereon at the rate of ten percent per annum until paid. 

 
ARTICLE 6.  DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES 

 
Damage or Destruction of Premises 

 
Section 6.01.  Should any improvements, including buildings and other structures, located on 
said premises be damaged or destroyed during the term of this agreement, Lessor shall have the 

146



sol option to determine whether to repair the damages to the premises or to terminate this 
agreement in the following manner: 
 

(1) Where the damage or destruction is caused by the Lessee or otherwise included in the 
perils against which insurance is required to be carried by Section 7.02 of this 
agreement, to repair the damage from the proceeds of such insurance or, if such 
insurance has lapsed or not been carried, at the sole cost and expense of Lessee. 
 

(2) Where the damage or destruction is caused by a peril against which insurance is not 
required to be carried by this agreement, to repair the damage at the sole cost and 
expense of Lessor. 

Termination for Uninsured Loss 

Section 6.02.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this agreement, should any improvements 
located on said premises be damaged or destroyed to such an extent it will cost more than $1,000 
to repair or replace them; and the damage or destruction is caused by a peril against which 
insurance is not required to be carried by this agreement, either Lessor or Lessee may terminate 
this agreement by giving the other written notice of the termination.  The notice must be given 
within thirty days after the occurrence of the damage or destruction; provided, however, that 
Lessee can prevent termination of this agreement by Lessor pursuant to this section either: 
 

(1) Paying to Lessor within thirty days after service by Lessee of notice of the 
termination  the estimated cost in excess of $1,000 of repairing or restoring the 
damage or destroyed improvements and paying the balance of such costs in excess of 
$1,000 promptly on their determination on completion of the repairs or restorations; 
or 

 
(2) Repairing or restoring, subject to the approval and supervision of Lessor, the 

damaged or destroyed improvements at Lessee’s own cost and expense and accepting, 
on completion of the repairs and restoration, a credit from lessor of actual cost of 
repairs not to exceed $1,000 to be applied toward payment of the installments of rent 
next becoming due under this lease. 

Time for Construction of Repairs 

Section 6.03.  Any and all repairs and restoration of improvements required by this Article shall 
be commenced by Lessor within a reasonable time after occurrence of the damage or destruction 
requiring the repairs or restoration, shall be diligently pursued after being commenced, and shall 
be completed within a reasonable time after the loss. 

Abatement of Rent 

147



Section 6.04.  The damage or destruction of any improvements located on said premises shall not 
terminate this agreement, except as otherwise provided in this article, but any rent payable by 
Lessee to Lessor under this agreement shall: 

(1) Where the damage or destruction is caused by a peril against which insurance is not 
required to be carried by this agreement, be abated for the time and to the extend 
Lessee is prevented from occupying said premises for uses authorized in this 
agreement. 
 

(2) Where the damage or destruction is caused by a peril against which insurance is 
required to be carried by section 5.01 of this agreement, continue to require to be paid 
by Lessee as provided in this agreement in full though the damage or destruction 
renders said premises either partially or completely uninhabitable for the uses 
authorized by this agreement. 

ARTICLE 7.  INDEMNITY FROM LIABILITY 

Hold-Harmless Clause 

Section 7.01.  Lessee to indemnify Lessor 

A. Lessee agrees to indemnify, defend, protect, hold harmless, and release Lessor, its elected 
bodies, agents, officers, employees and subcontractors (collectively referred to in this paragraph 
as ‘Lessor”), from and against any and all claims, losses, proceedings, damages, causes of 
action, liability, costs, or expense (including attorneys’ fees and witness costs) arising 
from or in connection with, or caused by any negligent act or omission or willful 
misconduct of Lessee. This indemnification obligation shall not be limited in any way by 
any limitation on the amount or type of damages or compensation payable to or for the 
indemnifying party under workers’ compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other 
employee benefit acts. 

B. At its sole discretion, Lessor may participate at its own expense in the defense of any 
claim, action or proceeding, but such participation shall not relieve Lessee of any 
obligation imposed by this Section. Lessor shall notify Lessee within thirty (30) days of 
any claim, action or proceeding and cooperate fully in the defense. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, Lessor’s failure to notify Lessee within said thirty (30) day time limit shall not 
relieve Lessee of any obligation imposed by this Section unless Lessee has been actually 
prejudiced by such delay. 

Section 7.02.  Lessor to indemnify Lessee 

A. Lessor agrees to indemnify, defend, protect, hold harmless, and release the Lessee, its 
elected bodies, agents, officers, employees and subcontractors (collectively referred to in this 
paragraph as “Lessee”) from and against any and all claims, losses, proceedings, damages, 
causes of action, liability, costs, or expense (including attorneys’ fees and witness costs) 
arising from or in connection with, or caused by any negligent act or omission or willful 

148



misconduct of Lessor. This indemnification obligation shall not be limited in any way by 
any limitation on the amount or type of damages or compensation payable to or for the 
indemnifying party under workers’ compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other 
employee benefit acts. 

B. At its sole discretion, Lessee may participate at its own expense in the defense of any 
such claim, action or proceeding, but such participation shall not relieve Lessor of any 
obligation imposed by this Section. Lessee shall notify Lessor within thirty (30) days of 
any claim, action or proceeding and cooperate fully in the defense. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, Lessee’s failure to notify Lessor within said thirty (30) day time limit shall not 
relieve Lessor of any obligation imposed by this Section unless Lessor has been actually 
prejudiced by such delay. 

Section 7.03. Each Party to defend itself for concurrent claims  

Each Party agrees to defend itself from any claim, action or proceeding arising out of the 
negligent act or omission or willful misconduct of its own elected bodies, agents, officers, 
employees and subcontractors in the performance of this Agreement. In such cases, Lessee 
and Lessor agree to retain their own legal counsel, bear their own defense costs, and waive 
their right to seek reimbursement of such costs, except as provided in Section 7.05 below. 
 

Section 7.04. Joint Defense 
 
Notwithstanding Section 7.03 above, in cases where Lessee and Lessor agree in writing to a 
joint defense, Lessee and Lessor may appoint joint defense counsel to defend the claim, 
action or proceeding arising out of the negligent act or omission or willful misconduct of 
Lessor and Lessee in the performance of this Agreement. Joint defense counsel shall be 
selected by mutual agreement of Lessee and Lessor. Lessee and Lessor agree to share the 
costs of such joint defense and any agreed settlement in equal amounts, except as provided in 
Section 7.05 below. Lessee and Lessor further agree that neither Party may bind the other to 
a settlement agreement without the written consent of both Lessee and Lessor. 
 

Section 7.05. Reimbursement and/or Reallocation 
 
Where a trial verdict or arbitration award allocates or determines the comparative fault of the 
Parties, Lessee and Lessor shall reimburse and/or reallocate defense costs, settlement 
payments, judgments and awards, consistent with such comparative fault. 
 

Liability Insurance 

Section 7.06.  Lessee shall, at Lessee’s own cost and expense, secure promptly after execution of 
this agreement and maintain during the entire term of this agreement and any renewal or 
extension of such term a broad form comprehensive coverage policy of public liability insurance, 
including bodily injury and property damage to which Sections 7.03 and 7.04 of this agreement 
shall apply, issued by an insurance company acceptable to Lessor insuring Lessee and Lessor 

149



against loss or liability caused by or connected with Lessee’s occupation and use of said 
premises under this lease in amounts not less than: 

(1) $1,000,000 for commercial general liability insurance, written on an occurrence basis; 
 

(2) $50,000 for damage to or destruction of any property of others. 

Cancellation of Insurance 

Section 7.07.  Each policy of insurance procured by Lessee pursuant to Section 5.01 or Section 
7.02 shall expressly provide that it cannot be canceled for any reason or altered in any manner 
unless 10 days’ prior written notice has been given by the insurance company issuing the policy 
to Lessor in the manner specified in this agreement for service of notices on Lessor by Lessee. 

Deposit of Insurance Policies with Lessor 

Section 7.08.  Promptly on issuance, reissuance, or renewal of any insurance policy required by 
this lease, including fire and liability insurance policies, Lessee shall cause a duplicate copy of 
the policy or a certificate evidencing the policy naming Lessor as second loss payee and 
executed by the insurance company issuing the policy or its authorized agent to be given to 
Lessor. 

Exoneration of Lessor 

Section 7.09.  Lessee expressly waives all claims for damages and agrees that Lessor shall not be 
liable for any damages or injuries to Lessee’s business, for any damage or destruction of property 
belonging to Lessee or on said premises with the consent of Lessee or for any injuries to Lessee 
or any person on said premises with the consent of Lessee unless such damage, injury, loss or 
destruction directly results from either Lessor’s failure after written notice from Lessee to make 
any repairs required by this lease to be made by Lessor or an intentional or willful act of Lessor 
or some agent or employee of Lessor. 

ARTICLE 8.  DEFAULT AND TERMINATION 

Remedies on Lessee’s Default 

Section 8.01.  Should Lessee breach this agreement or abandon said premises without the notice 
of termination required herein, Lessor, in addition to any other remedy given Lessor by law or 
equity, may:  

(1) Continue this agreement in effect by not terminating Lessee’s right to possession of 
said premises, in which event Lessor shall be entitled to enforce all Lessor’s rights 
and remedies under this agreement including the right to recover the rent specified in 
this agreement for a period of thirty (30) days after the breach or abandonment; or 
 

(2) Terminate this agreement and recover from Lessee: 

150



a. The worth at the time of award of the unpaid rent which had been earned at the 
time of termination of this tenancy; 

b. The worth at the time of award of the amount of the unpaid rent for a period of 
thirty (30) days after the time Lessor became aware that Lessee abandoned the 
premises; and 

c. Any other amount necessary to compensate Lessor for detriment caused by 
Lessee’s failure to perform his obligations under this lease; or 
 

(3) Terminate this agreement and, in addition to any recoveries Lessor may seek under 
subparagraph (2) of this section, bring an action to re-enter and regain possession of 
said premises in the manner provided by the laws of unlawful detainer of the State of 
California then in effect. 
 

Default by Lessee 

Section 8.02.  All covenants and agreements contained in this agreement are declared to be 
conditions to this tenancy and to the term demised to Lessee.  Lessee shall breach this agreement, 
thereby giving Lessor the remedies specified in Section 8.01 of this lease, should: 

(1) Any rent be unpaid when due and remain unpaid for three days after written notice to 
pay such rent or surrender possessions of said premises is served on Lessee by 
Lessor; or  

(2) Lessee defaults in the performance or breaches any other covenant, condition, or 
other term contained in this agreement and such default is not cured within twenty 
days after written notice is given by Lessor to Lessee. 
 

Insolvency 

Section 8.03.  Should Lessee become insolvent as defined in this section, Lessor may, by giving 
thirty days’ notice to Lessee or on the person appointed to manage Lessee’s affairs at the court 
that appointed him, terminate this agreement and forfeit Lessee’s interest in said premises and in 
any improvements or facilities in, on, or appurtenant to said premises.  For purposes of this 
section Lessee shall be conclusively presumed to have become insolvent if Lessee should: 

(1) Have a receiver appointed to take possession of all or substantially all of Lessee’s 
property because of insolvency; 
 

(2) Make a general assignment for the benefit of creditor’s; or 
 
(3) Allow any judgment against Lessee to remain unsatisfied and unbound for a period of 

thirty days or longer. 
 

Cumulative Remedies 

151



Section 8.04.  The remedies given to Lessor in this Article shall not be exclusive but shall be 
cumulative and in addition to all other remedies now or hereafter allowed by law or authorized 
elsewhere in this agreement. 

Waiver of Breach 

Section 8.05.  The waiver of Lessor of any breach by Lessee of any of the provisions of this 
agreement shall not constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent default or 
breach by Lessee either of the same or a different provision of this agreement. 

 
 

ARTICLE 9.  MISCELLANEOUS 

No Subleasing or Assigning 

Section 9.01.  Lessee shall not encumber, assign, or otherwise transfer its rights under this 
agreement, any right or interest in this agreement, or any right or interest in said premises or any 
of the improvements that may now or hereafter be constructed or installed on said premises 
without the express written consent of Lessor first had and obtained.  Neither shall Lessee sublet 
said premises or any part thereof or allow any person, other than Lessee’s agents, servants, and 
employees, to occupy said premises or any part thereof without the prior written consent of 
Lessor.  Any encumbrance, assignment, transfer, whether it be voluntary or involuntary, by 
operation of law or otherwise, is void and shall, at the option of Lessor, terminate this agreement.  
The consent of Lessor to any assignment of Lessee’s interest in this lease or by the subletting by 
Lessee of said premises or parts of said premises shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

Notices 

Section 9.02.  Except as otherwise provided by law, any and all notices or other communications 
required or permitted by this agreement or by law to be served on or given to either party hereto 
by the other party hereto shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly served and given when 
personally delivered to the party to whom it is directed or to any managing employee or officer 
of such party or, in lieu of such personal service, when deposited in the United States mail, first-
class postage prepaid, addressed to Lessee at: 

 Solano Transportation Authority 
 Attn: Transit Coordinator 
 One Harbor Center, Suite 130, 
 Suisun City, CA 94585 
 
Or to Lessor at: 
 
 City of Suisun City  
 Attn:  City Manager 
 701 Civic Center Boulevard 
 Suisun City, CA  94585 
 

152



Either party, Lessor or Lessee, may change their address for purposes of this section by giving 
written notice of such change to the other party in the manner provided in this section. 

Attorney’s Fees 
 

Section 9.04.  Should any litigation, including arbitration proceedings, be commenced between 
the parties to this agreement concerning said premises, this tenancy, or the rights and duties of 
either in relation thereto, the party, Lessor or Lessee, prevailing in such litigation, to a reasonable 
sum as and for his attorney’s fees in the litigation which shall be determined by the court in such 
litigation or in a separate action brought for that purpose. 

 
Binding on Heirs and Successors 

 
Section 9.04.  This agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, 
executors, administrator, successors, and assigns of each of the parties hereto, Lessor and Lessee, 
but nothing contained in this section shall be construed as a consent by Lessor to any assignment 
of this agreement or any interest in it by Lessee. 
 
 
 

Time of Essence 
 

Section 9.05.  Tim is expressly declared to be of essence. 
 

Possessory Interest 
 

Section 9.06.  State of California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 107.6 requires that the 
City, acting as the owner of the property known as the Train Station must inform any and all 
tenants of said property when entering into a written lease agreement “whereby a possessory 
interest subject to property taxation may be created”. 
 
By signing this lease agreement, the Lessee acknowledges that the Agency has duly informed the 
Lessee of his or her obligation to pay any property taxes levied by Solano County on the 
possessory interest. 
 
EXECUTED on the date specified on page on as the date of this agreement at Suisun City, 
Solano County California. 
 
 
LESSEE:      LESSOR: 
 
SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY CITY OF SUISUN CITY 
 
 
 
__________________________________  _________________________________ 
By: Daryl K. Halls     By: Suzanne Bragdon 
Its: Executive Director    Its: City Manager 
 
Approved as to form:     Approved as to form: 

153



 
 
By____________________________  By_______________________ 
     STA Legal Counsel          City Attorney 
 

 

154



Agenda Item 10.A 
July 9, 2014 

 
 

 
 
 
DATE:   June 25, 2014 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Daryl Halls, Executive Director 
 Susan Furtado, Accounting & Administrative Services Manager 
RE: STA’s Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 Proposed Budget Revision and  
 FY 2015-16 Proposed Budget 
  
 
Background: 
The Solano Transportation Authority (STA) has an adopted budget policy requiring a two-year annual 
fiscal year budget plan for its proposed expenditures and the proposed means of financing them.  The 
budget is usually revised mid-year and finalized at the end of the fiscal year.  When necessary, these 
budgets are revised to provide STA the basis for appropriate budgetary control of its financial operations 
for the fiscal year.  In April 2014, the STA Board adopted the FY 2014-15 Budget Revision.   
 
Discussion: 
Attachment A is the Proposed Budget Revision for FY 2014-15 and Attachment B is the FY 2015-16 
Proposed Budget.  The FY 2014-15 Budget Revision is balanced, with the proposed changes to the 
approved budget modified from $40.25 million to $35.25 million, a reduction of $5 million.  These 
changes are primarily due to the carryover funds for the continuation of projects and programs: the I-80 
Interchange Project, the Consolidated Transportation Service Agency (CTSA)/Mobility Management 
Program and the Countywide Travel Training Program.   
 
Budget changes are summarized as follows: 

1. The FY 2013-14 State Transit Assistance Funds (STAF) allocations in the amount of $905,422 
(Population-Based/Solano) is reprogrammed for the continuation of transit coordination, such as 
the Ridership Survey, the Suisun/Fairfield Amtrak Depot Rehabilitation and the Benicia 
Intermodal Project.  The FY 2014-15 STAF allocations in the amount of $1,159,009 (Population 
Based/Solano) and the amount of $416,776 (Regional Paratransit) for the continuation of the 
Expenditure Plan, Solano Express Marketing, Transit Corridor Study/Short Range Transit Plan 
(SRTP), Transit Coordination/Implementation Phase 2, and the CTSA/Mobility Management 
Program Administration. 

2. The One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) for the Safe Route to School (SR2S) Program is increased by 
$126,949 to reflect the anticipated expenditures for the fiscal year with the renewal of the contract 
agreement with the Solano County Public Health Department for their partnership effort with the 
Education and Encouragement portion of this program.   

3. The Yolo Solano Air Quality Management District (YSAQMD) Clean Air Program Funds is 
increased by $71,057 to reflect the new funding for the SR2S Program activities in the amount of 
$60,000 and the amount of $31,057 for the purchase of an electric sedan for use to attend local and 
regional meetings, community, school, and employer events sponsored by both Solano Napa 
Commuter Information (SNCI) Program and SR2S Program. 

4. The Federal Section 5304 Transit Planning for Rural Communities funding in the amount of 
$99,950 is added for the Rio Vista transit service outreach and analysis.

155



 
5. Funding from the City of Rio Vista in the amount of $212,618 is added to the budget for the State 

Route 12 (SR 12)/Church Street project.  Start of this work is contingent on the STA and City of 
Rio Vista entering into a funding agreement.  This work would be funded by the City. 

6. The Solano County Funds for the Jepson Parkway Project is reduced by the amount of $396,229.  
This fund is adjusted to reflect the amount expended in FY 2013-14 for the right of way activities 
funding match required for the federal funds allocated for the project.   

7. The Regional Measure (RM) 2 funds for the I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange Project is reduced by 
$7 million to reflect the actual project activities, such the right-of-way acquisition and utilities 
relocation which were done in FY 2013-14.  In June 2, 2014, the groundbreaking ceremony for 
this project was held to kick off the start of the construction.  Completion of this project is 
expected in summer of 2016. 

8. RM 2 funds for the North Connector Project ($200,000), the I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck 
Scales Relocation Project ($212,618), and the I-80 High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) Lanes Project 
($92,991) are adjusted to reflect the carryover funds for the final construction activities and 
completion of these projects, including the annual maintenance for the North Connector Project 
long term vegetation monitoring and the I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck Scales Relocation Project 
software maintenance with Intelligent Imaging System.  

9. The SR 12/Jameson Canyon Project fund from the STIP/Transportation Congestion Relief 
Program (TCRP) is added by $100,000 to reflect the project final design phase and construction 
activities.  This project is near completion and is on track to be fully open to the public sometime 
in August 2014. 

10. The Vallejo Redwood Parkway Fairgrounds Drive Improvement Project budget is added with the 
amount of $16,000 to reflect the anticipated final completion of the environmental document for 
the project. 

Other revenue changes are made to reflect the anticipated expenditures and activities for the fiscal year. 

FY 2014-15 Expenditure Changes 
Changes to the approved budget are reflective of funds carryover and revenue changes as described 
above.  The budget expenditure revisions are as follows: 
 

1. The Operation and Management budget is increased by $148,917.  The STA Operation & 
Administration budget expenditures were reviewed and adjusted to reflect the expenditures and 
activities for the fiscal year.  Changes include the carryover of funds for the Expenditure Plan of 
$25,000.  The increase in the number of part-time STA staff and additional work has increased the 
need in Information Technology (IT) support and maintenance; therefore, an estimated consulting 
cost of $27,000 for IT services is added to the budget.  The purchase of the new electric vehicle 
($31,057) is added to the budget with funding from YSAQMD.  The in-house accounting software 
cost in the amount of approximately $17,602 is carried over from FY 2013-14 for the final 
installation and training. 
The STA’s Contingency Reserve Account is increased by $62,000 to continue to maintain STA’s 
adequate financial level necessary to provide for contingencies for core operating costs in 
anticipation of unforeseen operating needs in today’s economic times.   

2. The Transit and Rideshare Services/Solano Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) budget is 
increased by $448,892.  Changes to the budget are due to the carryover of funds for the 
continuation of programs, such as the SR2S Program, Transit Corridor Study/SRTP, Countywide 
Travel Training Program, and Ridership Survey.  The transit services budget includes cost for 
STA’s Title VI Program, and its associated Language Assistance Plan, and Public Participation 
Plan policy and practice to meet federal compliance standards 

3. The Project Development budget is reduced by $5,562,156 to primarily reflect the right of way 
activities and property acquisitions for the I-80/I-680/SR12 Interchange Project and the final 
construction activities of the North Connection Project, I-80 East Bound Truck Scales Relocation 

156



Project, I-80 HOV Lanes, and the SR 12/Jameson Canyon Project.  Carryover funds for projects 
such as the Alternative Fuel Implementation ($64,016), the Suisun/Fairfield Amtrak Depot 
Rehabilitation ($200,000), the Benicia Intermodal Project ($450,000), the SR 12/Church Project 
($212,618), and the Redwood Parkway Drive/Fairgrounds Improvement Project ($16,000) is 
added to the budget for the continuation of these projects. 

4. The Strategic Planning budget is reduced by $39,698.  The planning activities and studies are 
adjusted to reflect anticipated budget cost for the fiscal year and the carryover of funds for the 
continuation of the Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) follow up and the Priority 
Conservation Area (PCA). 

 
Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) for STA Staff: 
The STA Board has an established policy for calculating cost of living adjustments for STA staff using 
the average of the Consumer Price Index (CPI):  United States cities, Western Urban areas, and the San 
Francisco/Oakland/San Jose urban area.  Using the STA’s COLA policy cost calculations, the average 
annual change in CPI for 2013 for the three areas is 2.1 %.  The proposed FY 2014-15 Budget Revision 
includes a cost of living adjustment of 2.1%.  The total fiscal impact for the FY 2014-15 COLA effective 
July 1, 2014 is $41,683.   
 
Reserved Funds: 
The STA’s Contingency Reserve was established in 1999 (Attachment C).  In 2007, the Contingency 
Reserve Plan was targeted for the six (6) months limited Administration and Operation budget plan.  This 
limited cost would cover the core operating cost, such as the office lease, accounting services, audit, legal 
cost, general liability insurance, and limited staffing.  Subsequently, in February 2008, the STA Board 
adopted the creation of the Insurance Reserve Fund (IRF) and directed staff to fund the IRF up to 
$200,000.  In June 2011, the IRF had fully met the targeted amount.  Concurrently, the Project 
Contingency Reserve Fund (PCRF), at the end of FY 2013-14 was at 100% of target ($939,797).  
Consequently, to continue to maintain STA’s adequate financial level necessary to provide for 
contingencies for core STA functions in case of unforeseen operating needs, the contribution to the 
Contingency Reserve is continued at a slightly reduced level for budget year FY 2014-15 for the amount 
of $100,000. 
 
The Solano County ($1,000,000) and the Solano County Water Agency (SCWA) ($100,000) have funded 
the North Connector Project.  With the completion of the project, this amount is being transferred to a 
reserve account, Project Contingency Reserve Fund (PCRF), to help finance future project 
implementation.  In FY 2014-15, the Jepson Parkway Project right of way activities and property 
acquisitions has a shortfall due to the federal funding reimbursement ratio at 81.86% and the relocation 
costs associated with the acquisition.  The project will need to be loaned the amount of $500,000 from the 
PCRF and will be paid back with the City of Vacaville’s future reimbursements to the project which is 
scheduled to begin in 2015-16.  This item will be presented as a separate Board action at a future meeting. 
 
The total FY 2014-15 revenue and expenditure is $35.25 million.  The FY 2014-15 Proposed Budget 
Revision is balanced for the continued delivery of STA’s priority projects. 
 
Budget highlights for FY 2015-16 is summarized as follow: 
 
FY 2015-16 Revenues 
STA’s core revenues such as the Members Contribution (Gas Tax) and the TDA funding are anticipated 
to continue at same funding level based on the current economic status.  STA has approved planning 
funds from MTC’s OBAG with an agreement ending FY 2015-16.   
 
The Safe Route to Schools (SR2S) Program is ongoing and funds are available through FY 2015-16. The 
CTSA/Mobility Management Program, the Countywide Travel Training/Ambassador Program, American 

157



Disability Act (ADA) in Person Eligibility Program, and the One Stop Transportation Call Center 
Program are ongoing programs with funding from the STAF – (Population Based/Solano and Regional 
Paratransit), the Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ), and Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) Grant. 
 
Project delivery and construction are on-going for the I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange Project, anticipated to 
be completed in December 2016, and the I-80 Express Lanes which are all primarily funded by RM 2.  
The North Connection Project and the I-80 East Bound Truck Scales Relocation Project are completed; 
consequently, annual cost for long term vegetation monitoring and the software maintenance with 
Intelligent Imaging System is added to the budget. The Jepson Parkway Project funded by the Federal 
Earmark and the County of Solano is moving to construction phase.   
 
The County Public Facility Fee (PFF) fund for the STA’s RTIF Program is added to the FY 2015-16 
budget for the first time for program administration with an estimated budget amount of $608,941.  
 
FY 2015-16 Expenditure 

1. Health Benefits premium rates historically increases annually, hence, the budget has been increased 
to reflect a projected 10% increase for FY 2015-16. 

2. Retirement benefits are at the same level from prior fiscal year as anticipated, in accordance with the 
new California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA). 

3. Contribution to the Contingency Reserve Account is at a same level of $100,000 and would meet the 
approved contingency reserve plan using the Member Contribution.  At the end of FY 2015-16, STA 
will have an anticipated total reserve fund of approximately $2,337,124, which covers the reserve 
amount of $1,037,124 for Contingency Reserve, the Insurance Reserve of $200,000, and the Project 
Contingency Reserve Fund of $1,100,000.  The Jepson Parkway Project contingency loan repayment 
is anticipated in FY 2015-16. 

4. The transit programs, such as the CTSA/Mobility Management Program, the ADA in Person 
Eligibility Program, the Countywide Travel Training/Ambassador Program, and the One Stop 
Transportation Call Center Program activities are ongoing.   

5. Projects such as the I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange Project and the Jepson Parkway Project in 
construction phases and the I-80 Express Lanes Project Preliminary Engineering are in their final 
phase 
 

The total FY 2015-16 revenue and expenditure is $15.36 million.  The proposed balanced budget has 
TDA and STAF funding, and the OBAG Grant for the continued delivery of STA’s priority projects. 
 
To ensure conformance with the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-87 (Cost 
Principles of State, Local, and Indian Tribal Government) and the STA’s Accounting Policies and 
Procedures, the two-year budget FY 2014-15 and FY 2015-16 is presented with revision to the approved 
budget for FY 2014-15 to reflect changes in the budget revenue and expenditures.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The STA’s overall FY 2014-15 budget is $35.25 million, a reduction of $5 million.  The reduction in the 
revenues and expenditures is based on a combination of the anticipated project construction activities and 
new transit programs.  The FY 2014-15 fiscal impact of the COLA policy at 2.1% for all STA employees 
effective July 1, 2014 is $41,683.  The funding for the North Connector from Solano County ($1,000,000) 
and the SCWA ($100,000) is transferred to the Project Contingency Reserve Fund for future project 
implementation.  The FY 2015-16 Budget is balanced at $15.36 million to reflect the carryover funds for 
the continuation of programs and projects. 

158



 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following: 

1. Adopt the STA’s FY 2014-15 Proposed Budget Revision as shown in Attachment A;  
2. Adopt the STA’s FY 2015-16 Proposed Budget as shown in Attachment B; 
3. The FY 2014-15 Cost of Living Adjustment of 2.1% effective July 1, 2014; 
4. The transfer of the North Connector funds in the amount of $1,100,000 to the Project Contingency 

Reserve Fund; and 
5. An interfund loan from Project Contingency Reserve Fund of $500,000 to the Jepson Parkway 

Project. 
 
Attachments (Provided to the STA Board Members under separate enclosure): 

A. STA FY 2014-15 Proposed Budget Revision dated July 9, 2014 
B. STA FY 2015-16 Proposed Budget dated July 9, 2014 
C. STA’s Reserve Account Balance for Contingency Reserve Fund and Insurance Reserve Fund 
D. FY 2014-15 Budget and Fiscal Reporting Calendar 

 
 

159



STA Fund Adopted              
FY 14-15

Proposed                 
FY 14-15 Operations & Administration Adopted              

FY 14-15
Proposed                 
FY 14-15

Members Contribution/Gas Tax (Reserve Accounts) 38,000                 100,000               Operations Management 1,557,073            1,618,990            
Members Contribution/Gas Tax 176,823               241,621               STA Board of Directors/Administration 45,000                 45,000                 

Transportation Dev. Act (TDA) Art. 4/8 397,585               397,585               Expenditure Plan 50,000                 75,000                 
TDA Art. 3/Other 28,763                 78,763                 Contributions to STA Reserve Account 38,000                 100,000               

State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) 1,614,344            2,481,207            Subtotal $1,690,073 $1,838,990

OBAG - SNCI/SR2S 489,357               616,306               SNCI/SR2S Management/Administration 458,965               477,769               
STIP Planning, Programming and Monitoring (PPM) 197,557               188,557               Employer Van Pool Outreach 16,200                 16,200                 

MTC Grant 1,599,130            1,623,442            SNCI General Marketing 53,500                 53,500                 
Federal Earmark 26,830                 -                           Commute Challenge 31,800                 31,800                 

Regional Measure (RM) 2 - North Connector - Design -                           3,786                   Bike to Work Campaign 20,000                 20,000                 
RM 2 -  I-80 Express Lanes 48,728                 42,484                 Bike Links 5,000                   15,000                 

RM 2 -  I-80 HOV Lanes/SOHIP 22,234                 3,505                   Emergency Ride Home (ERH) Program 5,000                   5,000                   
RM 2 - I-80 Interchange Project 58,881                 51,316                 Rideshare Services -  Napa 20,000                 20,000                 

RM 2 - I-80 East Bound (EB) Truck Scales Relocation -                           6,309                   Safe Route to School Program (SR2S) 460,796               654,686               
Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA) 221,247               276,992               Transit Management Administration 127,399               132,642               

TFCA - NCTPA 20,000                 20,000                 Solano Express Marketing 150,653               150,000               
Yolo/Solano Air Quality Management District (YSAQMD) 6,286 77,343 Lifeline Program 28,483                 17,000                 

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) 263,253               263,253               Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) 50,000 40,000
Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) - Transit 109,647               46,556                 Transit Corridor Study/SRTP 170,000               250,000               

Regional Rideshare Program (RRP) 240,000               240,000               Solano Senior & People with Disabilities Plan 
Implementation/Committee 66,391                 30,000                 

Abandoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) Program/DMV 10,000                 10,000                 
New Freedom Funds 73,760                 134,824               

JARC Funds 216,000               279,200               
FTA 5304 99,950                 

Regional Impact Fee Program 15,977                 -                           
Local Funds - Cities/County 185,600               429,168               Countywide Travel Training Program 196,517               390,316               

Sponsors 18,000                 18,000                 One Stop Transportation Call Center Program 226,472               166,339               
Subtotal $6,865,102 $8,428,708 Ridership Survey 50,000                 

Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA)                 310,202                 310,063 
Subtotal $310,202 $310,063 

Department of Motor Vehicle (DMV) 470,000               320,000               
Subtotal $470,000 $320,000 Project Management/Administration 78,452                 94,461                 

Federal Earmark 173,170 200,000 Regional Impact Fee (Feasibility Study/AB 1600) 10,000                 5,000                   
County of Solano 446,229 50,000 Solano Projects Online Tracker (SPOT) 57,000                 35,000                 

Contingency Funds 500,000 Public Private Partnership (P3) Feasibility Study 50,000                 139,081               
Subtotal $619,399 $750,000 Alternative Fuel Implementatoin 64,016                 

Suisun Amtrak Rehabilitation 200,000
Benicia Intermodal Project 450,000

Local Project Delivery (SR 12/Church) 212,618
Jepson Parkway Project 619,399               750,000               

Subtotal $28,000,000 $21,000,000 Jameson Canyon Project 100,000               

STIP/TCRP -                           100,000               North Connector-East  Project Closeout/Mitigation 200,000               
Subtotal $0 $100,000 I-80/HOV Lanes Project/SOHIP 100,000               7,009                   

PA/ED Design RM-2 100,000               7,009                   I-80 Express Lanes Project 3,107,017            3,094,399            
Subtotal $100,000 $7,009

Dixon B Street Undercrossing Project 260,281               260,281               

DMV Abandoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) Program 470,000               320,000               
Subtotal $0 $200,000 Subtotal $33,283,251 $27,721,095

RM 2 Funds                            -                 212,618 
Subtotal $0 $212,618 

Events 12,000                 11,000                 
RM 2 Funds 3,107,017            3,094,399            

Subtotal $3,107,017 $3,094,399 Model Development/Maintenance 38,430                 39,695                 

STIP Planning, Programming and Monitoring (PPM)                   16,000 Solano County PDA Program 1,590,230            1,588,430            

Subtotal $0 $16,000

Regional Impact Fee                 521,122                 550,000 Rail Facilities Plan 47,442                 47,442                 
Subtotal $521,122 $550,000 Water Transportation Plan -                           

Priority Conservation Area (PCA) 130,900               74,840                 
STIP 200,000               200,000               Bike/Ped Planning 60,000                 60,000                 
TDA 60,281                 60,281                 TFCA Programs 310,202               310,063               

Subtotal $260,281 $260,281 Subtotal $2,433,773 $2,394,075

TOTAL, ALL REVENUE $40,253,123 $35,249,078 TOTAL, ALL EXPENDITURES $40,253,123 $35,249,078

Regional Impact Fee Implementation program

Redwood Parkway Drive/Fairgrounds Improvement Project

RM 2 Funds 200,000               

Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) Follow Up

16,000                 

I-80 High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) Lanes Project/SOHIP

Jameson Canyon Project

REVENUES EXPENDITURES

Local Streets & Roads Annual Report

787,100               

CTSA/Mobility Management Plan/Program 234,412               266,000               

Redwood Parkway Drive/Fairgrounds Improvement Project

I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange Project

Jepson Parkway Project

Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Program

9,980                   

Project Development 

Transit and Rideshare Services/SNCI/SR2S

307,890               

698,541               

200,776               

TFCA Program Transit Consolidation Implementation Phase 2 302,438               

One Bay Area Grant (OBAG)/(STP)

ADA in Person Eligibility Program 222,000               

Subtotal $2,846,026 $3,294,918

North Connector East Project Closeout/Mitigation

21,000,000RM 2 Funds 28,000,000

10,612                 

 I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange Project

194,569               

 Strategic Planning

I-80 Express Lanes Project

119,605               

Regional Impact Fee Program 521,122               550,000               

50,000              143,000            

Dixon B Street Undercrossing Project

I-80 East Bound (EB) Truck Scales Relocation Project

I-80 East Bound (EB) Truck Scales Relocation Project

Planning Management/Administration

28,000,000          21,000,000          

212,618               

160

SFurtado
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A

SFurtado
Typewritten Text



Regional Transportation Impact Fee (RTIF) Working Group Project Selection

Working Group 
District Coordinating Agencies Project Sponsor

RTIF Amount 
Recommended Special Instructions

City of Fairfield 1. Remaining Segments of Jepson Parkway 1. TBD
City of Vacaville 2. Unincoporated segment of Peabody Road
Solano County

City of Suisun City 1. SR 12/Pennsylvania Ave Interchange 1. Church Road Environmental Documents City of Rio Vista 300,000$           
City of Fairfield 2. SR 12/Church Rd Intersection
City of Rio Vista
County of Solano 

City of Vallejo 1. SR 37/Redwood St/Fairgrounds Drive 1. SR 37/Redwood St/Fairgrounds Drive County of Solano 40,000$             

City of Benicia 2. I-680 Industrial Park Access Improvements 2. Columbus Parkway City of Benicia 60,000$             
Solano County 3. Columbus Parkway Improvements Near I-780

City of Fairfield 1. North Connector West 1. Green Valley Overcrossing City of Fairfield 1,305,970$        
Solano County 2. Green Valley Overcrossing

City of Dixon 1. SR113 Corridor/County Unincorporated Road 
Projects

1. Pitt School Rd/ Parkway Blvd Intersection Right of Way Phase City of Dixon 200,000$           

Solano County

City of Benica 1. Benicia Industrial Park Multi-modal Transit Center 1. Benicia Industrial Park Transit Center Construction City of Benicia 100,000$           

City of Dixon 2. Dixon Multimodal Transportation Center 2. Fairfield Transportation Center Design/Build Documents City of Fairfield 400,000$           

City of Fairfield 3. Fairfield Transportation Center
City of Suisun 4. Fairfield Vacaville Train Station
City of Vacaville 5. Suisun City Train Station Improvements
Soltrans 6. Vallejo Station or Curtola Park and Ride 
Solano County 7.  360 Project Area Transit Center

Solano County 1. Abernathy Rd 1 Cordelia Rd* County of Solano 498,171$           
2. Azevedo Rd 2 Lake Herman Rd*
3. Canright Rd 3 Mankas Corner Rd*
4. Cherry Glen Rd 4 Midway Road*
5. Cordelia Rd 5 Pleasants Valley Rd*
6. Fry Rd 6 Rockville Rd*
7. Foothill Rd 7 Suisun Valley Rd*
8 Lewis Rd 8 Vaca Valley Rd*
9 Lopes Rd

10 Lyon Rd
11 Mankas Corner Rd
12 McCloskey Rd
13 Midway Rd
14 Pedrick Rd
15 Pitt School Rd
16 Pleasants Valley Rd
17 Porter Road
18 Rockville Rd
19 Suisun Valley Rd
20 Vacavalley Rd

6

TBDRemaining Segments of Jepson Parkway The Working Group unanimously agreed to continue to collect RTIF for the next year and reconvene to evaluate the total 
revenue received and select a project based on available funding.  The Working Group also agreed to dedicate the RTIF 
revenue,  if needed, to the FF/VV Train Station in the short term to backfill funding for Vacaville's bus replacement 
(which is the primary funding source for the City’s impact fee loan for the Train Station). 

7 *County projects are not in priortiy order. 

1

2

3

4

5

Eligible Projects Selected Project in Priority Order

City of Benicia to receive $100,000 to assist in construction of the Transit Hub project.  The City of Fairfield would then 
receive $400,000 to complete design phase of the Fairfield Transportation Center as the next priority.  

The Working Group agreed to utilze the RTIF funds for the Right of Way acquistion phase of the project area.  

The RTIF will be dedicated to the construction of the Green Valley Overcrossing project as a local contribution.

$40,000 of the 1st year of funds to be applied toward the County/s current federal earmark  as a local match contribution 
to roadway improvements at Fairgrounds Drive.  City of Benicia will utilize 2nd year of funding for Columbus Parkway.

City of Rio Vista indicated that they have local impact fees of approximately $600,000 to assist in fully funding the EIR 
when combined with RTIF funds.  

161



This page intentionally left blank. 

162



Account 31119-23001

As of: 6/25/2014

Contingency Reserve:

FY Balance Interest Earned Total
% at 

Target
Target 

Amount

1999 - 2007 324,443 324,443
7/07 - 6/08 58,801 14,925 398,169 96% 413,318 YR 1
7/08 - 6/09 58,801 11,673 468,643 91% 515,161 YR 2
7/09 - 6/10 58,000 13,851 540,494 87% 622,736 YR 3
7/10 - 6/11 58,000 7,664 606,158 82% 735,364 YR 4
7/11 - 6/12 108,000 3,595 717,753 84% 852,424 YR 5
7/12 - 6/13 108,000 2,705 828,458 93% 895,045 YR 6
7/13 - 6/14 108,000 666 937,124 100% 939,797 YR 7

$882,045 $55,079 937,124

Insurance Reserve:

0.00
7/07 - 6/08 50,000 50,000 100% 50,000 YR 1
7/08 - 6/09 50,000 100,000 100% 100,000 YR 2
7/09 - 6/10 50,000 150,000 100% 150,000 YR 3
7/10 - 6/11 50,000 200,000 100% 200,000 YR 4

200,000

$1,082,045 $55,079 $1,137,124

Reserve Account Balances

Total Contingency 
Reserve

Established FY 2007-08

Total Insurance 
Reserve

   
Account

163

SFurtado
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C

SFurtado
Typewritten Text



STA Board Meeting Schedule:

FY 2014-15 Budget Revision and FY 2015-16 Proposed Budget Adoption

FY 2015-16 Provisionary Indirect Cost Rate Application

FY 2013-14 AVA Third Quarter Program Activity Report 

FY 2013-14 Fourth Quarter Budget Report

FY 2013-14 AVA Fourth Quarter Program Activity Report 

FY 2014-15 First Quarter Budget Report

Five Year Revenue & Expenditure Budget Revised Projections

FY 2013-14 Annual Audit

FY 2014-15 Mid-Year Budget Revision

STA Employee 2015 Benefit Summary Update

FY 2014-15 AVA First Quarter Program Activity Report 

MARCH                                     
2015 FY 2014-15 AVA Second Quarter Program Activity Report 

FY 2014-15 Third Quarter Budget Report

Local Transportation Development Act (TDA) and Members Contribution for FY 2015-16

May                                 
2015 FY 2014-15 Third Quarter Budget Report

JULY                                                 
2014

SEPTEMBER                                       
2014

FY 2014-15 Budget and Fiscal Reporting Calendar

FY 2014-15 Second Quarter Budget Report

FY 2014-15 Final Budget Revision

OCTOBER 2014

FEBRUARY                                         
2015

APRIL                                           
2015

JUNE                                              
2015

DECEMBER                                                        
2014

164

SFurtado
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT D

SFurtado
Typewritten Text



Agenda Item 10.B 
July 9, 2014 

 
 

 
 
 
DATE:  June 30, 2014 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Robert Guerrero, Project Manager 
RE:  Regional Transportation Impact Fee (RTIF) Implementation Projects 
 
 
Background: 
On December 3rd, The County Board of Supervisors unanimously approved the Public Facility 
Fee (PFF) Update with $1,500 per dwelling unit equivalent allocated toward the STA's Regional 
Transportation Impact Fee (RTIF).  The County began collecting the RTIF on February 3rd.  A 
total of 5% of the total RTIF revenue was decided by the STA Board to be dedicated towards 
transit projects under Package 6- Express Bus Transit Centers and Train Stations and 5% was 
dedicated to Unincorporated County Roads under Package 7.  The remaining balance of the 
RTIF will be returned to each RTIF District from which it was generated.  A map of the RTIF 
Districts is included as Attachment A to this report.  
 
Each RTIF District has a RTIF Working Group comprised of staff representing agencies located 
with the boundaries of the working group to coordinate in selecting projects within their 
category.   The Working Groups had their initial meeting in January 2014 to discuss early steps 
to begin implementing the STA’s RTIF program.  The Working Groups had separate follow up 
discussions to select priority projects within their RTIF District to implement within the first five 
years of the RTIF program in May 2014.  These projects were reviewed and refined at the June 
25, 2014 Technical Advisory Committee meeting. 
 
Discussion: 
RTIF Projects 
A summary of the RTIF selected projects by each Working Group district is included as 
Attachment B to this report. In summary, Working Group 1 committed to using the RTIF funds 
for the Jepson Parkway; however, the group elected to not select a specific project segment until 
after the first year of collecting RTIF funding so they can monitor the progress of the current two 
Jepson Parkway segments. Working Group 4 agreed to utilize the RTIF funds for an eligible 
unincorporated County roadway project located in the area rather than on SR 113 specifically.   
 
STA staff is recommending a formal approval of the RTIF projects as specified in Attachment B 
at this time.  The projects were previously reviewed at the May 28th TAC meeting and will be 
brought to the July 9th RTIF Policy Committee.  STA staff will continue to coordinate with the 
Working Groups to develop Strategic Implementation Plans (SIP) for each selected project.  The 
purpose of the SIP is to provide project delivery information related to the scope, funding plan 
and estimated project schedule.  The SIP will be further refined as RTIF funding becomes 
available for the approved project.   
 
The RTIF Policy Committee is scheduled to review the selected RTIF projects at their July 9th 
meeting.  STA staff is recommending the RTIF Policy Committee create a subcommittee to meet 
in early August to develop policies for RTIF implementation.  The RTIF policies will then be 
brought back for further discussion at the August TAC followed by an approval recommendation 
to the Board in September.  The STA TAC appointed two members to represent them at their 

165



June 25, 2014 meeting:  Joe Leach, City of Dixon and George Hicks, City of Fairfield.  
Attachment C includes a summary of preliminary discussions regarding the RTIF 
implementation which includes policy discussions.   
 
STA staff is proposing to enter into a funding agreement with project sponsors that have 
approved projects based on the upcoming policy discussion.  The funding agreements will be 
standardized to include language committing the RTIF funds towards the project.  The funding 
agreements provide direction for how the funds will be allocated once the RTIF funds are 
collected and available to be claimed or reimbursed. 
 
RTIF Revenue 
STA staff received the first quarterly revenue report from the County in June.  The cities of 
Fairfield and Vacaville were reported to have collected a total of $91,503 for the 3rd quarter 
ending March 31, 2014.  No other cities were included in the initial county report.  5% will be 
allocated to County unincorporated projects and 5% will be allocated to the Transit Centers.  
STA staff is working with the County to account for where specifically the funds were generated 
for the purposes of accurately accounting for the funds by each RTIF District.  Attachment D 
includes a matrix summarizing RTIF Revenue received for the 3rd Quarter of FY 2013-14. 
 
The STA TAC reviewed and approved STA staff's recommendation for this item at their meeting 
on June 25, 2014.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
No impact to the STA Budget at this time.   
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the Regional Transportation Impact Fee (RTIF) projects for FY 2014-15 as specified in 
Attachment B. 
 
Attachments: 

A. RTIF District Map 
B. RTIF Working Group Project Selection 
C. RTIF Implementation Summary 
D. RTIF Collection Summary 

 
 
 

166



Midway Rd Ped
rick

 Rd
Rob

ben
 Rd

Sike
s R

d

Fry Rd

Creed Rd

Lev
ee R

d

Lew
is R

d

Hay Rd

Sievers Rd

Shil
oh R

d

Plea
san

ts V
alle

y R
d

Hawkins Rd

Rockville Rd

Rio Vista Rd

Tremont Rd

Fox
 Rd

Montezuma Hills Rd

Flannery Rd

Cur
rey 

Rd

Weber Rd

Grizzly Island Rd

Birds L
andin

g Rd

Goodyear Rd

Brown Rd

Collinsville Rd

Vaughn Rd

Pea
bod

y R
d

Olse
n R

d

Tim
m R

d

N M
erid

ian 
Rd

Emigh Rd

Hastings RdMer
idia

n R
d

Sears Point Rd

Swan Rd

Rive
r Rd

Mac
e Bl

vd

Hall
ey R

d

Dixon Ave W

McGary R
d

Allendale Rd

Cha
dbo

urn
e R

d

Green Valley Rd

Sch
roed

er R
d

Texas St

Toland Ln

Binghampton Rd

Hackman Rd

Cur
rie R

d

Gates Canyon Rd

Anderson Rd

Pitt 
Sch

ool 
Rd

Denverton Rd

Holmes Ln

Blue Ridge Rd

Sca
lly L

n

Libe
r ty 

Isla
nd R

d

Pitt 
Sch

ool 
Rd

Libe
rty 

Isla
nd R

d
Main St

Campbell Rd

Siusun Valley Rd
Bun

ker 
Sta

tion
 Rd

Lew
is R

d

Ped
rick

 Rd

Abe
rnat

hy R
d Clay

ton 
Rd

Goo
se

Hav
en R

d
Fairfield

Vacaville

Benicia

Dixon

Rio Vista

Suisun City

Vallejo

Fairfield

91
2

5

8

7 6
6
6

4

3

Solano Regional Transportation Impact Fee Projects
FIGURE 1Path: N:\2009Projects\WC_Projects\WC09-2657_SolanoRegionalFee\Graphics\GIS\MXD\FeeDistricts.mxd

LEGEND                                            

Intersection Projects
Capital Improvement Project
Fee District
Traffic Analysis Zone (TAZ)

§̈¦80

§̈¦80

§̈¦80

§̈¦80

§̈¦680

§̈¦505 ·|}þ113

·|}þ113

·|}þ12

·|}þ12

·|}þ12

§̈¦780

Not to Scale

New

District Project # Agency Project Description
1 1 Fairfield/Vacaville/Solano County Jepson Parkway Remaining segments of Jepson Parkway

1 2 Fairfield/Solano County Peabody Road 
Widen to make Peabody a consistent 4-lane segment between 
Fairfield and Vacaville

2 3 Suisun City/Fairfield
SR 12 and Pennsylvania Avenue 
Interchange

Replace the existing SR 12/Pennsylvania at-grade intersection 
with a new grade-separated interchange.

2 4 Rio Vista/Solano County SR 12/Church Road Intersection Improve the SR 12 and Church Road intersection.  

3 5 Vallejo/Solano County
SR 37/Redwood 
Parkway/Fairgrounds Drive

Improve Fairgrounds Drive and Redwood Parkway, including 
the SR37/Fairgrounds Drive and I-80/Redwood Parkway 
interchanges. 

3 6 Benicia
Industrial Park Access 
Improvements

Reconfigure the Park/Bayshore and Park/Industrial split 
interchange, and the I-680/Lake Herman Road interchange, to 
add traffic signals, improve sight distance and better 
accommodate truck movements

3 7 Benicia Columbus Parkway Improvements
Add westbound approach at Rose Drive, and add traffic signal 
at Rose/Columbus Parkway.

4 New Fairfield I-80/Green Valley Overcrossing Construct new overcrossing of I-80 at Green Valley Road

4 8 Fairfield/Solano County North Connector West
Construct a 2-lane roadway connecting Business Center Drive 
to SR 12 Jameson Canyon.  

5 9 Dixon/Solano County SR 113 Improvements

ITS enhancements to improve safety through advanced curve 
warning signs, speed feedback and fog detection signs, and 
potential construction of a park-n-ride facility, along SR 113 
between SR 12 and Dixon.

167

RGuerrero
Typewritten Text
District 1

RGuerrero
Typewritten Text
District 2

RGuerrero
Typewritten Text
District 3

RGuerrero
Typewritten Text
District 4

RGuerrero
Typewritten Text
District 5

RGuerrero
Typewritten Text

RGuerrero
Typewritten Text

RGuerrero
Typewritten Text

RGuerrero
Typewritten Text

RGuerrero
Typewritten Text

RGuerrero
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



This page intentionally left blank. 

168



Regional Transportation Impact Fee (RTIF) Working Group Project Selection

Working Group 
District Coordinating Agencies Project Sponsor

RTIF Amount 
Recommended Special Instructions

City of Fairfield 1. Remaining Segments of Jepson Parkway 1. TBD
City of Vacaville 2. Unincoporated segment of Peabody Road
Solano County

City of Suisun City 1. SR 12/Pennsylvania Ave Interchange 1. Church Road Environmental Documents City of Rio Vista 300,000$           
City of Fairfield 2. SR 12/Church Rd Intersection
City of Rio Vista
County of Solano 

City of Vallejo 1. SR 37/Redwood St/Fairgrounds Drive 1. SR 37/Redwood St/Fairgrounds Drive County of Solano 40,000$             

City of Benicia 2. I-680 Industrial Park Access Improvements 2. Columbus Parkway City of Benicia 60,000$             
Solano County 3. Columbus Parkway Improvements Near I-780

City of Fairfield 1. North Connector West 1. Green Valley Overcrossing City of Fairfield 1,305,970$        
Solano County 2. Green Valley Overcrossing

City of Dixon 1. SR113 Corridor/County Unincorporated Road 
Projects

1. Pitt School Rd/ Parkway Blvd Intersection Right of Way Phase City of Dixon 200,000$           

Solano County

City of Benica 1. Benicia Industrial Park Multi-modal Transit Center 1. Benicia Industrial Park Transit Center Construction City of Benicia 100,000$           

City of Dixon 2. Dixon Multimodal Transportation Center 2. Fairfield Transportation Center Design/Build Documents City of Fairfield 400,000$           

City of Fairfield 3. Fairfield Transportation Center
City of Suisun 4. Fairfield Vacaville Train Station
City of Vacaville 5. Suisun City Train Station Improvements
Soltrans 6. Vallejo Station or Curtola Park and Ride 
Solano County 7.  360 Project Area Transit Center

Solano County 1. Abernathy Rd 1 Cordelia Rd* County of Solano 498,171$           
2. Azevedo Rd 2 Lake Herman Rd*
3. Canright Rd 3 Mankas Corner Rd*
4. Cherry Glen Rd 4 Midway Road*
5. Cordelia Rd 5 Pleasants Valley Rd*
6. Fry Rd 6 Rockville Rd*
7. Foothill Rd 7 Suisun Valley Rd*
8 Lewis Rd 8 Vaca Valley Rd*
9 Lopes Rd

10 Lyon Rd
11 Mankas Corner Rd
12 McCloskey Rd
13 Midway Rd
14 Pedrick Rd
15 Pitt School Rd
16 Pleasants Valley Rd
17 Porter Road
18 Rockville Rd
19 Suisun Valley Rd
20 Vacavalley Rd

6

TBDRemaining Segments of Jepson Parkway The Working Group unanimously agreed to continue to collect RTIF for the next year and reconvene to evaluate the total 
revenue received and select a project based on available funding.  The Working Group also agreed to dedicate the RTIF 
revenue,  if needed, to the FF/VV Train Station in the short term to backfill funding for Vacaville's bus replacement 
(which is the primary funding source for the City’s impact fee loan for the Train Station). 

7 *County projects are not in priortiy order. 

1

2

3

4

5

Eligible Projects Selected Project in Priority Order

City of Benicia to receive $100,000 to assist in construction of the Transit Hub project.  The City of Fairfield would then 
receive $400,000 to complete design phase of the Fairfield Transportation Center as the next priority.  

The Working Group agreed to utilze the RTIF funds for the Right of Way acquistion phase of the project area.  

The RTIF will be dedicated to the construction of the Green Valley Overcrossing project as a local contribution.

$40,000 of the 1st year of funds to be applied toward the County/s current federal earmark  as a local match contribution 
to roadway improvements at Fairgrounds Drive.  City of Benicia will utilize 2nd year of funding for Columbus Parkway.

City of Rio Vista indicated that they have local impact fees of approximately $600,000 to assist in fully funding the EIR 
when combined with RTIF funds.  

169

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



This page intentionally left blank. 

170



ATTACHMENT C 
 
Regional Transportation Impact Fee Implementation Summary 
(Based on Working Group Meetings Held on January 15th and 29th) 
 
 

I. RTIF Boundary  
• Suisun boundary to be corrected to show city limits included entirely in District 2 
• Vallejo border has anomalies related to the northeastern city limit.  Notation needed to 

indicate that the intention is to include any parcels within Vallejo City Limit in District 3.   
• City of Fairfield is considering boundary adjustment for District 2 to include the entire 

Fairfield Downtown PDA.  The current map splits the PDA boundary.  Fairfield to 
provide suggested boundary changes by January 29. 

 
II. RTIF Revenue Estimate 

• Engage Planning Directors in developing a refined revenue estimate based on local 
growth assumptions. 

• Planning Directors requested to provide updated near-term growth projections by January 
29th.   
 

III. Working Group Project Priorities 
• Need for commitment to ensure a project or a phase leading to project completion (i.e. 

Environmental Docs and/or PE) within the next 5 years. 
• Priority for projects that can utilize the RTIF revenue for attracting other sources of 

funding. 
• County list of projects eligible for their 5% Unincorporated County Road Improvement 

RTIF Category are also eligible for Working Groups to consider in addition to each 
group's unique project(s).     

• Projects priority should be adopted in local agency's Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 
• Selected projects must have an implementation plan which potentially includes: 

i. Interagency agreement 
ii. Detailed scope 

iii. Realistic schedule  
iv. Funding plan which includes funds in addition to the RTIF  

• Express Bus Transit Centers and Train Station Working Group agreed to involve the 
Solano Express Transit Consortium to provide input on potential projects at their March 
meeting.   

 
IV. Policies 

• STA TAC will weigh in on decision to redistribute RTIF funding if project is not being 
implemented by a certain yet-to-be determined timeframe. 

• Loaning options within and outside of Working Groups is a possible option for Working 
Groups with projects not ready for implementation.  STA staff to develop scenarios for 
loaning funding.   

• Selected projects must continue to show progress towards completion through quarterly 
reporting.   

• Project progress should be assessed annually by each Working Group for purposes of 
determining whether funds should be loaned or redistributed.   

171



• Working Groups should work toward consensus and elevate issues within jurisdictions 
(e.g. city managers/CAO) if consensus cannot be reached at the local staff level.  If 
consensus is still not reached then STA TAC will consider redistribution option 
recommendations.   

• Working Groups should be allowed opportunities to advance projects with local funds 
and be repaid with future RTIF revenue. 

• Express Bus Transit Centers and Train Station Working Group discussed options of 
keeping the 5% RTIF share within their Working Group rather than consider loaning 
funding out.  However, options for obtaining funds from other Working Groups can be 
considered.   

 
V. Revenue Tracking 

• Working Groups were requested to ensure that their permitting process will track and 
report APN and street address for each building permit issued.  This ensures that the fee 
revenues can be tracked by district.  This is especially important for the local agencies 
included in multiple districts (i.e. County and City of Fairfield).    

 

172



Regional Transportation Impact Fee
Collection Summary 6/25/2014

RTIF Collection* 
Total for County Road and 
Transit Working Group

5% County Unicorporated 
Roads

5% Express Bus Transit 
Center andRail Facilities

Revenue From Vacaville 
Applied to District 1

Revenue for Farifield to be 
Applied to Districts #1, 2, 
and 4

FY2013-14 Q3 89,777$                                    8,978$                                      4,489$                                      4,489$                                      8,029$                                      72,770$                                    

173

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT D



This page intentionally left blank. 

174



Agenda Item 11.A 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 
 

 
DATE:  June 30, 2014  
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Daryl Halls, Executive Director  
RE: STA Overall Work Plan (OWP) for Fiscal Years (FY) 2014-15 and  
 FY 2015-16 
 
 
Background: 
Each year, the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) Board identifies and updates its 
priority plans, projects and programs.  These tasks provide the foundation for the STA’s 
Overall Work Plan for the forthcoming two fiscal years.  In July 2002, the STA Board 
modified the adoption of its list of priority projects to coincide with the adoption of its 
two-year budget.  This marked the first time the STA had adopted a two-year Overall 
Work Plan.  The most recently adopted STA Overall Work Plan (OWP) for FY 2013-14 
and FY 2014-15 included a list of 39 priority projects, plans and programs. 
 
Over the past 14 years, the STA's OWP has evolved. The emphasis in the timeframe of 
2000 to 2005 was to complete the first Solano County Comprehensive Transportation 
Plan, initiate various corridor studies, and identify a handful of priority projects to fund 
and advance into construction.  From 2005 to the present, the STA has taken a more 
proactive role in advancing projects through a variety of project development activities 
and has expanded its transit coordination role with Solano's multiple transit operators.   
The past five years, STA has initiated and managed several mobility programs designed 
to improve mobility and access for seniors, people with disabilities, low income 
residents, and school age children traveling to and from school.   
 
The STA's project development activities include completing environmental documents, 
designing projects, and managing construction.  In 2009, the STA’s eight member 
agencies approved a modification to the STA’s Joint Powers Agreement that authorized 
the STA to perform all aspects of project development and delivery, including right of 
way functions for specified priority projects, such as the North Connector, the Jepson 
Parkway, State Route (SR) 12 Jameson Canyon,  the I-80 Eastbound Cordelia Truck 
Scales Relocation Project, Dixon's Pedestrian Underpass Project, and Benicia's 
Intermodal Project.   
 
In addition to planning and projects, STA also manages various programs including the 
Solano Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) Program, the Solano Safe Routes to Schools 
(SR2S) Program, Solano Abandon Vehicles Abatement (AVA) Program, SolanoExpress 
Transit Routes, SNCI’s Guaranteed Ride Home Program and its commuter call center, 
the Lifeline Program (targeted for lower income communities), Mobility Management 
Programs such as Countywide In-Person ADA Eligibility Program, and the 
Transportation Planning and Land Use Solutions (T-Plus) Program that has evolved into 
the assessment and planning of Priority Development Areas (PDAs) and Priority 
Conservation Areas (PCAs). 

175



The lack of an extension or reauthorization of the Federal Transportation Authorization 
Bill and an unclear State funding plan for transportation infrastructure continues to 
overshadow the funding of transportation projects and programs in California.  Five years 
ago, the Governor and the State Legislature opted to zero out the State Transit Assistance 
Fund (STAF) for one year.  In recent years, the State Transportation Improvement 
Program (STIP) has had little or no new funds to be programmed or allocated by the 
California Transportation Commission (CTC). The 2014 STIP for Solano County 
contained slightly over $9 million for new capacity projects when historically $20 to $25 
million would be available over this same timeframe. This year, the State of California 
combined several state grant programs into the Active Transportation Program, a state- 
wide competitive grant program that will fund bike, pedestrian, and Safe Routes to 
School programs and projects. 
 
Seven years ago, the federal government authorized American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act (ARRA) funds that provided an one time infusion of federal funds for 
shovel ready projects and transit operations and capital.  Solano County took advantage 
of these ARRA funds to deliver some critically needed and ready to go projects such as 
McGary Road, the State Park Road Overpass, and some street overlay projects.  In 
addition, the ARRA funds provided two years of critically needed transit operating and 
capital funds which helped offset the one year loss of STAF.  Subsequently, the U.S. 
Congress has been unable to develop consensus on how to fund a long range federal 
transportation authorization bill, and there has been an elimination of federal earmarks.  
All of these issues are having a direct impact on the STA’s ability to fund elements of the 
Overall Work Plan.   
 
Discussion:  
The draft OWP was presented to the Consortium and STA TAC in May as an information 
item.  It was also presented to the STA Board as an information item in June.  The STA 
Board provided one comment at the STA Board meeting from Benicia Mayor Elizabeth 
Patterson requesting for the Water Transit Study to be funded as part of the two year 
work plan.  This request was also supported by Rio Vista Mayor Norman Richardson.  
Attached for review and a recommendation to be forwarded for approval by the STA 
TAC and the STA Board is the STA's OWP for FY 2014-15 and FY 2015-16.   
 
PROJECT DELIVERY/NEAR TERM CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 
Based on the Budget for FY 2013-14 and FY 2014-15, the following OWP projects are 
currently fully funded and are currently under construction this year or slated to begin 
construction later this Fiscal Year, with construction to be concluded during the next two  
to three years. 
 

- State Route (SR) 12 Jameson Canyon Widening Project 
- West B Street Pedestrian Undercrossing in the City of Dixon 
- SR 12 East Safety Project – SR 113 to Rio Vista 
- I-80 Rehabilitation Project – Vacaville to Dixon 
- Jepson Parkway – Fairfield and Vacaville (Segments 1 and 2) 

 
Two of these highway related projects were delivered in partnership with Caltrans. 

176



In addition, STA is continuing to advance, in partnership with the Cities of Fairfield and 
Vacaville, the next two phases of the Jepson Parkways which are slated to begin 
construction in the next two to three years and have been funded through funding 
agreements developed between STA with the cities of Fairfield and Vacaville, and 
County of Solano.  Two years ago, the STA successfully fashioned an alternative funding 
plan with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), Caltrans and the 
California Transportation Commission (CTC) that involved the swapping of State 
Proposition 1B funds to fund the next phase of the I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange.  The 
first of seven planned phases of the Interchange is scheduled to begin construction in 
2014.   I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange – Initial Construction Package 
 
There are several projects that are currently in the project development phase with a 
phase currently funded so that work can continue, but the project is not fully funded and 
the STA is seeking additional future funds for construction.   

- I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange – Packages 2 and 3 (design underway) 
- Westbound Truck Scales 
- I-80 Express Lanes - Red Top Rd. to I-505 (environmental studies underway) 
- Fairgrounds 360 Access Project – I-80/Redwood Parkway – Fairgrounds Drive 

(draft environmental document completed – final approval pending MTC's Air 
Quality Conformity Analysis) 

 
Finally, there are several projects that are included in the OWP, but the initial or next 
phase of the project is not currently funded in the current two year budget. 

- I-80 Express Lanes Project – Carquinez Bridge to 37 
- Jepson Parkway – remaining segments 
- North Connector – West Segment 
- SR 12/Church Road Intersection Improvements 
 

TRANSIT CENTERS 
There are several priority transit centers that the STA has successfully pursued and 
obtained or programmed federal, state or regional funds for.  Several of these projects are 
fully funded and are moving into the project development stage.  The agency sponsor for 
each of these transit projects is one of the cities or has been transferred to SolTrans, the 
new transit joint powers authority as part of the transfer of assets to the new agency.  
Four of the projects were recipients of Regional Measure 2 funds for which the STA is 
the project sponsor, but the cities and/or SolTrans are delivering the projects. 
 
The construction of Vallejo Station – Phase A was successfully completed two years ago. 
 
Three additional projects have phases fully funded and expect to be under construction in 
2014 or 2015.    

- Fairfield/ Vacaville Rail Station – Phase 1 
- Transit Center at Curtola/Lemon Street – Phase 1 
- Benicia Industrial Transit Facility    

 
Several of these projects are initial phases of larger planned projects that are not fully 
funded.  The larger, long range transit centers are as follows: 

- Vacaville Intermodal Station – Phase 2  
- Vallejo Station – Phase B 
- Fairfield Transit Center 
- Dixon Rail Station 
- Transit Center at Curtola/Lemon Street – Phases 2 and 3 
- Fairfield/Vacaville Rail Station – Phase 2 

177



STA PLANNING ACTIVITIES 
The following planning studies were completed in FY 2013-14: 

- Regional Traffic Impact Fee (RTIF) Nexus Study 
- Public Private Partnership Feasibility Assessment of Ten Transit Centers 
- Alternative Fuels and Infrastructure Study 
- Active Transportation Element of Comprehensive Transportation Plan  
- Solano Coordinated Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP)  
- Senior and People with Disabilities Transportation Plan Update  
- Safe Routes to Schools Plan Update – Increasing Number of Schools from 10 to 

60 
 
The following planning studies are currently underway and funded in the currently 
proposed budget. 

- Comprehensive Transportation Plan Update  - Transit and Rideshare Element and 
Arterials, Highways and Freeways Element 

- Updated Transit Ridership Survey 
- Intercity Transit Operations Plan Update (SolanoExpress) 
- Update of Solano Rail Facilities, Service and Freight Plan 
- Five Priority Development Area studies 
- Priority Conservation Area (PCA) Plan 

 
The following plans are not currently funded in the STA budget, but will be discussed as 
part of STA Board's future budget discussions. 

- SR 29 Major Investment Study 
- Solano Water Passenger Service Study 
- Emergency Responders and Disaster Preparedness Study 

 
STA serves as the lead agency for the following programs and each of these programs are 
funded in the currently proposed budget, but in several instances the funding for the 
program is short term. 

- Safe Routes to School Program 
- Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Program 
- Congestion Management Program 
- Countywide Traffic Model and Geographic Information System 
- Transportation for Livable Communities (TLC) and T-Plus Programs 

(Transportation Sustainability Program) 
- Implementation of Countywide Bicycle Plan Priority Projects 
- Implementation of Countywide Pedestrian Plan Priority Projects 
- Clean Air Fund Program and Monitoring 
- STA Marketing/Public Information Program 
- Paratransit Coordinating Council 
- Intercity Transit Coordination 
- Lifeline Program Management 
- Solano Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) 
- Mobility Management Program 
- Solano Highway Improvement Partnership (SoHIP) 

 
At their meetings on June 24th and June 25th, the SolanoExpress Intercity Transit 
Consortium and STA Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) unanimously approved the 
recommendation. 
 

178



 
Recommendation: 
Approve the STA’s Overall Work Plan for FY 2014-15 and FY 2015-16. 
 
Attachment: 

A. STA’s Overall Work Plan for FY 2014-15 and FY 2015-16 

179



This page intentionally left blank. 

180



 
CATEGORY PROJ

ECT# 
PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 

2014-15 
FY 

2015-16 
EST. 

PROJECT 
COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead -  
Projects 

1. I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange  
A. Manage Construction of Initial Construction Package (ICP)  
B. Seek Funding and Build Logical Components 

 

Status:   
• EIR/EIS completed December 2012.   
• Identification of 7 construction packages has been completed.   
• Construction to begin on Initial Construction Package (ICP) in 2014.   
• Packages 2 and 3 are in design. 
• Securing Funding for Packages 2 and 3 on-going task. 

 

Milestones: 
EIR/EIS  -COMPLETED. 
LEDPA – COMPLETED 
ICP Construction Contract Awarded 

Estimated Completion Date (ECD): 
ICP Construction to Finish 2016 
 
 

STA $9M TCRP 
$50M RM2 

$50.7 M Tolls 
$24 M  TCIF 
$11 M STIP 

 
 

X X By Construction 
Package: 

 
#1)  $111 M 
#2)  $61 M 
#3)  $176 M 
#4 – 7)  $403 

 

Projects 
Janet Adams 

STA Lead –  
Projects 

2. I-80/ I-680 Express Lanes   
A. Convert Existing I-80 HOV Lanes to Express Lanes (Red Top Rd to 

Air Base Pkwy) – Segment 1 
B. I-80 Air Base Pkwy to I-505 – Segment 2 
C. I-80 Carquinez Bridge to SR 37 – Segment 3 
D. I-680 

 

Status: 
• Environmental Studies Underway) 
• Seeking construction funding for Segment 2 
• Seeking funding for environmental document – Segment 3 
• MTC lead for Integrator 

 

Milestones: 
PSR - COMPLETED 
Revised Forecast – Completed 
Segment 1 to be included in Regional Network 
 
ECD: 

STA 
PA/ED 
Design 

$16.4 M Bridge Tolls X X A. $30 M 
B.  $130M 
C. $8 M 
(PA/ED) 

 

Projects 
Janet Adams 

181



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
PA/ED – March 2015 (Segments 1 & 2) 
PS&E – Sept 2015 (Segments 1) 
PS&E – Funding Dependant (June 2016) 
CON – Segment 1 estimated 2017 to start. 
 

STA Lead 
Projects 

3. I-80 Cordelia Truck Scales  
1. EB Truck Scales with 
2. WB Truck Scales 

 

Status: 
Construction EB completed December 2013.  Work with Caltrans to close out 
contract.  Work with  consultant to complete work and initiate the maintenance 
period.  . 
 

• Advocate for CT to add WB Truck Scales to State Freight Plan 
• Form Working Group for WB Scales 
• Advocate for funding WB Scales 

 
Milestones: 
The new EB facility opened in July 2013. 
PA/ED  COMPLETED (EB) 
PS&E  COMPLETED (EB) 
R/W  COMPLETED (EB) 
CON  COMPLETED (EB) 
 

ECD:   
Begin Con   4/12 (EB) 
End Con  12/13 (EB) 

 

STA 
• PA/ED  
• Design 

 
Caltrans 
• R/W 
• Con 

$49.8 M Bridge Tolls 
$49.8 M TCIF 

X  $100.6 M Projects 
Janet Adams 

 

182



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA  
Monitoring 
Projects 

4. I-80 SHOPP Rehabilitation Projects 
A. Leisure Town OC to SR 113 South  

Construction  began spring 2013 and expected to be completed in 
2014. 
 

Caltrans SHOPP X   
 

$50 M 

Projects 
Caltrans 

STA Lead –  
Studies 

5. I-80 Corridor Management Freeway Performance Initiative (FPI) 
This includes; ITS Elements, Ramp Metering Policy and Outreach tools, HOV 
Definition, and Visual Features (landscaping and aesthetic features).   
 

Status: 
• Equipment installed on I-80 between Red Top Rd/Air Base Parkway 
• Construction underway along I-80 for FPI elements from State Route 

(SR) 37 to I-505.  Construction to be completed in 2014 
• Ramp Metering MOU adopted.   
• SoHip will continue to monitor implementation of Phase 1 
• STA working with SoHIP to implement Phase 2 of the I-80 Ramp 

Metering 
Initiated Soundwall Retrofit Policy Discussions.   
Milestones: 

• Phase 1 Implementation Plan  - COMPLETED 
• MOU – COMPLETED 
• Initiated Phase 1 Ramp Metering – COMPLETED 
• Phase 2 Implementation Plan – IN PROGRESS 
• Soundwall Retrofit Policy – IN PROGRESS 

 
ECD: 
Implementation Plan Phase 2 – summer 2014 
Phase 2 Ramp Metering Implementation early 2015 
Soundwall Retrofit Policy late 2014 
 

Caltrans 
STA 
MTC 

Regional SRTP and 
State SHOPP Funds 

X X N/A Projects 
Janet Adams/ 

Robert Guerrero 
Anthony Adams 

183



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead –  
Projects 

6. Redwood Parkway – Fairgrounds Drive Improvement Project 
Improve I-80/Redwood Rd IC, Fairgrounds Dr, SR 37/Fairgrounds Dr. IC 
 
Status: 
• STA, City and County began PA/ED 2010  
• Initial Scoping Meeting January 2011 

Milestones: 
• Technical Studies – COMPLETED 
• Draft environmental document   – COMPLETED 
• Project Waiting for Regional Air Quality Conformity Analysis 
• Funding needed for project design and construction 

 
ECD: 

Final ED –2014 (pending MTC Air Quality Conformity Analysis) 
 

STA 
PA/ED 

Federal Earmark X  $65M Projects 
Janet Adams 

STA Co-Lead 
Projects 

7. SR 12 West (Jameson Canyon) 
Build 4-lane hwy with concrete median barrier from SR 29 to I-80.  Project 
will be built with 2 construction packages. 
 

Status: 
• Project under construction – Napa Contract completed 
• Ribbon Cutting late summer 2014. 

 
 

ECD:   
Open to traffic summer 2014 
 

Caltrans 
STA 

NCTPA 

$7 M TCRP 
$74 M CMIA 
$35.5 M RTIP 

$12 M ITIP 
$2.5 M STP 

$6.4 M Fed Earmark  

X  $134 M Projects 
Janet Adams 

NCTPA 
Caltrans  

184



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead –  
Projects 

8. 
 

State Route (SR) 12 East 
SR 12 Corridor (I-80 to I-5).  

A.  STA Future SHOPP Priorities 
a. SR 12/SR 113 Intersection 
b. Somerset to Druin shoulders 

B. SR 12/Church Road PSR  
a. PSR completed, Summer 2010 
b. Develop funding plan for SR 12/Church (new) 
c. Initiate PA/ED for SR 12/ Church Rd. in partnership with the 

City. 
C. Monitor new construction between Azavedo to Somerset 
D. Follow-up to Industrial Park Access with County and Caltrans 
E. Development of Corridor Partnership MOU 
 

Status: 
• Monitor construction implementation, 
• Caltrans has initiated the preliminary engineering on the SR 12/113 

intersection improvements.  
• Supporting Rio Vista R/UDAT implementation on SR 12 
• MOU for implementation of SR 12 Corridor Study drafted 
• Working with County on follow-ups for Industrial Park 
• STA to coordinate  with Rio Vista on SR12 Church environmental 

document 
 
Milestones: 
• SR 12 Corridor Study – COMPLETED 
• SR 12 Economic Study - COMPLETED 
• SR 12/Church Road PSR – COMPLETED 
• Rio Vista Bridge Study – COMPLETED 
• SR 12 Walters Road to Currie Rd.– COMPLETED 
• Construction start on segment between Azavedo to Somerset 

 
EDC: 

Near Rio Vista start construction late 2014 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CT 
 
 

CT 
 

STA/Solano EDC 
 
 
 
 
 

Rio Vista 

 
 
 
 
 

SHOPP 
 
 

SHOPP 
 
 

 
 

Rio Vista – Fed 
Earmark 

 
 

X 

X  
 
 
 
 
 
 

$250,000 
$ 0.5 M – 

(Support Cost) 
 
 
 
 
 

$ 35 M – 
Capital Cost 

 
 
 
 

Projects 
Janet Adams 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Robert 
Macaulay 

185



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Co-Lead 
Plans 

9. SR 29 MIS 
Corridor Major Investment Studies 

A. A corridor Plan that provides for through traffic, Vallejo local traffic 
and SolTrans transit vehicles is needed for SR 29. 

 
Status: 
• The City of Vallejo and NCPTA both prepared documents regarding the 

future of SR 29.  A comprehensive Corridor plan, agreed to by all parties, 
has not been created. 

• STA will begin the Phase II Transit Corridor Study in FY 14-15. 
• The updated  Caltrans Highway Design Manual provides for roadway 

standards and exceptions that are more applicable to Vallejo than 
previous HDM versions.    

 
Milestones: 

• Incorporate signal prioritization for SolTrans in Phase II of the Transit 
Corridor Study 

 
EDC: 
Phase II Transit Corridor Study - FY 2014-15 
 

 
 

City of Vallejo 
SolTrans 

 
 

Solano County 
 

NCTPA 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 

X 

 Planning 
Robert Macaulay  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Programs:  Liz 
Niedziela   

186



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Co-Lead 
Programs 

10. Regional Measure 2 (RM 2) Implementation (Capital) 
A. Vallejo Station 

The Transfer Center - COMPLETED  
Phase A – COMPLETED 
Phase B – Post Office relocation advancing and fully funded. 

B. Solano Intermodal Facilities (Fairfield Transit Center, Vacaville 
Intermodal Station (Phase 1), Curtola Park & Ride and Benicia 
Intermodal)  
Status: 
1. Vacaville Transportation Ctr Phase 1 – COMPLETED  
2. Curtola - PA/ED – COMPLETED, Project Development Team 

(PDT) – ORGANIZED (Soltrans/Vallejo/STA).  Construction 
expected to begin in summer 2014. 

3. Benicia Bus Hub – Construction expected to begin 2015 
C. Rail Improvements 

1. Capitol Corridor Track Improvements 
COMPLETED 
2. Fairfield Vacaville Rail Station  
Rail Station Phase 1- Construction to begin construction 2015.   

D. Develop future Bridge Toll Project Priorities 
• Fairfield/Vacaville Intermodal Station, Phase 2 
• Fairfield Transportation Center (FTC) 
• Vallejo Station Parking Phase B 
• Express Lanes 
• I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STA 
Fairfield 
Vallejo 

Vacaville 
Benicia CCJPA 

MTC 

RM 2 
 
 

X 
 
 
 

 
X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
X 
 
 
 
 
 

X $28 M 
$20 M 
$25 M 

 

Projects 
Janet Adams 

Anthony Adams 

187



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead 
Projects 

11.  City of Dixon - West B Street Undercrossing  
Construct new pedestrian undercrossing to replace existing at grade RR 
crossing. 
 
Status: 
• Construction expected to be completed summer 2014.  Ribbon Cutting 

Late June 2014.Add’l $250k TDA Art 3 funds awarded to project 
Milestones:  
ED – COMPLETED 
PS&E – COMPLETED 
R/W – COMPLETED 
CON – IN PROGRESS 
 
ECD: 
Construction scheduled to be completed August 2014. 
 

 
STA 

 
$1 M City of Dixon 

$1.2 M STIP TE 
$975k TDA Swap 

$2.5 M OBAG 
 

 
 

X 

  
 
 
 
 

$6.775 M 
 
 

 
Projects 

Janet Adams 
 

STA Lead –  
Projects 

12. Jepson Parkway Project  
A. Vanden Rd.   
B. Leisure Town Rd. 
C. Walters Rd. Extension 

 

Status: 
• EIR/EIS completed June 2011   
• STA Approved MOU and Funding Agreements for first two segments 

(Cement Hill Rd/Vandon I/S (segment 1)to Leisure Town Rd./Elmira I/S 
(segment 2))   

• $2.4 M STIP funds allocated for PS&E 
• Design to be completed by December 2014  
• $3.8 M STIP funds allocated for R/W 
• Construction scheduled to start in FY 2015-16 ($38M STIP) 
• Concept Plan Update completed, expected to be adopted by STA Board 

in May/June 2014. 
• Updating Funding Agreements to represent actual construction 

implementation limits. 
•  
• STA underway with R/W acquisition (segments 1 & 2) 
• STA/FF/VV working on Jepson Project implementation in concert with 

the Train Station implementation.  

STA 
 

Partners: 
Vacaville 
Fairfield 
County  
Suisun City 

 

STIP 
2006 STIP Aug 

Fed Demo 
Local 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X X $185 M 
 

Projects 
Janet Adams 

188



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
Milestones: 
PA/ED- COMPLETED 
STA MOUs with Fairfield, Vacaville and County – COMPLETED 
Funding Agreements (Phase 1 & 2) – COMPLETED/UPDATE IN 
PROGRESS 
Concept Plan Update – COMPLETED 
Project Design and construction to be completed by Vacaville and Fairfield 
 
ECD: 
Concept Plan Update:  June 2014 
PS&E:  Dec. 201 
R/W:  Dec 2014 
Beg Con:  FY 2015-16 (Phases 1 and 2) 
  

STA Co-Lead 
Projects 

13. Travis Air Force Base Access Improvement Plan (South Gate) 
A. South Gate Access (priority) 

 

Status: 
• County lead coordinating with City of Suisun City, and Travis AFB for 

South Gate implementation 
• Environmental Studies for South Gate completed 
• Draft environmental document completed 
• County to complete the environmental document. 
• County to complete the R/W 
• County to initiate construction 

 

Milestones: 
• environmental document – COMPLETED 
• R/W – IN PROGRESS 

 

EDC: 
PA/ED:  8/13 
PS&E:  6/14 
Beg R/W:  8/13  
Beg Con:  2014 (request for E-76) 
 
 

STA Funding lead 
 

County 
Implementing lead 

$3.2M Federal 
Earmark (2005) 

 
South Gate Fully 

Funded 
 
 
 

X X South Gate  
$3M 

 
 

Projects 
Janet Adams/ Robert 

Guerrero  

189



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Monitoring 
– Programs 

14. Monitor Delivery of Local Projects/Allocation of Funds 
A. Monitor and manage local projects. 
B. Develop Pilot Solano Project Management Webtool 
C. Implement OBAG Projects 
D. Implement PCA Project 

 

Status: 
• Monitoring of local projects is an on-going activity; STA developed 

tracking system for these projects and holds PDWG monthly meetings 
with local sponsors.   

• Monitor OBAG project implementation 
• Monitor SR2S project  implementation 
• Monitor pilot PCA project 
• Participate in PDT’s for projects to insure successful delivery 

 

Milestones: 
• OBAG Projects approved by STA Board May 2013 

 
 

ECD:  
FY 2014-15 and  FY 2015-16 
 
 

STA STIP-PPM 
 

X  N/A Projects 
Anthony Adams 

 

190



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead 
Studies 

15. Private Public Partnerships (P3) 
Feasibility Study to consider options for P3 within the County for I-80 transit 
centers.  Study to consider a range of options for this financing/delivery of 
capital projects.  
 
Status: 
• Scope updated to add 4 transit facilities increasing total to include 10 

transit facilities 
• Draft study December 2013 
• Initiating Phase 2 work based on recommendations from Feasibility 

Study at Curtola Transit Facility in partnership with SolTrans. 
 

Milestones: 
• Feasibility Study – COMPLETED 
• Phase 2 Implementation Curtola – IN PROGRESS 

 

ECD: 
Phase 2 Curtola 2015 
 
 

STA $100,000 Phase 2 
$25,000 SolTrans 
 

X X  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$125,000 

Projects  
Robert Guerrero 

 

191



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead –  
Studies 

16. Regional Traffic Impact Fee (RTIF) Nexus Study 
• Working Group Coordination 
• Strategic Implementation Plan (SIP) 

 

Status: 
• Implementation Plan development underway.  
• Revenue Estimates Forecast completed and will be updated annually.   
• STA developing implementation practices for Steering Committee 

review/comment. 
 

Milestones: 
• Nexus Study/AB 1600 Study  - COMPLETED 
• Public Facility Fee Update  adopted by County – COMPLETED $1500 

DUE for RTIF included 
• Implementation Policies – IN PROGRESS 

Implementation Plan – IN PROGRESS 

 
ECD: 
First SIP July 2014  
Implementation Policies – July 2014 
 

STA PPM X X $ Projects 
 

Robert Guerrero 

192



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead –  
Planning 

17. Comprehensive Transportation Plan Update (CTP) 
Adopted chapters – Introduction, Land Use, Past Achievements, Active 
Transportation. 
Status: 
•  New chapters to be prepared include finance and implementation 

 
Arterials, Highways and Freeways 
Status: 
• Adopted Goals, State of the System report, Goal Gap Analysis, updated 

Routes of Regional Significance, project list   
• Developing annual ‘pothole report’ on status of roadway conditions, 

funding gap analysis 
 
Active Transportation 
Status: 
• Adopted 

 

Milestones: 
• Periodic updates of constituent plans: bike, pedestrian, sustainable 

communities, alternative fuels, safe routes 
 
Transit and Rideshare 
Milestones: 
• Developed Goals, State of the System report, Goal Gap Analysis, Transit 

Capital List updated 
• Administrative draft undergoing staff review; funding gap analysis  

 
ECD: 
Active Transportation - completed 
Transit and Rideshare - Draft Sept 2014, Final Oct 2014 
Arterials, Highways and Freeways - Draft July 2014, Final Sept 2014 
Final Document - Dec 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STA Combination of 
STIP/STP fund swap 
and TDA fund swap 

X 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 

X 
X 

  
 

Planning  
Robert Macaulay/ 

Sofia Recalde 
 
 
 

Robert Macaulay 
 
 
 

Anthony Adams 
 
 

Robert Macaulay, 
Sofia Recalde 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sofia Recalde 
 

193



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Co-Lead 18. Regional Transportation Plan Update/Sustainable Communities Strategy 

A. First Bay Area Sustainable Communities Strategy (formally Regional 
Transportation Plan) 

 
Status:   
• Plan Bay Area adopted July 2013. 

 

Milestones: 
•  
• Develop STA priority project list with CTP adoption in FY 14-15 
• Development of MTC public outreach plan for next SCS to start in 2014. 
• Next SCS due in 2017. 

 

ECD:   
Final SCS - adopted July 2013 
Solano Projects to be implemented – FY 2014-15, FY 2015-16 and FY 2016-
17 
 

MTC/STA STA Planning X 
 
 

 

X  Planning 
Robert Macaulay 

194



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead –  
Planning 

19. Develop and implement various Sustainable Communities plans  
A. Transportation for Sustainable Communities (TSC) Plan and Priority 

Development Area (PDA) Investment and Growth Strategy (I&GS) 
B. PDA Planning Grants to cities 
C. Develop Priority Development Areas (PCAs) 

assessment/implementation plan 
 
Status: 
• TSC Plan adopted; serves as basis for PDA I&GS.  PDA I&GS adopted 

April 2013; annual update submitted to MTC May 2014. 
• PDA Planning funding agreements signed with Benicia, Dixon, Fairfield, 

Rio Vista and Suisun City; PDA Planning consultant selection underway.  
• PCA Assessment Plan stakeholder committee formed; RFP released. 

 

Milestones: 
• PDA All PDA Planning Grants have STA/City funding agreements; 

consultant selection under way; Planning work to be completed first half 
of 2016 

• PCA Plan to be completed 2015 
 

ECD: 
FY 2015-16 

1. PDA Fairfield/Suisun - May 2016 
2. PDA Benicia/Dixon/Rio Vista - March 2016 
3. PCA - December 20154 

 

STA Regional TLC 
CMAQ 

STP Planning 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 

X 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$1.5 M 
 

$75,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning 
 
 
 

Robert Macaulay 
Sofia Recalde 

 
 

Andrew Hart 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Robert Macaulay 
Sofia Recalde 

Drew Hart 
 
 
 
 

STA Lead –  
Programs 

20. Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
 

Status: 
Bi-annual CMP update due in FY 2013.  next CMP due in 2015. 
 
Status: 
• CMP Update to be initiated in Fall 2014 

 

ECD: 
FY Sept 2015 

 
 

STA 
 

 
 

STP Planning 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  Planning 
Robert Macaulay 

 
 

195



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead –  
Programs 

21. Implementation of Countywide Bicycle Plan Priority Projects 
 
Implement the Countywide Bicycle Plan.  Periodically update as projects are 
completed, regional priorities change or funding changes. 
Status of Tier 1 Projects: 

A. Fairfield- Vanden Road (Jepson Parkway) Class II - included in 
Jepson Parkway design 

B. Pleasants Valley Rd Class II - not funded 
C. Suisun Valley Farm to Market - seeking ATP funding 
D. Suisun City Driftwood Drive - not funded 
E. Dixon West B Undercrossing - under construction 

A.  
 

Milestones: 
• Dixon West B Street Project fully funded with construction completion in 

summer 2014 
• Last phase of Vacaville Dixon Bike project funded by STA as part of 

OBAG, STA Article 3 and YSAQMD fund cycles; may receive ATP 
funds to free up OABG funds for other projects 

• Bike signs and way finding signs – Phase 1 signs acquired, being 
installed in Suisun City, Vallejo, Benicia.   

• Countywide Bicycle Plan project list -  updated 
 

ECD:  
Deliver Phase 1 Wayfinding Signs - FY 2014-15 
Complete and implement Phase 2 Wayfinding Signs Plan - FY 2015-16 
Complete priority projects - FY 14-16, FY 15-16 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County/ 
Fairfield/ 
Vacaville/ 

STA 
 

STA/Dixon 
County/STA 

TDA Article 3; Bay 
Area Ridge Trail 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OBAG 

 
 
 

X 
 
 

X 
X 
 

X 

 $85,000 Planning  
Drew Hart 

196



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead –  
Programs 

22. Countywide Pedestrian Plan and Implementation Plan 
• Implement the Countywide Pedestrian Plan.  Periodically update as 

projects are completed, regional priorities change or funding changes.  
Support PDA implementation.   
  

Status of Tier 1 Projects:  
A. Dixon West B Street Undercrossing  - under construction 
B. Dixon Safe Routes Jacobs Intermediate School 
C. Downtown Vallejo Streetscape - partly funded 
D. Suisun Valley Farm to Market - seeking ATP funding 
 

 
Milestones: 

• Dixon West B Street Project under construction 
• Countywide Pedestrian Plan project list - updated 

 

ECD:  
Pursue funding for  priority projects - FY 14-16, FY 15-16 
 

 
 

STA 
 
 
 
 

 
 

TDA-ART3 
OBAG 
RM 2  

Safe Routes to School 
 

 

 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 

Planning 
Sofia Recalde 

197



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead –  
Programs 

23. STA Marketing/Public Information Program 
A. STA Websites and Facebook page 
B. Events 
C. Newsletter 
D. Project Fact Sheets and Public Outreach 
E. Annual Awards Program 
F. Legislative Booklets and Lobby Trips 
G. Legislative Advocacy 
H. Marketing Programs: STA/SolanoExpress/SNCI 
I. Annual report 
J. SNCI website and Facebook page 
K. SR2S website and Facebook page 
L. SolanoExpress website 
M. Mobility Management programs 
N.  Implement Adobe Creative Suite platform for 

publications/presentations 
O. 2013 Annual Awards to be held in Vacaville  
P. 2014 Annual Awards to be held in Vallejo 

 

Status:  
• SR 12 Jameson Canyon Ribbon Cutting 
• New website in design for SolanoExpress and Mobility Management.   
• STA, SR2S, and SNCI Facebook pages being maintained. 
• In-house individual project sheets developed on as-need basis. 
• STA Annual awards hosted every November 
• Implement SolanoExpress Marketing Campaign 
• Implement SNCI Marketing Campaign 

 

Milestones: 
• Groundbreaking for Dixon West B Street Project 
• Ribbon Cutting for I-80 EB Truck Scales 
• Groundbreaking for I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange Project 
• 2013 Awards Program in Vacaville 
• Implemented Website editors monthly meetings 
• Interviewed/hired/supervised high school intern 
• Implemented SolanoExpress Marketing Campaign 

 

STA TFCA 
Gas Tax  
Sponsors 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
X 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 

  Planning 
Jayne Bauer 

 

198



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead –  
Programs 

24. Clean Air Fund Program and Monitoring 
A. BAAQMD/TFCA 
B. YSAQMD 

 

Board approved Funding Priorities for  SNCI, SR2S, Alternative Fuels, and 
Climate Action Initiatives 
FY 2013-14 funding:   

A. YSAQMD - 10 projects for $290,000 
B. BAAQMD: 

• Solano Commute Alternatives Outreach 
• Solano Community College Bus Voucher Program 
• Safe Routes to School High School Trip Reduction Pilot 
• Suisun City Park and Ride Charging Station 

 
 

Status: 
Allocated annually. 
 STA staff monitors implementation of TFCA funds until project completion. 
 
 

 
STA 

YSAQMD 

 
TFCA 

Clean Air Funds 

X   
$295,000 
Annually 
(TFCA) 

$442,000 FY 
14-15  

(YSAQMD 
Clean Air) 

 

Planning 
Drew Hart 

199



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Co-Lead 
Programs 

25. Solano Climate Action Program 
Develop county-wide greenhouse gas emission inventory, GHG emission 
reduction plans for energy sector, and GHG emission reduction and 
implementation plans for non energy sectors 
 
Status:   
• PG&E project completed 
• SGC projects released to cities for action in May 2014 
• Develop multi-agency implementation strategy after CAPs adopted 

 

Milestones: 
• Countywide Green House Gas Emission Inventory COMPLETED 
• GHG emission reduction for energy sector COMPLETED 
• GHG emission reduction and implemented plans for non-energy sectors - 

COMPLETED 
 
EDC: 
Adopted CAPs and Implementation Strategy – 
Summer 2014 
  . 
 

STA PG&E and SGC 
grants 

 
 
 
 
 
 

X 

  
 
 

PG&E Grant 
$285,000 

 
 

SGC Grant 
$275,000 

Planning 
Robert Macaulay 

200



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead –  
Programs 

26. Solano Countywide Safe Routes to Schools (SR2S) Program 
1. Education 
2. Enforcement 
3. Encouragement 
4. Engineering 
5. Evaluation 
6. Engagement 
7. Funding of Program 
8. Plan implementation 

 

Status: 
• Implement Plan Update findings Update and maintain SR2S website and 

Facebook pages 
• Coordinate SR2S Community Committees and SR2S Advisory Committee 
• Work with Public Health to conduct  Educational and Encouragement 

events like school assemblies, bike rodeos, walk and roll events 
• Expand SR2S Program to incorporate middle school and high school 

components. 
• Monitor the  implementation of selected engineering projects  from SR2S 

Plan update 
• Continue to expand/enhance Walking School Bus implementation at 56 

elementary schools 
• Continue to seek additional grant funds to fund elements of SR2S Program 
• Implement the 2nd Public Safety Enforcement Grant. 
• Develop a robust evaluation system of SR2S program 
• Introduce a Walking Wednesday initiative at selected schools 
• Develop a plan to sustain the WSB program following the pilot program 

 

Milestones: 
• Over $4.5 million in SR2S funding obtained to date 
• Secured OBAG funding for SR2S Program ($1.256M) and SR2S 

Engineering Projects ($1.2M) 
• Completed 2013 SR2S Plan Update 
• Coordinated and hosted successful Safe Routes to School Summit in May 

2013 
 

STA STP Planning  
ECMAQ 
CMAQ 

TFCA-PM 
TFCA-Regional 

YSAQMD 
BAAQMD 

TDA 
FHWA SRTS 

 
 

X X $1.5 M 
Encouragement, 
Education and 
Enforcement 

 
 
 

Transit/SNCI 
Judy Leaks 

Sarah Fitzgerald 

201



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
  • As of July 2014, 43 schools have held 70 events attended by 10,730 

children 
• Since January 2013, 33 Walking School Buses were started at 18 schools. 
• 26 schools with 6,665 students participated in International Walk to 

School Day in October 
 
EDC: 
• SR2S Engineering Projects completed by 2016 
 

      

STA Lead –  
Studies 

27. Countywide Transit Coordination 
STA works with MTC and transit operators to implement countywide and 

regional transit coordination strategies. 
 
Status: 

• Develop Countywide Coordination Mini –SRTP 
•  Implement Enhance Transit Coordination Strategies 
     -Standardized fare structure 
    -Transit capital planning 
    -Transit Service planning 
• I-80/I-680/I-780/SR12 Transit Corridor Study Update 
• Select service option for Solano Express from Transit Corridor Study 
• Implement Clipper 

 
Milestones : 
Transit Sustainability Study - Completed 
Countywide SRTPs - Completed 
Transit Coordination Plan - Completed 
 
ECD: 
Countywide Coordinated Mini- SRTPs  - July 2015 and 2016 
Enhance Transit Coordination Strategies-  Ongoing 
I-80/I-680/I-780/SR12 Transit Corridor Study Update – August 2014 
SolanoExpress Service Option -2014 
Update Solano Express Capital Plan - 2014 
 

STA/    Dixon/ 
Fairfield/   Rio 
Vista/ Solano 

County/ SolTrans/ 
Vacaville 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

MTC/STAF 
STAFSTAF 

STAF 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
X 
X 
X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
X 
X 

$550,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Transit 
Liz Niedziela 

202



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead –  
Studies 

28. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Lifeline Program 
Lifeline Transportation Program supports projects that address mobility and 
accessibility needs in low-income communities throughout the Solano County. 
 

Status:  
• Call for Projects 
• Project Selection 
• Monitor Projects 

 

Milestones:  
Monitoring Lifeline Projects 
Operating – SolTrans Route 1, 85 and span of service; FAST Route 30 
Saturday Service 
Capital – Vacaville curb cuts, FAST 10 local buses, SolTrans and Fairfield bus 
shelters  
 

ECD:  
Lifeline Funding Fourth Cycle- Estimated FY 2014-15 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STA/MTC 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAF 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$17 ,000 
 
 
 

Transit 
Liz Niedziela 

 29. FTA 5311 
In Solano County, STA programs the 5311funding. These funds are used for 
transit capital and operating purposes for services in non-urbanized areas. 
 
Status:  

• Call for Projects in Nov/Dec 
• Project Selection 
• Monitor Projects 

 
Milestones:  
5311 funds were programmed for FY 2013-14  and FY 2014-15 
Operating funds were programmed for Dixon, FAST Rt. 30, Rio Vista and  
SolTrans Rt. 85 
Capital funds were programmed for Rio Vista for the design and plans for the 
park and ride lot. 
 
ECD:  
5311 Funding for FY 2013-14 - Estimated June 2015 
5311 Funding for FY 2014-15 - Estimated June 2016 
 

STA/MTC FTA 5311 
 

X X $900,000 Transit 
Liz Niedziela 

203



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead –  
Programs 

30. Paratransit Coordination Council and Seniors and People with Disabilities 
Transportation Advisory Committee 
STA to staff and provide administrative support to advisories committees that 
advocate and address transportation needs for seniors, people with disabilities 
and low-income individual, build community awareness and support, and 
locate funding sources to meet those needs. 
 
Status:  
• Proposed development of CTSA 
• STA responding to request from Solano County to administer the Intercity 

Paratransit Program 
• Mobility Management Programs being developed 
• Review Mobility Guide for Seniors and People with Disabilities 
• Operators TDA Claims Review  
• Score FTA 5310  applications 
 
Milestones: 
• PCC Work plan approved in February 2014- Completed 
• FTA 5310 call for projects and PCC subcommittee scoring of projects -  

Completed 
• PCC TDA claim review for FY 2013-14  - Completed 
• Recommended projects for OBAG funding - Completed 

• PCC Brochure 2013- Completed 
• Updated Mobility Brochure for Seniors and People with Disabilities  - 

February 2014- Completed 
ECD: 
PCC Work plans - 2015 and 2016 
FTA 5310 call for projects - 2015 and 2016 
TDA Claim Review – FY 2014-15 and 2015-16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STA STAF X 
 
 
 
 
 

 $50,000 
$30,000 

Transit 
Liz Niedziela 

204



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead –  
Programs 

31. SolanoExpress/Intercity Coordination 
Coordinate to implement recommended strategies as identified in the 
Countywide studies and agreements. 
 

A. Manage Intercity Transit Consortium 
B. Monitor Route 20, 30, 40, 78, 80, 85, 90 
C. Funding Agreement Update  
D. RM2 Transit Operating Fund Coordination 
E. Solano Express Intercity Transit Marketing 
F. Intercity Ridership Study Update 
G. TDA Matrix - Reconciliation and Cost Sharing 
H. Development of multi-year funding plan 
I. Development of Intercity Bus Replacement Plan 
J. Marketing implementation of Clipper 

 

Status: 
• Solano Express Intercity Transit Marketing in process 
• Intercity Transit Funding Group Developmemnt 
• TDA Matrix - Reconciliation and Cost Sharing to be approved June 2014-

15 and 2015-16 
 

Milestones: 
• Solano Express Capital Bus Replacement Plan Developed - Completed 
•  
• Intercity Transit Funding agreement updated  

FY 2013-14 - Completed 
 
EDC: 
2014 Intercity Ridership Survey- July 2014 
Development of Transit Capital Plan July 2015 
Update Intercity Bus Replacement Plan – Sept 2014 
Implement Clipper – November 2014 
 

STA 
 

TDA 
 

X   Transit 
Liz Niedziela 

205



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead –  
Programs 

32. Solano County Mobility Management  
A.  
B. Implement Mobility Management Programs 
C. Monitor Programs 
D. Considering CTSA Designation 

 

Status: 
•    
• Implementation of Ambassador Program with coordination with Transit 

operators on travel training  
• Partner with non-profits for one-on-one travel training (Independent 

Living Resource Center and Connections for Life) 
 
Milestones: 
• Mobility Management Plan adopted -  Completed 
• Countywide In Person ADA Eligibility Program Initiated (July 2013) - 

Completed 
 
ECD: 
Evaluate In Person ADA Eligibility Program Option Year One– Dec 2014 
Develop Website – July 2014 
Travel Training Programs developed – September 2014 
Implement Call Center  - September 2014 
Disseminate information on Senior Safety Driver Programs – September 2014 
Decision CTSA Designation  June 2014 
 

 

STA/ 
County/ 

Transit Operators 

JARC/STAF/ 
OBAG/NEW 
FREEDOM 

 
 

X X $800,000 
 
 
 
 

Transit/ 
Tiffany Gephart 

206



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead –  
Programs 

33. Solano Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) Program  
A. Customer Service Program-Call Center, Display Racks, 

website/facebook 
B. Vanpool Program 
C. Employer Outreach/Support Program 
D. Employer Commute Challenge Promotion 
E. Incentives Program 
F. Emergency Ride Home (ERH) Program 
G. Campaigns/Events – Bike to Work Promo 
H. Coordination with Napa County 
I. College Coordination 

 

Status:  
• Continue to deliver overall rideshare services to Solano and Napa 

employers and general public 
• Start 28 new vanpools and provide support to all vans with 

origin/destinations in Solano and Napa counties. 
•  Direct the Napa and Solano Employer Commute Challenges 
• Assist employers in Solano and Napa counties with 50+ employees  

comply with requirements of  the Bay Area Commuter Benefits Program.  
Encourage them to select Option 4 as a way to comply, with a goal to 
expand and sustain participation in SNCI’s Employer Program. 
Implement the recommendations per the  Marketing Evaluation and 
Assessment  to increase public awareness of program 

•  Incorporate Mobility Management calls (from seniors, people with 
disabilities, and low-income) into the SNCI Call Center (transit and trip 
planning) to become the Solano Mobility Call Center. 

• Design and implement transportation information center at the Suisun 
City train station in partnership with the City of Suisun City. 

• Develop and implement a feedback and evaluation system to 
assess/analyze promotions, events, etc. 

• Implement a Transit Incentive pilot program that coincides with the 
launch of Clipper in Solano County 

• Coordinate efforts with Solano Community College with a goal to 
encourage an overall commute alternative plan at the school 
 
 
 

STA MTC/RRP 
TFCA 

ECMAQ 
 

 
X 
 

X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 

 
X 
 

X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 

 
$600,000 

Transit/SNCI 
Judy Leaks 

 
Debbie McQuilkin 

Paulette Cooper 
 

Sorel Klein 
 
 
 
 

207



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
Milestones:  
• Implemented 2014 Bike to Work campaign. There were 17 Energizer in 

Solano County and  xx 9 stations in Napa that nearly 800 cyclists visited.  
• Completed the seventh  Solano Commute Challenge with 40 employers 

and 747 employees participating; and the second Napa Commute 
Challenge with 24 employees and 171 employee participants. 

• 27 new vans were started to/from Solano/Napa counties through April 
2014 and SNCI supported 193 vanpools  

• Solano Community College has implemented a pilot program to provide 
significantly reduced-fare passes to students who use transit to get to the 
school. 

STA 
Monitoring 
Projects 

34. Capitol Corridor Rail Stations/Service 
 
Status: 
Individual Station Status: 

A. Fairfield/Vacaville Train Station:  
First phase Fairfield/Vacaville station expected to begin construction 
2015. Staff working with Fairfield on completing funding plan for 
Phase 1.  Phase 2 funding plan to be developed this year.  

B. Dixon: station building and first phase parking lot completed; Dixon, 
CCJPB and UPRR working to resolve rail/street issues.  funding plan 
for downtown crossing improvements 

C. Update Solano Passenger Rail Station Plan; consultant selected and 
work initiated. 

D. Monitor Vallejo’s Rail Service Plan for Mare Island  
E. Suisun/Fairfield Train Station Upgrade 

 
ECD: 
Updated Solano Passenger Rail Station Plan in CY 2014.  Fairfield/Vacaville 
Station construction scheduled to begin in 2015.  Suisun/Fairfield Train Station 
Upgrade to begin FY 2015-16 
 

 
 
 
 

City of Fairfield 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Dixon 
 
 

STA 
 

City of Vallejo 
 

City of Suisun City 
 
 

STA/ NCTPA 

RM2 
ADPE-STIP 

ITIP 
Local  
RTIP 

ECMAQ 
YSAQMD Clean Air 

Funds 
 
 
 
 
 

STAF, PPM 
 

STP Planning, Vaca 
TDA, CCJPA 

CMAQ, TDA Article 
3, STAF 

 
MTC Rail  Program 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
X 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 

X 

  
 
 
 

$42 M FF/VV 
Station 

 (Preliminary 
estimates 

for required 
track access and 

platform 
improvements. 

 
$125,000 

 
 

$66,050 
 
 

$600,000 
 

Planning 
Robert Macaulay 

 
 
 
 

Janet Adams 
 
 
 
 
 

Sofia Recalde 
 
 
 

208



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA 
Monitoring 
Projects 

35. WETA Ferry Support and Operational Funds 
A. Vallejo Station 
B. Maintenance Facility Phase I & II 
C. Ferry Service 

Status:  
• Monitor project schedule and phasing plan for Vallejo Station.  
• Assist Vallejo in effort to relocate post office to facilitate Phase 2 
• Phase I of the Maintenance Facility are funded.     
• .   
• Support and market Vallejo ferry service  
• –Potential development of advisory committee 
• Relocation of Post Office 

 
Milestone 
Reappointment of Anthony Intintoli – 2014 
Main ground breadking on Ferry Maintenance Facility – May 2014 
 
 

Vallejo RTIP 
Fed Demo 
Fed Boat 

TCRP 
Fed 

RM2 
RTIP 

 
Funding Plan TBD 

X  $65M 
$10.8M 
$0.5M 

Projects 
Janet Adams 

 
Transit 

Liz Niedziela 

STA Lead –  
Programs 

36. Countywide Traffic Model and Geographic Information System 
A. Develop 2040 network, land uses and projections consistent with Plan 

Bay Area 
B. Maintenance of Model,  
C. Approve Model User Agreements as submitted 
D. Periodically convene STA Model TAC 

 

Milestones: 
 Convene Model TAC 
Adopt new traffic model. 
 
Status:  
Cambridge Systematics under contract and working to prepare new Activity 
based model.. 
 

 
ECD:  Model update for Plan Bay Area consistency   FY 2014-15.   
 

 
 

STA, NCTPA 
STA 

 
 
 

STA 
 
 

 
 

Funded by  
OBAG 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

X 
 
 

X 
 
 

  
 
 

$150,000 
$24,000 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning 
 

Sofia Recalde 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

209



CATEGORY PROJ
ECT# 

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS LEAD AGENCY FUND SOURCE FY 
2014-15 

FY 
2015-16 

EST. 
PROJECT 

COST 

DEPT. LEAD 
STAFF 

         
STA Lead –  
Programs 

37. Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Program 
 
Status: 
Ongoing – 1,369 vehicles abated in the first 6 months of FY 2012-13. 
 

STA DMV X  FY 2012-13 
$365,267 

countywide 
distribution 

Projects/ 
Finance 

Susan Furtado 

STA Lead – 
Planning 

38. New or Updated Countywide Plans 
Water Transportation Plan – new 
Airport surface access plan – new 
 

STA OBAG 
STAF 

  
X 
 

X 

 
 

Planning/ 
Sofia Recalde Robert 

Macaulay 
Drew Hart 

STA Lead - 
Planning 

39. Vine Trail Alignment Study 
 
Status: 
• Consultant selected; study underway 
•   

 
Milestones: 
• Hold public meetings; first meeting held in May 2014 
• Adopt the Vine Trail Alignment Study 

 
ECD: 
 December 2014 

STA, City of 
Vallejo 

ABAG Bay Trail 
Vine Trail 
Partnership 

 
 
 
 

X 

 $100,000 Planning: 
Sofia Recalde 

 

210



Agenda Item 11.B 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 

 
 
 
DATE:  June 27, 2014 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Anthony Adams, Assistant Project Manager 
RE:  Solano County Annual Pothole Report 
 
 
Background: 
On June 27, 2011, STA staff presented detailed information regarding each Solano County local 
agency’s street rehabilitation investments at a STA Board workshop.  After reviewing the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC)’s recent publication “The Pothole Report: Can 
the Bay Area Have Better Roads?”, STA staff recommended additional research and annual 
reports that focus specifically on Solano County’s roadway conditions. 
 
On September 6, 2011, the STA Board directed STA staff to develop a Local Streets and Roads 
(LS&R) Solano County Annual Report in close collaboration with public works staff.  This 
scope of work includes: 
 

1. Street condition maps; 
2. Summary handouts of pavement issues; and 
3. A countywide report on investment histories, future shortfalls, and funding outlooks for 

pavement projects. 
 
While STA originally intended to complete the report deliverables by July 2012, this depended 
on the readiness of local agency Streetsaver users to use the budget scenario functions of 
Streetsaver.  Between summer 2012 and March 2013, STA staff coordinated closely with MTC 
Streetsaver staff and local agency Streetsaver users to overcome this barrier by giving STA staff 
access to budget scenario development through a Streetsaver work order.  Staff turnover at STA, 
which occurred in early 2014, also contributed to the protracted timetable for the completion of 
the report.  The 2014 Solano County Annual Pothole Report is now ready for public review. 
 
The Solano County Annual Pothole Report was presented as an informational item to the TAC 
during their April 30th meeting.  During that meeting, TAC members were asked to read the 
report in its entirety and provide comments prior to it coming back as an action item.  One 
comment was provided by Fairfield to update their city’s gas tax revenue information.  A 
presentation on the Solano County Annual Pothole Report was given to TAC at their June 25th 
meeting.  During this meeting, additional comments were made by TAC members to include 
information regarding local funding sources and countywide sales tax revenue estimates.  The 
requested additional information will be included as an addendum to the report.   STA TAC 
recommended the Solano County Pothole Report be forwarded onto the STA Board to release it 
for its 30 day public comment period.   
 

211



Discussion: 
Solano County Annual Pothole Report 
STA staff has reviewed and updated information in the 2014 Solano County Annual Pothole 
Report to include a summary and conclusion chapter.  Comments were received from TAC 
members and incorporated into the final draft report.  With approval from the TAC and STA 
Board, the Annual Solano Pothole Report will be open for a 30-day public comment period.  Key 
messages that the STA and the Project Delivery Work Group (PDWG) members wanted to 
convey with this report include: 
 

1. Funding shortfalls 
2. Projected PCI by budget scenario with maps 
3. Non-pavement investments 
4. Cost savings from preventative maintenance investments (compared to no maintenance) 
5. Clear definitions of pavement damage with photos and their corresponding repair costs; 

and 
6. A discussion of future revenues and the role of federal and state funds. 

 
Production and distribution of a “locally focused” Pothole Report can be used as a tool to inform 
the public and decision makers about the current condition of their streets and long-term 
infrastructure maintenance costs.  Going forward, future Solano Pothole Reports may be able to 
explore potential revenue options to address roadway maintenance funding shortfalls that are 
shown in the current report.   
 
In summary, as of 2013, Solano County and its 7 cities are cumulatively investing $18M 
annually in maintaining local streets and roads.   In order to achieve an average countywide PCI 
goal of 65, an additional $18M annually is needed over the next 15 years.  This amount is twice 
as much as we are now spending just to maintain local streets and roads in "fair condition."  
Since the costs of roadway rehabilitation increase substantially when PCI drops below 60 (roads 
categorized as "at-risk"), having a countywide goal of 65 would poise our roads on the edge of a 
maintenance cliff.  To reach the higher PCI goal of 75, as stated in the Solano Comprehensive 
Transportation Plan, $47M additional funds are needed annually over the next 15 years to reach a 
'state of good repair' - two and a half times more than our current investment.   
 
Pavement Condition Maps and Summary Handouts 
STA staff has included, in the appendix of the Pothole Report, individual city summaries 
including information on past roadway investment, current Pavement Condition Index (PCI) 
conditions, future revenue needs, and projected PCI maps based on current budgets.  The project 
PCI maps for each jurisdiction (featuring projections for 2014, 2018, 2023, and 2028) have been 
produced and are now part of the individual city summaries located in the appendix. 
 
Once the Solano Annual Pothole Report is approved, the STA intends to create a single page 
handout of the Countywide Annual report that will be tailored for public review.  The intended 
purpose of this handout is to be an educational publication, informing the public about current 
conditions and future outlook, while delivering the overall message of the importance of 
investing in local streets and roads.  This handout will be completed once the final version of the 
report is completed. 
 

212



Recommendation: 
Authorize the release the Solano County Annual Pothole Report for a 30-day public comment 
period as specified in Attachment A. 
 
Attachment:   

A. The Solano County Annual Pothole Report (2014) (This attachment has been provided to 
the STA Board members under separate enclosure.)  For immediate review and/or 
printing, please visit STA’s website:  Solano County Annual Pothole Report (2014) 

213

http://www.sta.ca.gov/docManager/1000004863/TAC%20Members%20Only_07.Ba_DRAFT%20Solano%20Pothole%20Report%20Finalv2.pdf


This page intentionally left blank. 

214



Agenda Item 12.A 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 
 

DATE:  June 27, 2014 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Jayne Bauer, Marketing and Legislative Program Manager 
RE:  Legislative Update 
 
 
Background: 
Each year, STA staff monitors state and federal legislation that pertains to transportation issues.  On 
February 12, 2014, the STA Board approved its 2014 Legislative Priorities and Platform to provide 
policy guidance on transportation legislation and the STA’s legislative activities during 2014. 
 
Monthly legislative updates are provided by STA’s State and Federal lobbyists for your information 
(Attachments A and B).  A Legislative Bill Matrix listing state bills of interest is available at 
http://tiny.cc/staleg. 
 
Discussion: 
On June 15, the California Legislature approved the 2014-15 Budget Bill (SB 852) and related 
trailer bills, which authorized $872 million in one-time/budget year expenditures for the Cap and 
Trade program for various transit, sustainable communities, and low-carbon transportation 
programs that reduce greenhouse gas emissions.  Additionally, the Legislature approved SB 862, 
the Cap and Trade trailer bill, which establishes long-term funding programs from the Cap and 
Trade program.   
 
Attachment C is an email message from Josh Shaw, Executive Director of the California Transit 
Association, to the Members that covers a number of the lingering concerns from various members 
of the CTA regarding the implementation of the Cap and Trade Program. It includes an overview 
of the approved Cap and Trade Revenue Package as well as analysis of new revenue streams.   
 
This Cap and Trade plan is an improvement over the version originally proposed by the Governor 
in January.  It is particularly a step in the right direction for transit.  Regional agencies, led by the 
four largest MPOs and CalCOG, have advocated for Sustainable Communities funds to be 
allocated to the regions rather than the Strategic Growth Council to provide support for local 
governments and transit to implement SB 375 requirements now included in recently adopted 
Regional Transportation Plans/Sustainable Community Strategy.  Additional funding was 
included, but will still be allocated through the Strategic Growth Council.   
 
Intercity Rail Service, such as the Capital Corridor, is eligible to compete for funding, but will not 
receive a specific allocation as previously requested.  In general, this plan sets up a number of 
statewide competitive grant categories with various state agencies. 
 
Attachment D is a summary of the transit operator formula portion along with an estimate of how 
much would be available competitively.  We are waiting for further written analysis of the 
proposal from MTC. 
 
Attachment E is a Cap and Trade Policy Brief by the California Association of Councils of 
Governments which gives highlights of the program including Sustainable Communities Scope 

215

http://tiny.cc/staleg


and Eligibility, FY 2014-15 Budget Allocations, Administrative Processes that need to be shaped, 
and illustrative revenue estimates.  Staff will continue to analyze the Cap and Trade process and 
will provide future updates. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
Informational. 
 
Attachments: 

A. State Legislative Update  
B. Federal Legislative Update 
C. Cap and Trade Funding Opportunities – Analysis of New Revenue Streams – CTA 
D. Transit Operator Formula - Cap and Trade – MTC 
E. CALCOG Cap and Trade Policy Brief June 23, 2014 

216



 

 

 

July 2, 2014 
 
TO: Board of Directors, Solano Transportation Authority 
 
FM: Joshua W. Shaw, Partner 

Matt Robinson, Legislative Advocate  
Shaw / Yoder / Antwih, Inc.     

 
RE: STATE LEGISLATIVE UPDATE – July 2014 

 
 
Legislative Update 
June 27 marked the last day for Senate and Assembly policy committees to meet and report-out bills to 
fiscal committees or the floor in each house. Fiscal committees in both houses may meet until August 
15, which marks the beginning of the final two week push before the Legislature adjourns for the year 
on August 31. In the middle of all of this, the Legislature will break for Summer Recess from July 3 until 
August 4. On the next page, we have provided an update on legislation of importance to the Board (see 
Other Bills of Interest on Page 3). 
 
SB 1368 (Wolk), co-sponsored by the Board, with SolTrans, would clarify the authority of Caltrans and 
the California Transportation Commission to transfer park-and-ride properties to joint powers 
authorities providing transportation service and to transit districts. Specifically, this bill would allow 
SolTrans to take possession of the Curtola Park-and-Ride Facility in the City of Vallejo. This bill passed 
the Assembly Transportation Committee on consent by a vote of 13-0 on June 23. It now moves to the 
Assembly Appropriations Committee.  
 
2014-15 State Budget 
On June 20, Governor Brown signed the 2014-15 Budget Act and accompanying budget trailer bills. The 
$156 billion spending plan includes $1.7 billion in additional transportation funding, including:  

 $337 million in early loan repayments; 

 $963 million in Proposition 1B Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement, and Service 
Enhancement Account (PTMISEA) bond funding; 

 $300 million from Cap and Trade for transit, intercity rail, and high-speed rail; and, 

 $130 million from Cap and Trade for sustainable communities strategies implementation and 
affordable housing. 

 
The $337 million in early loan repayments noted above was originally borrowed from the Highway Users 
Tax Account (HUTA) and was not scheduled for repayment until 2021. Of the total amount, $100 million 
will be distributed to cities and counties through the “base” gas tax formula and $237 million will be 
used for maintenance and preservation on the State Highways System.  
 

217

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



Of the $963 million in Proposition 1B PTMISEA bond funding made available through the Budget Act, 
$793 million will flow to public transit systems throughout the state via the State Transit Assistance 
(STA) formula and $160 million will be awarded to the state’s three intercity rail corridors. 
 
Cap and Trade 
The 2014-15 Budget Act authorized $872 million in one-time/budget year expenditures from the Cap 
and Trade program for various transit, sustainable communities, and low-carbon transportation 
programs that reduce greenhouse gas emissions (GHG). The majority of these funds were appropriated 
to transportation programs as follows: 

 $130 million is available for the affordable housing and sustainable communities program; 

 $25 million allocated is available for transit and intercity rail capital programs; 

 $25 million allocated to transit agencies through the State Transit Assistance program statutes; 

 $200 million is available for low carbon transportation programs, which includes rebates to 
consumers for electric vehicle purchases, but also includes zero emission and near-zero 
emission transit bus programs; and, 

 $250 million for high-speed rail.  
 
Additionally, the Governor signed SB 862, the Cap and Trade trailer bill, which establishes long-term 
funding programs from the Cap and Trade program, including a capital grant program for transit and 
intercity rail (10 percent), direct formula funding for transit operations and capital (5 percent), 
sustainable communities & affordable housing (20 percent), as well as high-speed rail (25 percent). In 
total, SB 862 dedicates 60 percent of ongoing Cap and Trade auction revenues, beginning in 2015-16, to 
these programs. The remaining 40 percent of the available funding is not dedicated for any specific 
program, but left to the discretion of future Legislatures to meet certain objectives in any future fiscal 
year.  
 
For example, in 2014-15, the Legislature appropriated $200 million for low-carbon transportation, which 
includes zero emission and near-zero emission bus and truck deployment. In 2015-16, the Legislature 
could make a determination that its sees better GHG reduction opportunities through complete streets 
and could shift funding to another program that better supports complete streets. Similarly, the 
Legislature could fund any other GHG-reducing program from this 40%.  
 
As mentioned above, the ongoing funding program for sustainable communities and affordable housing 
would be funded using 20 percent of annual Cap and Trade revenues. This program would be 
administered by the Strategic Growth Council and projects would be funded on a competitive basis 
statewide. Projects eligible for funding include:  

 Intermodal, affordable housing projects that support infill and compact development; 

 Transit capital projects and programs supporting transit ridership; 

 Active transportation capital projects that qualify under the Active Transportation Program, 
including pedestrian and bicycle facilities and supportive infrastructure, including connectivity to 
transit stations;  

 Noninfrastructure-related active transportation projects that qualify under the Active 
Transportation Program, including activities that encourage active transportation goals; 

 Transit-oriented development projects, including affordable housing and infrastructure at or 
near transit stations or connecting those developments to transit stations; 

 Capital projects that implement local complete streets programs;  

218



 Other projects or programs designed to reduce GHG emissions and other criteria air pollutants 
by reducing automobile trips and vehicle miles traveled within a community; 

 Acquisition of easements or other approaches or tools that protect agricultural lands that are 
under pressure of being converted to nonagricultural uses; and, 

 Planning to support implementation of a sustainable communities strategy.  
 
Additionally, the long-term Cap and Trade funding program provides 10 percent of the revenues for 
transit and intercity rail projects, administered by the California State Transportation Agency and the 
California Transportation Commission.  Projects eligible for funding include: 

 Rail capital projects, including acquisition of rail cars and locomotives, that expand, enhance, 
and improve existing rail systems and connectivity to existing and future rail systems, including 
the high-speed rail system; 

 Intercity and commuter rail projects that increase service levels, improve reliability, and 
decrease travel times; 

 Rail integration implementation, including integrated ticketing and scheduling systems, shared-
use corridors, related planning efforts, and other service integration initiatives; and, 

 Bus rapid transit and other bus transit investments to increase ridership and reduce GHG 
emissions. 

 
Finally, 5 percent of ongoing Cap and Trade revenues are available to transit agencies through the STA 
formula for operations and capital. Caltrans will set up guidelines for the use of these formula funds and 
projects will need to show GHG reductions in order to be eligible. 
 
Over the coming months, the various administering agencies will begin a public process for developing 
program guidelines and criteria to ensure that any projects funded with Cap and Trade revenues deliver 
the greatest amount of GHG emission reduction benefits possible in order to achieve the goals 
established in AB 32.  
 
California Freight Mobility Plan 
On June 16, Caltrans released its second draft of the California Freight Mobility Plan, which defines the 
overall state freight vision and identifies goals, objectives, strategies, performance measures, and a 
select set of high-priority projects designed to achieve that vision.  The next round of comments are due 
by July 31. Caltrans began a series of public workshops throughout the state on June 16. Workshops 
were held in Sacramento on June 17 and Oakland on June 24. Projects of significant importance to the 
Board, including the identification of State Route 12 as a freight corridor, the I-80/I-680/SR 12 
interchange, and the westbound I-80 truck scales, are identified in the plan.  
 
Authority Sponsored Bills 
SB 1368 (Wolk) would authorize Caltrans and the CTC to relinquish a park-and-ride lot to a joint powers 
authority formed for the purposes of providing transportations services or to a transit district. From the 
Authority’s perspective, this bill will ensure state-owned property in Vallejo can be turned over to 
SolTrans for long-term operation, maintenance and improvements. The STA Board is the Co-Sponsor of 
this bill, with SolTrans. This bill passed the Assembly Transportation Committee on consent by a vote 
of 13-0 on June 23. It now moves to the Assembly Appropriations Committee. 
 
Other Bills of Interest 

219



AB 935 (Frazier) in its original form would have changed the composition of the WETA board of 
directors, adding additional Senate and Assembly appointments. The STA Board supported that version 
of the bill. However AB 935 was “Gutted and Amended” on June 9th and is now a bill relative to 
Veteran Driver’s License Designation.  
 
AB 2170 (Mullin) would clarify that a joint powers authority may exercise any power common to the 
member agencies, including the authority to levy a fee or tax (subject to the requirements of the 
Constitution). This bill passed the Senate Governance and Finance Committee on June 5th on a 5-2 
party line vote and will now head to the Senate Floor for a vote.    
 
AB 2728 (Perea) would prohibit the transfer of weight fee revenues from the State Highway Account to 
the Transportation Debt Service Fund to reimburse the General Fund for the payment of debt-service on 
transportation bonds, mainly Proposition 1B. The prohibition in this bill would sunset on January 1, 
2019. This is dead as it was held on the Assembly Appropriations Committee Suspense File on May 
23rd. The STA Board Supports this bill. 
 
SB 556 (Corbett) was amended at one point last year to require all public agencies, including public 
transit systems, to “label” employees and vehicles which are independent contractors or operated by 
independent contractors with a "NOT A GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEE" or "THE OPERATOR OF THIS VEHICLE 
IS NOT A GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEE" disclosure.  
 
The STA Board Opposed that version of the bill, due to its adverse impact on transit systems. In the 
face of substantial opposition around the state, the author narrowed the bill’s cope late in the session; it 
now applies only to public health or safety service providers. The Author’s office indicates there is no 
intention to move this bill in 2014. 

 
SB 1077 (DeSaulnier) would direct the California State Transportation Agency (CalSTA) to develop a pilot 
program designed to assess specified issues related to implementing a mileage-based fee (MBF) in 
California to replace the state's existing fuel excise tax by January 1, 2016. The bill would require the 
CalSTA to assess certain issues related to implementing an MBF, including different methods for 
calculating mileage and collecting road use information, processes for managing, storing, transmitting, 
and destroying data to protect the integrity of the data and ensure drivers' privacy, and costs associated 
with the implementation and operation of the MBF system. This bill passed the Assembly 
Transportation Committee on June 23rd with a 10-4 vote. The bill now heads to the Assembly 
Appropriations Committee. The STA Board has adopted a “Watch” Position for this bill. 
 
SB 1151 (Canella) would impose an additional fine of $35 for specified violations within a school zone 
and deposit fine revenues in the State Transportation Fund for school zone safety projects within the 
Active Transportation Program. This bill passed the Assembly Transportation Committee by a vote of 
14-0 on June 27th. The bill is now in the Assembly Appropriations Commitee. The STA Board Supports 
this bill. 
 
SB 1156 (Steinberg) would impose a carbon tax on fuel manufacturers. Under the Cap and Trade 
program, the manufacturers of transportation fuels are required to begin purchasing GHG emissions 
allowances on January 1, 2015. The revenues from the sale of these emissions would be available for the 
state for programs that reduce GHG emissions. This bill would remove transportation fuels from the Cap 
and Trade program, and instead impose a carbon tax on suppliers of fossil fuels to be deposited in the 
Carbon Tax Revenue Special Fund to be rebated to taxpayers. This bill may become a vehicle for the 

220



Senator’s Cap and Trade proposal, as described above. This bill currently sits in the Senate Governance 
and Finance Committee, where it was never heard.  

 
SB 1418 (DeSaulnier) would prohibit the transfer of weight fee revenues from the State Highway 
Account to the Transportation Debt Service Fund to reimburse the General Fund for the payment of 
debt-service on transportation bonds, mainly Proposition 1B. This bill would also allocate the money 
that now remains in the SHA as follows: 56 percent to the State (of which a minimum of 21.5 percent 
must be used for the SHOPP) and 44 percent to cities and counties. The amount of weight fee revenue 
transferred each year equates to almost $1 billion. This bill was held on the Senate Appropriations 
Committee Suspense File. The STA Board Supports this bill. 
 
SCA 4 (Liu) and SCA 8 (Corbett) would lower the two-thirds voter threshold to raise taxes to fund 
transportation projects to fifty-five percent. The STA Board Supports both of these bills. One of the bills 
was subsequently amended to add “strings” to the expenditure of local funds raised with the lowered 
threshold; the Board should discuss over the coming months its priorities relative to these state 
impositions. Both measures are currently in the Senate Appropriations Committee 
 

221



This page intentionally left blank. 

222



M E M O R A N D U M  

 

June 27, 2014 

 

To: Solano Transportation Authority 

From: Akin Gump Strauss Hauer & Feld LLP 

Re: June Report 

In June we monitored developments in Congress and at the Department of Transportation 
regarding reauthorization of MAP-21 and passage of the fiscal year 2015 transportation 
appropriations legislation.  We made STA staff aware of a new discretionary grant opportunity 
from the Federal Transit Administration for buses and bus facilities called Ladders of 
Opportunity and apprised staff of developments regarding the Environmental Protection 
Agency’s expanded Clean Water Act jurisdiction. 

Surface Transportation Reauthorization 

On June 26, the Senate Finance Committee met to consider a proposal for generating revenue to 
keep the Highway Trust Fund solvent through December 2014.  The proposal included a package 
of revenue raisers and accounting changes that would generate $7.6 billion in funding.  Chairman 
Wyden delayed a vote on the package until after the July 4 recess so that he could attempt to 
reach a bipartisan agreement with Committee members.  Members of the Committee had 
prepared 46 amendments, including proposals to defund high speed rail, rescind orphan earmarks 
(not obligated after 10 years) and repeal Davis-Bacon. The Chairman of the House Ways and 
Means Committee and House Republican leadership also are working on a short term extension 
of MAP-21 and have announced they will move the extend the law after the July 4 recess. 
 
On June 18, Senators Chris Murphy (D-CT) and Bob Corker (R-TN) called upon Congress to 
increase the gas tax by 12 cents over two years.  The tax increase proposed would raise $164 
billion over 10 years.  Sen. Corker suggested that the tax increase could be offset by making 
permanent some of the expired tax breaks, such as the research and development tax credit or 
bonus depreciation.  While amendments to increase the gasoline tax are expected to be 
considered during the Finance Committee mark-up it does not appear likely that the Senate will 
adopt an increase to the gas tax. 
 
Prior to resuming the mark-up, the Senate Finance Committee Leadership will negotiate with 
House Ways and Means Committee Chairman David Camp to develop a proposal that can be 

223

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



adopted by the House and Senate in July, before the Trust Fund runs out of funds and prevents 
reimbursement to the states. 
 
Fiscal Year 2015 THUD Appropriations 
 
The House approved the fiscal year 2015 Transportation and Housing and Urban Development 
(THUD) Appropriations bill on June 12 by a vote of 229 to 192.  The House bill makes available 
almost $40.3 billion for the highway program and almost $8.6 billion for the transit formula 
program, consistent with fiscal year 2014 program.  The House bill cuts the TIGER program 
down to $100 million (from $600 million) and limits grants to highway and bridge projects, 
freight rail projects and port infrastructure projects.  TIGER funds could not be used for transit 
projects under the House bill. 
 
The Senate began its consideration of the THUD bill as part of a “minibus” spending package, 
which included the Commerce-Justice-Science (CJS) and Agriculture fiscal 2015 spending bills 
on June 17.  The Senate Democratic Leadership failed to reach an agreement with Senate 
Republicans concerning the number and terms of consideration for amendments, so the Majority 
Leader withdrawn the package from floor consideration.  No decision has been made concerning 
when to return the bill to the floor, or if the Senate will consider the THUD bill as a standalone 
bill or as part of a continuing resolution. 
 
Like the House, the Senate funds highway and transit formula programs at the fiscal year 2014-
enacted levels.  The Senate bill also includes $550 million for the TIGER program, $50 million 
less than in the fiscal year 2014-enacted law, but significantly higher than the $100 million 
included in the House bill.  The Senate bill also does not restrict the use of TIGER funds for 
transit projects. 
 
Legislation Introduced 

On June 20, Rep. Daniel Webster introduced The TIFIA 2.0 Act (H.R. 4925), which would 
transform the TIFIA program into a revolving loan program.  The bill would also prioritize 
financing for projects with the lowest risk.   The bill was referred to the House Transportation 
and Infrastructure Committee. 

On June 18, Sen. John Walsh (R-MT) introduced The American Jobs for American 
Infrastructure Act (S. 2489).  The legislation would use revenue from changes in the tax code 
affecting U.S. companies operating overseas to fund the Highway Trust Fund as well as critical 
water and energy infrastructure, including rural drinking water projects, irrigation systems, and 

224



energy generation and transmission upgrades.  The bill was referred to the Senate Finance 
Committee. 

On June 12, House Highways and Transit Subcommittee Chairman Tom Petri (R-WI) and 
Ranking Member Eleanor Holmes Norton (D-DC) introduced the President’s MAP-21 
reauthorization proposal, The Generating Renewal, Opportunity, and Work with Accelerated 
Mobility, Efficiency, and Rebuilding of Infrastructure and Communities throughout America 
(“GROW America” ) Act (H.R. 4834).  As we have noted previously, the bill would provide 
$302 billion for highway, transit and rail programs over four years.  It also would increase 
funding for transit by 70 percent over current investment levels, which is more than $72 billion 
over four years.  The bill was cosponsored by Rep. John Garamendi (D-CA) and referred to the 
Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure.  It is typical for members of the House 
Transportation and Infrastructure Committee to introduce the Administration’s reauthorization 
proposal as a courtesy and does not necessarily indicate support for the bill by the House 
members. 

Rep. Peter DeFazio (D-CA) introduced The Repeal and Rebuild Act (H.R. 4848) to repeal the 
current tax on gasoline and fund surface transportation through a new tax on oil.  The bill would 
increase the tax on a barrel of oil that is processed into gasoline to $6.75 and index it to 
construction cost inflation and fleet fuel economy.  Additional, it would index the diesel tax and 
bond the new revenue to the Highway Trust Fund to address the current shortfall.  Rep. DeFazio 
estimated that the bill would provide funding to support a $324 billion six-year surface 
transportation reauthorization. 

On June 11, Sen. Ben Cardin (D-MD), Chairman of the Senate Environment and Public Works 
Subcommittee on Water and Wildlife, introduced legislation to tighten controls over stormwater 
runoff generated from federal aid highways. The Highway Runoff Management Act (S. 2457) 
would require states to analyze the hydrological impact federal aid highways are having on water 
resources and development approaches to reducing the destructive impact of heavy stormwater 
runoff volumes and flows.  The bill has no cosponsors and was referred to the Committee on 
Environment and Public Works. 

On May 23, Rep. Rodney Davis (R-IL) introduced The Innovation in Surface Transportation Act 
(H.R. 4726), which would create a competitive grant program that would authorize the 
Department of Transportation to award up to $5.6 billion annually to local governments for 
transportation projects.  The bill would increase the set aside for local governments from state 
formula funding.  Transportation for America estimates that less than 15 percent of federal 
transportation funds are allocated to localities.  The bill was cosponsored by Rep. Dina Titus (D-
NV) and referred to the House Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.  

225



Sen. Chris Murphy (D-CT) and Rep. David Cicilline (D-RI) introduced the 21st Century Buy 
American Act (S. 2391/H.R. 4724) to tighten Buy American requirements and restrict the use of 
public interest and overseas waivers.  Under the legislation, articles, materials and supplies 
would be defined as American if the cost of domestic components exceeds 60 percent of the total 
cost of all components.  The bills were referred to the Senate Homeland Security and 
Government Affairs Committee and the House Oversight and Government Reform Committee.  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

226



From: Josh Shaw
To: info@caltransit
Subject: Cap and Trade Funding Opportunities -- Analysis of New Revenue Steams
Date: Tuesday, June 17, 2014 12:46:00 PM
Attachments: Cap and Trade - Analysis of Funding Legislation 06-17-14.pdf
Importance: High

Members of the California Transit Association:
 
Attached please find our “technical guidance” document analyzing the major funding
streams for public transit in the Cap and Trade legislation just sent to the Governor. We
cover the three major programs which either directly fund public transit agencies, or, for
which transit projects and services are major eligible recipients of competitive funds, as well
as mention the zero emission bus deployment funds in the 2014-15 appropriation.
 
While the Governor has not signed this legislation yet, we are assuming he will and we are
trying to give you as much advanced notice as possible of how these new funds might flow,
and how your organization might be able to access them.
 
While this plan does not reflect every priority or preference expressed by the Association
relative to transit funding from Cap and Trade, substantial new funds are provided to transit
agencies, either through a formula that directly funds most of our members, or, through
various competitive funds for which all our members will be eligible.
 
We would have preferred regional agencies to receive the sustainable communities funds
directly, and for a larger share of funds to go directly to transit operators on a formula basis
– without direct state agency sign-off being required; while we originally asked for state
rules on measuring how transit projects and services would reduce GHG emissions, and for
regional agencies to play a role in ensuring our  proposed projects meet state rules and
would be consistent with regional plans, this plan instead gives Caltrans, the California
Transportation Commission and the Strategic Growth Council more significant roles. Thus,
we will all need to work together on ironing out implementation details that reduce
administrative burden.
 
Association leadership, its member public transit systems and its private sector industry
suppliers look forward to working with the Legislature and the Administration to move this
important program forward and ensure that program guidelines and oversight mechanisms
are developed to guarantee effective transit projects and services are funded.
 
We intend on providing you more guidance over time, as implementation details emerge; in
the meantime, please contact us if you have any questions about this document.
 
Please note: This document is being sent directly to only the Primary Contact at your

227

mailto:josh@shawyoderantwih.com
mailto:info@caltransit.org



1 
 


Overview of 2014 Cap and Trade Legislation and Opportunities for Public Transit: 
Implementing 2014-15 Appropriations and a Long-Term Cap and Trade Funding Program 


 
In 2011 California’s Air Resources Board (ARB) adopted a Cap and Trade regulation, expected to help 
California achieve the goals of AB 32 (the California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006), which 
include reducing the greenhouse gas emissions that contribute to climate change. The Cap and Trade 
program sets a limit on the total greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions that can be emitted by specific 
sources within the state; those emitters that anticipate exceeding their cap must purchase additional 
allowances through this market-based system. The ARB conducts auctions for these allowances, and the 
revenue generated is available for appropriation by the Legislature. 
 
On June 15, the California Legislature approved the 2014-15 Budget Bill and related trailer bills that 
support the overall Budget.  
 
In the 2014-15 Budget Bill (SB 852), the Legislature authorized $872 million in one-time/ budget year 
expenditures for the Cap and Trade program for various transit, sustainable communities, and low-
carbon transportation programs that reduce greenhouse gas emissions.  
 
Additionally, the Legislature approved SB 862, the Cap and Trade trailer bill, which establishes long-term 
funding programs from the Cap and Trade program for transit and sustainable communities & 
affordable housing, as well as for high-speed rail. In total, SB 862 dedicates 60 percent of ongoing Cap 
and Trade auction revenues, beginning in 2015-16, to these programs. The remaining 40 percent of the 
available funding is not dedicated for any specific program, but left to the discretion of future 
Legislatures to meet certain objectives in any future fiscal year.  
 
For example, in 2014-15, the Legislature appropriated about $200 million for low-carbon transportation, 
which includes zero emission and near-zero emission bus deployment. In 2015-16, the Legislature could 
make a determination that its sees better greenhouse gas reduction opportunities through bus rapid 
transit programs and could shift funding to another program that better supports bus rapid transit 
development. Similarly, the Legislature could fund any other GHG-reducing program from this 40% pot. 
(And, that means we have an opportunity to continue our advocacy for an even more robust transit 
funding program, as these funds are not locked in place in the statute just sent to the Governor.) 
 
Following is a detailed overview of funding programs available to transit agencies throughout the state, 
and the amount of revenue dedicated to each program in 2014-15 and beyond. To help facilitate a 
review of the budget and trailer bills, specific bill and page citations have been included. (In the coming 
weeks, the Administration, the Legislature, and stakeholders will work on a technical cleanup bill to 
address drafting errors in SB 862; we preview some of that content in our analysis, below.) 
 
Please note that all the programs discussed below require compliance with state guidelines on the 
measurement and reduction of GHG emissions, pursuant to direction that the Air Resources Board, in 
consultation with the California Environmental Protection Agency, shall develop funding guidelines for 
administering agencies that receive appropriations from the greenhouse gas reduction fund to ensure 
the requirements of AB 32 are met. The guidelines shall include a component for how administering 
agencies should maximize benefits for disadvantaged communities, as first described in SB 535 and to 
be further defined by the California Environmental Protection Agency. 
 
 



http://leginfo.ca.gov/pub/13-14/bill/sen/sb_0851-0900/sb_852_bill_20140615_enrolled.pdf

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/13-14/bill/sen/sb_0851-0900/sb_862_bill_20140613_amended_asm_v98.pdf

http://leginfo.ca.gov/pub/11-12/bill/sen/sb_0501-0550/sb_535_bill_20120930_chaptered.pdf





2 
 


The ARB is further directed to provide an opportunity for public input prior to finalizing these guidelines; 
we will be working with our Legislative and Executive Committees to determine an advocacy approach 
to this guideline-setting process, with the goal of reducing administration burden on our agencies as 
they seek funds from these programs. 
 
2014-15 ONE-TIME APPROPRIATIONS 
 
The 2014-15 Budget Bill (SB 852) appropriates specified dollar amounts to four programs in which transit 
agencies are direct recipients or for which transit agencies are eligible applicants. For one of these 
programs, the funding eligibility and program administration details will clearly be determined in 2014-
15 by the additional guidelines and program management procedures called for in the long-term trailer 
bill (SB 862), as further detailed below. In other words, while the long-term trailer bill sets out 
percentages of all Cap and Trade dollars that this program will receive, for when those funds start to 
flow in 2015-16, the budget year appropriation will also be subject to these program rules – which we 
believe the Administration’s agencies and departments will endeavor to set up and run in 2014-15. For 
the other three programs, it is less clear that SB 862 program procedures will prevail; rather, it appears 
that existing administrative procedures and rules will govern how these funds flow in 2014-15. 
 
One of the transit appropriations in the Budget Bill (SB 852) will clearly be subject to the programs and 
procedures called for in the long-term trailer bill (SB 862): 
 


• $25 million is allocated according to the State Transit Assistance program statutes, but funds 
must be spent on transit services that meet the GHG-reduction goals of AB 32 and be further 
subject to the procedures and guidelines set up in SB 862’s Low Carbon Transit Operations 
Program; see below for details (SB 852, Pages 116-117). 
 


While these two appropriations in the Budget Bill (SB 852) seem to be subject only to existing programs 
and procedures, we also believe the Administration intends on making the 2014-15 funds subject to the 
new program details to be developed in the long-term Trailer Bill (SB 862): 
 


• $24.791 million is available for transit and intercity rail capital programs for allocation by the 
California Transportation Commission until June 30, 2016, and available for encumbrance and 
liquidation until June 30, 2020 (SB 852, Page 132). 
 


• $129.201 million is available for transfer to the Department of Transportation, the Department 
of Housing and Community Development, the Department of Conservation, and the Natural 
Resources Agency for support costs and local assistance associated with administering the 
affordable housing and sustainable communities program (SB 852, Pages 40-41). 
 


And, this appropriation will clearly be subject to existing ARB rules and regulations (there is no 
counterpart in SB 862 for this program): 
 


• $197.266 million is available to the ARB for its low carbon transportation programs, which 
includes rebates to consumers for electric vehicle purchases, but also includes zero emission 
and near-zero emission transit bus deployment programs (SB 852, Page 275). 


 
  







3 
 


LONG-TERM PERCENTAGE ALLOCATIONS 
 
This section of our analysis describes in further detail the three programs for which transit agencies are 
direct recipients and/ or for which transit agencies are eligible applicants. All references in the 
remainder of this analysis are to the long-term trailer bill (SB 862). 
 
TRANSIT AND INTERCITY RAIL CAPITAL PROGRAM 
 
Overview 
The Trailer Bill (SB 862) continuously appropriates 10 percent of all Cap and Trade revenues throughout 
the life of the Cap and Trade program, beginning in 2015-16, to the Transit and Intercity Rail Capital 
Program (Page 17, Lines 30-34). As written, the program will fund capital improvements and operational 
investments that will reduce greenhouse gas emissions and modernize intercity, commuter, and urban 
rail systems (Page 37, Line 14 through Page 29, Line 18).  
 
We have already worked with legislative leadership staff and the Governor’s Administration to obtain 
agreement on a technical clean-up bill that would add bus transit to these provisions, as was the stated 
intent of legislative leaders when they passed this bill. 
 
The policy objectives of the Program are to (Page 37, Lines 19-23):  


• Reduce greenhouse gas emissions; 
• Expand and improve rail service to increase ridership; 
• Integrate the rail service of the state’s various rail operators; and, 
• Improve rail safety.  


 
The technical clean-up bill will add references to bus transit in these policy objectives. 
 
Program Management  
The California State Transportation Agency (CalSTA) will develop and adopt Program guidelines, evaluate 
applications based on the established guidelines, and prepare a list of projects recommended for 
funding. The California Transportation Commission shall award grants to applicants using the list 
prepared by CalSTA (Page 37, Lines 24-30). 
 
In evaluating applications, CalSTA will consider: 


• The cobenefits of projects that support implementation of sustainable communities strategies 
through one or more of the following: 
(A) Reducing auto vehicle miles traveled through growth in rail ridership. 
(B) Promoting housing development in the vicinity of rail stations. 
(C) Expanding existing rail and public transit systems. 
(D) Implementing clean vehicle technology. 
(E) Promoting active transportation. 
(F) Improving public health. 


• The project priorities developed through the collaboration of two or more rail operators and 
any memoranda of understanding between state agencies and local or regional rail operators 
(Page 38, Lines 13-31). 
 


 
 







4 
 


Eligible Projects 
In order to be eligible for funding under the Program, a project must demonstrate that it will reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions (Page 38, Lines 6-8). The Program has a disadvantaged community investment 
goal of 25 percent (Page 38, Lines 9-12). Projects eligible for funding under the program currently 
include (Page 37, Lines 31-38 and Page 38, Lines 1-5): 


• Rail capital projects, including acquisition of rail cars and locomotives, that expand, enhance, 
and improve existing rail systems and connectivity to existing and future rail systems, including 
the high-speed rail system; 


• Intercity and commuter rail projects that increase service levels, improve reliability, and 
decrease travel times; 


• Rail integration implementation, including integrated ticketing and scheduling systems, shared-
use corridors, related planning efforts, and other service integration initiatives; and, 


• Bus rapid transit and other bus transit investments to increase ridership and reduce greenhouse 
gas emissions. 


 
We are attempting to ensure the technical clean-up bill will add additional references to bus transit in 
these descriptions of eligible projects (e.g., bus systems may want to apply for integrations funds, as 
well). 
 
Eligible applicants under the program shall be public agencies, including joint powers agencies, that 
operate existing or planned regularly scheduled intercity or commuter passenger rail service or urban 
rail transit service (Page 38, Line 32).  
 
We have already worked with legislative leadership staff and the Governor’s Administration to obtain 
agreement on a technical clean-up bill that would add bus transit agencies to this list of eligible 
applicants. 
 
Public Participation 
The bill directs the California State Transportation Agency to conduct at least two public workshops on 
draft program guidelines containing selection criteria prior to adoption and directs the Agency to post 
the draft guidelines on its Internet Web site at least 30 days prior to the first public workshop (Page 39, 
Lines 8-14).  
 
This gives us another opportunity to influence the implementation details, reduce administrative burden 
on our agencies, etc. We will be working with our Legislative and Executive Committees to determine 
the details of our advocacy efforts in this regard. 
 
LOW CARBON TRANSIT OPERATIONS PROGRAM 
 
Overview 
The Trailer Bill (SB 862) continuously appropriates 5 percent of all Cap and Trade revenues throughout 
the life of the Cap and Trade program, beginning in 2015-16, to the Low Carbon Transit Operations 
Program (Page 17, Lines 35-40 and Page 18, Lines 1-2). The Program will provide operating and capital 
assistance for transit agencies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and improve mobility (Page 39, Lines 
22-25). Funding would flow according to the State Transit Assistance program formula (Page 39, Lines 
26-29, which reference Page 17, Lines 39-40 and Page 18, Lines 1-2 – a cross-reference to the existing 
STA program statutes). 
 







5 
 


Program Management 
Caltrans, in coordination with the Air Resources Board (ARB), shall develop guidelines that describe the 
methodologies transit agencies shall use to demonstrate that proposed expenditures will meet specified 
criteria (see Eligible Projects, below), and establish the reporting requirements for documenting ongoing 
compliance (Page 40, Lines 18-23).  
 
A transit agency shall submit the following information to Caltrans before seeking funds (Page 40, Lines 
28-35): 


• A list of proposed expenses based on anticipated funding levels; and, 
• Documentation showing that Program criteria have been met.  


 
Before funding is released by the Controller, Caltrans and ARB shall determine the eligibility, in whole or 
in part, of the proposed list of expenditures (Page 40, Lines 36-39 and Page 41, Lines 1-2). Once a 
determination has been made, Caltrans notifies the Controller of approved expenditures for each transit 
agency, and the amount of the allocation for each transit agency determined to be available at the time 
of approval (Page 41, Lines 3-6). The recipient transit agency shall provide annual reports to Caltrans 
(Page 41, Lines 7-11).  
 
Eligible Projects 
Funding in the Program must be expended to provide transit operating or capital assistance that meets 
all of the following criteria (Page 39, Lines 37-39):  


• Supports new or expanded bus or rail services, or expanded intermodal transit facilities, and 
may include equipment acquisition, fueling, and maintenance, and other costs to operate those 
services or facilities (Page 40, Lines 1-4); and, 


• A transit operator must demonstrate that each expenditure directly enhances or expands transit 
service to increase mode share and that each expenditure reduces greenhouse gas emissions 
(Page 40, Lines 5-9). 
 


For transit agencies whose service areas include disadvantaged communities at least 50 percent of the 
total funding must be used for projects or services that meet the above requirements and benefit the 
disadvantaged communities (Page 40, Lines 10-17).  
 
Public Participation 
The bill does not direct Caltrans or the California State Transportation Agency to conduct any sort of 
public participation process on the development of the guidelines overseeing this program.  
 
We will be requesting clear statutory direction that such a public process must be undertaken.  
 
  







6 
 


AFFORDABLE HOUSING AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES PROGRAM 
 
Overview 
The Trailer Bill (SB 862) continuously appropriates 20 percent of all Cap and Trade revenues throughout 
the life of the Cap and Trade program, beginning in 2015-16, to the Affordable Housing and Sustainable 
Communities Program (Page 18, Lines 3-10). The Program will reduce greenhouse gas emissions through 
projects that implement land use, housing, transportation & agricultural land preservation practices to 
support infill and compact development, and that support related and coordinated public policy 
objectives, including the following (Page 34, Lines 16-36): 


• Reduce air pollution; 
• Improve conditions in disadvantaged communities; 
• Support or improve public health and other cobenefits;  
• Improve connectivity and accessibility to jobs, housing, and services; 
• Increase options for mobility, including the implementation of the Active Transportation 


Program;  
• Increase transit ridership; 
• Preserve and developing affordable housing for lower income households; and, 
• Protect agricultural lands to support infill development. 


 
Program Management 
The Strategic Growth Council (Council) is responsible for the development and administration of the 
Program (Page 34, Lines 16-22). Prior to awarding funds, in coordination with ARB, the Council must 
develop guidelines and selection criteria for the Program (Page 36, Lines 11-15). The Council shall 
incorporate comments from local governments and regional agencies (Page 36, Lines 24-28). The 
Council is required to coordinate with the metropolitan planning organizations and other regional 
agencies to identify and recommend projects for funding (Page 37, Lines 4-7). 
 
Eligible Projects 
In order to receive funding from the Program, a project must demonstrate that it will achieve a 
reduction in greenhouse gas emissions, support implementation of an adopted or draft sustainable 
communities strategy or a regional plan that includes policies & programs to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions, and is consistent with the state planning priorities. Projects eligible for funding pursuant to 
the program include (Page 34, Lines 37-40 and Page 35, Lines 1-37): 


• Intermodal, affordable housing projects that support infill and compact development; 
• Transit capital projects and programs supporting transit ridership; 
• Active transportation capital projects that qualify under the Active Transportation Program, 


including pedestrian and bicycle facilities and supportive infrastructure, including connectivity to 
transit stations;  


• Noninfrastructure-related active transportation projects that qualify under the Active 
Transportation Program, including activities that encourage active transportation goals; 


• Transit-oriented development projects, including affordable housing and infrastructure at or 
near transit stations or connecting those developments to transit stations; 


• Capital projects that implement local complete streets programs;  
• Other projects or programs designed to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and other criteria air 


pollutants by reducing automobile trips and vehicle miles traveled within a community; 
• Acquisition of easements or other approaches or tools that protect agricultural lands that are 


under pressure of being converted to nonagricultural uses;  
• Planning to support implementation of a sustainable communities strategy.  







7 
 


The bill sets a goal for the Program of spending 50 percent of available revenues in disadvantaged 
communities (Page 36, Lines 4-10). Also, no less than half of the funding available must be spent on 
affordable housing projects (Page 18, Lines 7-10).  
 
Public Participation 
The bill directs the Council, prior to adoption of the guidelines and the selection criteria, to conduct at 
least two public workshops to receive and consider public comments. One workshop shall be held at a 
location in northern California and one workshop shall be held at a location in southern California (Page 
36, Lines 16-20). 
 
This gives us another opportunity to influence the implementation details, reduce administrative burden 
on our agencies, etc. We will be working with our Legislative and Executive Committees to determine 
the details of our advocacy efforts in this regard. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This analysis was prepared by the California Transit Association, on June 17, 2014. 
 
Please contact Executive Director Joshua W. Shaw (josh@caltransit.org) or Legislative Advocate Matt Robinson 
(matt@caltransit.org) if you have any questions, or call 916-446-4656. 
 
 



mailto:josh@caltransit.org

mailto:matt@caltransit.org



jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C



organization we have on file in our database; please forward this information to anyone in
your organization you deem appropriate.
 
CC:         Executive Committee
                Legislative Committee
 
Thanks – Josh
 
_ _

Joshua W. Shaw
California Transit Association 
Executive Director 
josh@caltransit.org

1415 L Street, Suite 1000 
Sacramento CA 95814 
T : (916) 446-4656 
F : (916) 446-4318 
caltransit.org

 

 
 

228

mailto:josh@caltransit.org
http://www.caltransit.org/


Overview of 2014 Cap and Trade Legislation and Opportunities for Public Transit: 
Implementing 2014-15 Appropriations and a Long-Term Cap and Trade Funding Program 

 
In 2011 California’s Air Resources Board (ARB) adopted a Cap and Trade regulation, expected to help 
California achieve the goals of AB 32 (the California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006), which 
include reducing the greenhouse gas emissions that contribute to climate change. The Cap and Trade 
program sets a limit on the total greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions that can be emitted by specific 
sources within the state; those emitters that anticipate exceeding their cap must purchase additional 
allowances through this market-based system. The ARB conducts auctions for these allowances, and the 
revenue generated is available for appropriation by the Legislature. 
 
On June 15, the California Legislature approved the 2014-15 Budget Bill and related trailer bills that 
support the overall Budget.  
 
In the 2014-15 Budget Bill (SB 852), the Legislature authorized $872 million in one-time/ budget year 
expenditures for the Cap and Trade program for various transit, sustainable communities, and low-
carbon transportation programs that reduce greenhouse gas emissions.  
 
Additionally, the Legislature approved SB 862, the Cap and Trade trailer bill, which establishes long-term 
funding programs from the Cap and Trade program for transit and sustainable communities & 
affordable housing, as well as for high-speed rail. In total, SB 862 dedicates 60 percent of ongoing Cap 
and Trade auction revenues, beginning in 2015-16, to these programs. The remaining 40 percent of the 
available funding is not dedicated for any specific program, but left to the discretion of future 
Legislatures to meet certain objectives in any future fiscal year.  
 
For example, in 2014-15, the Legislature appropriated about $200 million for low-carbon transportation, 
which includes zero emission and near-zero emission bus deployment. In 2015-16, the Legislature could 
make a determination that its sees better greenhouse gas reduction opportunities through bus rapid 
transit programs and could shift funding to another program that better supports bus rapid transit 
development. Similarly, the Legislature could fund any other GHG-reducing program from this 40% pot. 
(And, that means we have an opportunity to continue our advocacy for an even more robust transit 
funding program, as these funds are not locked in place in the statute just sent to the Governor.) 
 
Following is a detailed overview of funding programs available to transit agencies throughout the state, 
and the amount of revenue dedicated to each program in 2014-15 and beyond. To help facilitate a 
review of the budget and trailer bills, specific bill and page citations have been included. (In the coming 
weeks, the Administration, the Legislature, and stakeholders will work on a technical cleanup bill to 
address drafting errors in SB 862; we preview some of that content in our analysis, below.) 
 
Please note that all the programs discussed below require compliance with state guidelines on the 
measurement and reduction of GHG emissions, pursuant to direction that the Air Resources Board, in 
consultation with the California Environmental Protection Agency, shall develop funding guidelines for 
administering agencies that receive appropriations from the greenhouse gas reduction fund to ensure 
the requirements of AB 32 are met. The guidelines shall include a component for how administering 
agencies should maximize benefits for disadvantaged communities, as first described in SB 535 and to 
be further defined by the California Environmental Protection Agency. 
 
 

229

http://leginfo.ca.gov/pub/13-14/bill/sen/sb_0851-0900/sb_852_bill_20140615_enrolled.pdf
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/13-14/bill/sen/sb_0851-0900/sb_862_bill_20140613_amended_asm_v98.pdf
http://leginfo.ca.gov/pub/11-12/bill/sen/sb_0501-0550/sb_535_bill_20120930_chaptered.pdf


The ARB is further directed to provide an opportunity for public input prior to finalizing these guidelines; 
we will be working with our Legislative and Executive Committees to determine an advocacy approach 
to this guideline-setting process, with the goal of reducing administration burden on our agencies as 
they seek funds from these programs. 
 
2014-15 ONE-TIME APPROPRIATIONS 
 
The 2014-15 Budget Bill (SB 852) appropriates specified dollar amounts to four programs in which transit 
agencies are direct recipients or for which transit agencies are eligible applicants. For one of these 
programs, the funding eligibility and program administration details will clearly be determined in 2014-
15 by the additional guidelines and program management procedures called for in the long-term trailer 
bill (SB 862), as further detailed below. In other words, while the long-term trailer bill sets out 
percentages of all Cap and Trade dollars that this program will receive, for when those funds start to 
flow in 2015-16, the budget year appropriation will also be subject to these program rules – which we 
believe the Administration’s agencies and departments will endeavor to set up and run in 2014-15. For 
the other three programs, it is less clear that SB 862 program procedures will prevail; rather, it appears 
that existing administrative procedures and rules will govern how these funds flow in 2014-15. 
 
One of the transit appropriations in the Budget Bill (SB 852) will clearly be subject to the programs and 
procedures called for in the long-term trailer bill (SB 862): 
 

• $25 million is allocated according to the State Transit Assistance program statutes, but funds 
must be spent on transit services that meet the GHG-reduction goals of AB 32 and be further 
subject to the procedures and guidelines set up in SB 862’s Low Carbon Transit Operations 
Program; see below for details (SB 852, Pages 116-117). 
 

While these two appropriations in the Budget Bill (SB 852) seem to be subject only to existing programs 
and procedures, we also believe the Administration intends on making the 2014-15 funds subject to the 
new program details to be developed in the long-term Trailer Bill (SB 862): 
 

• $24.791 million is available for transit and intercity rail capital programs for allocation by the 
California Transportation Commission until June 30, 2016, and available for encumbrance and 
liquidation until June 30, 2020 (SB 852, Page 132). 
 

• $129.201 million is available for transfer to the Department of Transportation, the Department 
of Housing and Community Development, the Department of Conservation, and the Natural 
Resources Agency for support costs and local assistance associated with administering the 
affordable housing and sustainable communities program (SB 852, Pages 40-41). 
 

And, this appropriation will clearly be subject to existing ARB rules and regulations (there is no 
counterpart in SB 862 for this program): 
 

• $197.266 million is available to the ARB for its low carbon transportation programs, which 
includes rebates to consumers for electric vehicle purchases, but also includes zero emission 
and near-zero emission transit bus deployment programs (SB 852, Page 275). 

 
  

230



LONG-TERM PERCENTAGE ALLOCATIONS 
 
This section of our analysis describes in further detail the three programs for which transit agencies are 
direct recipients and/ or for which transit agencies are eligible applicants. All references in the 
remainder of this analysis are to the long-term trailer bill (SB 862). 
 
TRANSIT AND INTERCITY RAIL CAPITAL PROGRAM 
 
Overview 
The Trailer Bill (SB 862) continuously appropriates 10 percent of all Cap and Trade revenues throughout 
the life of the Cap and Trade program, beginning in 2015-16, to the Transit and Intercity Rail Capital 
Program (Page 17, Lines 30-34). As written, the program will fund capital improvements and operational 
investments that will reduce greenhouse gas emissions and modernize intercity, commuter, and urban 
rail systems (Page 37, Line 14 through Page 29, Line 18).  
 
We have already worked with legislative leadership staff and the Governor’s Administration to obtain 
agreement on a technical clean-up bill that would add bus transit to these provisions, as was the stated 
intent of legislative leaders when they passed this bill. 
 
The policy objectives of the Program are to (Page 37, Lines 19-23):  

• Reduce greenhouse gas emissions; 
• Expand and improve rail service to increase ridership; 
• Integrate the rail service of the state’s various rail operators; and, 
• Improve rail safety.  

 
The technical clean-up bill will add references to bus transit in these policy objectives. 
 
Program Management  
The California State Transportation Agency (CalSTA) will develop and adopt Program guidelines, evaluate 
applications based on the established guidelines, and prepare a list of projects recommended for 
funding. The California Transportation Commission shall award grants to applicants using the list 
prepared by CalSTA (Page 37, Lines 24-30). 
 
In evaluating applications, CalSTA will consider: 

• The cobenefits of projects that support implementation of sustainable communities strategies 
through one or more of the following: 
(A) Reducing auto vehicle miles traveled through growth in rail ridership. 
(B) Promoting housing development in the vicinity of rail stations. 
(C) Expanding existing rail and public transit systems. 
(D) Implementing clean vehicle technology. 
(E) Promoting active transportation. 
(F) Improving public health. 

• The project priorities developed through the collaboration of two or more rail operators and 
any memoranda of understanding between state agencies and local or regional rail operators 
(Page 38, Lines 13-31). 
 

 
 

231



Eligible Projects 
In order to be eligible for funding under the Program, a project must demonstrate that it will reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions (Page 38, Lines 6-8). The Program has a disadvantaged community investment 
goal of 25 percent (Page 38, Lines 9-12). Projects eligible for funding under the program currently 
include (Page 37, Lines 31-38 and Page 38, Lines 1-5): 

• Rail capital projects, including acquisition of rail cars and locomotives, that expand, enhance, 
and improve existing rail systems and connectivity to existing and future rail systems, including 
the high-speed rail system; 

• Intercity and commuter rail projects that increase service levels, improve reliability, and 
decrease travel times; 

• Rail integration implementation, including integrated ticketing and scheduling systems, shared-
use corridors, related planning efforts, and other service integration initiatives; and, 

• Bus rapid transit and other bus transit investments to increase ridership and reduce greenhouse 
gas emissions. 

 
We are attempting to ensure the technical clean-up bill will add additional references to bus transit in 
these descriptions of eligible projects (e.g., bus systems may want to apply for integrations funds, as 
well). 
 
Eligible applicants under the program shall be public agencies, including joint powers agencies, that 
operate existing or planned regularly scheduled intercity or commuter passenger rail service or urban 
rail transit service (Page 38, Line 32).  
 
We have already worked with legislative leadership staff and the Governor’s Administration to obtain 
agreement on a technical clean-up bill that would add bus transit agencies to this list of eligible 
applicants. 
 
Public Participation 
The bill directs the California State Transportation Agency to conduct at least two public workshops on 
draft program guidelines containing selection criteria prior to adoption and directs the Agency to post 
the draft guidelines on its Internet Web site at least 30 days prior to the first public workshop (Page 39, 
Lines 8-14).  
 
This gives us another opportunity to influence the implementation details, reduce administrative burden 
on our agencies, etc. We will be working with our Legislative and Executive Committees to determine 
the details of our advocacy efforts in this regard. 
 
LOW CARBON TRANSIT OPERATIONS PROGRAM 
 
Overview 
The Trailer Bill (SB 862) continuously appropriates 5 percent of all Cap and Trade revenues throughout 
the life of the Cap and Trade program, beginning in 2015-16, to the Low Carbon Transit Operations 
Program (Page 17, Lines 35-40 and Page 18, Lines 1-2). The Program will provide operating and capital 
assistance for transit agencies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and improve mobility (Page 39, Lines 
22-25). Funding would flow according to the State Transit Assistance program formula (Page 39, Lines 
26-29, which reference Page 17, Lines 39-40 and Page 18, Lines 1-2 – a cross-reference to the existing 
STA program statutes). 
 

232



Program Management 
Caltrans, in coordination with the Air Resources Board (ARB), shall develop guidelines that describe the 
methodologies transit agencies shall use to demonstrate that proposed expenditures will meet specified 
criteria (see Eligible Projects, below), and establish the reporting requirements for documenting ongoing 
compliance (Page 40, Lines 18-23).  
 
A transit agency shall submit the following information to Caltrans before seeking funds (Page 40, Lines 
28-35): 

• A list of proposed expenses based on anticipated funding levels; and, 
• Documentation showing that Program criteria have been met.  

 
Before funding is released by the Controller, Caltrans and ARB shall determine the eligibility, in whole or 
in part, of the proposed list of expenditures (Page 40, Lines 36-39 and Page 41, Lines 1-2). Once a 
determination has been made, Caltrans notifies the Controller of approved expenditures for each transit 
agency, and the amount of the allocation for each transit agency determined to be available at the time 
of approval (Page 41, Lines 3-6). The recipient transit agency shall provide annual reports to Caltrans 
(Page 41, Lines 7-11).  
 
Eligible Projects 
Funding in the Program must be expended to provide transit operating or capital assistance that meets 
all of the following criteria (Page 39, Lines 37-39):  

• Supports new or expanded bus or rail services, or expanded intermodal transit facilities, and 
may include equipment acquisition, fueling, and maintenance, and other costs to operate those 
services or facilities (Page 40, Lines 1-4); and, 

• A transit operator must demonstrate that each expenditure directly enhances or expands transit 
service to increase mode share and that each expenditure reduces greenhouse gas emissions 
(Page 40, Lines 5-9). 
 

For transit agencies whose service areas include disadvantaged communities at least 50 percent of the 
total funding must be used for projects or services that meet the above requirements and benefit the 
disadvantaged communities (Page 40, Lines 10-17).  
 
Public Participation 
The bill does not direct Caltrans or the California State Transportation Agency to conduct any sort of 
public participation process on the development of the guidelines overseeing this program.  
 
We will be requesting clear statutory direction that such a public process must be undertaken.  
 
  

233



AFFORDABLE HOUSING AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES PROGRAM 
 
Overview 
The Trailer Bill (SB 862) continuously appropriates 20 percent of all Cap and Trade revenues throughout 
the life of the Cap and Trade program, beginning in 2015-16, to the Affordable Housing and Sustainable 
Communities Program (Page 18, Lines 3-10). The Program will reduce greenhouse gas emissions through 
projects that implement land use, housing, transportation & agricultural land preservation practices to 
support infill and compact development, and that support related and coordinated public policy 
objectives, including the following (Page 34, Lines 16-36): 

• Reduce air pollution; 
• Improve conditions in disadvantaged communities; 
• Support or improve public health and other cobenefits;  
• Improve connectivity and accessibility to jobs, housing, and services; 
• Increase options for mobility, including the implementation of the Active Transportation 

Program;  
• Increase transit ridership; 
• Preserve and developing affordable housing for lower income households; and, 
• Protect agricultural lands to support infill development. 

 
Program Management 
The Strategic Growth Council (Council) is responsible for the development and administration of the 
Program (Page 34, Lines 16-22). Prior to awarding funds, in coordination with ARB, the Council must 
develop guidelines and selection criteria for the Program (Page 36, Lines 11-15). The Council shall 
incorporate comments from local governments and regional agencies (Page 36, Lines 24-28). The 
Council is required to coordinate with the metropolitan planning organizations and other regional 
agencies to identify and recommend projects for funding (Page 37, Lines 4-7). 
 
Eligible Projects 
In order to receive funding from the Program, a project must demonstrate that it will achieve a 
reduction in greenhouse gas emissions, support implementation of an adopted or draft sustainable 
communities strategy or a regional plan that includes policies & programs to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions, and is consistent with the state planning priorities. Projects eligible for funding pursuant to 
the program include (Page 34, Lines 37-40 and Page 35, Lines 1-37): 

• Intermodal, affordable housing projects that support infill and compact development; 
• Transit capital projects and programs supporting transit ridership; 
• Active transportation capital projects that qualify under the Active Transportation Program, 

including pedestrian and bicycle facilities and supportive infrastructure, including connectivity to 
transit stations;  

• Noninfrastructure-related active transportation projects that qualify under the Active 
Transportation Program, including activities that encourage active transportation goals; 

• Transit-oriented development projects, including affordable housing and infrastructure at or 
near transit stations or connecting those developments to transit stations; 

• Capital projects that implement local complete streets programs;  
• Other projects or programs designed to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and other criteria air 

pollutants by reducing automobile trips and vehicle miles traveled within a community; 
• Acquisition of easements or other approaches or tools that protect agricultural lands that are 

under pressure of being converted to nonagricultural uses;  
• Planning to support implementation of a sustainable communities strategy.  

234



The bill sets a goal for the Program of spending 50 percent of available revenues in disadvantaged 
communities (Page 36, Lines 4-10). Also, no less than half of the funding available must be spent on 
affordable housing projects (Page 18, Lines 7-10).  
 
Public Participation 
The bill directs the Council, prior to adoption of the guidelines and the selection criteria, to conduct at 
least two public workshops to receive and consider public comments. One workshop shall be held at a 
location in northern California and one workshop shall be held at a location in southern California (Page 
36, Lines 16-20). 
 
This gives us another opportunity to influence the implementation details, reduce administrative burden 
on our agencies, etc. We will be working with our Legislative and Executive Committees to determine 
the details of our advocacy efforts in this regard. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This analysis was prepared by the California Transit Association, on June 17, 2014. 
 
Please contact Executive Director Joshua W. Shaw (josh@caltransit.org) or Legislative Advocate Matt Robinson 
(matt@caltransit.org) if you have any questions, or call 916-446-4656. 
 
 

235

mailto:josh@caltransit.org
mailto:matt@caltransit.org


Legislation Committee Handout
June 13, 2014
FY 2014-15 Budget Agreement (as of 6/13/14) 

 Fiscal Year 2014-15   Future Years* 

State Administered Competitive Programs
Sustainable Communities (Includes transportation & 
affordable housing) 130,000,000$            20% (~ $500,000,000)
Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program 25,000,000$              10% (~ $250,000,000)

Low Carbon Transportation (clean vehicles) 200,000,000$             TBD  

 Fiscal Year 2014-15  Future Years* 

Total Statewide Revenue Disbursed by State 
Transit Assistance Formula (5% of total Cap & 
Trade Revenue)  $                    25,000,000  $                           125,000,000 

San Francisco Bay Area Total 9,306,250$                46,531,250$                       
Revenue-Based Funds 6,893,750$                34,468,750$                       
Population-Based Funds 2,412,500$                12,062,500$                       

ACCMA - Corresponding to ACE 12,484$                     62,418$                              
Caltrain 347,828$                   1,739,138$                         
CCCTA 40,277$                     201,386$                            
City of Dixon 323$                          1,615$                                
ECCTA 17,177$                     85,886$                              
City of Fairfield 8,064$                       40,321$                              
GGBHTD 311,795$                   1,558,975$                         
City of Healdsburg 51$                            255$                                   
LAVTA 19,252$                     96,261$                              
NCPTA 3,144$                       15,719$                              
City of Petaluma 1,706$                       8,528$                                
City of Rio Vista 401$                          2,004$                                
SamTrans 290,238$                   1,451,192$                         
City of Santa Rosa 8,719$                       43,593$                              
Solano County Transit 20,530$                     102,652$                            
Sonoma County Transit 10,062$                     50,312$                              
City of Union City 3,027$                       15,137$                              
VTA 834,322$                   4,171,610$                         
VTA - Corresponding to ACE 16,281$                     81,404$                              
WCCTA 22,377$                     111,887$                            
WETA 70,657$                     353,285$                            
AC Transit 652,051$                   3,260,253$                         
BART 1,867,003$                9,335,017$                         
SFMTA 2,335,980$                11,679,902$                       

* Note: Assumes total annual Cap & Trade revenue of $2.5 billion per year. 

Page 1236

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT D



	  	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  California	  Association	  of	  Councils	  of	  Governments	   	   	   	   	   	   June	  23,	  2014	  
	  

	  
1100	  K	  Street,	  Suite	  101.	  Sacramento,	  CA	  95814	  	  	  � (916)	  557-‐1170	  	  	  	  � www.calcog.org	  

	  

CAP	  &	  TRADE	  POLICY	  BRIEF	  
TRANSIT,	  HOUSING,	  &	  SUSTAINABLE	  COMMUNITIES	  PROGRAM	  

	  
	  

	  

I.	   INTRODUCTION	  
	  

Last	  week,	  the	  Legislature	  adopted—and	  the	  Governor	  signed—a	  budget	  for	  FY	  
2014-‐15	  that	  includes	  the	  first	  investment	  plan	  for	  Cap	  and	  Trade	  auction	  revenues.	  	  
This	  brief	  outlines	  the	  main	  points	  of	  interest	  for	  regional	  transportation	  planning	  
agencies,	  summarizes	  the	  scope	  of	  key	  programs,	  and	  provides	  selected	  language	  
from	  SB	  852	  (allocations)	  and	  SB	  862	  (cap	  and	  trade	  program	  trailer	  bill).	  
	  
II.	   CAP	  AND	  TRADE	  PROGRAM	  HIGHLIGHTS	  
	  

1. The	  Big	  News:	  Ongoing	  Appropriation.	  	  Only	  two	  categories	  (totaling	  60%	  of	  
future	  revenues)	  get	  multi-‐year	  allocations:	  Transit,	  Housing,	  and	  Sustainable	  
Communities	  (35%)	  and	  High-‐Speed	  Rail	  (25%).	  	  Other	  program	  areas	  will	  be	  
subject	  to	  the	  annual	  budget	  process.	  	  See	  chart,	  next	  page.	  

2. But	  FY	  14-‐15	  is	  Different.	  	  Funding	  is	  different	  the	  first	  year	  largely	  because	  of	  a	  
$200	  million	  allocation	  to	  clean	  transportation.	  Thus,	  $130	  million	  is	  allocated	  to	  
affordable	  housing	  and	  sustainable	  
communities;	  and	  $50	  million	  for	  transit	  split	  
evenly	  between	  the	  Transit	  Capital	  and	  Transit	  
Operations.	  An	  additional	  $242	  million	  for	  non-‐
transportation	  related	  programs	  for	  energy,	  
water,	  waste	  diversion,	  and	  weatherization.	  	  

3. Reporting	  and	  Quantification.	  	  The	  Air	  
Resource	  Board	  will	  develop	  guidance	  on	  GHG	  reporting	  and	  quantification	  
methods	  for	  all	  state	  agencies	  that	  receive	  appropriations	  to	  ensure	  that	  the	  
requirements	  of	  AB	  32	  are	  met.	  	  

4. Strategic	  Growth	  Council	  Change.	  	  The	  Senate	  and	  Assembly	  each	  get	  to	  
appoint	  a	  public	  member	  to	  the	  Strategic	  Growth	  Council—making	  the	  council	  3	  
public	  members	  and	  seven	  senior	  members	  of	  the	  Administration.	  	  	  

5. 20%	  for	  Affordable	  Housing	  &	  Sustainable	  Communities.	  This	  funding	  is	  
subject	  to	  a	  specific	  set	  of	  rules	  and	  guidelines:	  	  

i. Half	  for	  Housing.	  	  Half	  (10%)	  must	  be	  used	  for	  affordable	  housing.	  SGC	  will	  be	  
the	  lead	  agency,	  though	  SGC	  likely	  will	  “leverage”	  HCD’s	  expertise.	  	  	  	  

ii. “Other	  Half”	  Eligibility.	  	  Threshold	  eligibilities	  include	  projects	  typically	  
included	  in	  a	  regional	  transportation	  plan	  (see	  table	  on	  page	  3).	  	  But	  it	  also	  
includes	  agriculture	  mitigation	  and	  undefined	  “other	  programs.”	  	  

iii. Distribution	  Undetermined.	  	  The	  distribution	  method	  is	  to	  be	  determined;	  no	  
provision	  is	  made	  for	  regional	  parity,	  though	  non-‐MPO	  areas	  are	  included.	  	  	  

FY	  14-‐15	  Appropriations	   $	  in	  Millions	  
High	  Speed	  Rail	   	  $250	  	  
Clean	  Vehicle	  Program	   	  $200	  	  
Housing/Sustainable	  Comm.	   	  $130	  	  
Transit	  	   	  $50	  	  
Other	  Programs	   	  $242	  	  

TOTAL	   	  $872	  	  

237

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT E



	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
CAP	  &	  TRADE:

	  
Transit,	  Housing,	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	   	   	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  June	  23,	  2014

	   	  

www.calcog.org	   	   Page	  2	  

	  
	  
iv. 50%	  for	  Disadvantaged	  Communities.	  	  The	  percentage	  for	  disadvantaged	  

communities	  is	  doubled	  from	  the	  SB	  535	  standard	  of	  25%	  to	  50%.	  	  	  	  	  
v. State	  Guidelines.	  The	  council	  is	  directed	  to	  “leverage	  the	  programmatic	  and	  

administrative	  expertise	  of	  relevant	  state	  departments”	  in	  developing	  the	  
guidelines.	  	  	  Comments	  from	  local	  and	  regional	  governments	  are	  to	  be	  
“considered”	  in	  the	  same	  manner	  as	  other	  stakeholders	  in	  public	  hearings.	  	  	  	  

vi. “Coordinated”	  Project	  Selection.	  	  After	  guidelines	  are	  developed,	  the	  Council	  is	  
required	  to	  “coordinate”	  with	  regional	  agencies	  to	  recommend	  projects.	  

	  
6. Transit	  and	  Intercity	  Rail	  Capital	  Program.	  	  This	  program	  is	  for	  commuter	  and	  

inter-‐regional	  rail	  and	  bus	  rapid	  transit	  projects.	  	  The	  Transportation	  Agency	  
will	  develop	  guidelines,	  review	  applications,	  and	  make	  recommendations	  to	  the	  
CTC.	  	  Funding	  must	  comply	  with	  the	  SB	  535-‐standard	  25%	  for	  disadvantaged	  
communities;	  and	  achieve	  “geographic	  equity”	  and	  SCS	  consistency.	  	  	  

• Special	  Note:	  	  Clean	  up	  language	  on	  this	  element	  is	  in	  the	  works	  to	  explicitly	  
authorize	  bus	  transit	  as	  an	  eligible	  use	  under	  the	  program.	  	  

	  
7. Low	  Carbon	  Transit.	  	  Funding	  goes	  out	  under	  the	  State	  Transit	  Assistance	  

formula	  for	  new	  and	  expanded	  service	  (including	  equipment);	  and	  50%	  of	  the	  
funding	  must	  be	  expended	  for	  disadvantaged	  communities.	  	  Caltrans	  must	  
approve	  all	  expenditures	  to	  determine	  they	  meet	  the	  guidelines.	  	  

	  
8. High-‐Speed	  Rail.	  	  High	  speed	  rail	  gets	  $250	  million	  in	  the	  first	  year;	  25%	  going	  

forward;	  and	  gets	  an	  additional	  $400	  million	  from	  prior	  year	  auction	  sales.	  
	  
9. Disadvantaged	  Communities	  &	  CalEnvironscreen.	  	  The	  CalEnviroscreen	  tool	  

(that	  identifies	  disadvantaged	  communities)	  came	  under	  scrutiny	  throughout	  
the	  budget	  process.	  	  	  New	  language	  provides	  that	  the	  Air	  Resources	  Board,	  
working	  with	  CalEPA,	  shall	  develop	  guidelines	  for	  the	  use	  of	  the	  CalEnviroscreen	  
tool,	  including	  how	  “benefits”	  should	  be	  “maximized.”	  

	  

40%	  

25%	  
20%	  

10%	  
5%	  

35%	  

To	  Be	  Allocated	  Annually	  

High	  Speed	  Rail	  

Affordable	  Housing	  and	  
Sustainable	  Communities	  

Capital	  for	  Inter-‐City	  Rail;	  
Transit	  

Low	  Carbon	  Transit	  
Operations	  

CAP	  AND	  TRADE	  
MULTI-‐YEAR	  	  ALLOCATIONS	  

238



	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
CAP	  &	  TRADE:

	  
Transit,	  Housing,	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	   	   	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  June	  23,	  2014

	   	  

www.calcog.org	   	   Page	  3	  

III.	   SUSTAINABLE	  COMMUNITIES	  SCOPE	  &	  ELIGIBILITY	  
	  

PROGRAM:	  

Administered	  By:	  
	  

Target:	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
	  

Project	  Eligibility:	  

AFFORDABLE	  HOUSING	  &	  SUSTAINABLE	  COMMUNITIES	  

Strategic	  Growth	  Council	  
	  
50%	  must	  benefit	  disadvantaged	  communities;	  	  
50%	  for	  Affordable	  Housing	  
	  
• Affordable	  housing	  that	  supports	  infill	  and	  compact	  development	  
• Transit	  capital	  and	  programs	  “supporting	  transit	  ridership”	  
• Active	  transportation	  projects	  (infrastructure	  &	  non-‐infrastructure)	  
• TOD	  projects	  
• Capital	  projects	  that	  implement	  complete	  streets	  
• Projects	  that	  reduce	  GHG	  emissions	  by	  reducing	  auto	  trips	  and	  VMT	  
• Acquisition	  of	  easements	  or	  other	  approaches	  to	  protect	  

agricultural	  lands	  under	  threat	  of	  development	  
• Planning	  to	  support	  SCS	  implementation,	  including	  local	  plans	  	  
• Must	  be	  in	  draft	  or	  adopted	  SCS	  	  
• Subject	  to	  SGC	  guidelines	  

PROGRAM:	  

Administered	  By:	  
	  

Target:	  

Project	  Eligibility:	  

TRANSIT	  &	  INTER-‐CITY	  RAIL	  (AND	  BUS)	  CAPITAL	  PROGRAM	  	  

Transportation	  Agency	  develops	  guidelines,	  scores	  applications.	  and	  
makes	  recommendations,	  CTC	  allocates	  funds	  

25%	  must	  benefit	  disadvantaged	  communities;	  achieve	  geographic	  equity	  
	  

• Rail	  capital	  
• Bus	  rapid	  transit	  and	  other	  bus	  investments	  to	  increase	  ridership	  

and	  reduce	  GHGs	  
• Service	  improvements	  to	  improve	  reliability	  &	  decrease	  travel	  times	  
• Integrated	  ticketing	  and	  scheduling	  systems,	  shared-‐use	  corridors,	  

related	  planning	  efforts	  and	  service	  integration	  initiatives	  
• Must	  be	  consistent	  with	  SCS	  
• Subject	  to	  SGC	  guidelines	  

PROGRAM:	  

Administered	  By:	  

	  

Target:	  

Project	  Eligibility:	  

LOW	  CARBON	  TRANSIT	  OPERATIONS	  PROGRAM	  

Operator	  (or	  RTPA	  for	  population-‐based	  funds)	  must	  submit	  project	  to	  
Caltrans	  for	  approval	  and	  verification	  that	  it	  qualifies	  as	  a	  GHG	  reducing	  
project.	  Controller	  allocates	  funds	  

50%	  must	  benefit	  disadvantaged	  communities	  

• Transit	  capital	  and	  operating	  expenses	  that	  enhance	  transit	  service	  
and	  reduce	  GHG	  emissions	  

• Support	  new	  or	  expanded	  bus	  or	  rail	  services,	  or	  expanded	  
intermodal	  facilities	  and	  equipment,	  fueling	  and	  maintenance	  for	  
those	  facilities.	  

	  
239



	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
CAP	  &	  TRADE:

	  
Transit,	  Housing,	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	   	   	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  June	  23,	  2014

	   	  

www.calcog.org	   	   Page	  4	  

III.	   FY	  14-‐15	  Budget	  Allocations	  	  (SB	  852)	  
	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  FY	  14-‐15	  Cap	  and	  Trade	  Allocations	  Related	  to	  Transportation	  	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  with	  Budget	  Line	  Item	  and	  SB	  852	  Page	  Number	   	  	  
Affordable	  Housing	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	   	  	  
	  	  	  	  	  -‐	  For	  Local	  Assistance	  (0650-‐101-‐3228,	  page	  34)	   129,201,000 
	  	  	  	  	  -‐	  For	  Support	  of	  OPR	  (0650-‐001-‐3228,	  page	  40)	   799,000 

Subtotal	   130,000,000	  
Transit	  and	  Rail	  Capital	  and	  Transit	  Operations	   	  	  
	  	  	  	  -‐	  	  Transit	  Operations	  (2640-‐101-‐3228,	  page	  116)	   25,000,000	  
	  	  	  	  -‐	  	  Rail	  and	  Transit	  Capital	  (2660-‐101-‐3228,Page	  132)	   24,791,000 
	  	  	  	  -‐	  	  Support,	  Dept.	  of	  Transp.	  (2660-‐001-‐3228,	  page	  124)	   208,000	  
	  	  	  	  -‐	  	  Capital	  Outlay	  (2660-‐301-‐3228,	  page	  143)	   1,000	  

Subtotal	   50,000,000	  
High	  Speed	  Rail	   	  	  
	  	  	  -‐	  Capital	  Outlay	  (2665-‐306-‐3228,	  page	  164)	   191,414,000	  
	  	  	  -‐	  Capital	  Outlay	  (2665-‐301-‐3228,	  page	  163)	   58,586,000 

Subtotal	   250,000,000 
	  	     
Clean	  Transportation	  	  (3900-‐101-‐3228,	  Page	  275)	   197,266,000 
ARB	  Support	  -‐	  All	  Programs	  	  (3900-‐001-‐3228,	  page	  274)	   11,520,000 

TOTAL	   638,786,000 
	  
Notes:	  	  	  	  

• AB	  852	  Language.	  	  	  Key	  provision	  related	  to	  these	  programs	  are	  included	  at	  the	  
end	  of	  this	  document.	  	  A	  copy	  of	  SB	  852	  is	  posted	  on	  our	  website.	  

	  
• Final	  Determination	  and	  the	  Last	  25%.	  	  The	  last	  25%	  of	  any	  fund	  cannot	  be	  

allocated	  until	  the	  Department	  of	  Finance	  makes	  a	  final	  determination	  based	  on	  
auction	  proceeds	  after	  the	  last	  auction	  of	  the	  year.	  	  See	  Section	  15.13	  of	  SB	  852	  
(page	  683).	  	  

	  
• Affordable	  Housing	  &	  Sustainable	  Communities.	  	  These	  funds	  “may	  be	  	  available	  

for	  transfer	  to	  the	  Department	  of	  Transportation,	  the	  Department	  of	  Housing	  
and	  Community	  Development,	  the	  Department	  of	  Conservation,	  and	  the	  Natural	  
Resources	  Agency	  for	  support	  costs	  and	  local	  assistance.	  .	  .”	  

	  
• California	  Transit	  Association.	  	  A	  note	  of	  appreciation	  for	  the	  California	  Transit	  

Association	  for	  identifying	  the	  key	  line	  items	  in	  SB	  852.	  	  	  
	  
	  
	  
	   	  

240



	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
CAP	  &	  TRADE:

	  
Transit,	  Housing,	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	   	   	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  June	  23,	  2014

	   	  

www.calcog.org	   	   Page	  5	  

V.	   SEVEN	  ADMINSTRATIVE	  PROCESSES	  
	  
	  

1.	  	  Reporting	  and	  quantification	  methods	  for	  GHG	  reductions	  
Scope:	  

	  
Agency:	  
Process:	  
Statute:	  

Define	  how	  projects	  further	  regulatory	  purposes	  of	  AB	  32	  contribute	  to	  reducing	  GHGs,	  
and	  applicability	  of	  other	  non-‐greenhouse	  gas	  reduction	  objectives	  of	  AB	  32	  
Air	  Resources	  Board	  
Undefined	  (ARB	  hearing	  likely)	  
Government	  Code	  §	  16428.9(b)	  

2.	  	  Identification	  of	  Disadvantaged	  Communities	  
Scope:	  

	  
Agency:	  
Process:	  
Statute:	  

(Already	  in	  Statute)	  Geographic,	  socioeconomic,	  health,	  environmental	  hazard,	  pollution,	  
and	  concentration	  of	  low	  income,	  high	  unemployment,	  high	  rent,	  or	  other	  factors.	  
California	  Environmental	  Protection	  Agency	  
At	  least	  one	  public	  hearing	  
Health	  and	  Safety	  Code	  §	  38711	  

3.	  	  Funding	  Guidelines	  Relating	  to	  Disadvantaged	  Communities	  for	  Administering	  Agencies	  	  
Scope:	  

Agency:	  
Process:	  
Statute:	  

Agencies	  shall	  “maximize	  benefits	  for	  disadvantaged	  communities.”	  
Air	  Resources	  Board,	  in	  consultation	  with	  CALEPA	  
ARB	  shall	  provide	  an	  “opportunity	  for	  public	  input”	  prior	  to	  final	  guidelines.	  
Public	  Resources	  Code	  §	  39715	  

4.	  	  Coordinate	  Activities	  of	  SGC	  Member	  Agencies	  that	  related	  to	  Program	  
Scope:	  

	  
Agency:	  
Process:	  
Statute:	  

Coordinate	  programs	  SGC	  members	  in	  way	  that	  is	  consistent	  with	  requirements	  for	  
disadvantaged	  communities,	  GHG	  reporting,	  and	  transit	  priority	  projects.	  
Strategic	  Growth	  Council,	  in	  consultation	  with	  Air	  Resources	  Board	  
No	  public	  process	  is	  defined	  
Public	  Resources	  Code	  §	  75200.1	  

5.	  	  Affordable	  Housing	  &	  Sustainable	  Community	  Guidelines	  and	  Selection	  Criteria	  
Scope:	  

	  
Agency:	  
Process:	  

	  
	  

Statute:	  

Develop	  guidelines	  that	  are	  consistent	  with	  extensive	  eligibility	  and	  policy	  objectives	  
included	  in	  the	  statute	  (See	  Pub.	  Resources	  §§	  75210	  to	  75214).	  
SGC	  with	  member	  agencies	  and	  departments;	  ARB,	  other	  state	  entities	  as	  needed	  
At	  least	  two	  workshops	  (one	  north,	  one	  south);	  draft	  guidelines	  published	  30	  days	  in	  
advance;	  consider	  comments	  from	  local	  and	  regional	  governments,	  stakeholders;	  conduct	  
outreach	  to	  disadvantaged	  communities.	  
Public	  Resources	  Code	  §	  75215	  

6.	  	  Guidelines	  for	  Transit	  and	  Inter-‐City	  Rail	  Capital	  Program	  
Scope:	  

Agency:	  
Process:	  
Statute:	  

Extensive	  criteria	  provided	  by	  statute	  
California	  State	  Transportation	  Agency	  
At	  least	  two	  public	  workshops	  with	  draft	  posted	  at	  least	  30	  days	  prior.	  	  	  
Public	  Resources	  Code	  §	  75222	  

7.	  	  Guidelines	  for	  Low	  Carbon	  Transit	  Operations	  Program	  
Scope:	  

	  
Agency:	  
Process:	  
Statute:	  

Develop	  guidelines	  that	  describe	  methodologies	  that	  recipient	  transit	  agencies	  shall	  use	  to	  
demonstrate	  that	  proposed	  expenditures	  will	  meet	  the	  established	  	  criteria	  
CalTrans	  (working	  with	  ARB)	  
Undefined	  	  
Public	  Resources	  Code	  Section	  75230(f)	  

	  
	   	  

241



	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
CAP	  &	  TRADE:

	  
Transit,	  Housing,	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	   	   	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  June	  23,	  2014

	   	  

www.calcog.org	   	   Page	  6	  

VI.	   ILLUSTRATIVE	  REVENUE	  ESTIMATE	  
	  
The	  “ballpark”	  projections	  below	  are	  only	  “illustrative.”	  We	  cannot	  predict	  future	  
auction	  revenues.	  	  But	  planners	  and	  economists	  make	  such	  projections	  all	  the	  
time—see	  (for	  example)	  any	  forecast	  in	  a	  regional	  transportation	  plan.	  	  The	  table	  
estimates	  revenues	  from	  FY	  14-‐15	  through	  FY	  19-‐20	  (but	  the	  two	  auctions	  in	  the	  
first	  half	  of	  FY	  20-‐21	  are	  not	  included).	  	  Its	  based	  on	  the	  following	  assumptions:	  

• Total	  Allowances.	  	  	  ARB	  has	  published	  the	  number	  of	  state	  allowances	  that	  will	  
be	  sold	  each	  year	  through	  2020.	  	  But	  this	  assumption	  may	  be	  “optimistic”	  if	  the	  
state	  elects	  to	  give	  more	  allowances	  away	  in	  lieu	  of	  sale	  if	  (for	  example)	  there	  is	  
significant	  public	  concern	  about	  the	  economic	  effects	  (e.g,	  price	  of	  gas	  increases).	  

• 75%	  Sell	  Rate	  for	  Allowances.	  	  	  Not	  all	  allowances	  sell	  at	  every	  auction.	  	  The	  table	  
below	  includes	  a	  very	  “back-‐of-‐the-‐envelope”	  guess	  that	  75%	  of	  the	  allowances	  
will	  actually	  sell.	  	  Some	  would	  call	  this	  assumption	  “conservative.”	  	  	  

• Price.	  	  Under	  current	  policy,	  the	  minimum	  price	  for	  allowances	  increases	  by	  5%	  
plus	  an	  inflation	  factor	  each	  year.	  	  This	  table	  starts	  with	  the	  minimum	  price	  in	  
the	  first	  half	  of	  FY	  14-‐15	  and	  adds	  5%	  (with	  no	  inflation	  factor)	  each	  year.	  	  The	  
LAO	  noted	  in	  its	  Cap	  and	  Trade	  Report	  for	  the	  FY	  14-‐15	  Budget	  that	  “several	  
economists”	  have	  estimated	  that	  the	  average	  price	  would	  be	  between	  $15	  and	  
$20	  per	  ton.	  	  Thus,	  this	  could	  also	  be	  a	  conservative	  assumption.	  	  	  

The	  total	  revenue	  under	  these	  assumptions	  (counting	  the	  omitted	  two	  auctions)	  is	  
approximately	  $8.8	  billion,	  well	  shy	  of	  the	  $12	  to	  $45	  billion	  range	  cited	  by	  the	  LAO.	  	  	  
Accordingly,	  the	  table	  below	  may	  be	  a	  conservative	  estimate—which	  is	  why	  they	  are	  
presented	  here	  for	  illustrative	  purposes	  only.	  	  	  
	  

FISCAL	  YEAR	   14/15	   15/16	   16/17	   18/19	   17/18	   19/20	  
Allowances	  Offered	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
(in	  millions)	   125	   195	   182	   128	   155	   68	  
75%	  Sell	  Rate	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
(in	  millions)	   93.75	   146.25	   136.5	   96	   116.25	   51	  

Minimum	  Price	   	  $11.34	  	   	  $11.91	  	   	  $12.50	  	   	  $13.78	  	   	  $13.13	  	   	  $14.47	  	  

TOTAL	  AUCTION	  
REVENUES	  	   	  $1,063,125,000	  	   	  $1,741,398,750	  	   	  $1,706,570,775	  	   	  $1,323,248,724	  	   	  $1,526,068,097	  	   	  $738,124,679	  	  

20%	  -‐	  Afford	  Housing	  &	  
Sustainable	  Communities	   	  $212,625,000	  	   	  $348,279,750	  	   	  $341,314,155	  	   	  $264,649,745	  	   	  $305,213,619	  	   	  $147,624,936	  	  
	  
10%	  	  -‐	  Transit	  Capital	   	  $106,312,500	  	   	  $174,139,875	  	   	  $170,657,078	  	   	  $132,324,872	  	   	  $152,606,810	  	   	  $73,812,468	  	  
	  

5%-‐	  Transit	  Operations	   	  $53,156,250	  	   	  $87,069,938	  	   	  $85,328,539	  	   	  $66,162,436	  	   	  $76,303,405	  	  

	  

	  $36,906,234	  	  

“SUSTAINABLE”	  TOTAL	   	  $372,093,750	  	   	  $609,489,563	  	   	  $597,299,771	  	   	  $463,137,053	  	   	  $534,123,834	  	   $258,343,638	  	  

	   	  

242



	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
CAP	  &	  TRADE:

	  
Transit,	  Housing,	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	   	   	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  June	  23,	  2014

	   	  

www.calcog.org	   	   Page	  7	  

VII.	   SELECTED	  LANGUAGE	  from	  SB	  862	  
	  
SECTION	  1.	  (a)	  The	  Legislature	  finds	  and	  declares	  all	  of	  the	  following:	  
	  	  
.	  .	  .	  .	  (omitted	  text)	  

(6)	  As	  required	  by	  existing	  law,	  the	  use	  of	  the	  moneys	  appropriated	  from	  the	  GGRF	  for	  the	  Cap-‐
and-‐Trade	  Expenditure	  Plan	  furthers	  the	  regulatory	  purposes	  of	  AB	  32	  by	  facilitating	  the	  
achievement	  of	  reductions	  in	  greenhouse	  gases	  in	  the	  state.	  The	  Cap-‐and-‐Trade	  Expenditure	  
Plan	  includes	  the	  following	  programmatic	  investment	  areas:	  
(A)	  Transit,	  Affordable	  Housing,	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities.	  
(B)	  High-‐Speed	  Rail.	  
(C)	  Low	  Carbon	  Transportation.	  
(D)	  Energy	  Efficiency	  and	  Renewable	  Energy.	  
(E)	  Natural	  Resources	  and	  Waste	  Diversion.	  
(7)	  Programs	  included	  in	  the	  Cap-‐and-‐Trade	  Expenditure	  Plan	  include	  the	  following:	  
(A)	  Expenditures	  for	  low-‐carbon	  transportation	  that	  include,	  but	  are	  not	  limited	  to,	  cleaning	  
up	  cars,	  trucks,	  buses,	  and	  freight	  movement	  to	  meet	  federally	  mandated	  clean	  air	  
requirements	  and	  long-‐term	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  reduction	  goals,	  funding	  for	  heavy-‐duty	  
freight,	  electric	  vehicle	  programs	  and	  rebates,	  and	  off-‐road	  vehicles.	  
	  
.	  .	  .	  .	  (omitted	  text)	  

(D)	  The	  Affordable	  Housing	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	  Program,	  which	  authorizes	  the	  
Strategic	  Growth	  Council	  to	  fund	  land-‐use,	  housing,	  transportation,	  and	  land	  preservation	  
projects	  to	  support	  infill	  and	  compact	  development	  that	  reduces	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions.	  
These	  projects,	  which	  were	  described	  in	  the	  AB	  32	  Scoping	  Plan,	  facilitate	  the	  reduction	  of	  the	  
emissions	  of	  greenhouse	  gases	  by	  improving	  mobility	  options	  and	  increasing	  infill	  
development,	  which	  decrease	  vehicle	  miles	  traveled	  and	  associated	  greenhouse	  gas	  and	  other	  
emissions,	  and	  by	  reducing	  land	  conversion,	  which	  would	  result	  in	  emissions	  of	  greenhouse	  
gases.	  
(E)	  The	  Transit	  and	  Intercity	  Rail	  Capital	  Program,	  which	  authorizes	  the	  California	  
Transportation	  Commission	  to	  provide	  grants,	  based	  on	  determinations	  of	  the	  Transportation	  
Agency,	  to	  fund	  capital	  improvements	  and	  operational	  investments	  that	  will	  modernize	  
California’s	  transit	  systems	  and	  intercity,	  commuter,	  and	  urban	  rail	  systems	  to	  reduce	  
emissions	  of	  greenhouse	  gases	  by	  reducing	  vehicle	  miles	  traveled	  throughout	  California.	  
(F)	  The	  Low	  Carbon	  Transit	  Operations	  Program,	  which	  authorizes	  the	  Controller	  to	  provide	  
funding	  allocations	  based	  on	  project	  evaluation	  from	  the	  Department	  of	  Transportation	  and	  
the	  State	  Air	  Resources	  Board,	  to	  fund	  operation	  investments	  to	  increase	  transit	  ridership	  and	  
reduce	  emissions	  of	  greenhouse	  gases	  by	  reducing	  vehicle	  miles	  traveled	  throughout	  
California.	  
(G)	  The	  High	  Speed	  Rail	  Program,	  which	  authorizes	  the	  High	  Speed	  Rail	  Authority	  to	  utilize	  
funds	  to	  begin	  the	  initial	  operating	  segment	  and	  the	  Phase	  I	  Blended	  System,	  and	  further	  
environmental	  and	  design	  work	  on	  the	  statewide	  high	  speed	  rail	  system.	  The	  Safe,	  Reliable	  
High-‐Speed	  Passenger	  Train	  Bond	  Act	  for	  the	  21st	  Century	  (Chapter	  20	  (commencing	  with	  
Section	  2940)	  of	  Division	  3	  of	  the	  Streets	  and	  Highways	  Code),	  approved	  by	  the	  voters	  in	  2008,	  
specifies	  that	  the	  high-‐speed	  train	  system,	  once	  it	  is	  completed	  and	  becomes	  operational,	  will	  
contribute	  significantly	  toward	  the	  goal	  of	  reducing	  emissions	  of	  greenhouse	  gases	  and	  other	  
air	  pollutants	  and	  will	  help	  reduce	  California’s	  dependence	  on	  foreign	  energy	  sources.	  As	  
recognized	  in	  the	  AB	  32	  Scoping	  Plan,	  implementation	  of	  a	  high	  speed	  rail	  system	  will	  

243



	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
CAP	  &	  TRADE:

	  
Transit,	  Housing,	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	   	   	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  June	  23,	  2014

	   	  

www.calcog.org	   	   Page	  8	  

facilitate	  the	  reduction	  of	  emissions	  of	  greenhouse	  gases	  and	  other	  air	  pollutants	  by	  providing	  
the	  foundation	  for	  a	  large-‐scale	  transformation	  of	  California’s	  transportation	  infrastructure,	  
displacing	  millions	  of	  vehicle	  miles	  traveled	  on	  the	  road,	  reducing	  demand	  for	  air	  travel,	  and	  
increasing	  train	  ridership	  to	  ensure	  that	  the	  state’s	  greenhouse	  gas	  emission	  reductions	  are	  
maintained	  and	  continued.	  
	  	  
	  .	  .	  .	  .	  .	  	  (omitted	  text)	  
	  	  
SEC.	  3.	  Section	  16428.9	  of	  the	  Government	  Code	  is	  amended	  to	  read:	  
	  
	  16428.9.	  (a)	  Prior	  to	  expending	  any	  moneys	  appropriated	  to	  it	  by	  the	  Legislature	  from	  the	  
fund,	  a	  state	  agency	  shall	  prepare	  a	  record	  consisting	  of	  all	  of	  the	  following:	  
(1)	  A	  description	  of	  each	  expenditure	  proposed	  to	  be	  made	  by	  the	  state	  agency	  pursuant	  to	  
the	  appropriation.	  
(2)	  A	  description	  of	  how	  a	  proposed	  expenditure	  will	  further	  the	  regulatory	  purposes	  of	  
Division	  25.5	  (commencing	  with	  Section	  38500)	  of	  the	  Health	  and	  Safety	  Code,	  including,	  
but	  not	  limited	  to,	  the	  limit	  established	  under	  Part	  3	  (commencing	  with	  Section	  38550)	  and	  
other	  applicable	  requirements	  of	  law.	  
(3)	  A	  description	  of	  how	  a	  proposed	  expenditure	  will	  contribute	  to	  achieving	  and	  
maintaining	  greenhouse	  gas	  emission	  reductions	  pursuant	  to	  Division	  25.5	  (commencing	  
with	  Section	  38500)	  of	  the	  Health	  and	  Safety	  Code.	  
(4)	  A	  description	  of	  how	  the	  state	  agency	  considered	  the	  applicability	  and	  feasibility	  of	  
other	  nongreenhouse	  gas	  reduction	  objectives	  of	  Division	  25.5	  (commencing	  with	  Section	  
38500)	  of	  the	  Health	  and	  Safety	  Code.	  
(5)	  A	  description	  of	  how	  the	  state	  agency	  will	  document	  the	  result	  achieved	  from	  the	  
expenditure	  to	  comply	  with	  Division	  25.5	  (commencing	  with	  Section	  35800)	  of	  the	  Health	  
and	  Safety	  Code.	  
(b)	  The	  State	  Air	  Resources	  Board	  shall	  develop	  guidance	  on	  reporting	  and	  quantification	  
methods	  for	  all	  state	  agencies	  that	  receive	  appropriations	  from	  the	  fund	  to	  ensure	  the	  
requirements	  of	  this	  section	  are	  met.	  Chapter	  3.5	  (commencing	  with	  Section	  11340)	  of	  Part	  1	  
of	  Division	  3	  does	  not	  apply	  to	  the	  procedures	  developed	  pursuant	  to	  this	  subdivision.	  
(omitted	  text)	  
	  
SEC.	  5.	  Section	  39711	  of	  the	  Health	  and	  Safety	  Code	  is	  amended	  to	  read:	  

39711.	  (a)	  The	  California	  Environmental	  Protection	  Agency	  shall	  identify	  disadvantaged	  
communities	  for	  investment	  opportunities	  related	  to	  this	  chapter.	  These	  communities	  shall	  
be	  identified	  based	  on	  geographic,	  socioeconomic,	  public	  health,	  and	  environmental	  hazard	  
criteria,	  and	  may	  include,	  but	  are	  not	  limited	  to,	  either	  of	  the	  following:	  

(1)	  Areas	  disproportionately	  affected	  by	  environmental	  pollution	  and	  other	  hazards	  that	  
can	  lead	  to	  negative	  public	  health	  effects,	  exposure,	  or	  environmental	  degradation.	  

(2)	  Areas	  with	  concentrations	  of	  people	  that	  are	  of	  low	  income,	  high	  unemployment,	  low	  
levels	  of	  homeownership,	  high	  rent	  burden,	  sensitive	  populations,	  or	  low	  levels	  of	  
educational	  attainment.	  

(b)	  The	  California	  Environmental	  Protection	  Agency	  shall	  hold	  at	  least	  one	  public	  workshop	  
prior	  to	  the	  identification	  of	  disadvantaged	  communities	  pursuant	  to	  this	  section.	  

(c)	  Chapter	  3.5	  (commencing	  with	  Section	  11340)	  of	  the	  Part	  1	  of	  Division	  3	  of	  Title	  2	  of	  the	  
Government	  Code	  does	  not	  apply	  to	  the	  identification	  of	  disadvantaged	  communities	  pursuant	  
to	  this	  section.	  

244



	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
CAP	  &	  TRADE:

	  
Transit,	  Housing,	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	   	   	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  June	  23,	  2014

	   	  

www.calcog.org	   	   Page	  9	  

SEC.	  6.	  Section	  39715	  of	  the	  Health	  and	  Safety	  Code	  is	  amended	  to	  read:	  

39715.	  (a)	  The	  state	  board,	  in	  consultation	  with	  the	  California	  Environmental	  Protection	  
Agency	  shall	  develop	  funding	  guidelines	  for	  administering	  agencies	  that	  receive	  
appropriations	  from	  the	  fund	  to	  ensure	  the	  requirements	  of	  this	  chapter	  are	  met.	  The	  
guidelines	  shall	  include	  a	  component	  for	  how	  administering	  agencies	  should	  maximize	  
benefits	  for	  disadvantaged	  communities,	  as	  described	  in	  Section	  39711.	  
(b)	  The	  state	  board	  shall	  provide	  an	  opportunity	  for	  public	  input	  prior	  to	  finalizing	  the	  
guidelines.	  
(c)	  Chapter	  3.5	  (commencing	  with	  Section	  11340)	  of	  the	  Part	  1	  of	  Division	  3	  of	  Title	  2	  of	  the	  
Government	  Code	  does	  not	  apply	  to	  the	  guidelines	  developed	  pursuant	  to	  this	  section.	  
	  
SEC.	  7.	  Section	  39719	  is	  added	  to	  the	  Health	  and	  Safety	  Code,	  to	  read:	  

39719.	  (a)	  The	  Legislature	  shall	  appropriate	  the	  annual	  proceeds	  of	  the	  fund	  for	  the	  purpose	  
of	  reducing	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  in	  this	  state	  in	  accordance	  with	  the	  requirements	  of	  
Section	  39712.	  
(b)	  To	  carry	  out	  a	  portion	  of	  the	  requirements	  of	  subdivision	  (a),	  annual	  proceeds	  are	  
continuously	  appropriated	  for	  the	  following:	  
(1)	  Beginning	  in	  the	  2015–16	  fiscal	  year,	  and	  notwithstanding	  Section	  13340	  of	  the	  
Government	  Code,	  35	  percent	  of	  annual	  proceeds	  are	  continuously	  appropriated,	  without	  
regard	  to	  fiscal	  years,	  for	  transit,	  affordable	  housing,	  and	  sustainable	  communities	  programs	  
as	  following:	  
(A)	  Ten	  percent	  of	  the	  annual	  proceeds	  of	  the	  fund	  is	  hereby	  continuously	  appropriated	  to	  the	  
Transportation	  Agency	  for	  the	  Transit	  and	  Intercity	  Rail	  Capital	  Program	  created	  by	  Part	  2	  
(commencing	  with	  Section	  75220)	  of	  Division	  44	  of	  the	  Public	  Resources	  Code.	  
(B)	  Five	  percent	  of	  the	  annual	  proceeds	  of	  the	  fund	  is	  hereby	  continuously	  appropriated	  to	  the	  
Low	  Carbon	  Transit	  Operations	  Program	  created	  by	  Part	  3	  (commencing	  with	  Section	  75230)	  
of	  Division	  44	  of	  the	  Public	  Resources	  Code.	  Funds	  shall	  be	  allocated	  by	  the	  Controller,	  
according	  to	  requirements	  of	  the	  program,	  and	  pursuant	  to	  the	  distribution	  formula	  in	  
subdivision	  (b)	  or	  (c)	  of	  Section	  99312	  of,	  and	  Sections	  99313	  and	  99314	  of,	  the	  Public	  Utilities	  
Code.	  
(C)	  Twenty	  percent	  of	  the	  annual	  proceeds	  of	  the	  fund	  is	  hereby	  continuously	  appropriated	  to	  
the	  Strategic	  Growth	  Council	  for	  the	  Affordable	  Housing	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	  
Program	  created	  by	  Part	  1	  (commencing	  with	  Section	  75200)	  of	  Division	  44	  of	  the	  Public	  
Resources	  Code.	  Of	  the	  amount	  appropriated	  in	  this	  subparagraph,	  no	  less	  than	  10	  percent	  of	  
the	  annual	  proceeds	  shall	  be	  expended	  for	  affordable	  housing,	  consistent	  with	  the	  provisions	  of	  
that	  program.	  
(2)	  Beginning	  in	  the	  2015–16	  fiscal	  year,	  notwithstanding	  Section	  13340	  of	  the	  Government	  
Code,	  25	  percent	  of	  the	  annual	  proceeds	  of	  the	  fund	  is	  hereby	  continuously	  appropriated	  to	  the	  
High-‐Speed	  Rail	  Authority	  for	  the	  following	  components	  of	  the	  initial	  operating	  segment	  and	  
Phase	  I	  Blended	  System	  as	  described	  in	  the	  2012	  business	  plan	  adopted	  pursuant	  to	  Section	  
185033	  of	  the	  Public	  Utilities	  Code:	  
(A)	  Acquisition	  and	  construction	  costs	  of	  the	  project.	  
(B)	  Environmental	  review	  and	  design	  costs	  of	  the	  project.	  
(C)	  Other	  capital	  costs	  of	  the	  project.	  
(D)	  Repayment	  of	  any	  loans	  made	  to	  the	  authority	  to	  fund	  the	  project.	  
(c)	  In	  determining	  the	  amount	  of	  annual	  proceeds	  of	  the	  fund	  for	  purposes	  of	  the	  calculation	  in	  
subdivision	  (b),	  the	  funds	  subject	  to	  Section	  39719.1	  shall	  not	  be	  included.	  
	  

245



	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
CAP	  &	  TRADE:

	  
Transit,	  Housing,	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	   	   	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  June	  23,	  2014

	   	  

www.calcog.org	   	   Page	  10	  

SEC.	  20.	  Section	  75121	  of	  the	  Public	  Resources	  Code	  is	  amended	  to	  read:	  

75121.	  (a)	  The	  Strategic	  Growth	  Council	  is	  hereby	  established	  in	  state	  government	  and	  it	  
shall	  consist	  of	  the	  Director	  of	  State	  Planning	  and	  Research,	  the	  Secretary	  of	  the	  Natural	  
Resources	  Agency,	  the	  Secretary	  for	  Environmental	  Protection,	  the	  Secretary	  of	  
Transportation,	  the	  Secretary	  of	  California	  Health	  and	  Human	  Services,	  the	  Secretary	  of	  
Business,	  Consumer	  Services,	  and	  Housing,	  the	  Secretary	  of	  Food	  and	  Agriculture,	  one	  
member	  of	  the	  public	  appointed	  by	  the	  Speaker	  of	  the	  Assembly,	  one	  member	  of	  the	  public	  
appointed	  by	  the	  Senate	  Committee	  on	  Rules,	  and	  one	  member	  of	  the	  public	  to	  be	  appointed	  
by	  the	  Governor.	  The	  public	  members	  shall	  have	  a	  background	  in	  land	  use	  planning,	  local	  
government,	  resource	  protection	  and	  management,	  or	  community	  development	  or	  
revitalization	  and	  shall	  serve	  at	  the	  pleasure	  of	  the	  appointing	  authority.	  
(b)	  Staff	  for	  the	  council	  shall	  be	  reflective	  of	  the	  council’s	  membership.	  
	  
SEC.	  21.	  Division	  44	  (commencing	  with	  Section	  75200)	  is	  added	  to	  the	  Public	  Resources	  
Code,	  to	  read:	  Transit,	  Affordable	  Housing,	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	  Program	  
	  
PART	  1.	  Affordable	  Housing	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	  
CHAPTER	  	  1.	  General	  Provisions	  

75200.	  For	  the	  purposes	  of	  this	  part,	  the	  following	  terms	  have	  the	  following	  meanings:	  
(a)	  “Council”	  means	  the	  Strategic	  Growth	  Council	  established	  pursuant	  to	  Section	  75121.	  
(b)	  “Disadvantaged	  communities”	  means	  communities	  identified	  as	  disadvantaged	  
communities	  pursuant	  to	  Section	  39711	  of	  the	  Health	  and	  Safety	  Code.	  
(c)	  “Program”	  means	  the	  Affordable	  Housing	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	  Program	  
established	  pursuant	  to	  Section	  75210.	  

75200.1.	  Consistent	  with	  Section	  75125,	  the	  council,	  in	  consultation	  with	  the	  State	  Air	  
Resources	  Board,	  shall	  review	  and	  coordinate	  the	  activities	  of	  member	  agencies	  of	  the	  council	  
for	  the	  programs	  included	  in	  this	  part.	  The	  council	  shall	  review	  these	  programs,	  including	  
grant	  guidelines	  of	  each	  program,	  consistent	  with	  Chapter	  4.1	  (commencing	  with	  Section	  
39710)	  of	  Part	  2	  of	  Division	  26	  of	  the	  Health	  and	  Safety	  Code,	  including	  the	  recommendations	  
of	  the	  investment	  plan,	  Article	  9.7	  (commencing	  with	  Section	  16428.8)	  of	  Chapter	  2	  of	  Part	  2	  of	  
Division	  4	  of	  Title	  2	  of	  the	  Government	  Code,	  and	  Chapter	  4.2	  (commencing	  with	  Section	  
21155)	  of	  Division	  13	  of	  this	  code.	  

CHAPTER	  	  2.	  Affordable	  Housing	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	  Program	  
75210.	  The	  council	  shall	  develop	  and	  administer	  the	  Affordable	  Housing	  and	  Sustainable	  
Communities	  Program	  to	  reduce	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  through	  projects	  that	  implement	  
land	  use,	  housing,	  transportation,	  and	  agricultural	  land	  preservation	  practices	  to	  support	  infill	  
and	  compact	  development,	  and	  that	  support	  related	  and	  coordinated	  public	  policy	  objectives,	  
including	  the	  following:	  
(a)	  Reducing	  air	  pollution.	  
(b)	  Improving	  conditions	  in	  disadvantaged	  communities.	  
(c)	  Supporting	  or	  improving	  public	  health	  and	  other	  cobenefits	  as	  defined	  in	  Section	  39712	  of	  
the	  Health	  and	  Safety	  Code.	  
(d)	  Improving	  connectivity	  and	  accessibility	  to	  jobs,	  housing,	  and	  services.	  
(e)	  Increasing	  options	  for	  mobility,	  including	  the	  implementation	  of	  the	  Active	  Transportation	  
Program	  established	  pursuant	  to	  Section	  2380	  of	  the	  Streets	  and	  Highways	  Code.	  
(f)	  Increasing	  transit	  ridership.	  

246



	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
CAP	  &	  TRADE:

	  
Transit,	  Housing,	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	   	   	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  June	  23,	  2014

	   	  

www.calcog.org	   	   Page	  11	  

(g)	  Preserving	  and	  developing	  affordable	  housing	  for	  lower	  income	  households,	  as	  defined	  in	  
Section	  50079.5	  of	  the	  Health	  and	  Safety	  Code.	  
(h)	  Protecting	  agricultural	  lands	  to	  support	  infill	  development.	  

75211.	  To	  be	  eligible	  for	  funding	  pursuant	  to	  the	  program,	  a	  project	  shall	  do	  all	  of	  the	  
following:	  
(a)	  Demonstrate	  that	  it	  will	  achieve	  a	  reduction	  in	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions.	  
(b)	  Support	  implementation	  of	  an	  adopted	  or	  draft	  sustainable	  communities	  strategy	  or,	  if	  a	  
sustainable	  communities	  strategy	  is	  not	  required	  for	  a	  region	  by	  law,	  a	  regional	  plan	  that	  
includes	  policies	  and	  programs	  to	  reduce	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions.	  
(c)	  Demonstrate	  consistency	  with	  the	  state	  planning	  priorities	  established	  pursuant	  to	  Section	  
65041.1	  of	  the	  Government	  Code.	  

75212.	  Projects	  eligible	  for	  funding	  pursuant	  to	  the	  program	  include	  any	  of	  the	  following:	  
(a)	  Intermodal,	  affordable	  housing	  projects	  that	  support	  infill	  and	  compact	  development.	  
(b)	  Transit	  capital	  projects	  and	  programs	  supporting	  transit	  ridership.	  
(c)	  Active	  transportation	  capital	  projects	  that	  qualify	  under	  the	  Active	  Transportation	  
Program,	  including	  pedestrian	  and	  bicycle	  facilities	  and	  supportive	  infrastructure,	  including	  
connectivity	  to	  transit	  stations.	  
(d)	  Noninfrastructure-‐related	  active	  transportation	  projects	  that	  qualify	  under	  the	  Active	  
Transportation	  Program,	  including	  activities	  that	  encourage	  active	  transportation	  goals	  
conducted	  in	  conjunction	  with	  infrastructure	  improvement	  projects.	  
(e)	  Transit-‐oriented	  development	  projects,	  including	  affordable	  housing	  and	  infrastructure	  at	  
or	  near	  transit	  stations	  or	  connecting	  those	  developments	  to	  transit	  stations.	  
(f)	  Capital	  projects	  that	  implement	  local	  complete	  streets	  programs.	  
(g)	  Other	  projects	  or	  programs	  designed	  to	  reduce	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  and	  other	  
criteria	  air	  pollutants	  by	  reducing	  automobile	  trips	  and	  vehicle	  miles	  traveled	  within	  a	  
community.	  
(h)	  Acquisition	  of	  easements	  or	  other	  approaches	  or	  tools	  that	  protect	  agricultural	  lands	  that	  
are	  under	  pressure	  of	  being	  converted	  to	  nonagricultural	  uses,	  particularly	  those	  adjacent	  to	  
areas	  most	  at	  risk	  of	  urban	  or	  suburban	  sprawl	  or	  those	  of	  special	  environmental	  significance.	  
(i)	  Planning	  to	  support	  implementation	  of	  a	  sustainable	  communities	  strategy,	  including	  
implementation	  of	  local	  plans	  supporting	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  reduction	  efforts	  and	  
promoting	  infill	  and	  compact	  development.	  

75213.	  A	  project	  eligible	  for	  funding	  pursuant	  to	  the	  program	  shall	  be	  encouraged	  to	  promote	  
the	  objectives	  of	  Section	  75210,	  and	  economic	  growth,	  reduce	  public	  fiscal	  costs,	  support	  civic	  
partnerships	  and	  stakeholder	  engagement,	  and	  integrate	  and	  leverage	  existing	  housing,	  
transportation,	  and	  land	  use	  programs	  and	  resources.	  

75214.	  In	  implementing	  the	  program,	  the	  council	  shall	  support	  the	  goals	  established	  pursuant	  
to	  Chapter	  830	  of	  the	  Statutes	  of	  2012	  by	  ensuring	  a	  programmatic	  goal	  of	  expending	  50	  
percent	  of	  program	  expenditure	  for	  projects	  benefiting	  disadvantaged	  communities.	  To	  the	  
extent	  feasible,	  the	  council	  shall	  coordinate	  outreach	  to	  promote	  access	  and	  program	  
participation	  in	  disadvantaged	  communities.	  

75215.	  (a)	  Prior	  to	  awarding	  funds	  under	  the	  program,	  the	  council,	  in	  coordination	  with	  the	  
member	  agencies	  and	  departments	  of	  the	  council,	  the	  State	  Air	  Resources	  Board,	  and	  other	  
state	  entities,	  as	  needed,	  shall	  develop	  guidelines	  and	  selection	  criteria	  for	  the	  implementation	  

247



	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
CAP	  &	  TRADE:

	  
Transit,	  Housing,	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	   	   	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  June	  23,	  2014

	   	  

www.calcog.org	   	   Page	  12	  

of	  the	  program.	  
(b)	  Prior	  to	  adoption	  of	  the	  guidelines	  and	  the	  selection	  criteria,	  the	  council	  shall	  conduct	  at	  
least	  two	  public	  workshops	  to	  receive	  and	  consider	  public	  comments.	  One	  workshop	  shall	  be	  
held	  at	  a	  location	  in	  northern	  California	  and	  one	  workshop	  shall	  be	  held	  at	  a	  location	  in	  
southern	  California.	  
(c)	  The	  council	  shall	  publish	  the	  draft	  guidelines	  and	  selection	  criteria	  on	  its	  Internet	  Web	  site	  
at	  least	  30	  days	  prior	  to	  the	  public	  meetings.	  
(d)	  In	  adopting	  the	  guidelines	  and	  selection	  criteria,	  the	  council	  shall	  consider	  the	  comments	  
from	  local	  governments,	  regional	  agencies,	  and	  other	  stakeholders.	  The	  council	  shall	  conduct	  
outreach	  to	  disadvantaged	  communities	  to	  encourage	  comments	  on	  the	  draft	  guidelines	  from	  
those	  communities.	  
(e)	  Program	  guidelines	  may	  be	  revised	  by	  the	  council	  to	  reflect	  changes	  in	  program	  focus	  or	  
need.	  Outreach	  to	  stakeholders	  shall	  be	  conducted,	  pursuant	  to	  subdivisions	  (a),	  (b),	  and	  (c)	  
before	  the	  council	  adopts	  changes	  to	  guidelines.	  
(f)	  Upon	  the	  adoption	  of	  the	  guidelines	  and	  selection	  criteria,	  the	  council	  shall,	  pursuant	  to	  
Section	  9795	  of	  the	  Government	  Code,	  submit	  copies	  of	  the	  guidelines	  to	  the	  fiscal	  and	  
appropriate	  policy	  committees	  of	  the	  Legislature.	  
(g)	  Chapter	  3.5	  (commencing	  with	  Section	  11340)	  of	  Part	  1	  of	  Division	  3	  of	  Title	  2	  of	  the	  
Government	  Code	  does	  not	  apply	  to	  the	  development	  and	  adoption	  of	  the	  guidelines	  and	  
selection	  criteria	  pursuant	  to	  this	  section.	  

75216.	  (a)	  The	  council	  shall	  leverage	  the	  programmatic	  and	  administrative	  expertise	  of	  
relevant	  state	  departments	  and	  agencies	  in	  implementing	  the	  program.	  
(b)	  The	  council	  shall	  coordinate	  with	  the	  metropolitan	  planning	  organizations	  and	  other	  
regional	  agencies	  to	  identify	  and	  recommend	  projects	  within	  their	  respective	  jurisdictions	  that	  
best	  reflect	  the	  goals	  and	  objectives	  of	  this	  division.	  

75217.	  The	  executive	  director	  of	  the	  council	  shall	  report	  the	  progress	  on	  the	  implementation	  
of	  the	  program	  in	  its	  annual	  report	  required	  pursuant	  to	  subdivision	  (e)	  of	  Section	  75125.	  

PART	  2.	  Transit	  and	  Intercity	  Rail	  Capital	  Program	  
75220.	  (a)	  The	  Transit	  and	  Intercity	  Rail	  Capital	  Program	  is	  hereby	  created	  to	  fund	  capital	  
improvements	  and	  operational	  investments	  that	  will	  reduce	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions,	  
modernize	  California’s	  intercity,	  commuter,	  and	  urban	  rail	  systems	  to	  achieve	  all	  of	  the	  
following	  policy	  objectives:	  
(1)	  Reduce	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions.	  
(2)	  Expand	  and	  improve	  rail	  service	  to	  increase	  ridership.	  
(3)	  Integrate	  the	  rail	  service	  of	  the	  state’s	  various	  rail	  operators,	  including	  integration	  with	  
the	  high-‐speed	  rail	  system.	  
(4)	  Improve	  rail	  safety.	  
(b)	  The	  Transportation	  Agency	  shall	  evaluate	  applications	  for	  funding	  under	  the	  program	  
consistent	  with	  the	  criteria	  set	  forth	  in	  this	  chapter	  and	  prepare	  a	  list	  of	  projects	  
recommended	  for	  funding.	  The	  list	  may	  be	  revised	  at	  any	  time.	  
(c)	  The	  California	  Transportation	  Commission	  shall	  award	  grants	  to	  applicants	  pursuant	  to	  
the	  list	  prepared	  by	  the	  Transportation	  Agency.	  

75221.	  (a)	  Projects	  eligible	  for	  funding	  under	  the	  program	  include,	  but	  are	  not	  limited	  to,	  all	  
of	  the	  following:	  
(1)	  Rail	  capital	  projects,	  including	  acquisition	  of	  rail	  cars	  and	  locomotives,	  that	  expand,	  

248



	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
CAP	  &	  TRADE:

	  
Transit,	  Housing,	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	   	   	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  June	  23,	  2014

	   	  

www.calcog.org	   	   Page	  13	  

enhance,	  and	  improve	  existing	  rail	  systems	  and	  connectivity	  to	  existing	  and	  future	  rail	  systems,	  
including	  the	  high-‐speed	  rail	  system.	  
(2)	  Intercity	  and	  commuter	  rail	  projects	  that	  increase	  service	  levels,	  improve	  reliability,	  and	  
decrease	  travel	  times.	  
(3)	  Rail	  integration	  implementation,	  including	  integrated	  ticketing	  and	  scheduling	  systems,	  
shared-‐use	  corridors,	  related	  planning	  efforts,	  and	  other	  service	  integration	  initiatives.	  
(4)	  Bus	  rapid	  transit	  and	  other	  bus	  transit	  investments	  to	  increase	  ridership	  and	  reduce	  
greenhouse	  gas	  emissions.	  
(b)	  In	  order	  to	  be	  eligible	  for	  funding	  under	  the	  program,	  a	  project	  shall	  demonstrate	  that	  it	  
will	  achieve	  a	  reduction	  in	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions.	  
(c)	  The	  program	  shall	  have	  a	  programmatic	  goal	  of	  providing	  at	  least	  25	  percent	  of	  available	  
funding	  to	  projects	  benefiting	  disadvantaged	  communities,	  consistent	  with	  the	  objectives	  of	  
Chapter	  830	  of	  the	  Statutes	  of	  2012.	  
(d)	  In	  evaluating	  grant	  applications	  for	  funding,	  the	  Transportation	  Agency	  shall	  consider	  
both	  of	  the	  following:	  
(1)	  The	  cobenefits	  of	  projects	  that	  support	  implementation	  of	  sustainable	  communities	  
strategies	  through	  one	  or	  more	  of	  the	  following:	  
(A)	  Reducing	  auto	  vehicles	  miles	  traveled	  through	  growth	  in	  rail	  ridership.	  
(B)	  Promoting	  housing	  development	  in	  the	  vicinity	  of	  rail	  stations.	  
(C)	  Expanding	  existing	  rail	  and	  public	  transit	  systems.	  
(D)	  Implementing	  clean	  vehicle	  technology.	  
(E)	  Promoting	  active	  transportation.	  
(F)	  Improving	  public	  health.	  
(2)	  The	  project	  priorities	  developed	  through	  the	  collaboration	  of	  two	  or	  more	  rail	  operators	  
and	  any	  memoranda	  of	  understanding	  between	  state	  agencies	  and	  local	  or	  regional	  rail	  
operators.	  
(3)	  Geographic	  equity.	  
(4)	  Consistency	  with	  the	  adopted	  sustainable	  communities	  strategies	  and	  the	  
recommendations	  of	  regional	  agencies.	  
(e)	  Eligible	  applicants	  under	  the	  program	  shall	  be	  public	  agencies,	  including	  joint	  powers	  
agencies,	  that	  operate	  existing	  or	  planned	  regularly	  scheduled	  intercity	  or	  commuter	  
passenger	  rail	  service	  or	  urban	  rail	  transit	  service.	  An	  eligible	  applicant	  may	  partner	  with	  
transit	  operators	  that	  do	  not	  operate	  rail	  service	  on	  projects	  to	  integrate	  ticketing	  and	  
scheduling	  with	  bus	  or	  ferry	  service.	  
(f)	  A	  recipient	  of	  funds	  under	  the	  program	  may	  combine	  funding	  from	  the	  program	  with	  other	  
funding,	  including,	  but	  not	  limited	  to,	  the	  State	  Transportation	  Improvement	  Program,	  the	  
Low	  Carbon	  Transit	  Operations	  Program,	  the	  State	  Air	  Resources	  Board	  clean	  vehicle	  
program,	  and	  state	  transportation	  bond	  funds.	  

75222.	  (a)	  Applications	  for	  grants	  under	  the	  program	  shall	  be	  submitted	  to	  the	  
Transportation	  Agency	  for	  evaluation	  in	  accordance	  with	  procedures	  and	  program	  guidelines	  
adopted	  by	  the	  agency.	  
(b)	  The	  Transportation	  Agency	  shall	  conduct	  at	  least	  two	  public	  workshops	  on	  draft	  program	  
guidelines	  containing	  selection	  criteria	  prior	  to	  adoption	  and	  shall	  post	  the	  draft	  guidelines	  on	  
the	  agency’s	  Internet	  Web	  site	  at	  least	  30	  days	  prior	  to	  the	  first	  public	  workshop.	  Concurrent	  
with	  the	  posting,	  the	  agency	  shall	  transmit	  the	  draft	  guidelines	  to	  the	  fiscal	  committees	  and	  to	  
the	  appropriate	  policy	  committees	  of	  the	  Legislature.	  

249



	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
CAP	  &	  TRADE:

	  
Transit,	  Housing,	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	   	   	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  June	  23,	  2014

	   	  

www.calcog.org	   	   Page	  14	  

(c)	  Chapter	  3.5	  (commencing	  with	  Section	  11340)	  of	  Part	  1	  of	  Division	  3	  of	  Title	  2	  of	  the	  
Government	  Code	  does	  not	  apply	  to	  the	  development	  and	  adoption	  of	  procedures	  and	  program	  
guidelines	  for	  the	  program	  pursuant	  to	  this	  section.	  

PART	  3.	  Low	  Carbon	  Transit	  Operations	  Program	  
75230.	  (a)	  The	  Low	  Carbon	  Transit	  Operations	  Program	  is	  hereby	  created	  to	  provide	  
operating	  and	  capital	  assistance	  for	  transit	  agencies	  to	  reduce	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  and	  
improve	  mobility,	  with	  a	  priority	  on	  serving	  disadvantaged	  communities.	  
(b)	  Funding	  for	  the	  program	  is	  continuously	  appropriated	  pursuant	  to	  Section	  39719	  of	  the	  
Health	  and	  Safety	  Code	  from	  the	  Greenhouse	  Gas	  Reduction	  Fund	  established	  pursuant	  to	  
Section	  16428.8	  of	  the	  Government	  Code.	  
(c)	  Funding	  shall	  be	  allocated	  by	  the	  Controller	  consistent	  with	  the	  requirements	  of	  this	  part	  
and	  with	  Section	  39719	  of	  the	  Health	  and	  Safety	  Code,	  upon	  a	  determination	  by	  the	  
Department	  of	  Transportation	  that	  the	  expenditures	  proposed	  by	  a	  transit	  agency	  meet	  the	  
requirements	  of	  this	  part	  and	  guidelines	  developed	  pursuant	  to	  subdivision	  (f),	  and	  the	  amount	  
of	  funding	  requested	  that	  is	  currently	  available.	  
(d)	  Moneys	  for	  the	  program	  shall	  be	  expended	  to	  provide	  transit	  operating	  or	  capital	  
assistance	  that	  meets	  all	  of	  the	  following	  criteria:	  
(1)	  Expenditures	  supporting	  new	  or	  expanded	  bus	  or	  rail	  services,	  or	  expanded	  intermodal	  
transit	  facilities,	  and	  may	  include	  equipment	  acquisition,	  fueling,	  and	  maintenance,	  and	  other	  
costs	  to	  operate	  those	  services	  or	  facilities.	  
(2)	  The	  recipient	  transit	  agency	  demonstrates	  that	  each	  expenditure	  directly	  enhances	  or	  
expands	  transit	  service	  to	  increase	  mode	  share.	  
(3)	  The	  recipient	  transit	  agency	  demonstrates	  that	  each	  expenditure	  reduces	  greenhouse	  gas	  
emissions.	  
(e)	  For	  transit	  agencies	  whose	  service	  areas	  include	  disadvantaged	  communities	  as	  identified	  
pursuant	  to	  Section	  39711	  of	  the	  Health	  and	  Safety	  Code,	  at	  least	  50	  percent	  of	  the	  total	  
moneys	  received	  pursuant	  to	  this	  chapter	  shall	  be	  expended	  on	  projects	  or	  services	  that	  meet	  
requirements	  of	  subdivision	  (d)	  and	  benefit	  the	  disadvantaged	  communities,	  consistent	  with	  
the	  guidance	  developed	  by	  the	  State	  Air	  Resources	  Board	  pursuant	  to	  Section	  39715	  of	  the	  
Health	  and	  Safety	  Code.	  
(f)	  The	  Department	  of	  Transportation,	  in	  coordination	  with	  the	  State	  Air	  Resources	  Board,	  
shall	  develop	  guidelines	  that	  describe	  the	  methodologies	  that	  recipient	  transit	  agencies	  shall	  
use	  to	  demonstrate	  that	  proposed	  expenditures	  will	  meet	  the	  criteria	  in	  subdivisions	  (d)	  and	  
(e)	  and	  establish	  the	  reporting	  requirements	  for	  documenting	  ongoing	  compliance	  with	  those	  
criteria.	  
(g)	  Chapter	  3.5	  (commencing	  with	  Section	  11340)	  of	  Part	  1	  of	  Division	  3	  of	  Title	  2	  of	  the	  
Government	  Code	  does	  not	  apply	  to	  the	  development	  of	  guidelines	  for	  the	  program	  pursuant	  to	  
this	  section.	  
(h)	  A	  transit	  agency	  shall	  submit	  the	  following	  information	  to	  the	  Department	  of	  
Transportation	  before	  seeking	  a	  disbursement	  of	  funds	  pursuant	  to	  this	  part:	  
(1)	  A	  list	  of	  proposed	  expense	  types	  for	  anticipated	  funding	  levels.	  
(2)	  The	  documentation	  required	  by	  the	  guidelines	  in	  developed	  pursuant	  to	  subdivision	  (f)	  to	  
demonstrate	  compliance	  with	  subdivisions	  (d)	  and	  (e).	  
(i)	  Before	  authorizing	  the	  disbursement	  of	  funds,	  the	  department,	  in	  coordination	  with	  the	  
State	  Air	  Resources	  Board,	  shall	  determine	  the	  eligibility,	  in	  whole	  or	  in	  part,	  of	  the	  proposed	  
list	  of	  expense	  types,	  based	  on	  the	  documentation	  provided	  by	  the	  recipient	  transit	  agency	  to	  
ensure	  ongoing	  compliance	  with	  the	  guidelines	  developed	  pursuant	  to	  subdivision	  (f).	  

250



	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
CAP	  &	  TRADE:

	  
Transit,	  Housing,	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	   	   	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  June	  23,	  2014

	   	  

www.calcog.org	   	   Page	  15	  

(j)	  The	  department	  shall	  notify	  the	  Controller	  of	  approved	  expenditures	  for	  each	  transit	  
agency,	  and	  the	  amount	  of	  the	  allocation	  for	  each	  transit	  agency	  determined	  to	  be	  available	  at	  
that	  time	  of	  approval.	  
(k)	  The	  recipient	  transit	  agency	  shall	  provide	  annual	  reports	  to	  the	  Department	  of	  
Transportation,	  in	  the	  format	  and	  manner	  prescribed	  by	  the	  department,	  consistent	  with	  the	  
internal	  administrative	  procedures	  for	  use	  of	  fund	  proceeds	  developed	  by	  the	  State	  Air	  
Resources	  Board.	  
(l)	  The	  Department	  of	  Transportation	  and	  recipient	  transit	  agencies	  shall	  comply	  with	  the	  
guidelines	  developed	  by	  the	  State	  Air	  Resources	  Board	  pursuant	  to	  Section	  39715	  of	  the	  Health	  
and	  Safety	  Code	  to	  ensure	  that	  the	  requirements	  of	  Section	  39714	  of	  the	  Health	  and	  Safety	  
Code	  are	  met	  to	  maximize	  the	  benefits	  to	  disadvantaged	  communities	  as	  described	  in	  Section	  
39711	  of	  the	  Health	  and	  Safety	  Code.	  
	  
	  

VIII.	   SB	  852	  (FY	  14-‐15	  Budget	  Allocations)	  
	  
A.	   For	  Affordable	  Housing	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	  

0650-‐101-‐3228—For	  local	  assistance,	  Office	  of	  Planning	  and	  Research,	  Program	  31-‐
Strategic	  Growth	  Council	  (	  )	  .....................................................................................$129,201,000	  
1. The	  funds	  appropriated	  in	  this	  item	  may	  be	  	  available	  for	  transfer	  to	  the	  

Department	  of	  Transportation,	  the	  Department	  of	  Housing	  and	  Community	  
Development,	  the	  Department	  of	  Conservation,	  and	  the	  Natural	  Resources	  
Agency	  for	  support	  costs	  and	  local	  assistance	  associated	  with	  administering	  the	  
affordable	  housing	  and	  sustainable	  communities	  program.	  	  

2. Notwithstanding	  any	  other	  provision	  of	  law,	  the	  funds	  appropriated	  in	  this	  item	  
shall	  be	  available	  for	  expenditure	  and	  encumbrance	  until	  June	  30,	  2017,	  for	  
support	  and	  local	  assistance.	  

	  
B.	   State	  Transit	  Assistance	  (Low	  Carbon	  Transit	  Operations)	  
	  
2640-101-3228—For local assistance, State Transit Assistance, for allocation by the 
Controller pursuant to subdivisions (b) and (c) of Section 99312, Section 99313, and 
Section 99314 of the Public Utilities Code ( )…………………….………$25,000,000 

1. Notwithstanding Sections 99313 and 99314 of the Public Utilities Code, not more 
than $14,355 of the amount appropriated in this item shall reimburse the Controller 
for expenditures for administration of State Transit Assistance funds.  

2. Funds appropriated in this item shall not be allocated prior to the enactment of 
implementing legislation and fulfillment of any specified requirement of that 
legislation. This implementing legislation shall establish requirements that funds��� be 
used to support additional transit services that���result in additional greenhouse gas 
emission reductions to further the regulatory purposes of the California Global 
Warming Solutions Act of 2006, in accordance with Chapter 4.1 (commencing with 
Section 39710) of Part 2 of Division 26 of the Health and Safety Code, including the 
recommendations of the investment plan, and Article 9.7 (commencing with Section 
16428.8) of Chapter 2 of Part 2 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the Government Code. 

251



	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
CAP	  &	  TRADE:

	  
Transit,	  Housing,	  and	  Sustainable	  Communities	   	   	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  June	  23,	  2014

	   	  

www.calcog.org	   	   Page	  16	  

C. Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program 
Page 117 -118.  2660-101-3228—For local assistance, Department of Transportation, 
payable from the Greenhouse Gas��� Reduction Fund .... 24,791,000  

1. Funds appropriated in this item shall be available ���for transit and intercity rail capital 
programs for allocation by the California Transportation Commission until June 30, 
2016, and available for encumbrance and liquidation until June 30, 2020. 

2.  Notwithstanding any other provision of law, funds appropriated in this item may be 
transferred to Item 2660-301-3228. These transfers shall require the prior approval of 
the Department of Finance.  

	  
D.	   General	  Provision	  Relating	  to	  Timing	  of	  Allocations	  

(Page 683)   SEC. 15.13. (a) Any appropriation from the Greenhouse Gas 
Reduction Fund, except for (1) appropriations in Items 2665-301-3228 and 2665- 
306-3228 and (2) appropriations for state operations expenditures necessary for 
program administration, including statewide coordination and reporting activities 
by the State Air Resources Board for cap and trade expenditures, shall be subject 
to the restrictions specified in subdivision (b). 

(b) No department shall encumber or commit more than 75 percent of any 
appropriation prior to the fourth cap and trade auction in the 2014–15 fiscal year. 
Upon determination of the final amount of auction proceeds after the fourth cap 
and trade auction, the Department of Finance shall make a final determination for 
the expenditure of the remaining auction proceeds. The Department of Finance 
shall notify the Joint Legislative Budget Committee no later than 30 days after the 
final determination. 

	  

252



Agenda Item 12.B 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 

 
 
 
DATE:  June 16, 2014 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Andrew Hart, Associate Planner 
RE:  I-80/I-680/State Route (SR) 12 Interchange – Bicycle Facility Improvements  
 
 
Background: 
The I-80/I-680/SR 12 Interchange, located along the I-80 corridor in Solano County, is one of 
the busiest in Northern California.  Each day, the volume of cars, buses, and trucks exceed the 
roadway’s capacity, causing long delays and back-ups, particularly during commute hours. 
Improving this major bottleneck is a top priority for Solano County and the State of California.  
 
For many years, the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), in cooperation with the 
Solano Transportation Authority (STA), Solano County, and the cities of Fairfield and Suisun 
City, has been evaluating a variety of alternatives to improve local and regional mobility and 
safety within the corridor.  
 
The entirety of the interchange complex includes local roads, on-ramps, and off-ramps, and 
overcrossings. The added infrastructure will be used by cars, busses, bicycles, and pedestrians. 
The effected infrastructure includes Green Valley Road, Business Center Drive, Lopes Road, and 
Red Top Road in addition to Interstates 80, and 680, and State Route 12. 
 
Alternative C, Phase 1 was selected as the preferred alternative. The ground breaking was held 
on June 2, 2014 for the Initial Construction Package. The complete project will be build with a 
total of 7 packages.  
 
Discussion: 
Currently, this area has many challenges for bicyclists and pedestrians alike. To name a few, the 
Green Valley Road overpass that becomes Lopes Road is restrictive to bicyclists and pedestrians 
because of the narrow sidewalks and no shoulder to act as a buffer to passing cars. Additionally 
the poor, deteriorating condition of the Class I bike path north of I-80 connection Green Valley 
to Jameson Canyon makes it nearly impassible. Most phases of the interchange project will add 
new, safe facilities that serve non-motorized transportation.  
 
The following are bicycle and pedestrian challenges during construction followed by planned 
improvements that the interchange project delivers. The improvements mentioned are also 
planned in the Fairfield Bicycle Circulation Plan.  
 
Package 1 – Phase 1 
During construction, the Class I bike path north of I-80 (behind Costco) becomes a staging area. 
As a result, a temporary closure of this Class 1 facility is necessary. Additionally, Green Valley 
Road just north of I-80 will be under construction as well due to the required re-alignment of this 
section of road.  Package 1 offers the following improvements upon completion:

253



• Ample sidewalks and shoulders on the new bridge connecting Green Valley Road and 
Lopes Road/I-680 

• Class I bike path from Business Center Drive to the newly constructed State Route 
12/Jameson Canyon Road 

• Class II shoulders on east- and west-bound sides of State Route 12/Jameson Canyon 
Road 

 
Package 2 
Lopes Road near Rodriguez High School will be re-aligned, which may cause disruptions in the 
bicycle circulation pattern. After Package 2 concludes, the following improvements are offered: 
 

• Class II bike lane on Lopes Road from Pascal Court south to Red Top Road 
 
The most significant impact to the bicyclist community will likely be the time period from June 
2014 until approximately November 2015.  During that time, there will be no direct, safe access 
to the north side of SR 12/Jameson Canyon.  Access across the existing Green Valley Road 
overcrossing will be maintained, but nearby construction activity may result in uneven pavement, 
more restricted lanes and additional distractions for drivers that may make use of this facility by 
bicyclists less attractive.  STA staff will continue to work with the project contractor, the local 
bicycling community as represented by the STA Bicycle Advisory Committee, and other 
interested parties in order to identify and implement an access plan during the construction phase 
that accommodates all users of the area.  At the STA Board meeting, staff will provide a 
summary presentation of the phased bicycle improvements associated with phases of the 
interchange.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None at this time. 
 
Recommendation: 
Informational. 

254



Agenda Item 12.C 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE: June 26, 2014 
TO: STA Board 
FROM: Sofia Recalde, Associate Planner 
RE: Solano Rail Facilities Plan Update  
 
 

Background: 
In March 2014, the STA began work on the Solano Rail Facilities with assistance from a 
consultant team led by Menzies & McCrossan.  The objectives of the plan are to: 

• Evaluate the demand for freight facilities in Solano County; 
• Update the 1995 Rail Facilities Plan and examine the potential for new rail stations on 

the Capitol Corridor line and for improving ridership and service at existing and 
planned rail stations; 

• Consider investment opportunities to improve safety and throughput, and to combat 
the effects of sea-level rise; and 

• Evaluate the potential for Napa-Solano passenger rail connections. 
 

The purpose is to develop a plan that can assist STA and local jurisdictions in making 
policies and local land use decisions to support future passenger and freight rail activity.  The 
Plan has a 10-year life horizon.   
 
A Rail Technical Advisory Committee (RTAC) was established to provide input and 
feedback as elements of the Plan are developed.  The RTAC consists of Planning and Public 
Works staff from cities whose boundaries contain rail facilities, as well as representatives 
from Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (NCTPA), Capitol Corridor Joint 
Powers Authority (CCJPA) and Solano Economic Development Corporation (Solano EDC).  
Since the beginning of this Plan, the RTAC has met twice and intends to meet monthly 
starting in July until the conclusion of this Plan in December 2014.   
 
Discussion: 
Demand for Freight Rail 
A draft of the Demand for Freight Rail chapter (Attachment A) was presented to the RTAC 
on May 20.  RTAC members were given two weeks to provide feedback on the plan.  
Comments have not yet been incorporated in the attached draft. 
 
The freight rail chapter identified the following: 

• Existing and future (10-year) service activity for current and former freight rail served 
businesses; 

• Former rail served lines that could potentially be reactivated; 
• Locations for future rail served businesses; and 
• Rail demand at the site level based on commodity trends and forecasts 
• Current and future bottlenecks 
• Considerations of future demand for freight rail

255



The existing rail infrastructure and the nature of rail served businesses in Solano County 
suggests that there is capacity to accommodate freight rail growth.  The current level of 
freight service along the Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) mainline is 15-25 trains daily per 
day, which is below pre-recession levels of up to 40 freight trains per day.  Currently, the 
number of passenger rail trains (34) along UPRR mainline exceeds freight movements.   
 
There are 17 active and 10 inactive rail-served businesses in Solano County. The majority of 
inbound/outbound commodities generated by Solano County can be categorized as liquid 
non-petroleum chemicals, plastic feedstock, beverage manufacturing, and automotive. These 
commodity trends typically track the health of the overall economy and are expected to 
increase 2-7% annually over the next 10 years. Rail served businesses appear to be operating 
at 30-60% of current capacity, suggesting that businesses can endure the maximum projected 
growth.  
 
The exception to this trend is crude oil by rail.  This commodity is growing much faster than 
any other in the United States.  The City of Benicia is currently undergoing an environmental 
review process for the Valero Crude by Rail project, which proposes to transport up to 
70,000 barrels of crude oil in 1-2 trains per day.  This Plan will highlight the safety concerns 
of transporting crude oil rail in the context of national policy discussions regarding public 
health and safety.   
 
The Plan identifies several factors for potential future sites for rail-served businesses, 
including local land use/zoning designation, the quantity of traffic the business would 
generate and type of commodity.  As such, four sites have the potential for large-scale freight 
rail service including the Vallejo Marine Terminal, Fairfield General Plan Areas 6A and 6B, 
Cordelia (south of Busch plant), and the unincorporated area north of Dixon.   
 
Currently, there are three rail bottleneck areas in Solano County.  The most significant delays 
occur at the Suisun Bay Bridge when the drawbridge needs to be lifted.  Although it is 
outside the county (in Yolo County), speed reductions along the Davis Curve can also cause 
delays within Solano County.  There are no current plans to address the delays at the Suisun 
Bay Bridge or Davis Curve.  Finally, delays around Tolenas Industrial Park will soon be 
alleviated with the Fairfield station siding project.   
 
Future bottlenecks on the Mare Island Causeway can be anticipated with the reintroduction 
of freight service on Mare Island, depending on the service frequency.  Delays can also be 
anticipated at Vallejo Marine Terminal since that track route to the Terminal contains several 
at-grade crossings.  Information gleaned in upcoming tasks for this Plan may uncover 
additional bottlenecks.   
 
The chapter concludes by noting that while local jurisdictions can zone and plan for rail 
served business, some things are outside local control.  For instance, the mode choice and 
routes for major growth commodities (e.g., crude oil) change frequently.  In addition, future 
negotiations to increase passenger rail service along UPRR would impact freight rail.  
 
Capitol Corridor Update 
The potential for additional rail stops along the Capitol Corridor is the next task to be 
addressed by this Plan.  The DRAFT technical memo (Attachment B) describes the current 
CCJPA criteria for new rail stations and proposes Solano-specific criteria to help guide 
decision-making and funding for future passenger stations in Solano County.  
 

256



CCJPA updated its policies for new train stations in 2006, well after the original 1995 Rail 
Facilities Plan. These policies include minimum station standards for ridership, station 
platform length, accessibility, passenger amenities, and safety and security, as well as having 
the support of the UPRR and a funding plan. The memo acknowledges that even if a city’s 
proposal meets CCJPA criteria, CCJPA may require additional measures in order to maintain 
total travel time, system-wide ridership, on-time performance, etc. 
 
The suggested Solano specific criteria incorporate CCJPA policies and establish 
requirements to ensure transit connectivity, accessibility, capital and operations/maintenance 
funding plan to support a new facility, and that the new rail stations are consistent with 
regional planning and funding requirements.  
  
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
Informational. 

 
Attachments: 

A. Draft Solano Rail Facilities Plan Update (dated May 2014) – Task 3 Technical 
Memorandum: Demand for Freight Rail in Solano (This attachment has been 
provided to the STA Board Members under separate enclosure.  For immediate 
review and/or printing, please click here:  Draft Solano Rail Facilities Plan Update 
(dated May 2014) 

B. Draft Criteria for New Station Development  
 
 

257

http://www.sta.ca.gov/docManager/1000004865/12.Ca_Att%20A_%20Demand%20for%20Freight%20Rail.pdf
http://www.sta.ca.gov/docManager/1000004865/12.Ca_Att%20A_%20Demand%20for%20Freight%20Rail.pdf


  DRAFT Memorandum: Potential Passenger Station Criteria In Solano County    Page 1 of 10 
!!
!

DRAFT 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
Subject: POTENTIAL PASSENGER STATION CRITERIA IN SOLANO COUNTY 
To:  Sofia Recalde, STA Project Manager, Solano Rail Facilities Plan Update 2014 

From:  David McCrossan, Consultant PM, Solano Rail Facilities Plan Update 2014 

Date: 6/11/14 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The purpose of this technical memorandum is to: 
 

1. Summarize the status of current and committed passenger rail stations in 
Solano County.  

 
2. Describe the current criteria guiding the establishment of passenger rail stations 

and Solano County (via the Capitol Corridor station guidelines). 
 

3. Outline potential Solano-specific criteria that could help guide the decision-
making and funding process for future passenger stations in the County. 

 
 
1. CURRENT AND COMMITTED PASSENGER STATIONS  (Exhibit Map A) 
 
Currently there is one station with regular passenger service in the county (see Exhibit 
A), Suisun-Fairfield, with 200,400 users annually in FY2012-131. The station is served by 
all Capitol Corridor trains both eastbound serving destinations from Davis, east to 
Sacramento (and ultimately Auburn), and westbound to Oakland and other Bay Area 
destinations, ultimately San Jose, with service as follows: 
 

Current Level of Capitol Corridor Service: Suisun-Fairfield Station 
 

Direction of Travel Weekdays Weekends/ 
Holidays: 

Level of service:  
Westbound 15 trains 11 trains 
Eastbound 15 trains 11 trains 

Span of service:  
Westbound 5:09am-9:49pm 6:19am-9:49pm 
Eastbound 6:33am-11:13pm 8:28am-11:23pm 

 

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
1!Amtrak!Govt.!Affairs!Fact!Sheet,!FY!2012!State!of!California!

258

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



  DRAFT Memorandum: Potential Passenger Station Criteria In Solano County    Page 2 of 10 
!!
!

 
In addition to Capitol Corridor trains there are also four daily Amtrak long distance trains 
(serving the Bay Area to Chicago and Seattle to Southern California routes, which pass 
through Fairfield-Suisun and do not currently stop in the County. The nearest station 
stops by the Amtrak long-distance services are in Martinez and Davis. The Suisun-
Fairfield Station is the highest used station on the corridor that is unstaffed.  STA is 
currently in discussions with Suisun City about staffing the station. 
 
There is also an additional winter-only service (Sierra Scenic Snow Train on weekends 
and midweek Reno Fun Train) that runs during ski season between Emeryville and 
Reno, which makes stops in both directions at Suisun-Fairfield. 
 
The County's sole station stop was established in 1991, when Capitol Corridor service 
began, and has been served by additional services on every occasion that these have 
been expanded.  
 
1.1. Current station facility—Suisun-Fairfield Station 
 
Staffing: The Suisun-Fairfield station is currently unstaffed, with ticket vending 
machines available during opening hours. Most of the smaller stations on the Capitol 
Corridor, with the exception of the terminal stations and some larger cities, are unstaffed. 
 
The station has a modern depot building, rehabilitated from a 100-year old station 
structure, and offering passenger waiting and restroom services. A café in the passenger 
waiting area is staffed daily 6am-6pm. 
 
Parking: There are approximately 300 spaces and the park and ride lot at Main 
Street//Lotz Way, with additional on street parking. 
 
Bike and pedestrian access is via Main Street and Railroad Ave.  Access to downtown 
Fairfield is currently via a pedestrian bridge crossing the tracks under SR-12 to Union 
Ave. 
 
Connecting transit service: The station is served by local Fairfield and Suisun Transit 
(FAST) and Solano Express with two FAST routes connecting all trains (not a timed 
transfer) with local route destinations in Fairfield and Suisun City: Route 5 operates on 
30 minute frequency 6am-7pm and some Route 7 services on school days. Solano 
Express Route 90 connects the station with destinations west to El Cerrito Del Norte 
BART. Vine Transit makes  seven weekday stops at the station on its Route 21 service 
to Napa. Both Greyhound (west to Oakland/Vallejo and east to Sacramento/Reno) and 
Delta Breeze (to Rio Vista/Isleton) make non-timed transfer stops at the station. 
 
1.2. Planned station – Fairfield-Vacaville Intermodal Station 
 
In addition to the current station, a second station 5 miles to the east at the Peabody 
Road crossing of the Union Pacific Railroad main line, is in the final stages of design, 
with construction scheduled to begin in 2015 and revenue service scheduled to occur 
2017. 
 
The station components are as follows: 
 

259



  DRAFT Memorandum: Potential Passenger Station Criteria In Solano County    Page 3 of 10 
!!
!

Rail Side: 
• Unstaffed passenger platform 800 hundred ft. long, 43 ft. wide 
• Grade separated pedestrian access via pedestrian under crossing 
• Pedestrian shelter and seating facilities 
• Public address system and real-time train arrival monitors 
• Ticket vending machines 

Land Side: 
• Parking for approximately 350 vehicles in the near-term (The City plans to 

construct a multi-story parking structure when parking demand increases). 
• Transit access via curbside facilities accommodating up to 6x40' vehicles 
• Pickup and drop-off curb space accommodating 10 vehicles 
• Passenger bike lockers  

 
2. CURRENT CAPITOL CORRIDOR JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY STATION STOP 
CRITERIA  (Exhibit B) 
 
In order to clarify the criteria guiding the establishment of new stations on the corridor, 
the governing body for Capitol Corridor services Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Authority 
(CCJPA) has developed a set of physical design, funding and operating requirements 
that have to be satisfied in order for a station stop to be considered.  
 
In February 2006, the CCJPA Board adopted a set of principles to guide the 
development of an updated set of CCJPA policies on stations served by Capitol Corridor 
trains and the extensions and expansion of Capitol Corridor train service and train 
stations. Originally developed in 1998, these were revised in June 2006 by the Board 
and are shown in Appendix A.  
 
The criteria as they relate to additional stations are grouped around three primary 
principles – 1) Station Standards, 2) The Station Funding Plan and 3) Support of The 
Host Railroad – and are summarized in Exhibit B.  
 
The current criteria have been developed against the background of several key factors: 
 
a) Operational ownership   
 
Capitol Corridor is effectively a tenant operating services on the host railroad – Union 
Pacific's – tracks, via a trackage rights agreement. The host railroad therefore shares its 
freight train capacity with passenger trains: any additional stops or changes to the 
schedule have to be considered carefully alongside their schedule needs and priorities 
There is currently an effective ceiling of 30 trains (15 round trips) per day within the 
current agreement. 
 
b) The need to balance new passenger needs with schedule and performance impacts 
 
Existing station stops and passengers using them should not be adversely affected by 
the addition of intermediate stops. Any new station proposal has to quantify the negative 
effects on schedule, on-time performance and corridor-wide end-to-end running times, 
and means of mitigating those effects (if this is possible).  
 
Minimum numbers of boardings (10 boardings/alightings per train in the first 6 months or 
service) generated by new stations are also therefore part of the current criteria (Suisun-

260



  DRAFT Memorandum: Potential Passenger Station Criteria In Solano County    Page 4 of 10 
!!
!

Fairfield station greatly exceeds this minimum, serving almost 600 passengers daily). 
 
c) Physical design considerations 
 
Although most stations are served on the corridor solely by Capitol Corridor trains, 
designs also have to conform to Amtrak's station standards at a minimum.  
 
Since track capacity is limited to the current number of trains within the agreement with 
Union Pacific, additional capacity for future growth is initially being accommodated by 
the future addition of longer trains.  
 
Train lengthening has already been happening during the course of the past decade, 
and in the future the standard train length is anticipated to be 8 cars. The current train 
length varies but is typically 4-5 cars.  Therefore all future stations should be able to 
accommodate this length of platform (700'), ideally on tangent (straight) track.  
 
At locations where the platform configuration has through passenger or freight trains 
serving a boarding face – either an island platform or side platforms – safe pedestrian 
access typically requires grade separation – under or over the tracks. Modern ADA 
access requirements and physical setback distances for pedestrians to safely clear 
structures on the platform while trains are passing through the station are also resulting 
in more generous widths for platforms than would have traditionally been the case in the 
pre-ADA era. 
 
Circumstances vary station by station, but these are the primary physical considerations 
and they impose a more extensive physical footprint for a planned new station than in 
the pre-2006 era.  
 
Note that these are criteria established for the approval of potential stations in principle, 
within current design standards, and not a prescriptive design template for every new 
station, nor a guarantee that a station will be approved.  Ultimately, the station project 
has to meet all the criteria and be approved by Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR), the host 
railroad. 
 
Other Criteria 
 
In addition there are other CCJPA policies that relate to new stations but are not 
necessarily part of the in-principle approval requirements. For example, there has been 
an increased use of bicycles accessing the Capitol Corridor trains which has resulted in 
demand for on-board and station bike storage exceeding previous design capacity for 
bikes. This is a common experience of commuter rail systems throughout country over 
the past decade; demand for bike access has been growing faster on the Capitol 
Corridor then on the rest of the State-supported system. CCJPA has developed a set of 
principles for bicycle access which focus primarily on improving on-board train provision, 
but which are likely to mean additional secure bicycle storage capacity at stations – bike 
lockers, locked bike parking - than in previously approved stations.  
 
Additional CCJPA policies were adopted at the time of the 2006 revision to station policy 
(see Appendix A) that are related to expansion of service within the corridor, extension 
of service outside the corridor limits, and policy for retention of train service to current 
stations, none of which currently directly impact Solano County.  

261



  DRAFT Memorandum: Potential Passenger Station Criteria In Solano County    Page 5 of 10 
!!
!

3. POTENTIAL SOLANO-SPECIFIC STATION CRITERIA  (Exhibit C) 
 

The planned Fairfield-Vacaville station met all of the current Capitol Corridor station 
criteria. However, final approval of the station still required extensive additional 
mitigating measures and analysis, including: 

• The construction of additional siding facilities for freight trains serving the 
Tolenas Industrial Park in Fairfield. 

• Grade separation of Peabody Road to accommodate the station tracks and 
pedestrian undercrossing access to the platform.  

Meeting all of the basic criteria is therefore not a guarantee of station stop approval.  

These are significant additional investments required to secure a successful and well-
integrated new station stop to the Capitol Corridor, but they also represent a very high 
cost threshold for cities considering new stations, and an order of magnitude greater 
than "legacy stations" from the earlier 20th century passenger era or even stations 
approved as recently as the early 1990s in the Southern Pacific era.  

Looking ahead to potential future stations, Solano has an opportunity in the 2014 Rail 
Facilities Plan Update to establish its own criteria, reflect local conditions and 
demonstrate community support, but with a clear understanding of the much higher cost 
thresholds for establishing new stations today than for previous rounds of station 
approvals. 

There have also been changes in policy and regional funding requirements for local 
jurisdictions seeking support for new stations. In addition to the overall higher cost 
threshold for station sponsors, the expected commitment by local jurisdictions to transit 
supportive development has been formalized by the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC), the federally designated Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 
through the MTC-required Priority Development Area and Station Area planning process 
since the 2006 policies were adopted. 

Since CCJPA and the host railroad ultimately determine whether any station stop will be 
approved, it makes sense to integrate any local criteria with the baseline established by 
CCJPA. The suggested Solano-specific “Match and Refine” criteria in Exhibit C 
therefore incorporate the approved CCJPA polices and: 

• Allow local Solano jurisdictions to establish their own priorities within these in 
terms of amenities, readiness for future expansion and phasing 

• Expand the CCJPA criteria to require specific commitments by local jurisdictions 
to land-side improvements in the areas of multimodal access (auto, transit bike, 
walk), parking provision and safety measures 

• Define consistent local connecting transit service/”last mile” commitments 

• Establish requirements for fully determining both capital and operations and 
maintenance costs and needed funding for new station facilities 

• Ensure that proposed Solano stations are consistent with the regional planning 
and funding requirements, by requiring them to conform to the regional 
PDA/Station Area Plan process ( and in so doing update the methodologies for 
determining multimodal access improvements for the station from the 
descriptions in the 2006 policy) 

262



  DRAFT Memorandum: Potential Passenger Station Criteria In Solano County    Page 6 of 10 
!!
!

In short, Match and Refine criteria would reflect a likely higher level of long-term 
commitment and likely greater overall cost commitment by the local jurisdictions in order 
to increase the likelihood of additional stations in Solano County.   

263



  DRAFT Memorandum: Potential Passenger Station Criteria In Solano County    Page 7 of 10 
!!
!

Exhibit A: Solano Passenger Rail System 2014 Map F 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Map in PDF version of memo) 
  

264



Solano Rail Facilities Plan Update 

2014 

Legend 
 

UPRR main line 

Shortlines 

Out of service/mothballed 

Excursion-recreational 

Former RoW/abandoned 

Passenger Rail System  2014 

Napa Valley 
Railroad 
to St. Helena 

West to NWP 
and SMART 

UPRR main line 
East to Davis, Sac, 
Midwest 

UPRR main line 
West to Martinez, Oakland 

Western 
Railway 
Museum 
SR-12-Bird’s 
Landing 

Map F 

Legend 
Station / planned / possible 

Capitol Corridor/Amtrak 

Other freight-only lines 

 
 

 
 

Fairfield-
Vacaville 

Benicia 

Dixon 

Suisun-
Fairfield 

Vallejo 

Napa 

Red Top/
I-80 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



This page intentionally left blank. 



  DRAFT Memorandum: Potential Passenger Station Criteria In Solano County    Page 8 of 10 
!!
!

Exhibit B: Summary Of Current Station Stop Criteria 
 
!

 
 

267



  DRAFT Memorandum: Potential Passenger Station Criteria In Solano County    Page 9 of 10 
!!
!

 
Exhibit C: Potential Solano-Specific Station Criteria 

  

268



  DRAFT Memorandum: Potential Passenger Station Criteria In Solano County    Page 10 of 10 
!
!

APPENDIX A:  CCJPA Station and Service Policy, 2006 
 
 

 

PRINCIPLES FOR REVISED POLICIES ON STATIONS AND TRAIN SERVICE 
CAPITOL CORRIDOR JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY  

(January 2006)  
 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

POLICY FOR NEW STATION 
- Update level of train service (24 weekday, 18 weekend) and number of stations served (16) 
- Maintain current criteria and add/update the following new standards: 

x�Minimum daily average ridership projections of ten (10) boarding or alightings per train within the first six (6) 
months of CCJPA train service to the new station. 

x�Canopy shelters to provide seating for twelve (12) people (and accommodate two (2) wheelchairs) with capacity to 
add more shelters to meet future demand 

x�Coordination/approval of station design plans with “host” railroad 
x�Local law enforcement agency will patrol and inspect station and parking facilities 
x� Install security cameras on platforms, waiting areas, station facilities, and parking areas with the connecting 

communication system to be developed as part of design plans 
x�Design will provide access to platforms so that passengers never cross a mainline track (e.g., grade separated access 

to island platform, station-only track not used by freight trains) 
x� Platforms will be a minimum of 700 feet in length and eight (8) inches top-of-rail (any deviations or exemptions will 

require approval by host railroad and/or CCJPA/Amtrak) 
x�Emergency call boxes will be provided, at a minimum, at all unstaffed stations 
x� Passenger Information Display System (PIDS) real time electronic message signs will be provided at platforms and 

inside station passenger waiting areas, based on CCJPA design specifications 
x�Bomb-resistant trash receptacles will be provided at platforms and inside station passenger waiting areas 
x�Ticket vending machines(s) and associated communication equipment will be provided at either platforms (under the 

canopy) or inside station passenger waiting areas  
x�An intermodal transit connection plan must be developed by the station project sponsor that may include joint 

ticketing or transit transfer with the CCJPA trains 
x�Requirements for parking spaces will be based upon a parking study prepared by the project sponsor that will 

consider ADA compliance, non-motorized vehicle access, current and future adjacent land uses, baseline (and 
future) ridership projections, transit and carpool/drop-off connectivity, transit-orientated development plans  

x� Secure storage bike racks/lockers will be provided at platforms or inside station passenger waiting areas 
 

POLICY FOR RETENTION OF TRAIN SERVICE TO STATIONS 
- Update the minimal ridership standards for continued CCJPA train service to station as follows:  

x�Minimum daily average of ten (10) boarding or alightings per train within the first six (6) months of CCJPA train 
service to the new station 

x�Minimum daily average of twelve (12) boarding or alightings per train within two years of CCJPA train service  
x�Minimum daily average of fifteen (15) boarding or alightings per train within third year of CCJPA train service  

- Develop marketing and operating plans to bring trains back to a station where service had been discontinued  
 

EXPANSION OF SERVICE WITHIN CORRIDOR 
- Update standards for trains that are managed by CCJPA for service within corridor (i.e., Regional Rail): 

x�Ridership and revenues must be reviewed and approved by CCJPA 
x�Any financial operating costs (expenses net of revenues) including any CCJPA management or administrative costs 

and additional rail equipment must be provided by service sponsor(s)  
x�Net cost per train-mile (TM) must be equal to/lower than the current CCJPA train service net costs per TM  
x� System operating (or farebox) ratio must be equal to/greater than the current CCJPA train system operating ratio  

 

EXTENSION OF TRAIN SERVICE 
- Any extension of CCJPA train service outside the Auburn-Sacramento-Oakland-San Jose corridor shall not drain 

resources that would prevent the CCJPA from implementing its core service expansion goals for the corridor pursuant to 
the Vision Plan 

- Extensions of CCJPA train service outside the corridor shall not denigrate the core CCJPA train service, including but 
not limited to on-time performance and financial performance (e.g., operating costs, farebox ratio) 

- Any financial operating costs (expenses net of revenues) including any CCJPA management or administrative costs and 
additional rail equipment must be provided by service extension sponsor(s) 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

ADOPTED FEBRUARY 15, 2006 

G:\CCJPA Board Meetings\Agendas\AGENDA06.jun.doc         11

269



This page intentionally left blank. 

270



Agenda Item 12.D 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
DATE: June 25, 2014 
TO: STA Board 
FROM: Robert Macaulay, Planning Director 
RE: SB 743 California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Update  
 
 

Background: 
The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is the primary environmental statute for 
discretionary projects approved by governmental agencies in California.  Implementation of 
the CEQA statues are guided by the State CEQA Guidelines, published by the State Office of 
Planning and Research (OPR).  Since CEQA requires the identification and, in most cases 
mitigation, of "significant" environmental impacts, one of the important roles of the CEQA 
Guidelines is to establish the threshold for when an impact is considered significant. 
 
CEQA thresholds for traffic impacts are currently based upon Level of Service (LOS) 
analysis.  LOS is generally analyzed as either the volume of traffic on a roadway compared 
to its capacity (VC Ratio) or the amount of delay experienced by drivers at an intersection, 
measured during the Peak Hour of travel.  A typical CEQA traffic analysis identifies if a 
project will produce enough trips to have a significant impact on the road system.  If so, 
roadway improvements (such more lanes or widened intersections) are required of the 
developer in order to mitigate the project's impact to a level of Less Than Significant. 
 
AB 32 and SB 375 were signed into law in an effort to reduce the emissions of Greenhouse 
Gasses (GHG) from all sources, including cars and light trucks (the focus of SB 375).  Total 
emissions of transportation-related GHGs are difficult to measure, so proxies are used.  One 
of the preferred proxies is Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT).  Modeling of current and future 
GHG emission totals is based on VMT and the emission profile of the car and light truck 
fleet. 
 
Discussion: 
At the end of 2013, SB 743 was amended to become a CEQA reform bill.  The bill was 
passed by the legislature and signed by the governor.  SB 743 and the new CEQA Guidelines 
focus first and foremost on Transit Priority Areas (TPAs) - specific locations served by fixed 
or high-frequency public transit.  TPAs are similar, but not identical, to the Priority 
Development Areas (PDAs) established as part of Plan Bay Area.  The new CEQA Guideline 
criteria "must promote the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions, the development of 
multimodal transportation networks, and diversity of land use." 
 
OPR was required to circulate the draft CEQA Guidelines implementing SB 743 by July 1, 
2014, but has delayed the document release.  OPR staff has spent the last six months 
consulting with CMAs, cities and counties, advocacy groups and traffic modeling firms 
across the state regarding what approach should be taken in the new CEQA Guidelines.  As 
of early June, OPR staff has indicated that they will recommend that all CEQA traffic 
analysis use reduced VMT as the standard of significance, rather than only CEQA documents 
for TPAs.

271



If the final Guidelines contain this requirement, future CEQA documents from STA and its 
member agencies will be required to use VMT reduction as the measure o a project's traffic 
impact.  This does not prohibit jurisdictions from using LOS standards in General Plan, 
specific plan or zoning documents, and it does not invalidate development impact fees based 
upon LOS.  It also does not invalidate the LOS standards in Congestion Management 
Programs (CMPs); SB 743 exempts CMPs from the VMT requirement. 
 
As a result, projects subject to CEQA analysis that wish to use a Negative Declaration will be 
required to show a less-than-significant impact to modeled VMT.  If a project has an impact 
that is significant, an Environmental Impact Report will be needed.  The threshold for impact 
significance has not been established. 
 
An important question will be how traffic modeling software calculates the potential for 
additional vehicle trips, and therefore additional VMT, from intersection and roadway 
improvements.  If the models calculate that a project that improves LOS results in more trips, 
and therefore additional VMT, then a project that wishes to have a less-than-significant 
impact must have some feature or mitigation that results in a corresponding reduction in 
VMT. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Unknown.  It is expected that traffic modeling software reports will require modification to 
accommodate whatever requirements are adopted by OPR. 
 
Recommendation: 
Informational. 

272



Agenda Item 12.E 
July 9, 2014 

 
 

 
DATE:  June 27, 2014 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Anthony Adams, Project Assistant 
RE: Quarterly Project Delivery Update 
 
 
Background: 
As the Congestion Management Agency for Solano County, the Solano Transportation Authority 
(STA) coordinates obligations and allocations of state and federal funds between local project 
sponsors, Caltrans, and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC).  To aid in the 
delivery of locally sponsored projects, a Solano Project Delivery Working Group was formed, 
which assists in updating the STA’s Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) on changes to State 
and Federal project delivery policies and reminds the TAC about project delivery deadlines.   
 
The STA recently changed is project delivery policies to include a quarterly project delivery 
update.  This update is intended to be a more comprehensive update including a breakdown of 
current projects by member agency and the current project status.  This report marks the first 
quarterly progress report from STA staff to the STA Board. 
 
Discussion: 
A summary of projects and their statuses by member agency is available in Attachment A and by 
Fiscal Year in Attachment B.  A brief summary of projects for the current fiscal year and the 
next fiscal year can be found below. 
 
There are a total of 20 projects within Solano County that were scheduled for obligation for 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2013-14, either in Preliminary Engineering (PE), Right of Way (ROW), or 
Construction (CON) phases.  All projects but one, Vallejo’s Downtown Streetscape, has received 
their E-76 obligation as of the time of this report.  Caltrans HQ is working with FHWA to 
finalize paperwork to approve the funding necessary for the Downtown Streetscape project. 

• 14 OneBayArea Grant (OBAG) projects, including:  
o Three (3) Local Streets & Roads (LS&R) projects  
o Three (3) Safe Routes to School Projects (SR2S)  

• Two (2) New Freedom/Job Access Reverse Commute (JARC) funded projects 
• Two (2) RM2 funded projects 
• One (1) Federal Earmark project 
• One (1) other federally funded project (HSIP)   

 
There are a total of ten (10) projects within Solano County that are schedule for obligation in FY 
2014-15, either in PE, ROW, or CON phases. 

• Seven (7) OBAG projects, including: 
o Three (3) Local Streets & Roads (LS&R) projects  
o Two (2) Safe Routes to School Projects (SR2S) 

• One (1) RM2 funded project 
• One (1) TDA funded project 
• One (1) Caltrans funded project (Ramp Meters) 

273



Inactive Obligations 
To adhere to FHWA project delivery guidelines and MTC’s Resolution 3606, project sponsors 
must invoice for obligated projects every 6 months.  If a project has not been invoiced during the 
previous 6 months, it is placed on the Caltrans Inactive List.  The inactive projects list previously 
had six (6) listings from Solano County, but due to action by our member agencies, there are 
currently 4 inactive projects in the County of Solano on the Caltrans list.  Four projects were 
removed from the previous list and two new additions were made to the list, McGary Rd and 
Vanden Rd.  Solano County’s project Cordelia Rd has been on the list for an extended period of 
time; this project needs to be addressed by Solano County staff as soon as possible. 
 
Projects placed on the Inactive Projects list will have all of their funds made unavailable and 
those funds cannot be re-obligated to another project.  It is important to close out projects 
whenever they are done, so that any remaining funds can programmed to other projects in need 
of further funding. Please see Attachment C for Inactive Project 
 
More information can be found on Caltrans Local Assistance website: 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/Inactiveprojects.htm  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
Informational. 
 
Attachments: 

A. Projects sorted by Member Agency 
B. Projects sorted by Fiscal Year 
C. Inactive Projects List 

274

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/Inactiveprojects.htm


Attachment A 

City of Benicia 

Project Name Sponsor 
Project 
Type Project Description 

Funding 
Program 

Phases in 
Project 

Current 
Phase 

Total 
Project 
Cost 
Estimate 

Percent 
Complete 
(Current 
Phase) 

Project 
Completion 
Expected Notes 

Benicia 
Industrial Pk 
Multi-Modal 
Trans Study Benicia Study 

Plan and construct a bus hub station in the 
Benicia Industrial Park for the I-680 
corridor and northern Benicia for transit 
service across the Benicia-Martinez 
Bridge into RM2 Plan Concept $125,000     

Need Project 
Delivery Sheet 

Benicia - East 
2nd Street 
Preservation Benicia 

Street 
Repair 

Patch & Resurface Sections of East 2nd 
Street between I-780 and Industrial Way OBAG 

PE, 
Construction Construction $495,000 0% 8/20/2014 

Authorization to 
proceed with 
construction 
received on April 
14, 2014, 
Advertised May 
20, 2014, Bid 
Opening June 12, 
2014 

Benicia Safe 
Routes to 
Schools Benicia 

SR2S - 
Capitol 

New sidewalks in the vicinity of Robert 
Semple School install widened sidewalk 
landings and new crosswalks across 
Dempsey  Drive and the entrance to the 
parking lot adjacent to Matthew Turner 
School, install a flashing beacon on 
Southampton Road in front of the Benicia 
Middle School, and construct wider 
sidewalk landings on Southampton Road 
in front of Benicia Middle School OBAG 

PE, 
Construction Construction $100,000 0% 8/20/2014 

RFA submitted to 
Caltrans 3/28/14, 
Advertised project 
May 20, 2014, Bid 
Opening June 12, 
2014  

 

Color Key Code 

= Project is On-Track  

= Project Info Needs Updating/Missed Project Delivery Milestone   

= Project Missed Delivery Deadline 

 

 

  

 

 

 

275



 

  

City of Dixon 

Project Name Sponsor 
Project 
Type Project Description 

Funding 
Program 

Phases in 
Project 

Current 
Phase 

Total 
Project 
Cost 
Estimate 

Percent 
Complete 
(Current 
Phase) 

Project 
Completion 
Expected Notes 

West A Street 
Paving Project Dixon 

Street 
Repair 

West A Street from Pitt School 
Road to I-80: repave and install 
fabric, minor concrete repairs, and 
utility cover adjustments. OBAG 

PE, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $659,663   9/13/2015 

Has Caltrans 
Field Review 
Occurred? 
Project delivery 
schedule 
estimates this 
at 10/13/2013 

Parkway 
Blvd/UPRR 
Grade 
Separation Dixon Transit   Earmark   

Preliminary 
Engineering $2,125,000     

Need Project 
Delivery Sheet 

West B Street 
Bicycle and Ped 
Undercrossing Dixon 

Pedestrian 
Safety     

PE, 
Construction Construction $6,100,000   8/1/2014 

Construction 
due to be 
complete by 
August 2014 

Dixon SR2S 
Infrastructure 
Improvements Dixon 

SR2S - 
Capitol 

Tremont Elementary School: 
Construct sidewalk bulb-out; At 
various schools: Install high 
visibility crosswalks; at CA 
Jacobs: install bike racks and 
overhead covering; Near 
Silveyville Elementary School: 
Install gate in fence along 
pedestrian path; on Rehrmann 
Drive from Evans Road to North 
Lincoln Street : Restripe bike 
lane; Along Rehrmann Drive at 
Tremont Elementary School : 
Plant trees and gate 
improvements; At Tremont 
Elementary and CA Jacobs; 
Miscellaneous striping 
improvements. OBAG 

PE, 
Construction Construction $124,956     

Need Project 
Delivery Sheet 

276



 

 

City of Fairfield 

Project Name Sponsor 
Project 
Type Project Description 

Funding 
Program 

Phases in 
Project 

Current 
Phase 

Total 
Project 
Cost 
Estimate 

Percent 
Complete 
(Current 
Phase) 

Project 
Completion 
Expected Notes 

Beck Avenue 
Pavement 
Rehabilitation Fairfield 

Street 
Repair 

"Pavement rehabilitation of 
Beck Avenue, from Highway 
12 to West Texas Street, 
including ADA 
improvements." OBAG 

PE, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $1,980,000   1/15/2016 

Has Caltrans Field Review 
Occurred? Project delivery 
schedule estimates this at 
1/13/2014 

Fairfield 
Transportation 
Center Phase III Fairfield Transit 

Construct approximately 600 
automobile parking spaces in a 
parking structure, multi-use 
trail to improve access to FTC 
and other passenger amenities. 

RM2/ 
TDA/ 
CMAQ 
/RTIF 

PE, 
Construction ROW $7,180,000  25% TBD 

Trail and access 
improvements are designed, 
but construction not funded.  
Anticipate completing 
Design-Build advertising 
package in FY 2014/2015, 
using TDA and RTIF funds, 
to be more competitive for 
funding.  $7.735 million 
RM2 previously assigned to 
FTC was shifted to FFVV 
Train Station.  600 space 
parking structure cleared 
NEPA and CEQA in 2008, 
but environmental being 
updated to cover ultimate 
planned 1200 new parking 
spaces in structure and access 
improvements.  Target for 
updated NEPA and CEQA is 
12/31/2014. 

Fairfield/Vacaville 
Intermodal Rail 
Station Fairfield Transit 

 Construct train station with 
passenger platforms, 
pedestrian undercrossing, 
highway overcrossing, park 
and ride lot,bike and other 
station facilities. Project is 
phased. 

TDA/ 
RM2/ 
STIP/ 
Earmark 

ENV, PSE, 
PE, ROW, 
Construction ROW 

$68,000,00
0   TBD 

RM2 funds approved by 
CTC at June meeting 

 

  
277



 

City of Rio Vista 

Project 
Name Sponsor 

Project 
Type Project Description 

Funding 
Program 

Phases in 
Project 

Current 
Phase 

Total 
Project 
Cost 
Estimate 

Percent 
Complete 
(Current 
Phase) 

Project 
Completion 
Expected Notes 

SR 12 
Crossing with 
updated 
lighting Rio Vista 

SR2S - 
Capitol 

In Rio Vista: At SR12 
crossing: Install new 
updated lighted crosswalk OBAG 

PE, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $130,000 25% 10/31/2015 

Encroachment permit 
submitted to Caltrans. Field 
Review complete. Plan 
view concept diagram 
design complete.  
Encroachment permit 
submitted to Caltrans. Field 
Review complete. Plan 
view concept diagram 
design complete. Project 
cost estimate currently in 
progress. 

Waterfront 
Promenade 
Phase 2 Rio Vista Bike/Ped 

Pedestrian, bicycle, and 
ADA access 
improvements connecting 
immediately to the south 
of Phase I improvements 
and connecting to Front 
Street at Logan St. TDA 

PE, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $511,000 25% 9/2/2015 

Environmental document 
(Mitigated Neg. 
Declaration) for Caltrans 
and resolution of local 
support for MTC approved 
by City Council, and sent 
for approval by the STA 
Board. 

 

  

278



Solano County 

Project Name Sponsor Project Type Project Description 
Funding 
Program 

Phases in 
Project 

Current 
Phase 

Total 
Project 

Cost 
Estimate 

Percent 
Complete 
(Current 

Phase) 

Project 
Completion 

Expected Notes 

Travis AFB: 
South Gate 
Improvement 
Project 

Solano 
County 

Street 
Improvements 

Fairfield: Petersen Road by Travis Air 
Force Base; Between Walters Road to 
Travis AFB. Widen roadway to standard 
lane width, including shoulder and other 
safety improvements Earmark 

PE, ROW, 
CON 

Right of 
Way $2,547,000 70% 5/1/2015   

Roadway 
Preservation 
in Solano 
County 

Solano 
County 

Street 
Improvements 

Solano County: Various streets: 
Pavement resurfacing and/or 
rehabilitation including: Overlay, widen 
pavement surface with no added capacity, 
stripe and add signs. Project is phased OBAG 

Preliminary 
Engineerin
g, 
Constructio
n 

Constructio
n $1,692,600 0% 6/15/2015 

Project 
Delivery Sheet 
needs updating 

Cordelia Hills 
Sky Valley 
Ped Corridor 

Solano 
County 

Pedestrian 
Safety 

Transportation enhancements including 
upgrade of pedestrian and bicycle 
corridors including open space 
acquisition along Cordelia Hill Sky 
Valley and McGary Road. Project is 
predominantly ROW acquisition Earmark PE, ROW PE $2,700,000 90%   

No 
construction 
phase 

Redwood 
Fairgrounds 
Dr. I/C Imp 
(STUDY) 

Solano 
County Study 

Near Vallejo: Btw SR 37 & Carquinez 
Bridge; Conduct study to determine the 
feasibility of constructing expanded I-80 
Redwood St./Fairgrounds Dr. 
Interchange and parkway improvements. 
PSE, PE and Env. Phase only. Earmark Study Planning $1,500,000 95%   

Project is 
awaiting RTP 
air quality 
conformity 
before it can 
begin 
construction 
phase.  

Suisun Valley 
Bicycle and 
Pedestrian 
Imps 

Solano 
County Bike/Ped 

At Mankas Corner: Construct staging 
area with bicycle and pedestrian 
improvements; At Various Locations in 
Solano County: Add a Class II bike lane 
to enhance bike access to areas identified 
for agri-tourism in the Suisun Valley area OBAG PE, CON 

Preliminary 
Engineerin
g $1,327,400   9/15/2015   

Vacaville-
Dixon Bicycle 
Route (Phase 
5) 

Solano 
County Bike/Ped 

Class II Bike Route on Hawkins Road 
from Fox Road to Leisure Town Road OBAG PE, CON 

Preliminary 
Engineerin
g $2,033,435   6/15/2015   

 

  

279



 

Solano Transportation Authority 

Project Name Sponsor Project Type Project Description 
Funding 
Program 

Phases in 
Project 

Current 
Phase 

Total Project 
Cost Estimate 

Percent 
Complete 
(Current 
Phase) 

Project 
Completion 
Expected Notes 

Solano Mobility 
Management 
(ADA, Call 
Website) STA Program 

Develop the Call Center and 
Travel Training Program JARC Construction Construction $312,500 20% 12/30/2014 

Program 
expected to be 
open to the 
public in July or 
August 2014 

Solano Mobility 
Management 
(Travel 
Training) STA Program 

Develop the Call Center and 
Travel Training Program 

New 
Freedom Construction Construction $218,750 35% 12/30/2014 

Program 
expected to be 
open to the 
public in July or 
August 2014 

SR 12 (Jameson 
Canyon Road) 
Widening STA 

Street 
Improvements 

Widen to 4 lanes and improve 
safety on SR12 from I-80 to 
SR29. 

STIP, 
TCRP   Construction $138,941,000 95%   

Project expected 
to be complete by 
August 2014.  
Ribbon cutting 
ceremony to be 
scheduled 

I-80 Express 
Lanes Ph I&II 
(Fairfield to 
Vacaville) STA 

Street 
Improvements 

Convert Existing HOV to 
HOT & construct new HOT 
lanes from Airbase Prkwy to 
I-505 

Bridge 
Tolls 

PE, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $236,800,000 10% 3/1/2019   

Jepson: Vanden 
Rd from 
Peabody to LT STA 

Street 
Improvements 

The Jepson Parkway Project 
would upgrade and link a 
series of existing local two- 
and four-lane roadways (as 
well as construct an extension 
of an existing roadway under 
one alternative) to provide a 
four- to six-lane north-south 
travel route for motorists who 
face increasing congestion 
when traveling between 
jurisdictions in central Solano 
County. STIP 

PE, PSE, 
ROW, CON PE & ROW $27,299,830   4/15/2018 

 Funding 
agreement 
between STA, 
Fairfield, and 
Vacaville 
approved by STA 
Board at May 
2014 meeting. 

Jepson: Walters 
Rd Ext STA 

Street 
Improvements Same as previous STIP 

PE, PSE, 
ROW, CON Future $13,431,000   TBD 

Need Project 
Delivery Sheet 

Jepson: LT Road 
from Vanden to 
Commerce STA 

Street 
Improvements Same as previous STIP 

PE, PSE, 
ROW, CON PE & ROW $21,879,800   2018   

Jepson: LT Road 
from Commerce 
to Orange STA 

Street 
Improvements Same as previous STIP 

PE, PSE, 
ROW, CON Future $28,300,000   4/15/2020 

Need Project 
Delivery Sheet 

Solano Safe 
Routes to School STA Program 

Implement Countywide 
Solano Safe Routes to School OBAG Construction Construction $1,256,000 10% 6/30/2016 

Safety 
enforcement 

280



Program Program, including Planning, 
Education, and 
Encouragement events and 
materials. 

grant 
recommended to 
be awarded to 
Rio Vista (30k) 
and Vacaville 
(60k) 

Eastern Solano / 
SNCI Rideshare STA Program 

Solano/Napa Commuter 
Info): Encourage ridesharing 
activities within the Eastern 
Solano County Region. OBAG Construction Construction $602,056 10% 6/30/2016 

 E-76 received in 
April 

PDA Planning 
Implementation STA Planning 

Solano County Various 
Agencies: Planning 
assistance pass through to 
local jurisdictions to support 
transportation investments 
and improve their 
performance in Priority 
Development Areas (PDAs) OBAG Construction Construction $1,782,000 10% 6/30/2016 

 Consultant for 
PDA plan 
selected. 

Solano Transit 
Ambassador 
Program STA Program 

In Solano County: Travel 
training for people to use 
fixed-route public 
transportation, focus on 
seniors and people with 
disabilities. OBAG Construction Construction $282,000 5% 6/30/2016 

 Project 
consultant 
selected.  
Program 
expected to be 
open to public in 
July. 

Local PCA 
Planning - 
Solano STA Planning 

Planning assistance pass 
through to local jurisdictions 
to support transportation 
investments and improve 
their performance in Priority 
Conservation Areas (PCAs) OBAG Construction Construction $85,000 5% 6/30/2015 

 Project going out 
for RFP in July 

I-80/I-680/SR 
12 Interchange 
Project STA 

Street 
Improvements 

Improve I-80/I-680/Route 12 
I/C(Ph 1), including 
connecting I-80 to SR 12 W, 
I-680 NB to SR 12W 
(Jameson Canyon), I-80 to I-
680 (+ Express Lane Direct 
connectors), build local I/C 
and build new connecting 
local roads to SR 12/Red Top 
I/C.Phased RM2 

PE, 
Construction Construction $717,920,000 5% 6/1/2019 

Groundbreaking 
ceremony for 
construction 
package #1 
"Green Valley 
Interchange 
Project" took 
place on June 2, 
2014. 

 

  

281



City of Suisun City 

Project Name Sponsor 
Project 
Type Project Description 

Funding 
Program 

Phases in 
Project 

Current 
Phase 

Total 
Project 
Cost 
Estimate 

Percent 
Complete 
(Current 
Phase) 

Project 
Completion 
Expected Notes 

Suisun-
Fairfield 
Intercity Rail 
Station 

Suisun 
City Transit 

The Project, which is within an approved 
PDA, will improve pedestrian and bicycle 
access along the routes to and from the 
Suisun Train Station in the Historic 
Waterfront District by removing 
obstacles, upgrading pedestrian facilities 
to current ADA standards, installing 
additional bicycle facilities, providing 
better lighting, adding signage, pavement 
markings, installing fencing to 
discourage/prevent jaywalking across 
Main Street, installing countdown 
pedestrian heads at traffic signals. 
Improvements to the trash enclosure to 
discourage use by the homeless are 
potentially planned. OBAG 

PE, 
Construction PE $700,100 75% 4/1/2015 

The project was 
delayed due to an 
extended 
environmental 
review process and 
historical 
assessment.  
Project design was 
approved by City 
Council at June 
Board meeting. 

Driftwood 
Drive Path 
(SR2S) 

Suisun 
City 

SR2S - 
Capitol 

Construct a Class I bicycle/pedestrian trail 
along the south side of Driftwood Drive 
from Marina Boulevard to Josiah Circle. 
Project scope will also include, but not 
limited to,a curb bulbout, angled parking 
spaces, concrete valley gutter, drainage 
facilities, upgrade of curb ramps to ADA-
compliant curb ramps, crosswalk 
enhancements, chain link fence, 
monument sign, signs, pavement marking, 
tree replacement, street lighting,and 
adjusting utility frames and grates. OBAG 

PE, 
Construction PE $399,065 50% 9/1/2015 

Funding 
agreement 
received June 18th 

Walters 
Road/Pintail 
Drive 

Suisun 
City 

Street 
Repair 

This project will include: evaluating the 
existing road conditions, concrete repairs 
of sidewalks, upgrades to ADA ramps and 
evaluation of existing drainage structures 
and coordination with local utilities. The 
two roadways will receive either a 2" 
asphalt overlay with fabric or ARCS 
application; as budget allows OBAG 

PE, 
Construction Construction $402,123 5% 8/8/2014 

E-76 Recieved 
from Caltrans 
4/16/14 

  

282



City of Vacaville 

Project Name Sponsor 
Project 
Type Project Description 

Funding 
Program 

Phases in 
Project 

Current 
Phase 

Total 
Project 
Cost 
Estimate 

Percent 
Complete 
(Current 
Phase) 

Project 
Completion 
Expected Notes 

Allison Bicycle 
/ Ped 
Improvements Vacaville Bike/Ped 

This project consists of bike and 
pedestrian improvements within or 
serving the Allison Priority 
Development Area at three locations: 
1) Allison Drive Sidewalk (East Side) 
- construct a 7-foot wide sidewalk and 
20-foot wide landscape buffer along 
the east side of Allison Drive from the 
Vacaville Transportation Center 
Entrance (across from Travis Way) to 
Nut Tree Parkway. Also install a 
marquee sign at the corner of Nut 
Tree Parkway and Allison Drive. 2) 
Allison Drive Bike Path (West Side) - 
construct a 10-foot wide Class 1 bike 
path on the west side of Allison Drive 
between Ulatis Creek and Ulatis 
Drive. OBAG 

Preliminary 
Engineering, 
ROW, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $510,600 5% 10/1/2016 

E-76 for PE 
received January 
16th 2014 

Ulatis Creek 
Bike/Ped Path 
& Stscpe Vacaville Bike/Ped 

The project consists of construction of 
a Class 1 off-street bike/pedestrian 
path along Ulatis Creek between the 
end of the Vacaville Downtown 
Creekwalk at McClellan Street and 
Depot Street, just south of the Bridge 
over Ulatis Creek. The project would 
include park and pedestrian elements 
between McClellan Street and Depot 
Street, such as a shade structure, 
plaza, and benches to continue the 
theme of the Downtown Creekwalk. OBAG 

PE, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $564,900 5% 9/1/2016 

E-76 for PE 
received December 
31 2013 

2014 Pavement 
Resurfacing 
Project Vacaville 

Street 
Repair 

In Vacaville: Pavement Resurfacing 
Project - Pavement resurfacing of the 
various roads within Solano County OBAG Construction Construction $1,451,000 0% 12/1/2014 

Vacaville City 
Council approved 
construction bids 
on 6/10/14. 

Vacaville 
SRTS 
Infrastructure 
Improvements Vacaville 

SR2S - 
Capitol 

Construct capital improvements 
including sidewalk, curb ramps and 
extensions, crosswalks, bike network 
improvements and signage and safety 
improvements OBAG 

Preliminary 
Engineering, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $342,607 0% 9/1/2016 

field review 
tentative for 
5/6/14, hope to 
advance const 
schedule to 2015 if 
anv process is 
smooth. 

 

283



City of Vallejo 

Project 
Name Sponsor 

Project 
Type Project Description 

Funding 
Program 

Phases in 
Project 

Current 
Phase 

Total 
Project 

Cost 
Estimate 

Percent 
Complete 
(Current 

Phase) 

Project 
Completion 

Expected Notes 
HSIP5-04-
031 
Sonoma 
Boulevard 
Improveme
nts Vallejo 

Street 
Improveme
nts 

Vallejo: Sonoma Blvd between York 
St and Kentucky St: Implement road 
diet - reduce travel lanes from 4 to 
3,including a two-way left-turn lane 
or median, and add bike lanes HSIP 

Preliminary 
Engineering, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $351,633 80% 11/1/2016   

Vallejo 
Downtown 
Streetscape 
- Phase 3 Vallejo 

Pedestrian 
Safety 

Improvements on Georgia Street, 
between Santa Clara and Sacramento 
Street and Sacramento Street between 
Virginia Street and Georgia Street.  
Downtown Vallejo: Pedestrian and 
bicycle-friendly enhancements 
including traffic calming, diagonal 
street parking, decorative lighting, 
decorative pavers, street furniture, art, 
improved signage. OBAG Construction Construction 

$3,894,00
0 0% 10/13/2015 

Project 
Construction in 
two phases.  
Working with 
Caltrans and 
FHWA to obligate 
earmark funding 
for FY 13/14.  A 
delay has occurred 
due to 
miscommunication 
between Caltrans 
Dist 4 and Caltrans 
HQ.  Vallejo and 
STA are working 
to resolve this 
issue. 

Vallejo 
SRTS 
Infrastructu
re 
Improveme
nts Vallejo 

SR2S - 
Capitol 

Intersection, striping, and signage 
improvements in the vicinity of 
Wardlaw Elementary and Cooper 
Elementary School. High visibility 
crosswalks and pedestrian signs will 
be the first priority projects, with 
additional lane reconfiguration with 
any remaining funds. OBAG 

Preliminary 
Engineering, 
ROW, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $280,428 10% 8/15/2015 

Still needs funding 
agreement 

 

 

 

284



Projects Obligated during FY 13/14 

Project Name Sponsor 
Project 
Type Project Description 

Phases in 
Project 

Current 
Phase 

Total 
Project Cost 
Estimate 

Phase 
Completion 
Expected 

Percent 
Complete 
(Current 
Phase) 

Project 
Completion 
Expected Notes 

Benicia - East 
2nd Street 
Preservation Benicia 

Street 
Repair 

Patch & Resurface Sections of 
East 2nd Street between I-780 
and Industrial Way 

PE, 
Construction Construction $495,000 8/20/2014 0% 8/20/2014 

Authorization to 
proceed with 
construction 
received on April 
14, 2014, 
Advertised May 
20, 2014, Bid 
Opening June 12, 
2014 

Benicia Safe 
Routes to 
Schools Benicia 

SR2S - 
Capitol 

New sidewalks in the vicinity 
of Robert Semple School install 
widened sidewalk landings and 
new crosswalks across 
Dempsey  Drive and the 
entrance to the parking lot 
adjacent to Matthew Turner 
School, install a flashing 
beacon on Southampton Road 
in front of the Benicia Middle 
School, and construct wider 
sidewalk landings on 
Southampton Road in front of 
Benicia Middle School 

PE, 
Construction Construction $100,000 8/20/2014 0% 8/20/2014 

RFA submitted to 
Caltrans 3/28/14, 
Advertised project 
May 20, 2014, Bid 
Opening June 12, 
2014  

Travis AFB: 
South Gate 
Improvement 
Project 

Solano 
County 

Street 
Improvem
ents 

Fairfield: Petersen Road by 
Travis Air Force Base; 
Between Walters Road to 
Travis AFB. Widen roadway to 
standard lane width, including 
shoulder and other safety 
improvements 

PE, ROW, 
CON 

Right of 
Way $2,547,000 6/15/2014 70% 5/1/2015   

Suisun Valley 
Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Imps 

Solano 
County Bike/Ped 

At Mankas Corner: Construct 
staging area with bicycle and 
pedestrian improvements; At 
Various Locations in Solano 
County: Add a Class II bike 
lane to enhance bike access to 
areas identified for agri-tourism 
in the Suisun Valley area PE, CON 

Preliminary 
Engineering $1,327,400 12/1/2014   9/15/2015   

Vacaville-Dixon 
Bicycle Route 
(Phase 5) 

Solano 
County Bike/Ped 

Class II Bike Route on 
Hawkins Road from Fox Road 
to Leisure Town Road PE, CON 

Preliminary 
Engineering $2,033,435 12/1/2014   6/15/2015   

285



Vallejo Curtola 
Transit Center, 
Phase 1A SolTrans Transit 

Improve Curtola Transit 
Center, includes 420 space 
parking structure and transit 
plaza on existing park and ride 
lot, auto/carpool pick-up and 
circulation improvements 

ENV, PSE, 
CON 

Plans, 
Specification

s, and 
Estimates $11,750,000 7/1/2014 95%     

Solano Mobility 
Management 
(ADA, Call 
Website) STA Program 

Develop the Call Center and 
Travel Training Program Construction Construction $312,500 12/30/2014 20% 12/30/2014 

Consultant 
selected and 
program expected 
to be open to the 
public in July or 
August 2014 

Solano Mobility 
Management 
(Travel 
Training) STA Program 

Develop the Call Center and 
Travel Training Program Construction Construction $218,750 12/30/2014 35% 12/30/2014 

Consultant 
selected and 
program expected 
to be open to the 
public in July or 
August 2014 

Solano Safe 
Routes to School 
Program STA Program 

Implement Countywide Solano 
Safe Routes to School 
Program, including Planning, 
Education, and Encouragement 
events and materials. Construction Construction $1,256,000 6/30/2016 10% 6/30/2016 

Safety enforement 
grant 
recommended to 
be awarded to Rio 
Vista (30k) and 
Vacaville (60k) 

Eastern Solano / 
SNCI Rideshare STA Program 

Solano/Napa Commuter Info): 
Encourage ridesharing 
activities within the Eastern 
Solano County Region. Construction Construction $602,056 6/30/2016 10% 6/30/2016 

 E-76 received in 
April 

PDA Planning 
Implementation STA Planning 

Solano County Various 
Agencies: Planning assistance 
pass through to local 
jurisdictions to support 
transportation investments and 
improve their performance in 
Priority Development Areas 
(PDAs) Construction Construction $1,782,000 6/30/2016 10% 6/30/2016 

 Consultant for 
PDA plan 
selected. 

Solano Transit 
Ambassador 
Program STA Program 

In Solano County: Travel 
training for people to use fixed-
route public transportation, 
focus on seniors and people 
with disabiliities. Construction Construction $282,000 6/30/2016 5% 6/30/2016 

 Project consultant 
selected.  Program 
expected to be 
open to public in 
July. 

Local PCA 
Planning - 
Solano STA Planning 

Planning assistance pass 
through to local jurisdictions to 
support transportation 
investments and improve their 
performance in Priority 
Conservation Areas (PCAs) Construction Construction $85,000 6/30/2015 5% 6/30/2015 

 Project going out 
for RFP in July 

286



I-80/I-680/SR 
12 Interchange 
Project STA 

Street 
Improvem
ents 

Improve I-80/I-680/Route 12 
I/C(Ph 1), including connecting 
I-80 to SR 12 W, I-680 NB to 
SR 12W (Jameson Canyon), I-
80 to I-680 (+ Express Lane 
Direct connectors), build local 
I/C and build new connecting 
local roads to SR 12/Red Top 
I/C.Phased 

PE, 
Construction Construction $717,920,000 6/1/2019 5% 6/1/2019 

Groundbreaking 
ceremeony for 
construciton 
package #1 
"Green Valley 
Interchange 
Project" took 
place on June 2, 
2014. 

Walters 
Road/Pintail 
Drive 

Suisun 
City 

Street 
Repair 

This project will include: 
evaluating the existing road 
conditions, concrete repairs of 
sidewalks, upgrades to ADA 
ramps and evaluation of 
existing drainage structures and 
coordination with local utilities. 
The two roadways will receive 
either a 2" asphalt overlay with 
fabric or ARCS application; 

PE, 
Construction Construction $402,123 8/8/2014 5% 8/8/2014 

E-76 Recieved 
from Caltrans 
4/16/14 

Allison Bicycle / 
Ped 
Improvements Vacaville Bike/Ped 

This project consists of bike 
and pedestrian improvements 
within or serving the Allison 
Priority Development Area at 
three locations: 1) Allison 
Drive Sidewalk (East Side) - 
construct a 7-foot wide 
sidewalk and 20-foot wide 
landscape buffer along the east 
side of Allison Drive from the 
Vacaville Transportation 
Center Entrance (across from 
Travis Way) to Nut Tree 
Parkway. Also install a 
marquee sign at the corner of 
Nut Tree Parkway and Allison 
Drive. 2) Allison Drive Bike 
Path (West Side) - construct a 
10-foot wide Class 1 bike path 
on Allison Drive between 
Ulatis Creek and Ulatis Drive. 

Preliminary 
Engineering, 
ROW, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $510,600 12/15/2014 5% 10/1/2016 

E-76 for PE 
received January 
16th 2014 

Ulatis Creek 
Bike/Ped Path & 
Stscpe Vacaville Bike/Ped 

The project consists of 
construction of a Class 1 off-

street bike/pedestrian path 
along Ulatis Creek between the 
end of the Vacaville Downtown 
Creekwalk at McClellan Street 
and Depot Street. The project 

would include the theme of the 
Downtown Creekwalk. 

PE, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $564,900 12/15/2014 5% 9/1/2016 

E-76 for PE 
received 
December 31 2013 

287



Color Key Code 

= Project is On-Track  

= Project Info Needs Updating/Missed Project Delivery Milestone   

= Project Missed Delivery Deadline 

  

2014 Pavement 
Resurfacing 
Project Vacaville 

Street 
Repair 

In Vacaville: Pavement 
Resurfacing Project - Pavement 
resurfacing of the various roads 
within Solano County Construction Construction $1,451,000 12/1/2014 0% 12/1/2014 

Vacaville City 
Council approved 
construction bids 
on 6/10/14. 

HSIP5-04-031 
Sonoma 
Boulevard 
Improvements Vallejo 

Street 
Improvem
ents 

Vallejo: Sonoma Blvd between 
York St and Kentucky St: 
Implement road diet - reduce 
travel lanes from 4 to 
3,including a two-way left-turn 
lane or median, and add bike 
lanes 

Preliminary 
Engineering, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $351,633 10/1/2014 80% 11/1/2016   

Vallejo 
Downtown 
Streetscape - 
Phase 3 Vallejo 

Pedestrian 
Safety 

Improvements on Georgia 
Street, between Santa Clara and 
Sacramento Street and 
Sacramento Street between 
Virginia Street and Georgia 
Street.  Downtown Vallejo: 
Pedestrian and bicycle-friendly 
enhancements including traffic 
calming, diagonal street 
parking, decorative lighting, 
decorative pavers, street 
furniture, art, improved 
signage. Construction Construction $3,894,000 10/13/2015 0% 10/13/2015 

Project 
Construction in 
two phases.  
Working with 
Caltrans and 
FHWA to obligate 
earmark funding 
for FY 13/14.  A 
delay occurred 
between Caltrans 
Dist 4 and 
Caltrans HQ.  
Vallejo and STA 
are working to 
resolve this issue. 

Vallejo SRTS 
Infrastructure 
Improvements Vallejo 

SR2S - 
Capitol 

Intersection, striping, and 
signage improvements in the 
vicinity of Wardlaw 
Elementary and Cooper 
Elementary School. High 
visibility crosswalks and 
pedestrian signs will be the first 
priority projects, with 
additional lane reconfiguration 
with any remaining funds. 

Preliminary 
Engineering, 
ROW, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $280,428 10/1/2014 10% 8/15/2015 

Still needs funding 
agreement 

 

 

 

288



Projects to be Obligated during FY 14/15 

Project Name Sponsor 
Project 
Type Project Description 

Phases in 
Project 

Current 
Phase 

Total 
Project Cost 

Estimate 

Phase 
Completion 

Expected 

Percent 
Complete 
(Current 

Phase) 

Project 
Completion 

Expected Notes 

West A Street 
Paving Project Dixon 

Street 
Repair 

West A Street from Pitt School 
Road to I-80: repave and install 
fabric, minor concrete repairs, 
and utility cover adjustments. 

PE, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $659,663 9/13/2014 70% 9/13/2015 

Caltrans has not 
reviewed the project 
yet. Expected 
review to occur in 
July 2014. Project 
delivery schedule 
estimates this at 
10/13/2013 

Beck Avenue 
Pavement 
Rehabilitation Fairfield 

Street 
Repair 

"Pavement rehabilitation of 
Beck Avenue, from Highway 
12 to West Texas Street, 
including ADA improvements." 

PE, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $1,980,000 12/13/2014   1/15/2016 

Has Caltrans Field 
Review Occurred? 
Project delivery 
schedule estimates 
this at 1/13/2014 

Fairfield/Vacavi
lle Intermodal 
Rail Station Fairfield Transit 

 Construct train station with 
passenger platforms, pedestrian 
undercrossing, highway 
overcrossing, park and ride lot, 
bike and other station facilities. 
Project is phased. 

ENV, PSE, 
PE, ROW, 

Construction ROW $68,000,000 TBD   TBD 

RM2 funds 
approved by CTC at 
June meeting 

SR 12 Crossing 
with updated 
lighting Rio Vista 

SR2S - 
Capitol 

In Rio Vista: At SR12 crossing: 
Install new updated lighted 
crosswalk 

PE, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $130,000 6/1/2014 25% 10/31/2015 

Encroachment 
permit submitted to 
Caltrans. Field 
Review complete. 
Plan view concept 
diagram design 
complete. 

Waterfront 
Promenade 
Phase 2 Rio Vista Bike/Ped 

Pedestrian, bicycle, and ADA 
access improvements 
connecting immediately to the 
south of Phase I improvements 
and connecting to Front Street 
at Logan St. 

PE, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $511,000 12/31/2014 25% 9/2/2015 

Environmental 
document 
(Mitigated Neg. 
Declaration) for 
Caltrans and 
resolution of local 
support for MTC 
approved by City 
Council, and sent 
for approval by the 
STA Board. 

289



Roadway 
Preservation in 
Solano County 

Solano 
County 

Street 
Improvem
ents 

Solano County: Various streets: 
Pavement resurfacing and/or 
rehabilitation including: 
Overlay, widen pavement 
surface with no added capacity, 
stripe and add signs. Project is 
phased 

Preliminary 
Engineering, 
Construction Construction $1,692,600 6/15/2015 0% 6/15/2015 

Project Delivery 
Sheet needs 
updating 

Suisun-Fairfield 
Intercity Rail 
Station 

Suisun 
City Transit 

The Project, which is within an 
approved PDA, will improve 
pedestrian and bicycle access 
along the routes to and from the 
Suisun Train Station in the 
Historic Waterfront District by 
removing obstacles, upgrading 
pedestrian facilities to current 
ADA standards, installing 
additional bicycle facilities, 
providing better lighting, adding 
signage, pavement markings, 
installing fencing to 
discourage/prevent jaywalking 
across Main Street, installing 
countdown pedestrian heads at 
traffic signals.  

PE, 
Construction PE $700,100 9/16/2014 75% 4/1/2015 

The project was 
delayed due to an 
extended 
environmental 
review process and 
historical 
assessment.  Project 
design was 
approved by City 
Council at June 
Board meeting. 
Expect obligation in 
FY 14/15 

Driftwood Drive 
Path (SR2S) 

Suisun 
City 

SR2S - 
Capitol 

Construct a Class I 
bicycle/pedestrian trail along 
the the south side of Driftwood 
Drive from Marina Boulevard 
to Josiah Circle. Project scope 
will also include, but not limited 
to a curb bulbout, concrete 
valley gutter, drainage facilities, 
upgrade of curb ramps to ADA-
compliant curb ramps, 
crosswalk enhancements, chain 
link fence,monument sign, 
signs, pavement marking, tree 
replacement, street lighting,and 
adjusting utility frames and 
grates. 

PE, 
Construction PE $399,065 4/1/2015 50% 9/1/2015 

Needs Funding 
Agreement 

290



Vallejo 
Downtown 
Streetscape - 
Phase 3 Vallejo 

Pedestrian 
Safety 

Improvements on Georgia 
Street, between Santa Clara and 
Sacramento Street and 
Sacramento Street between 
Virginia Street and Georgia 
Street.  Downtown Vallejo: 
Pedestrian and bicycle-friendly 
enhancements including traffic 
calming, diagonal street 
parking, decorative lighting, 
decorative pavers, street 
furniture, art, improved signage. Construction Construction $3,894,000 10/13/2015 0% 10/13/2015 

Project Construction 
in two phases.  
Working with 
Caltrans and FHWA 
to obligate earmark 
funding for FY 
13/14.  A delay 
occurred between 
Caltrans Dist 4 and 
Caltrans HQ.  
Vallejo and STA are 
working to resolve 
this issue. 

Ramp Metering 
Phase II Caltrans ITS 

Ramp metering is used to 
manage entries so that the 
freeway can be regulated during 
peak periods of congestion, AM 
and PM commuter hours. Construction Construction ? 3/1/2015 0% 3/1/2015 

Need Project 
Delivery Sheet 

 
  

291



 

Projects to be Obligated in FY 15/16 

Project Name Sponsor 
Project 
Type Project Descripiton 

Phases in 
Project 

Current 
Phase 

Total 
Project Cost 

Estimate 

Phase 
Completion 

Expected 

Percent 
Complete 
(Current 

Phase) 

Project 
Completion 

Expected Notes 

Dixon SR2S 
Infrastructure 
Improvements Dixon 

SR2S - 
Capitol 

On North Lincoln Street at CA Jacobs 
and On Pheasant Run Drive at Tremont 
Elementary School: Construct sidewalk 
bulb-out; At various schools: Install 
high visability crosswalks; at CA 
Jacobs: install bike racks and overhead 
covering; Near Silveyville Elementary 
School: Install gate in fence along 
pedestrian path; on Rehrmann Drive 
from Evans Road to North Lincoln 
Street : Restripe bike lane; Along 
Rehrmann Drive at Tremont Elementary 
School : Plant trees and gate 
improvements; At Tremont Elementary 
and CA Jacobs; Miscellaneous striping 
improvements. 

PE, 
Construction Construction $124,956   0    

Need Project 
Delivery Sheet 

Jepson: 
Vanden Rd 
from Peabody 
to LT STA 

Street 
Improvem
ents 

The Jepson Parkway Project would 
upgrade and link a series of existing 
local two- and four-lane roadways (as 
well as construct an extension of an 
existing roadway under one alternative) 
to provide a four- to six-lane north-
south travel route for motorists who face 
increasing congestion when traveling 
between jurisdictions in central Solano 
County. 

PE, PSE, 
ROW, CON PE & ROW $27,299,830 8/1/2015 0  4/15/2018 

Need Project 
Delivery Sheet 

Jepson: LT 
Road from 
Vanden to 
Commerce STA 

Street 
Improvem
ents 

The Jepson Parkway Project would 
upgrade and link a series of existing 
local two- and four-lane roadways (as 
well as construct an extension of an 
existing roadway under one alternative) 
to provide a four- to six-lane north-
south travel route for motorists who face 
increasing congestion when traveling 
between jurisdictions in central Solano 
County. 

PE, PSE, 
ROW, CON PE & ROW $21,879,800 

PE 6/30/14; 
ROW 

6/30/15 0  2018 
Need Project 
Delivery Sheet 

292



Vacaville 
SRTS 
Infrastructure 
Improvements 

Vacavill
e 

SR2S - 
Capitol 

Construct capital improvements 
including sidewalk, curb ramps and 
extensions, crosswalks, bike network 
improvements and signage and safety 
improvements 

Preliminary 
Engineering, 
Construction 

Preliminary 
Engineering $342,607 12/15/2014 0% 9/1/2016 

field review 
tentative for 
5/6/14, hope to 
advance const 
schedule to 
2015 if env 
process is 
smooth. 

 

293



This page intentionally left blank. 

294



Attachment C 

Currently listed Inactive Projects 
Updated by Caltrans: June 5, 2016 

Agency Project Unexpended 
Funds 

Status 

Solano County 

CORDELIA RD. FROM LOPES RD 
TO PITTMAN RD.  , PEDESTRIAN 
PATHS, BENCHES $27,193.76  

Submit invoice to District by 
05/20/2014. Invoice past due.  
Contact DLAE. 

Fairfield 

MCGARY RD BET RED TOP RD 
AND LYNCH CANYON RD , 
REPAIR/REPLACE RD WITH 
CLASS 2 BIKE $156,222.04  

Submit invoice to District by 
08/20/2014 

Solano County 

VANDEN RD. AT NORTH GATE 
OF TRAVIS AFB  , ROADWAY 
SAFETY IMPROVEMENT $102,203.59  

Submit invoice to District by 
08/20/2014 

Solano 
Transportation 
Authority 

NEAR AND AROUND MULTIPLE 
ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS IN 
SOLANO COUNTY, 
WALKING,BICYCLE, TRAIN 
ENCOURAGEMENT PROGRAM $430,609.23  

Invoice under review by Caltrans.  
Monitor for progress. 

295



This page intentionally left blank. 

296



Agenda Item 12.F 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 

 
 
DATE:  June 25, 2014 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Judy Kowalsky, Accounting Technician 
RE:  Fiscal Year (FY) 2013-14 Abandoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) Program 
  Third Quarter Report 
 
 
Background: 
The Solano Transportation Authority (STA) administers the Abandoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) 
Program for Solano County.  These administrative duties include disbursing funds collected by the 
State Controller's Office from the Department of Motor Vehicle (DMV) vehicle registration fee of $1 
per registered vehicle, using the funding formula of 50% based on population and 50% on vehicles 
abated.  
 
The AVA Member Agencies for Solano County are the City of Benicia, City of Dixon, City of 
Fairfield, City of Rio Vista, City of Suisun City, City of Vacaville, City of Vallejo, and County of 
Solano.   
 
Discussion: 
For the Third Quarter, STA received the allocation from the State Controller’s Office in the amount of 
$94,595 and has deducted $2,838 for administrative costs.  The STA disbursed cost reimbursement to 
member agencies for the Third Quarter in the total amount of $74,831.  The remaining AVA fund 
balance after the third quarter disbursement to the member agencies is $152,165.  
 
Attachment A is a matrix summarizing the AVA Program activities through the Third Quarter FY 
2013-14 and is compared to the total FY 2012-13 numbers of abated vehicles and cost reimbursements 
submitted by the members of the Solano County’s AVA Program.  This matrix shows total program 
activities at 99% compared to the FY 2012-13. 
 
The County of Solano has reported a total of 26 vehicles abated through the end of the third quarter. 
This represents an increase of 137% compared to the FY 2012-13.  
 
The Cities of Benicia, Fairfield and Suisun continue to have increased total program activities as 
compared to the total FY 2012-13.  
 
The City of Rio Vista has not reported any vehicles abated as of the end of the third quarter.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None 
 
Recommendation: 
Receive and file. 
 
Attachment: 

A. Summary of Solano Abandoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) Program for FY 2013-14 and FY 
2012-13 

297



ATTACHMENT A 
 
 

Summary of Solano Abandoned Vehicle Abatement (AVA) Program for 
FY 2013-14 and FY 2012-13 

Third Quarter Ending March 31, 2013 
 

FY 2013-14  

 
 
 

FY 2012-13 
 
 
Member Agency 

# of 
Abated 
Vehicles 

Reimbursed 
Amount 

Avg. Cost per 
Abatement 

% of Abated 
Vehicle from 

Prior FY 

# of 
Abated 
Vehicles 

 
Reimbursed 

Amount 
Avg. Cost per 

Abatement 

City of Benicia 267 $6,154 $23 861% 31 $8,064 $260 

City of Dixon 117 $12,324 $105 69% 170 $12,063 $71 

City of Fairfield 1,270 $53,356 $42 109% 1,162 $52,891 $46 

City of Rio Vista 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 

City of Suisun 132 $24,535 $186 128% 103 $41,709 $405 

City of Vacaville 60 $41,495 $691 50% 121 $87,813 $726 

City of Vallejo 1,201 $150,470 $125 81% 1,484 $165,252 $111 

Solano County 
Unincorporated 
area 

26 $5,410 $208  137% 19 $1,975 $104 

Total 3,073 $293,744 $96 99% 3,090 $369,768 $120 

  
The total remaining AVA fund available after the third quarter disbursement to member agencies 
is $152,165.  This amount is available for disbursement to member agencies utilizing the funding 
formula, in addition to the State Controller’s Office allocation for the fourth quarter FY 2013-14. 
 

298



Agenda Item 12.G 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 
 

 
 

DATE:  June 30, 2014 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Andrew Hart, Associate Planner 
RE: Summary of Other Funding Opportunities  
 
 
Discussion: 
Below is a list of funding opportunities that will be available to STA member agencies during the 
next few months, separated by Federal, State, and Local. Attachment A provides further details 
for each program. 
 

 
FUND SOURCE 

AMOUNT 
AVAILABLE 

(approximately) 
APPLICATION 

DEADLINE 

 Regional1 

1.  Carl Moyer Memorial Air Quality Standards Attainment Program (for 
San Francisco Bay Area) 

Approximately $15 
million 

Due On First-Come, First 
Served Basis 

2.  Carl Moyer Off-Road Equipment Replacement Program (for 
Sacramento Metropolitan Area) 

Approximately $10 
million  

Due On First-Come, First-
Served Basis 

3.  Air Resources Board (ARB) Clean Vehicle Rebate Project (CVRP) Up to $2,500 rebate per 
light-duty vehicle 

Due On First-Come, First-
Served Basis (Waitlist)  

4.  Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) Hybrid Electric 
Vehicle Purchase Vouchers (HVIP) (for fleets)  

Approximately $10,000 
to $45,000 per qualified 
request 

Due On First-Come, First-
Served Basis 

5.  Active Transportation Program (Regional – MTC) $30 million Due July 24, 2014 

 State 
 Federal 

1. New Ladders of Opportunity  $100 million Due August 4, 2014 

 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
Informational.  
 
Attachment: 

A. Detailed Funding Opportunities Summary 

1 Local includes programs administered by the Solano Transportation Authority and regionally in the San Francisco 
Bay Area and greater Sacramento. 

299



This page intentionally left blank. 

300



Attachment A 

The following funding opportunities will be available to the STA member agencies during the next few months. Please distribute this information to 
the appropriate departments in your jurisdiction. 

Fund Source Application Contact** Application 
Deadline/Eligibility 

Amount 
Available 

Program Description Proposed 
Submittal 

Additional Information 

Regional Grants1 
Carl Moyer 
Memorial Air 
Quality 
Standards 
Attainment 
Program (for 
San Francisco 
Bay Area) 

Anthony Fournier 
Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District 
(415) 749-4961 
afournier@baaqmd.gov  

Ongoing. Application Due 
On First-Come, First 
Served Basis 
 
Eligible Project Sponsors: 
private non-profit 
organizations, state or 
local governmental 
authorities, and operators 
of public transportation 
services 

Approx. 
$15 million 

Carl Moyer Memorial Air Quality Standards Attainment 
Program provides incentive grants for cleaner-than-
required engines, equipment, and other sources of 
pollution providing early or extra emission reductions. 

N/A Eligible Projects: cleaner on-
road, off-road, marine, 
locomotive and stationary 
agricultural pump engines 
http://www.baaqmd.gov/Div
isions/Strategic-
Incentives/Funding-
Sources/Carl-Moyer-
Program.aspx  

Carl Moyer Off-
Road 
Equipment 
Replacement 
Program (for 
Sacramento 
Metropolitan 
Area) 

Gary A. Bailey 
Sacramento Metropolitan 
Air Quality Management 
District 
(916) 874-4893 
gbailey@airquality.org  
 
 

Ongoing. Application Due 
On First-Come, First-
Served Basis 
 
Eligible Project Sponsors: 
private non-profit 
organizations, state or 
local governmental 
authorities, and operators 
of public transportation 
services 

Approx. 
$10 
million, 
maximum 
per project 
is $4.5 
million 

The Off-Road Equipment Replacement Program (ERP), 
an extension of the Carl Moyer Program, provides grant 
funds to replace Tier 0, high-polluting off-road 
equipment with the cleanest available emission level 
equipment. 

N/A Eligible Projects: install 
particulate traps, replace 
older heavy-duty engines with 
newer and cleaner engines 
and add a particulate trap, 
purchase new vehicles or 
equipment, replace heavy-
duty equipment with electric 
equipment, install electric 
idling-reduction equipment 
http://www.airquality.org/m
obile/moyererp/index.shtml  

1 Regional includes opportunities and programs administered by the Solano Transportation Authority and/or regionally in the San Francisco Bay Area and greater Sacramento 
301

mailto:afournier@baaqmd.gov
http://www.baaqmd.gov/Divisions/Strategic-Incentives/Funding-Sources/Carl-Moyer-Program.aspx
http://www.baaqmd.gov/Divisions/Strategic-Incentives/Funding-Sources/Carl-Moyer-Program.aspx
http://www.baaqmd.gov/Divisions/Strategic-Incentives/Funding-Sources/Carl-Moyer-Program.aspx
http://www.baaqmd.gov/Divisions/Strategic-Incentives/Funding-Sources/Carl-Moyer-Program.aspx
http://www.baaqmd.gov/Divisions/Strategic-Incentives/Funding-Sources/Carl-Moyer-Program.aspx
mailto:gbailey@airquality.org
http://www.airquality.org/mobile/moyererp/index.shtml
http://www.airquality.org/mobile/moyererp/index.shtml


Fund Source Application Contact** Application 
Deadline/Eligibility 

Amount 
Available 

Program Description Proposed 
Submittal 

Additional Information 

Regional Grants1 
Air Resources 
Board (ARB) 
Clean Vehicle 
Rebate Project 
(CVRP)* 

Graciela Garcia 
ARB 
(916) 323-2781 
ggarcia@arb.ca.gov  

Application Due On First-
Come, First-Served Basis 
(Currently applicants are 
put on waitlist) 

Up to 
$5,000 
rebate per 
light-duty 
vehicle 

The Zero-Emission and Plug-In Hybrid Light-Duty 
Vehicle (Clean Vehicle) Rebate Project is intended to 
encourage and accelerate zero-emission vehicle 
deployment and technology innovation.  Rebates for 
clean vehicles are now available through the Clean 
Vehicle Rebate Project (CVRP) funded by the Air 
Resources Board (ARB) and implemented statewide by 
the California Center for Sustainable Energy (CCSE). 

N/A Eligible Projects: 
Purchase or lease of zero-
emission and plug-in hybrid 
light-duty vehicles 
http://www.arb.ca.gov/mspr
og/aqip/cvrp.htm  

Bay Area Air 
Quality 
Management 
District 
(BAAQMD) 
Hybrid Electric 
Vehicle 
Purchase 
Vouchers 
(HVIP)* 

To learn more about how 
to request a voucher, 
contact:  
888-457-HVIP 
info@californiahvip.org  

Application Due On First-
Come, First-Served Basis 

Approx. 
$10,000 to 
$45,000 per 
qualified 
request 

The California Air Resources Board (ARB) created the 
HVIP to speed the market introduction of low-emitting 
hybrid trucks and buses. It does this by reducing the 
cost of these vehicles for truck and bus fleets that 
purchase and operate the vehicles in the State of 
California. The HVIP voucher is intended to reduce 
about half the incremental costs of purchasing hybrid 
heavy-duty trucks and buses. 
 
 
 

N/A Eligible Projects: 
Purchase of low-emission 
hybrid trucks and buses 
http://www.californiahvip.or
g/  

Active 
Transportation 
Program (ATP) 
(Regional) 

Mitch Weiss 
California Transportation 
Commission 
(916) 654-7179 
mweiss@dot.ca.gov 

Due July 24, 2014 Approx.  
$30 million 

The Active Transportation Program (ATP) was created 
to encourage increased use of active modes of 
transportation, such as biking and walking. The ATP 
consolidates various federal and state transportation 
programs, including the Transportation Alternatives 
Program , Bicycle Transportation Account, and State 
Safe Routes to School, into a single program with a 
focus to make California a national leader in active 
transportation. 

Vallejo 
Downtown; 
STA SR2S; 
Suisun Valley 
Farm to 
Market; 
Suisun City 
Driftwood Dr; 
Vaca-Dixon 
Bike Route 

State applications are due 
before regional applications. 
All submissions to the state 
will automatically be carried 
over to the regional 
submissions for 
consideration.  
http://www.catc.ca.gov/progra
ms/ATP.htm  

*New Funding Opportunity 
**STA staff, Drew Hart, can be contacted directly at (707) 399-3214 or ahart@sta-snci.com for assistance with finding more information about any of the funding opportunities listed in this report 
 

Fund Source Application Contact** Application 
Deadline/Eligibility 

Amount 
Available 

Program Description Proposed 
Submittal 

Additional Information 

Federal Grants 
New Ladders of 
Opportunity 
 
(Prior Year 
Section 5309 
Bus and Bus 
Facilities 
Program) 

Sam Snead 
Federal Transit 
 (202) 366-3475 
Samuel.Snead@dot.gov  

August 4, 2014 Approx.  
$100 
million 

This is a competitive grant program offered through the 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA). The Program aims 
to modernize and expand transit bus service, specifically 
for the purpose of connecting disadvantaged and low-
income individuals, veterans, seniors, youths, and 
others with local workforce training, employment 
centers, health care, and other vital services. Program 
funds may be used to purchase, replace, or rehabilitate 
transit buses and vans as well as to modernize or 
construct bus facilities (such as maintenance depots and 
intermodal facilities). 

N/A Local match of 20% is 
needed and cannot be paired 
with other federal grants. 
Contact the FTA Region 9 
Office  
http:/www.fta.dot.gov for 
proposal-specific information 
and issues. 
 

 
 

302

mailto:ggarcia@arb.ca.gov
http://www.arb.ca.gov/msprog/aqip/cvrp.htm
http://www.arb.ca.gov/msprog/aqip/cvrp.htm
mailto:info@californiahvip.org
http://www.californiahvip.org/
http://www.californiahvip.org/
http://www.catc.ca.gov/programs/ATP.htm
http://www.catc.ca.gov/programs/ATP.htm
mailto:ahart@sta-snci.com
mailto:Samuel.Snead@dot.gov


Agenda Item 12.H 
July 9, 2014 

 
 
 
 
 

 
DATE:  June 2, 2014 
TO:  STA Board 
FROM: Johanna Masiclat, Clerk of the Board 
RE: STA Board and Advisory Meeting Schedule for Calendar Year 2014  
 
 
Discussion: 
Attached is the STA Board and Advisory meeting schedule for Calendar Year 2014. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
Informational. 
 
Attachment: 

A. STA Board and Advisory Meeting Schedule for Calendar Year 2014 

303



STA BOARD AND ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE MEETING SCHEDULE 
CALENDAR YEAR 2014 

 
DATE TIME DESCRIPTION LOCATION STATUS 
 

Wed., January 8 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Thurs., January 9 6:30 p.m. Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Thurs., January 16 1:00 p.m. Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) Solano Community College Tentative 
Tues., January 28 1:30 p.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Wed., January 29 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 
 

Wed., February 12 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Wed., February 19 1:30 p.m. Safe Routes to School Advisory (SR2S-AC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Thurs., February 20 6:00 p.m. Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Tues., February 25 1:30 p.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Wed., February 26 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 

 

Thurs., March 6 6:30 p.m. Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Wed., March 12 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Thurs., March 20 1:00 p.m. Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) Solano Community College Tentative 
Tues., March 25 1:30 p.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Wed., March 26 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 

 Wed., April 9 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Thurs., April 17 6:00 p.m. Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Tues., April 29 1:30 p.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Wed., April 30 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 

 Thurs., May 1 6:30 p.m. Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Wed., May14 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Thurs., May 15 1:00 p.m. Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) City of Benicia Tentative 
Tues., May 27 1:30 p.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Wed., May 28 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 

 Wed., June 11 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Wed., June 18 1:30 p.m. Safe Routes to School Advisory (SR2S-AC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Thurs., June 19 6:00 p.m. Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Tues., June 24 1:30 p.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Wed., June 25 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 

 Wed., July 9 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Thurs., July 17 1:00 p.m. Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) Fairfield Community Center Tentative 
Thurs., July 3 6:30 p.m. Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
July 30 (No Meeting) SUMMER 

RECESS 
Intercity Transit Consortium N/A N/A 

July 31 (No Meeting) Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) N/A N/A 
 Wed., August 13 1:30 p.m. Safe Routes to School Advisory (SR2S-AC) STA Conference Room Tentative 

August 14 (No Meeting) SUMMER 
RECESS 

STA Board Meeting  N/A N/A 

Thurs., August 21 6:00 p.m. Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Tues., August 26 1:30 p.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Wed., August 27 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 

 Thurs., September 4 6:30 p.m. Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Wed., September 10 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Wed., September 17 1:30 p.m. Safe Routes to School Advisory (SR2S-AC) Suisun City Hall Tentative 
Thurs., September 18 1:00 p.m. Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) Ulatis Community Center Tentative 
Tues., September 23 1:30 p.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Wed., September 24 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 

 Wed., October 8 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Thurs., October 16 6:00 p.m. Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
No meeting due to STA’s Annual Awards in 
November (No STA Board Meeting) 

Intercity Transit Consortium N/A N/A 
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) N/A N/A 

 Thurs., November 6 6:30 p.m. Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Wed., November 12 6:00 p.m. STA’s 17th Annual Awards TBD – Vallejo Confirmed 
Wed., November 19 1:30 p.m. Safe Routes to School Advisory (SR2S-AC) TBD Tentative 
Thurs., November 20 1:00 p.m. Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) John F. Kennedy Library Tentative 
Tues.., November TBD 10:00 a.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Confirmed 
Wed., November TBD 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Confirmed 

 Wed., December 10 6:00 p.m. STA Board Meeting Suisun City Hall Confirmed 
Thurs., December 18 6:00 p.m. Pedestrian Advisory Committee (PAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 
Tues., December TBD 1:30 p.m. Intercity Transit Consortium STA Conference Room Tentative 
Wed., December TBD 1:30 p.m. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) STA Conference Room Tentative 

 

SUMMARY: 
STA Board:  Meets 2nd Wednesday of Every Month 
Consortium/TAC: Meets Last Wednesday of Every Month 
BAC:  Meets 1st Thursday of every Odd Month 
PAC:  Meets 3rd Thursday of every Even Month 
PCC:  Meets 3rd Thursday of every Odd Month 
SR2S-AC  Meets Quarterly (Begins Feb.) on the 3rd Wed. 

304


	STA Board Agenda 07-09-14
	06_Executive Directors ReportJuly2014v2
	Att A 

	09.A_STA Board Meeting Minutes_06-11-14
	09.B_TAC Minutes_06-25-14
	09.C_TDA Matrix
	Att A
	Att B

	09.D_Vanpool Program Annual Report
	Att A

	09.E_SNCI FY 2014-15 Work Program
	09.F_MAPS
	Att A 
	Att B 
	Att C

	09.G PAC Appointment
	Att A
	Att B

	09.H_PCC Membership Status and Recommendation
	Att A
	Att B 

	09.I_Arup Contract Extension
	09.J_McElroy
	Att A 

	09.K_ERichards Contract
	Att A 

	09.L_NWC Partners Transit Mgr Contract Amendments
	Att A
	Att B

	09.M_SR2S Public Safety Enforcement Grant
	Att A
	Att B
	Att C

	09.N_SR2S Logo
	Att A 
	Att B
	Att C
	Att D 

	09.O_SR2S ATP Resolution
	Att A 

	09.P_SR 12 Church Rd Funding Agreement
	09.Q_Construction Management Services Dixon
	Att A 

	09.R_Office Lease FF Train Station_5.29.14
	Att A
	Att B
	Att C 

	10.A_FY 2014-15 Budget Revision and FY 2015-16 Proposed Budget
	Att A 
	Att B
	Att C
	Att D

	10.B_RTIF
	Att A
	Att B
	Att C
	Att D

	11.A_OWP 14-15
	Att A

	11.B_Annual Pothole
	12.A_Legislative Update
	Att A-E
	Att A
	Att B
	Att C
	Att D
	Att E


	12.B_I-80-I-680-SR 12 Interchange_Bike Improvements
	12.C_Rail Facilities Plan Update
	Att B 

	12.D SB 743 Update
	12.E_Project Delivery Update
	Att A
	Att B
	Att C 

	12.F_FY 2013-14 AVA Program 3rd Quarter Report
	12.G_Funding Opportunities
	Att A

	12.H_STA Board Meeting Schedule Memo
	Att A 




